

.

.

.

MANUAL/ 1985 CHURCH OF THE NAZARENE



NAZARENE PUBLISHING HOUSE Kansas City, Missouri

Published by the authority of the Twenty-first General Assembly held in Anaheim, Calif, June 23-28, 1985



Printed in the United States of America

All scripture quotations marked NIV are taken from The Holy Bible, New International Version, copyright () 1973, 1978, 1984 by the International Bible Society, and are used by permission. CHURCH CONSTITUTION AND SPECIAL RULES (1-99 Series)

> LOCAL GOVERNMENT (100 Series)

C

C

Ε

E

Ľ

C

Ľ

E

Г

DISTRICT GOVERNMENT (200 Series)

REGIONAL GOVERNMENT (280 Series)

GENERAL GOVERNMENT (300 Series)

MINISTRY AND CHRISTIAN SERVICE (400 Series)

> JUDICIAL ADMINISTRATION (500 Series)

> > BOUNDARIES (600 Series) (700 Series)

> > > RITUAL (800 Series)

AUXILIARY CONSTITUTIONS (800 Series)





. . . .

. . .

한 그는 것은 감독을 잡고 있는 것이다.

Market Provident

A set of the set of

FOREWORD

The Church of the Nazarene exists to serve as an instrument for advancing the kingdom of God through the preaching and teaching of the gospel throughout the world. Our well-defined commission is to preserve and propagate Christian holiness as set forth in the Scriptures, through the conversion of sinners, the reclamation of backsliders, and the entire sanctification of believers.

Our objective is a spiritual one, namely, to evangelize as a response to the Great Commission of our Lord to "go and make disciples of all nations" (Matthew 28:19-20, NIY, ef. John 2021; Marx 16:15). We believe that this aim can be realised through agreed-upon policies and procedures, including doctrinal tenest of faith and time-tested standards of morality and life style. This 1986 edition of the Manual is the summary of these important positions.

Thus the Manual includes a brief historical statement of the church; the church Constitution, which defines our Articles of Faith, our understanding of the church, General Rules for holy living, and principles of organization and government; Special Rules, which address key susses of contemporary society; and policies of church organization.

The General Assembly is the supreme doctrine-formulating and lownaing body of the Church of the Nanzenez. This Monand contains the decisions and judgments of ministerial and lug departs of the YearsU-first General Assembly, which not in Anaheim, Galif, June 22-28, 1985, and is therefore authortiative as a guide for action. Because it is the official statement of the faith and practice of the church and is consistent with the teachings of the Scriptures, we expect our people very-

FOREWORD

where to accept the tenets of doctrine and the guides and helps to holy living contained in it. To fail to do so, after formally taking the membership vows of the Church of the Nazarene, injures the witness of the church, violates her conscience, and dissipates the followship of the people called Nazarenes.

cataginates are renormalized to the Depole chains value definition. The government of the Church of the Nanzeneo is distinctive, and the second second second second second second second equal authority in the deliberative and has maintary have equal authority in the deliberative and lawmaking units of the church, there is a desirable and effective halances of power. We see this not only as an opportunity for participation and service in the church, but also as an obligation on the part of both laity and ministry.

Commitment and clear purpose are important. But an interligent and informed people following commonly agreed-upon practices and procedures advance the Kingdom Inster and enlance that winners for Christ. Threaders, it is inclusionst upon hance that winners for Christ. Threaders, it is inclusion upon the ideal Natarray. Adherence to the injunctions of these pages will mattrue legality and fulfifuliate both to God and the optimal efforts with the differences and efficiency of our spiritual efforts.

With the Bible as our supreme Guide, illuminated by the Holy Spirit, and the Manual as our official agreed-upon statement of faith, practice, and polity, we look forward to the new quadrennium with joy and unswerving faith in Jaeus Christ.

The Board of General Superintendents

EUGENE L. STOWE	JERALD D. JOHNSON
CHARLES H. STRICKLAND	JOHN A. KNIGHT
WILLIAM M. GREATHOUSE	RAYMOND W. HURN

6

CONTENTS

Foreword

PART I

Historical Statement

PART II

CHURCH CONSTITUTION

Preamble	23
Articles of Faith	23
The Church	32
Articles of Organization and Government	35
Amendments	38

PART III

SPECIAL RULES

A. The Christian Life	41
B. Marriage and Divorce and/or Dissolution of Marriage	44
C. Abortion	45
D. Homosexuality	46
E. Christian Stewardship	46
E Church Officers	48
G. Amending Special Rules	48

PART IV

GOVERNMENT

51 I. THE LOCAL CHURCH A. O: corporation, Property, ns, Mern B Man C. Evanov and Church Membershin Committee D. Change of Membershin

CONTENTS

	E. Termination of Membership	59
	E Church Meetings	60
	G. The Church Year	63
	H. Calling of a Pastor	63
	L Renewing the Call of the Pastor	65
	J. The Church Board	68
	K. The Stewards	73
	L. The Local Stewardship Committee	74
	M. The Trustees	74
	N. Christian Life and Sunday School	75
	O. The Christian Life and Sundsy School Board	76
	P. Nazarene Christian Day Schools	82
	Q. The Local Nazarene Youth International	82
	R. The Local Nazarene World Mission Society	83
	S. Prohibition of Financial Appeals	84
	T. Use of the Church Name	85
	U. Church-sponsored Corporation	85
	V. Paid Assistants in the Local Church	86
I.	THE DISTRICT ASSEMBLY	
	A. Bounds and Name	88
	B. Membership and Time of Meeting	89
	C. Business of the District Assembly	90
	D. The District Assembly Journal E. The District Superintendent	96
	E. The District Superintendent	97
	R The District Secretary	100
	G. The District Treasurer	101
	H. The District Advisory Board	102
	L The District Ministerial Credentials Board J. The District Ministerial Studies Board	105
		106
	K. The District Home Missions Board	108
	L. The District Church Properties Board M. The District Ministerial Benevolence Board	109
	N. The District Ministerial Benevolence Board N. The District Finance Committee	110
	O. The District Finance Committee	110
	P. The District Christian Life and	110
	Sunday School Board	
	Q. The District Navarana Youth International	110
	Q. The District Nazarene Youth International R. The District Nazarene World Mission Society	113 113
		113
	T. District Paid Assistants	114
	U. Disorganization of a District	114

CONTENTS

III. THE REGION	
A. Origin and Purpose	116
B. Functions	116
IV. THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY	
A. Functions and Organization	118
B. Membership of the General Assembly	118
C. The Time and Place of Meeting	119
D. Special Sessions	120
E. General Assembly Arrangements Committee	120
E Business of the General Assembly	121
G. The General Superintendents	123
H. General Superintendents Emeriti and Retired	124
I. The Board of General Superintendents	125
J. The General Secretary	128
K. The General Treasurer	129
L. The General Board	130
M. General Board Organization	137
N. General Church-related Boards	146
O. General Committees and Agencies	147
P. The General Nazarene Youth International	149
Q. The General Council of the	
General Nazarene World Mission Society	149
R. Administrative Boards	150
S. National Boards	151
T. The Fiscal Year	152

PART V

MINISTRY AND CHRISTIAN SERVICE

I. CALL AND QUALIFICATIONS OF THE MINISTER 15

II. CREDENTIALS AND MINISTERIAL REGULATIONS

A. The Local Minister	157
B. The Licensed Minister	158
C. The Deacon	161
D. The Elder	162
E. The Recognition of Elder's Orders	163
E The Retired Minister	164

CONTENTS

	G. The Transfer of Ministers	165
	H. The Resignation or Removal from the Ministry	166
	I. The Restoration of Ministers to	
	Church Membership and Standing	167
	J. General Regulations	168
III.	CATEGORIES AND ROLES OF MINISTRY	
	A. The Administrator	175
	B. The Chaplain	175
	C. The Deaconess	175
	D. The Educator	175
	E. The Evangelist	176
	E. The Lay Minister	177
	G. The Minister of Christian Education	177
	H. The Minister of Music	178
	L The Missionary	178
	J. The Pastor	179
	K. The Song Evangelist	182
	L. Special Service	183
IV.	EDUCATION FOR MINISTERS	
	A. For Ministers	184
	B. General Guidelines for Preparation for	
	Christian Ministry	186
	PART VI	

JUDICIAL ADMINISTRATION

L	CHURCH DISCIPLINE	189
II.	DISCIPLINE OF A LAYMAN	189
III.	DISCIPLINE OF A MINISTER	190
IV.	RULES OF PROCEDURE	193
V.	DISTRICT COURT OF APPEALS	193
VI.	GENERAL COURT OF APPEALS	194
VII.	REGIONAL COURT OF APPEALS	195
VIII.	GUARANTY OF RIGHTS	100

10

PART VII

BOUNDARIES

I.	Assembly Districts—	
	UNITED STATES AND CANADA	199

II. ASSEMBLY DISTRICTS-WORLD MISSION 212

PART VIII

RITUAL

I.	THE SACRAMENT OF BAPTISM	
	A. The Baptism of Believers	219
	B. The Baptism of Infants or Young Children	220
	C. The Dedication of Infants or Young Children	221
II.	THE RECEPTION OF CHURCH MEMBERS	223
III.	THE SACRAMENT OF THE LORD'S SUPPER	225
IV.	MATRIMONY	226
V.	THE FUNERAL SERVICE	228
VI.	INSTALLATION OF OFFICERS	231
VII.	CHURCH DEDICATIONS	233

PART IX

AUXILIARY CONSTITUTIONS

I.	CONSTITUTIONS FOR NAZARENE	
	YOUTH INTERNATIONAL	237
п.	CONSTITUTIONS FOR NAZARENE	
	WORLD MISSION SOCIETIES	237
III.	BYLAWS OF THE SUNDAY SCHOOL	249

CONTENTS

PART X

FORMS

I.	THE LOCAL CHURCH	261
П.	THE DISTRICT ASSEMBLY	264
ш	BILLS OF CHARGES	264

PART XI

APPENDIX

I.	GENERAL OFFICERS	267
II.	Administrative Boards, Councils, and Educational Institutions	268
IIL	Administrative Policies	273
IV.	INTERPRETATION OF CHURCH LAW	277
V.	CURRENT MORAL AND SOCIAL ISSUES	279
Speci	ial Revision Index	285
Inde	x of "Vacant Paragraphs"	286
Man	ual Index	287

Historical Statement

PART I

5.11

r

HISTORICAL STATEMENT

I. Near the close of the 19th century, a movement for the spread and conservation of arciptural holinness in cognizied church form developed almost simultaneously in various parts of the builted States. This movement was similar to the Wes-leyan revisal of the previous century. The manifestation everywhere of a spontaneous drawing in the units of the Spirit iso-theorem of the spinitation of the Pasteron of the Spirit solution of the Spirit solu

The great impulse of this movement has been the emphasis placed by the Scriptures upon the fact that, in the Atonement, Jesus Christ has made provision, not only to save men from their sins, but also to perfect them in love.

II. On May 12, 1586, a number of the brotheren in Providence, RL, interestant in premericing the Weilsram doctring and religious merices, first in private house, but after a few months in a motied stores on Oxford Stretc, On Manarz 16, 1587, 1897, the Pople's Evangilical Church was cognizated with 31 members, with Dec 7, A Hillery acting a passion. On November Stretcher and Stretcher and Stretcher and Stretcher and The Stretcher and Stretcher and Stretcher and Stretcher Rev. C. Howard Duck as parator, On March 13 and 14, 100, representative from these duraches and other stretcher and stretcher Rev. C. Howard Duck as parator, On March 13 and 14, 100, Flore, Mass., and ergenized the Central Broughilds Holizes Absochation, Env. V. Dyklor, passior of the Independent Construction of the Mission Church, Madden, Mass., the Benmany Mission Church, Nucl. Addison, Mass., edu Februard Holized Church Holized Church, Mass., edu Februard Holized Church Holized Church,

In January, 1894, William Howard Hoople, a businessman in New York City, founded a mission in Brooklyn, which, in the following May, was organized as an independent church with a numbership of 35, and was called the Ukra Arenno Penntcontal Tohennica. After a touche differ was reacted, M. Hoople was called to the pastoritor. The following February, in an abandoord church building the Bedford Arenno Pentcostal Churchwas organizad, and a little later the Ramanual Pentcostal Tohennica. In Desconting of Wester Star Markowski and Arbitrary and Arabitrary and the Arbitrary of description, and hybridy and formal the Association of Pentcostal Churcheon Arbitrary and Arabitrary and Arbitrary and Arbitrary and Arbitrary with Rev William Howsel Hoople in this work was Revs. H. R. Holes, John Norters Charles H. Beller, and H. F. Revondki

On November 12, 1898, a joint committee from these two sociations mein the city of Brodyku for formulate some plan of union. For the Besefit of their counsel and cooperation, we have the source of the source of the source of the Davis, G. W. Wilson, John Norberry, H. F. Reynolds, H. B. Hoes, and Charles H. Beiler. This meating resulted in the union of the two bodies. It was agreed that the work should be conlouristications of the source of the

III. In October, 1895, a runnber of premos, under the lead, enhop Gree, Phinnes R. Bresse, DJu, and J. P. Winherey, M.D., formed the First Church of the Nazarene at Los Angeles, with 35 charter members. They adopted interments on their and agreed to such general rules as seemed proper and needful for whether providence structures, leaving to the future the making of unch providence structures, leaving to the future the making of such providence structures, leaving to the future the making of such providence structures, leaving to the future the making of such providence structures, reaching as far east as Chicaron.

IV. As the group from the East and the group from the West came to know each other better, the feeling grew that they should unit. From their conference the following basis of union was prepared and adopted unanimously by both bodies:

BASIS OF UNION

It is agreed that the two churches are one in the doctrines considered essential to salvation, especially the doctrines of justification by faith and entire sanctification subsequent to justification, also by faith, and as a result, the precious experience of entire sanctification as a normal coadition of the charches. Both churches recognize that the right of church membership rests upon experience and that persons who have been born of the Soirit are entitled to its privileges.

We are agreed on the necessity of a superintendency, which shall foster and care for churches already established and whose daty it shall be to organize and encourage the organizing of churches everywhere.

We are agreed that authority given to superintendents shall not interfere with the independent action of a fully organized church, each church enjoying the right of electing its own panots, subject to such approval as the General Assembly shall find wise to institute, the election of delegates to the various assemblies; the management of their own finances; and of all other things pertaining to their local life and work.

It is agreed that any church of the Association of Pentecostal Churches of America going into this organization which may feel it imperative with them to continue to hold their property in like manner as at present, shall be at likerity to do so.

The first union assembly was held in Chicago in October, 1907. It was agreed that the name of the united body should be The Pentecostal Church of the Nazarene.

V. In 1894 at Milan, Tenn, the New Testament Church of Christ was organized with 14 members by Rev. R. L. Harris to conserve and promote scriptural holiness. The influence of this church soon spread throughout western Texas and Arkansas. Prominent among the leaders was Rev. Mrs. Mary Lee Calge, formerly the wife of Rev. R. L. Harris, who continued the work after her husband's death.

In 1888 the first holiness churches in Texas were organized by Revs. Thomas Rogers and Dennis Rogers, who came from California.

In 1901 the first Independent Holiness church was organized at Van Alstyne, Tex., by Rev. C. B. Jernigan. This denomination grew and prospered until, in 1903, there were 20 church organizations.

The legal representatives of the Independent Holiness church and the New Testament Church of Christ met at Rising Star, Tex., in November, 1904, where a joint committee framed a Manual and a statement of doctrine and basis of union. The union was fully consummated at Pilot Point, Tex., in November, 1905, and the united body adopted the name Holiness Church of Christ.

VI. In 1907 several representatives from the Holiness Charts of Christ sequences the invitable of the Particested Charts of Christ sequences and the invitable of the control of the co

VII. In 1988 Rev. 4. 0. McCintran and a few chere called a meeting of the holices people of Transsess and adjuscent states to be hold in Nashvilla. At this convertion an association was hirter charged to the Protocoal McManne Preus in associaing these people wave evanpilities in spirit and had a barraing data to disseminate the doctrize and expressions of annel transfer and the doctrize and expressions of annel they applied proper state of the state of the state of the proper people wave resonance in the state of the state protocol and the state of the state of the state of the protocol and the state of the state state of the state of the state of the state of the state state of the methy state of the state of the state of the state state of the state of the state of the state of the state state of the state of the state of the state state state state of the state state of the state state of the state st

At different times the question of the union of the Pen-At different times the question of the union of the Pentecostal Mission with the Fencesotal Church of the Nazarene had been discussed. Finally on Pebruary 13, 1915, this union was effected at Nashville, thus uniting both the home and the

HISTORICAL STATEMENT

foreign work of the Pentecostal Mission and the Pentecostal Church of the Nazarene.

VIII. In November, 1901, the first stage in the present holiness church movement in the British lakes began, when Rev. George Sharpe, who had been for 139 years a preacher in the Methodiat Episcopal church, accepted a call to the Congregational church at Ardrossan, Scotland. In September, 1906, he beams eminister of Parkbased Congregational Church, Glasgow Methodia, he was evicted for presching Bibh holiness. On Seutember 30, 1906, the first advisor.

On September 30, 1006, the first services of the first distinctively holicess clurch were hold in the Great Bastern Roads Hall, Glasgow. The charter members numbered 80. Other fourises were organized and beares the Pentecostal Church of Scotland, Visits of Drs. R. Walker and H. F. Reynolds to to the Fourth Greeneral Assembly at Kanasa City. Hol the way to union with the Church of the Mazarena, which was consummated in November, 1915.

IX. The General Assembly of 1919, in response to memorials from 35 district assemblies, changed the name of the organization to Church of the Nazarene.

X. For many years a boliness movement had been developing in Minnesota, the Dokota, and Mottana. It was originated by a group of Methodist laymen and was formally organized in 1971 at Januscience, NDL, as the Layment Poliness Ansociation and the Dokota strain and the second strain and the sociation of the second strain and the second strain and over 20 other evangalists and workers engaged in a widespread program of Moliness evangations and comp meeting promotions. In 1922, under the isofering of these miniaters, more continue to the second strain and the second strain and the second strain and the Carachy of the Nazerene.

XI. During the quadrennium 1952-56, two holiness groups in Britain merged with the Church of the Nazarene.

The International Holiness Mission, founded in London in

1997 by Mr. David Thomas, buincessnan and hy preacher, communated unions with the Church of the Nararene in Leeds, England, October 29, 1952, with General Soperintendent Hubbler, C. Power, et al. (1998) and the Church and the Hubble Church and the Church and the Church and the Church of the Nararene in the British Isles, was upder dent-minister. The union forcught 28 churches, over 1,400 Coursch of the Nararene minister in South Africa into the Coursch of the Nararene minister in South Africa into the Coursch of the Nararene minister in South Africa into the

By about 35 years the Calvary Holiness church of Britain carried on its ministry of holiness examplism under the leadership of Rev. Maynard James and Rev. Jack Port, Union of the Calvary Holiness church with the Church of the Nazernee was consummated Jame 11, 1955, at Manchaster, England, with General Superintendents Samoul Young officiating, About 22 churches and over 600 members came into the church as a result of this union.

XII. The Gospel Workners church of Canada united with the Church of the Nazarane on September 7, 1963. Under the leaderabip of flew. Albert Mills, president, and Rev. C. J. McNichol, Secretary, the units noted place with Mc. Stamuel Gori, son of the founder, Rev. Frank D. Goff, of the Gospel Workners church, acting an atomic in the negativition. The unito was comuelly foung and added free of General Superintendent Samuel Young and added free to the Gospel Internet to the Canada Central District.

20



Church Constitution

ARTICLES OF FAITH

THE CHURCH

ARTICLES OF ORGANIZATION AND GOVERNMENT

AMENDMENTS

PREAMBLE

In order that we may preserve our Godgiven heritage, the finith once dilverse to the snint, especially the doctrice and experience of entite" samelification as a second work of grave, and the same of the source of the same of the same of the other Charter of entity of the same of the Namere in heave fravitational same of the same of the Samere in the fundamental the or Constitution of the Samere in the fundamental the or Constitution of the Charter of the Namere in the Articles of Philk, the Green of Godyng, and set for the or Organization and fortunes the transtitution of the Samere in the Articles of Philk, the Green Godyng, and the other of Organization and fortunes the trans-

* * *

ARTICLES OF FAITH

I. The Triune God

 We believe in one eternally existent, infinite God, Sovereign of the universe; that He only is God, creative and administrative, holy in nature, attributes, and purpose; that He, as God, is Triune in essential being, revealed as Father, Son, and Holy Spirit.

Genesis 1	John 14:6-27
Leviticus 19:2	1 Corinthians 8:6
Deuteronomy 6:4-5	2 Corinthians 13:14
Isniah 5:16; 6:1-7; 40:18-31	Galatians 4:4-6
Matthew 3:16-17; 28:19-20	Ephesians 2:13-18**

"Weeds in Italics are new weeds, and weeds in preentheses are words being deleted, and indicate those Constitutional changes adopted by the 1985 General Assembly which are in the process of ratification by the district assemblies at the time of printing.

**Scripture references are supportive of the Articles of Faith and were placed here by the action of the 1978 General Assembly but are not to be considered as part of the Constitutional text.

24 [12]

II. Jesus Christ

2. We believe in Jeaus Christ, the Second Person of the Triune Godhead; that He was eternally one with the Pather; that He became incarnate by the Holy Spirit and was born of the Virgin Mary, so that two whole and perfect natures, that is to say the Godhead and manhood, are thus united in one Person very God and very man, the God-man.

We believe that Jesus Christ died for our sins, and that He truly arose from the dead and took again His body, together with all things appertaining to the perfection of man's nature, wherewith He ascended into heaven and is there engaged in intercession for us.

Matthew 1:20-25; 16:15-16	Philippians 2:5-11
Luke 1:26-35	Colossians 1:12-22
John 1:1-18	1 Timothy 6:14-16
Acts 2:22-36	Hebrews 1:1-5; 7:22-28; 9:24-28
Romans 8:3, 32-34	1 John 1:1-3: 4:2-3, 15
Galatians 4:4-5	

III. The Holy Spirit

3. We believe in the Holy Spirit, the Third Person of the Triune Goldbaut, that He is ever present and efficiently active in and with the Church of Christ, convincing the world of sin, regenerating those who repent and believe, sanctifying believleven 328. Icite 18, 28, 167-16. I Threenotems 47.8

 John 7:39; 14:15-18, 26; 16:7-15
 1
 Thessalocians 4:7-8

 Acta 2:33; 15:8-9
 2
 Thessalocians 4:7-8

 Romans 8:1-37
 1
 Peter 1:2

 Galatians 3:1-14; 4:6
 1
 John 3:24; 4:13

IV. The Holy Scriptures

4. We believe in the plenary impiration of the Holy Scripture, by which we understand the 66 books of the Old and New Turns, by which we understand the 66 books of the Old and New Testaments, given by divine inspiration, and the will of Go concerning us in all things necessary to our salvation, so that whatever is not contained there is not to be enjoined as an article of faith.

Luke 24:44-47	2 Timothy 3:15-17
John 10:35	1 Peter 1:10-12
1 Corinthians 15:3-4	2 Peter 1:20-21

V. Sin, Original and Personal (Original Sin, or Depravity)

 We believe that sin came into the world through the disobedience of our first parents, and death by sin. We believe that sin is of two kinds: original sin or depravity, and actual or personal sin.

5.1. We believe that original sin, or depaywity, is that corruption of the nature of all the offspring of Adam by reason of which everyone is very far gone from original rightecusness or the pure state of our first parents at the time of their creation, is averse to God, is without splittual life, and inclined to evil, and that containally. We further believe that original as in continues to exist with the new life of the regenerate, until eradicated by the balance with the Hov Soint.

5.2. We believe that original sin differs from actual sin in that it constitutes an inherited propensity to actual sin for which no one is accountable until its divinely provided remedy is neglected or rejected.

5.5. We believe that actual or personal ain is a solutatory viscation of a known use of Gad by a moulty responsible person. It is therefore, not to be confused with involutatory and lonecapable actions from a standard of porfect conduct which are the resultant effects of the Fall. However, such innoent effects do not include stilludes or responses contrary to the gality of Christ, which may properly be called atins of the pairt, We believe that personal mount in relations (Lorenzo et al. 1996).

Original sin Genesis 3; 65 Job 15:14 Psalm 51:5 Jeremiah 17:9-10 Mark 7:21-23

Romans 1:18-25; 5:12-14; 7:1-8:9 1 Corinthians 3:1-4 Galatians 5:16-25 1 John 17-8

26 [16]

Personal sin Matthew 27-36-40

(with 1 John 3.4) John 8:34-36: 16:8-9 Romans 3:23; 6:15-23; 8:18-24; 14:23 1 John 1:9-2:4; 3:7-10

VI. Atonement

6. We believe that Jesus Christ, by His softerings, by the shedding of His works block, and by His meritorious death on the Croas, made a full atoesenest for all human sin, and that this document is the outry ground of abuviton, and that it is sufficient for every individual of Adam's race. The Atoensent is explorably efficients of the instances for the abuviton of the instances of the instances of the abuviton of the instances and the single of responsible and of the set who much the sign of responsibility only when they repeat and helpers.

Isaiah 53:5-6, 11	Galatians 1:3-4; 3:13-14
Mark 10:45	Colossians 1:19-23
Luke 24:46-48	1 Timothy 2:3-6
John 1:29; 3:14-17	Titus 2:11-14
Acts 4:10-12	Hebrews 29; 9:11-14: 13:12
Romana 3:21-28; 4:17-25; 5:6-21	1 Peter 1:18-21: 2:19-25
1 Corinthians 6:20	1 John 2:1-2

VII. Free Agency

7. We believe that man't creation in Golikeness included ability to choose between right and wrong, and that than he was made morally responsible; that through the fall of Adam he is so that the strong the second sec

A sceptable in His sight. We believe that man, though in the possession of the experince of regeneration and emitte samtification, may fall from grace and apostatize and, unless he repent of his sin, be hopelessly and eternally lost.

Gedillences and nearl responsibility Genesis 1:56-7; 216-17 Douterenousy 28:1-2; 30:19 Johans 24:18 Johans 24:18 Johans 14:18 Johans 14:18 Johans 14:18-4; 15:18 Johans 14:18-4; 15:18 Johans 14:18-4; 15:18 Johans 14:18-4; 15:18 Johans 11:12; 35:08 Johans 12:19; 35:08 Johans 19:14; 15:19 Johans 19:14; 15:14; 15:14 Johans 19:14; 15:14; 15:14 Johans 19:14; 15:14; 1

Jeremiah 31:29-30 Ezekiel 18:1-4 Micah 6:8 Romans 1:19-20; 2:1-16; 14:7-12

[19] 27

Romans 3:10-12; 5:12-14, 20a; 7:14-25

Philippians 2:12-13 Colcesians 1:21-23 2 Timothy 4:10a Titus 2:11-14 Hebrews 2:1-3; 3:12-15; 6:4-6; 10:20-31 James 2:18-22 2 Peter 1:10-11; 2:20-22

VIII. Repentance

8. We believe that repentance, which is a sincere and thorough change of the mind in regard to sin, involving a sense of personal guilt and a voluntary turning away from sin, is demanded of all who have by act or purpose become sinners against God. The Spirit of God gives to all who will repent the gracious help of penitence of heart and hope of mercy, that they may believe unto pardon and spirital life.

2 Chronicles 7:14	Acts 2:38: 3:19: 5:31: 17:30-31:
Psalms 32:5-6; 51:1-17	26:16-18
Isaiah 55:6-7	Romans 2:4
Jereminh 3:12-14	2 Corinthians 7:8-11
Ezekiel 18:30-32; 33:14-16	1 Thessalonians 1:9
Mark 1:14-15	2 Peter 3.9
Luke 3:1-14: 13:1-5: 18:9-14	

IX. Justification, Regeneration, and Adoption

9. We believe that justification is the gracious and judicial act of God by which He grants full pardon of all guilt and com-

28 [110]

plete release from the penalty of sins committed, and acceptance as righteous, to all who believe on Jesus Christ and receive Him as Lord and Savior.

10. We believe that regeneration, or the new birth, is that gracious work of God whereby the moral nature of the repentant believer is spiritually quickened and given a distinctively spiritual life, capable of faith, love, and obedience.

 We believe that adoption is that gracious act of God by which the justified and regenerated believer is constituted a son of God.

12. We believe that justification, regeneration, and adoption are simultaneous in the experience of seekers after God and are obtained upon the condition of faith, preceded by repentance; and that to this work and state of grace the Holy Spirit bears minutes.

Luke 18:14	4:4-7
John 1:12-13; 3:3-8; 5:24	Ephesians 1:6-7; 2:1, 4-5
Acts 13:39	Philippians 3:3-9
Romans 1:17; 3:21-26, 28; 4:5-9,	Colossians 2:13
17-25; 5:1, 16-19; 6:4; 7:6;	Titus 3:4-7
8:1, 15-17	1 Peter 1:23
1 Corinthians 1:30; 6:11	1 John 19; 3:1-2, 9; 4:7; 5:1,
2 Corinthians 5:17-21	9-13, 18

X. Entire Sanctification

13. We believe that entire sanctification is that act of God, subsequent to regeneration, by which believers are made free from original sin, or deparativy, and brought into a state of entire devotement to God, and the holy obselence of love made perfect.

It is wrought by the baptism with the Holy Spirit, and comprehends in one experience the cleansing of the heart from sin and the abiding, indwelling presence of the Holy Spirit, empowering the believer for life and service.

Entire sanctification is provided by the blood of Jesus, is wrought instantaneously by faith, preceded by entire consecration; and to this work and state of grace the Holy Spirit bears witness. This experience is also known by various terms representing its different phases, such as "Christian perfection," "perfect love," "heart purity," "the baptism with the Holy Spirit," "the fullness of the blessing," and "Christian holiness."

14. We believe that there is a marked distinction between a pure heart and a mature character. The former is obtained in an instant, the result of entire sanctification; the latter is the result of growth in grace.

We believe that the grace of entire sanctification includes the impulse to grow in grace. However, this impulse must be consciously nortured, and careful attention given to the requisites and processes of spiritual development and improvement in Christikinenes of character and personality. Without such purposeful endewor one's witness may be impaired and the grace itself frustrated and ultimately loat.

Jereminh 3131-34 Reski 3 625-27 Malachi 32-3 Mathen 32-1 Mathen 31-12 Lake 316-17 John 737-39, 1445-53, 176-20 Acta 35, 21-4, 158-9 Romann 64:1-3, 10, 84:14, 8-14; 12:1-2 *Christian perfection*, "perfect low" Deuteronomy 30.6 Mathere 56-14-89, 2237-40 Romans 129-21; 138-10 1 Corrinthans 13

"Heart purity" Matthew 58 Acts 158-9 "Boptism with the Holy Spirit" Arremish 31:31-34 Eeskiel 30:25-27 Malachi 3:2-3 "Fullness of the blessing" Romans 15:29 2 Corinthians 6:14---7:1 Galatians 2:95, 6:16-25 Ephesians 3:14-21; 6:17-18, 25-27 Philippians 3:10-16 Colonsians 3:1-17 1 Thesaslonians 5:23-24 Hebrews 4:9-11; 10:10-17; 12:1-2; 13:12 1.John 1:7, 9

Philippians 3:10-15 Hebrews 6:1 1 John 4:17-18

1 Peter 1:22 1 John 3:3

Matthew 3:11-12 Luke 3:16-17 Acts 1:5: 2:1-4: 15:8-9

30 [115]

CHURCH CONSTITUTION

"Christian holiness"
Matthew 5:1-7:29
John 15:1-11
Romans 12:1-15:3
2 Corinthians 7:1
Ephesians 4:17-5:20
Philippians 1:9-11: 3:12-15
Colossians 2:20-3:17

1 Thessalonians 3:13; 4:7-8; 5:23 2 Timothy 2:19-22 Hebrews 10:19-25; 12:14; 13:20-21 1 Peter 1:15-16 2 Peter 1:1-11; 3:18 Judg 20-21

XI. Second Coming of Christ

15. We believe that the Lord Jesus Christ will come sgain; that we who are alive at His coming shall not precede them that are saleep in Christ Jesus, but that, if we are abiding in Him, we shall be caught up with the risen saints to meet the Lord in the air, so that we shall ever be with the Lord.

Matthew 25:31-46	Titus 2:11-14
John 14:1-3	Hebrews 9:26-28
Acta 1:9-11	2 Peter 3:3-15
Philippians 3:20-21	Revelation 1:7-8; 22:7-20
1 Thessalonians 4:13-18	

XII. Resurrection, Judgment, and Destiny

16. We believe in the resurrection of the dead, that the bodies both of the just and of the unjust shall be raised to life and united with their spirits—They that have done good, unto the resurrection of life; and they that have done evil, unto the resurrection of ammation."

 We believe in future judgment in which every man shall appear before God to be judged according to his deeds in this life.

18. We believe that glorious and everlasting life is assured to all who savingly believe in, and obediently follow, Jesus Christ our Lord; and that the finally impenitent shall suffer eternally in hell. Mathem 2021.

Genesis 18:25	Mark 9:43-48
1 Samuel 2:10	Luke 16:19-31: 20-27-38
Psalm 50:6	John 3:16-18: 5:25-29: 11:21-27
Isaiah 28:19	Acts 17:30-31
Daniel 12:2-3	Romans 2:1-16; 14:7-12

[121] 31

1 Corinthians 15:12-58 2 Corinthians 5:10 2 Thessalonians 1:5-10 Revelation 20:11-15: 22:1-15

XIII. Baptism

10. We believe that Christian baptism, commanded by our Lord, is a sacrament signifying acceptance of the benefits of the atomement of Jeaus Christ, to be administered to believers and (as) declarative of their faith in Jeaus Christ as their Savior, and full purpose of obelieve in holiness and rightecuments.

Baptism being a symbol of the new covenant (New Testament), young children may be baptized, upon request of parents or guardians who shall give assurance for them of necessary Christian training.

Baptism may be administered by sprinkling, pouring, or immersion, according to the choice of the applicant. Mathew 31.7; 28:16-20 Galatians 326-28 Calatians 326-28

Acts 2:37-41; 8:35-39; 10:44-48; 16:29-34; 19:1-6 Romans 6:3-4 10:29-34; 19:1-6 10:44-48; 10:4

XIV. The Lord's Supper

20. We believe that the Memorial and Communiton Supper initiated by our Lord and Skyrio's acaus Christ is essentially a New "Reitament ascrament, declarative of His surficial deals), and promise of all pairinal bleaming in Christ. It is distinctiveby for those who are prepared for reversa appreciation of its significance, and by it they show for the Lord's deals thill He come again. It being the Communion fast, only those who have the there is a strain of the strain of the strain of the strain significance. and be for the sains that hold be called to particingular there is a strain of the strain of the strain of the strain of the strain significance. and be for the sains the should be called to particingular there is a strain of the strain

Exodus 12:1-14 Matthew 26:26-29 Mark 14:22-25

Luke 22:17-29 John 6:28-58 1 Corinthians 10:14-21: 11:23-32

XV, Divine Healing

21. We believe in the Bible doctrine of divine healing and urge our people to seek to offer the prayer of faith for the heal32 [122]

CHURCH CONSTITUTION

ing of the sick. Providential means and agencies when deemed necessary should not be refused.

2 Kings 5:1-19 Psalm 103:1-5 Matthew 4:23-24; 9:18-35 John 4:46-54 Acts 5:12-16; 9:32-42; 14:8-15 1 Corinthians 12:4-11 2 Corinthians 12:7-10 James 5:13-16

* * *

THE CHURCH

I. The General Church

22. The Church of God is composed of all spiritually regenerate persons, whose names are written in heaven.

II. The Churches Severally

23. The churches severally are to be composed of such regenerate persons as by providential permission, and by the leadings of the Holy Spirit, become associated together for holy followship and ministries.

III. The Church of the Nazarene

24. The Church of the Nazarene is composed of those persons who have voluntarily associated themselves together according to the doctrines and polity of and church, and who seek hoyd Christian Efforwhip, the conversion of ainmers, the entire sanctification of believers, their upbuilding in holiness, and the simplicity and spiritual power smallest in the primitive New Testament Church, together with the preaching of the gospel to every creature.

IV. Agreed Statement of Belief

25. Recognizing that the right and privilege of persons to church membership rest upon the fact of their being regenerate, we would require only such avowals of belief as are essential to
Christian experience. We, therefore, deem belief in the following brief statements to be sufficient. We believe:

25.1. In one God-the Father, Son, and Holy Spirit.

25.2. That the Old and New Testament Scriptures, given by plenary inspiration, contain all truth necessary to faith and Christian living.

25.3. That man is born with a fallen nature, and is, therefore, inclined to evil, and that continually.

25.4. That the finally impenitent are hopelessly and eternally lost.

25.5. That the atonement through Jesus Christ is for the whole human race; and that whoseover repents and believes on the Lord Jesus Christ is justified and regenerated and saved from the dominion of sin.

25.6. That believers are to be sanctified wholly, subsequent to regeneration, through faith in the Lord Jesus Christ.

25.7. That the Holy Spirit bears witness to the new birth, and also to the entire sanctification of believers.

25.8. That our Lord will return, the dead will be raised, and the final judgment will take place.

V. The General Rules

26. To be identified with the visible Church is the blessed privilege and accred duty of all who are saved from their ains and are seeking completeness in Christ Jeuu. It is required of all who desire to units with the Church of the Nazarene, and thus to walk in fellowship with us, that they shall show evidence of advantor from their ains by a gody walk and vital desire of advantor from their ains by a gody walk and vital from all indexiling ain. They shall evidence their commitment to God-.

26.1. FIRST. By doing that which is enjoined in the Word of God, which is our Rule of both faith and practice, including:

 Loving God with all the heart, soul, mind, and strength, and one's neighbor as oneself [Exodus 20:3-6; Leviticus 19:17-18; Deuteronomy 5/7-10; 6:4-5; Mark 12:28-31; Romans 13; 8-10]. 34 [126.2]

(2) Pressing upon the attention of the unsaved the claims of the gospel, inviting them to the house of the Lord, and trying to compass their salvation [Matthew 28:19-20; Acts 128; Romans 1:14-16; 2 Corinthians 5:18-20].

Being courteous to all men [Ephesians 4:32; Titus 3:2;
 Peter 2:17; 1 John 3:18].

(4) Being helpful to those who are also of the faith, in love forbearing one another [Romans 12:13; Galatians 6:2, 10; Colossians 3:12-14].

(5) Seeking to do good to the bodies and souls of men; feeding the hungry, clothing the naked, visiting the sick and imprisoned, and ministering to the needy, as opportunity and ability are given [Matthew 26:35-36; 2 Corinthians 9:8-10; Galatians 2:10; James 2:15-16; 1 John 3:17-18].

(6) Contributing to the support of the ministry and the church and its work in tithes and offerings [Malachi 3:10; Luke 6:38; 1 Corinthians 9:14; 16:2; 2 Corinthians 9:6-10; Philippians 4:15-19].

(7) Attending faithfully all the ordinances of God, and the means of grace, including the public working of God [Hebrews 1023), the ministry of the Work [Acts 2:42], the searcament of the Lord's Supper [1 Corinthians 1123:30]; searching the Scriptures and mediating thereon [Acts 1:71], z Timothy 2:16; 3:14-16]; family and private devotions [Deuteronomy 66-7; Matthew 66].

26.2. SECOND. By avoiding evil of every kind, including:

 Taking the name of God in vain [Exodus 20:7; Leviticus 19:12; James 5:12].

(2) Profaning of the Lord's Day by participation in unnecessary socular activities, thereby indulging in practices which deny its sanctity [Exodus 20:8-11; Isaiah 58:13-14; Mark 227-28; Acts 20:7; Revelation 1:10].

(3) Sexual immorality, such as premarital or extramarital relations, perversion in any form, or locseness and impropriety of conduct [Exodus 20:14; Matthew 5:27-32; 1 Corinthians 6:9-11; Galatians 5:19; 1 Thesealonians 4:3-71. (4) Habits or practices known to be destructive of physical and mental well-being. Christians are to regard themselves as temples of the Holy Spirit [Proverbs 20:1; 23:1-3; 1 Corinthians 6:17-20: 2 Corinthians 7:1; Bohesians 5:18].

(5) Quarreling, returning evil for evil, gossiping, slandering, spreading surmises injurious to the good names of others [2 Corinthians 12:20; Galatians 5:15; Ephesians 4:30-32; James 3:5-18: 1 Peter 3:9-10].

(6) Dishonesty, taking advantage in buying and selling, bearing false witness, and like works of darkness [Leviticus 19:10-11; Romans 12:17; 1 Corinthians 6:7-10].

(7) The indulging of pride in dress or behavior. Our people are to dress with the Christian simplicity and modesty that become holiness [Proverbs 29:23; 1 Timothy 2:8-10; James 45; 1 Peter 33-4; 1 John 2:16-17].

(8) Music, literature, and entertainments that dishonor God [1 Corinthians 10:31; 2 Corinthians 6:14-17; James 4:4].

26.3. THIRD. By abiding in hearty fellowship with the church, not inveighing against but wholly committed to its doctrines and uages and actively involved in its continuing witness and outreach [Bphenians 2:18-22; 4:1-3, 11-16; Philippians 2:1-8: 1 Peter 29-10].

* * *

ARTICLES OF ORGANIZATION AND GOVERNMENT

Article I. Form of Government

 The Church of the Nazarene has a representative form of government.

27.1. We are agreed on the necessity of a superintendency which shall complement and assist the local church in the fulfilling of its mission and objectives. The superintendency shall build morale, provide motioation, supply management and 36 [127.2]

CHURCH CONSTITUTION

method assistance, and organize and encourage organization of new churches and missions everywhere. (foster and care for churches already established, and whose duty it shall be to organize and encourage the organizing of churches everywhere.)

27.2. We are agreed that authority given to superintendents shall not interfere with the independent action of a fully organized church. Each church shall enjoy the right to select its own pustor, aubject to such approval as the General Assembly shall find wize to institute. Each church shall also elect delegates to the various assemblies, manage its own finances, and have charge of all other matters partaining to its local life and work.

Article II. Local Churches

28. The membership of a local church shall consist of all who have been organized as a church by those authorized as to do and who have been publicly received by those having proper authority, after having declared their experience of salvation, their belief in our doctrines, and their willingness to submit to our government. [10:-107]

Article III. District Assemblies

20. The General Assembly shall organize the membership of the church into district assemblies, giving such izy and ministhe church into district assemblies, giving such izy and minisdem fair and justs, all davin as the General Assembly may deem fair and justs, all daving and the second state of the representatives, provided, however, that all factions of auch standing shall be members thereof. The General Assembly shall also fix the boundaries of assemblies, 1200, 2011

Article IV. The General Assembly

30.1. How Composed. The General Assembly shall be composed of ministerial and lay delegates in equal numbers, elected thereto by district assemblies of the Church of the Naratene; such ex officio members as the General Assembly shall from time to time direct; and such delegates of districts under the administration of the World Mission and Church Growth de-

partments of the Church of the Nazarene as may be provided

30.2. Election of Delegates. At a district assembly within 16 months of the meeting of the General Assembly or within 24 months in areas where travel visas or other unusual preparations are necessary, an equal number of ministerial and lay delegates to the General Assembly shall be chosen as may be belegates to General Assembly, and provided that the min-isterial delegates shall be elders of the Church of the Nazarene. Each regular assembly district shall be entitled to at least one ministerial and one lay delegate, and such additional delegates as its membership may warrant on the basis of representation fixed by the General Assembly, Each assembly district shall elect alternate delegates not exceeding the number of its delegates. [203.25, 301-1.1]

30.3. Credentials. The secretary of each district assembly shall furnish certificates of election to the delegates and alter-nates severally elected to the General Astembly, and shall also send certificates of such elections to the general secretary of the Church of the Nazarene immediately following the adjournment of the district assembly

30.4. Quorum. When the General Assembly is in session, a majority of the whole number of delegates elected thereto shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business. If a quo-rum has once been had, a smaller number may approve the minutes then remaining unapproved, and adjourn. 30.5. General Superintendents. The General Assembly shall

elect by ballot from among the elders of the Church of the Nazarene as many general superintendents as it muy deem nec-ensary, who shall constitute the Board of General Superinten-dents. Any vacancy in the office of general superintendent in the interim of General Assemblies shall be filled by a two-thirds vote of the superintendents of regular districts of the Church of the Nazarene, [305.1]

30.6. Presiding Officers. A general superintendent appoint-ed thereto by the Board of General Superintendents shall preside over the daily meetings of the General Assembly. But if no general superintendent be so appointed or be present, the Gen38 [130.7]

CHURCH CONSTITUTION

eral Assembly shall elect one of its members as temporary presiding officer, [300.1]

30.7. Rules of Order. The General Assembly shall adopt rules of order governing its manner of organization, procedure, committees, and all other matters pertaining to the orderly con-duct of business. It shall be the judge of the election and qualifications of its own members. [300.2] 30.8. General Court of Appeals. The General Assembly shall

elect from among members of the Church of the Nazarene a General Court of Appeals and shall define its jurisdiction and powers, [305.6]

30.9. Powers and Restrictions.

 The General Assembly shall have power to legislate for the Church of the Nazarene, and to make rules and regulations for all the departments related to or associated with it in any re-spect, but not in conflict with this Constitution, 1300, 305-581 (2) No local church shall be deprived of the right to call its pastor, ashject to such approval as the General Assembly shall find wise to institute, [115]

(3) All local churches, officers, ministers, and laymen shall always have the right to a fair and orderly trial and the right to make an appeal.

AMENDMENTS

31. The provisions of this Constitution may be repealed or amended when concurred in by a two-thirds vote of all the members of the General Assembly, and when concurred in by members of the General Assembly, and when concurred in toy not less than two-thirds of all the regular and mission district assembly or any regular or mission district assembly may take the initiative in the matter of proposing such alterations or amendments. As soon as such alterations or amendments shall have been adopted as herein provided, the result of the vote shall be announced by the Board of General Superintendents, whereupon such alterations or amendments shall have full force and effect.

Special Rules

THE CHRISTIAN LIFE

ABORTION

MARRIAGE AND DIVORCE AND/OR

DISSOLUTION OF MARRIAGE

HOMOSEXUALITY CHRISTIAN STEWARDSHIP

CHURCH OFFICERS

AMENDING SPECIAL RULES

A. THE CHRISTIAN LIFE

32. The church joyfully proclaims the good news that we may be delivered from all sin to a new life in Christ. By the grace of God we Christians are to "put of the old"—the old patterns of conduct as well as the old carnal mind—and are to "put on the new"—a new and holy way of life as well as the mind of Christ [Explesians 4:17-24].

32.1. The Church of the Narzarene purposes to relate timeless billical principles to contemporary society in such a way that the doctrines and rules of the church may be known and understood in many lands and within a variety of cultures. We hold that the The Commandments, as reaffirmed in the New Testament, constitute the basis Christian ethic and ought to be obyed in all particulars.

32.2. It is further recognized that there is validity in the compart of the collective Christian concentes as illuminated and guided by the Holy Spirit. The Charth of the Nazarrae, as observed the collective contrast of the second second second ones in responsibility to seek ways to part in the following midds and the contrast of the second s

32.3. In listing practices to be avoided we recognize that no callado, however, inclusion, can however, inclusion, can however, inclusion, and however, inclusion, and the soft in a cultivating a sensitivity to evil which transcends the mers letter of the law; remembering the admonsition: "Prove all things, hold fast that which is good. Abstain from all appearance of evil" [1 Thessalonians 52:1-22].

32.4. Our leaders and pastors are expected to give strong

42 [132.5]

SPECIAL RULES

emphasis in our periodicals and from our pulpits to such fundamental biblical truths as will develop the faculty of discrimination between the evil and the good.

32.4. Education is of the utransi importance for the social and particula well-based part of norms, it is to be a social and particula well-based part of norms, the social socieles social

33. We hold specifically that the following practices should be avoided:

to BA1. The constraints which are nebrearies of the Christman for BA1 and BA1 correspondence of the properticipation of the set of

[133.6] 43

undermine God's standard of holiness of heart and life [Romans 14:7-13; 1 Corinthians 10:31-33; Ephesians 5:1-18; Philippians 4:8-9; 1 Peter 1:13-17]. [904.7, 904.9] 33.2. Lotteries and other forms of gambling, whether legal

33.2. Lotteries and other forms of gambling, whether legal or illegal. The church holds that the final result of these practices is detrimental both to the individual and society [Matthew 6:24-34; 2 Thessalonians 33-13; 1 Timothy 6:6-11; Hebrews 13:5-6:1 John 2:15-17].

33.3. Membership in oath-bound secret orders or societies. The quasi-religious nature of such organizations dilutes the Christian's commitment, and their secrecy contravenes the Christian's open witness [1, Corinthians 126–31; 2 Corinthians 6:14-71; Ephesians 511-16; James 4:4; 1 John 2:15-71; [003:2] 33.4. All forms of social dancing. We hold that such prac-

33.4. All forms of social dancing. We hold that such practices tend to break down proper inhibitions and reserve between the sexes [Matthew 22:36-39; Romans 12:1-2; 1 Corinthians 10:31-33; Philippians 1:9-11; Colossians 3:1-17]. [904.6]

33.5. The use of intoxicating liquors as a beverage, or trafficking therein, giving influence to, or voting for, the licensing of places for the sale of the same, using illicit drugs or trafficking therein; using of tobacco in any of its forms, or trafficking therein. 1063.3.904.41

The Holy Scriptures and human experience together justify the condemnation of the use of introtesting drinks as a bwerage. The manufacture and sale of ligours for such purposes is a imaginated God and the human race. Total abutimence from all intoxicents about be the Christian rule for the individual, and total prohibition of the traffic in intoxicants the duty of civil government [Proverbs 201; 2329—242; Hahakkuk 25; 1 Cotinhians 61:1, 21:92; Galatians 621; Bohusians 61:8].

[Only unfermented wine and unleavened bread* should be used in the scrament of the Lord's Supper.] [403.7, 404.2, 405, 423.10, 802]

33.6. The unprescribed use of hallucinogenics, stimulants, and depressants, and the misuse and abuse of regularly pre-

^{*}In world areas where this may cause special intrafaith difficulties, a district assembly may request the Board of General Superintendents for permission to use common bread.

44 [134]

scribed medicines. Only on competent medical advice and under medical supervision should such drugs be used [Matthew 22:37-39: 27:34: Romans 12:1-2: 1 Corinthians 6:19-20; 9:24-271.

B. MARRIAGE AND DIVORCE AND/OR DISSOLUTION OF MARRIAGE

[The meaning of divorce in this rule shall include "dissolution of marriage" when it is used as a legal substitute for divorce.]

34. The Christian family, knit together in a common bond through Jesus Christ, is a circle of low, fellowabip, and worship to be earnestly cultivated in a society in which family ties are easily dissolved. We urge upon the ministry and congregations of our church such teachings and practices as will strengthen and develop family ties.

The institution of marriage was orbitaled of God in the time of mark innerence way and is, secording to apposition sturbury? "Benormbits in all", it is the mutual union of one mans and one errors, Our propel beached behavior in the second studtions. Our propel beached behavior in this second entities a beached when anyout that the constanguistic allowed and entities and when anyout that the constanguistic abused and the second students are been students and another and the second students are beached abused and the second students are beached when a student and the second students are also and mutual lowers. In the second students are also allowed and the second students are also allowed and the second students are also allowed and and an and a student and a student (General 120-08, 31) = 21.24 Match in 25.16 Matthew 192.0bets 13.01.

34.1. Ministers of the Church of the Nazarene are instructel to give due care to matters relating to solemnizing marriages. They shall next, in every manner possible, to convey to their congregations the accredness of Christian marriage. They shall provide premarial counseling in every instance possible before performing a marriage ceremony. They shall only solemnize marriages of persons having the scriptural right to marry. [107-7.1, 411.14]

3.4.3. Members of the Church of the Nazarese are to neek properluly a redengive course of action when involved in maital unkappiness, in full harmony with their vows and the clear teaching of the Scripture, their aim height to ave the home and safeguard the good name of both Christ and His Church, Coople having arisons antilal problems are urged to assek counted and guidance of their pastor. Failures to comply with this procedure in good filts and with inspecere description to solve to desset A Christian draw of the solution of the solution of the solution of the and problems of their pastor. Failures to comply with this procedure in good filts and with inspecere descriptions of the solution of the

34.3. Though there may exist such other causes and conditions as may justify a divorce under the civil law, only adultery is a scriptural ground for divorce, and only adultery will supply such ground as may justify the innocent party in remarrying (Matthew 55.3):32; 193-91.

34.4. Through ignorance, ain, and human railities, many in our neidy tails have to the driven lead. We believe that Christ our or the Wine persons on a He did the weam at Banger and remarrings followed, the marring partners, topp arguing materner, topp and remarrings followed, the marring partners, topp and the second tail of the s

C. ABORTION

35. We believe induced abortion to be permissible only on the basis of sound medical reasons that give evidence of life-endangering conditions for the mother. We oppose induced abortion for personal convenience or population control. We also oppose liberalizing the laws which allow induced abortion on demand. There may be persenancies that require deliberate

46 [136]

SPECIAL RULES

termination by therapeutic abortion, but such a decision should be made only on the basis of adequate medical and spiritual counseling [Exodus 20:13; Job 31:15; Psalm 139:3-16; Isaiah 495; Luke 1:31, 41-44; Romans 12:1-2].

We further believe that responsible opposition to abortion requires our commitment to the initiation and support of programs designed to provide care for mothers and children.

D. HOMOSEXUALITY

36. We recognize the depth of the prevenion that leads to thomesexual acts, but affirm the biblical position that such acts are similal and adjusts to the work ho (God, We biblieve the grace of God sufficient VW depends prevention of the God sufficient VW depth of the second straight of the second straight of world seem to imply compatibility between Christian morality (in the practice of homesexuality, We urge clear presenting und teaching concerning Hibbs standards of sex morality (Gravia 69-11, 17 monty 18-40).

E. CHRISTIAN STEWARDSHIP

37. Moming of Summahaly. The Scriptures teach that God is the Owner of all presents and all things, that men are Ni is the Owner of all presents and all things, that men are Ni mark its executivity constraints to God for the exercise of the wave standard that and the owner of the owner of the theory of the owner of the owner of the owner of the owner owner owner owner owner of the owner owner of the owner owner owner owner owner owner of the owner o

37.1. Storehouse Tithing. Storehouse tithing is a scriptural

and practical performance of initiality and regularly placing the tilt in initial task interior to which the member bolosys. Therefore, the financing of the church shall be based on the plan of stereboson tilting, and the local Church to the Narazere shall be regarded by all of its people as the stereboson. All who are a part of the Church of all their increases as a minimum finantial transmission of the stere and the stere of the stere of heat of the first the stere of the stere of the stere of heat of the stere of the stere of the stere of the local district, regional, and general. 37.4. Pusied-mining and Distribution. In the light of the

37.2. Fund-raising and Distribution. In the light of the expirum teaching concerning the giving of tithes and offerings for the support of the goopel and for the erection of church buildings, no Nazamene church housed engage in any method of the goopel message, saily the name of the church, discriminate against the poor, or misdirect the people's energies from promoting the goopel. In distribution, the goopel's discriminate In disburning to meet the requirements of the local, district,

In disbursing to meet the requirements of the local, district, regional, and general programs of the Church of the Nazarene, local churches are uzged to adopt and practice a budget plan and to pay general, regional, and district apportionments monthly. [130, 160, 161–162, 2423.20]

37.3. Nagaret of the Ministry. "Form so hath the Lord or dained that they which preach the goept hould live of the gospel" I Corinthians 0.4.4. The church is obligated to support its ministrer, who shaws been called or God, and who, under the work of the ministry. We urge therefore that the members of the church voluntarity low gath thermoleves to the task of supporting the ministry by gathering money weakly for this holy works at the pastor's sales by hould regularly very sets.

37.4. Life Income Gifts and Bequests. It is essential in the exercise of Christian stewardship that careful thought be given as to what shall be done with the residue of one's income and possessions over which the Lord makes the Christian a steward during his life. Civil laws often do not provide for the distribu48 [138]

SPECIAL RULES

tion of an estate in such a way as to glorify God. Each Christian should give attention to the preparation of his last will and testament in a careful and legal manner, and the Church of the Nazarene through its various ministries of missions, evangelism, education, and benevolences—local, district, regional, and general—is recommended for consideration. [342.3]

F. CHURCH OFFICERS

38. We direct our local churches to elect as church officers only persons who are clearly in the experience of entire sanctification; who are in full sympathy with the doctrines, polity, and practices of the Church of the Naraenes; and who support the local church faithfully with tithes and offerings. [113.9, 127, 150.150.2]

G. AMENDING SPECIAL RULES

39. The provisions of these Special Rules may be repealed or amended when concurred in by a two-thirds vote of all the members of a given General Assembly.

Government

THE LOCAL CHURCH

THE DISTRICT ASSEMBLY

THE REGION

THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY

PREAMBLE

All life must have law; all organization must have government. He who is Head over all things unto the Church himself gave form and order unto His Body of followers and representatives. We seek as a church to conform to principles of government in accord with the Holy Scriptures and divine providences, that

accord with the root occupance and avias providences, take all things may be done scripturally, decently, and in order. The government of the Church of the Nazarene is represen-tative, and thus avoids the extremes of episcopacy on the one hand and unlimited congregationalism on the other.

In world regions served by the clurch where cultural and political differences may necessitate, adaptations of local, dis-trict, and regional church government procedures contained in Part IV, Chapters J, II, and III may be made. All such adaptations shall be submitted in writing to and approved by the Board of General Superintendents.

CHAPTER I

THE LOCAL CHURCH

A. Organization, Name, Incorporation, Property, Restrictions, Mergers, Disorganization

100. Organization. Local churches may be organized by the district superintendent, or by the general superintendent hav-ing jurisdiction, or by an elder authorized by either of them.

ing juridician, or by an elder authorized by either of them. Official report of new churches also blave filed in the Church Extension Ministrise office, [20, 07, 086, 310, 411,22] 100, 17. The Midlosegragational Church-Organizade Icolar churches may enlarge their ministry by establishing Bolis dourbars. These Bild classes may devolve junc church-ministon at fully cognanized churches [100]. This may result in more than one cognegation exiting in the midvidual compression statement in the individual comparison of the statement of the statement of the statement of works where not all the individual compression statement of the st

LOCAL GOVERNMENT

52 [1101]

tions are fully organized churches, the District Advisory Board, with the approval of the district superintendent and the general superintendent in jurisdiction, may grant to such congregations the rights and privileges of an organized local church subject to the following conditions:

- Such congregations may not be incorporated separate from the organized local church.
 Such congregations shall not hold title to property sepa-
 - Such congregations shall not hold title to property separate from the organized local church.
 - Such congregations shall not incur indebtedness without the approval of the district superintendent, the church board of the organized local church, and the District Advisory Board.
 - 4. No such congregation may withdraw as a body from the organized local church or in any way sever its relation thereto except by the express permission of the district superintendent in consultation with the pastor of the local church.

101. Name. The name of a newly organized church shall be determined by the local church in consultation with the district superintendent and with the approval of the District Advisory Board.

101.1. Change of Name. A local Church of the Nanzeme may change its anneaby an above thy bullot vote in an annual or special meeting of the church membership. Processes for the change shall be (of The local church board submits the proposed change to the district superintendent who shall obtain the local church voice (of the D Datter (Advisory Board, (b) the local church voice) (c) the D Datter (c) down reports the change to the district assembly, and the district assembly voice approval of the same.

102. Incorporation. In all places where the statutes will permit, the trustes shall have the local church incorporated, and the said trustes and their successors shall be the trustees of the said corporation shall set for the powers of the corporation and provide that the corporation shall be subject to the government of the Church et the Nararene, as from time to the government of the Church et the Nararene, as from time to time authorized and declared in its Manual by the General Assembly of said church. All the property of this corporation shall be managed and controlled by the trustees subject to the approval of the local church.

102.1. Where property is purchased and developed by the District Advisory Board for a local church or where a new church is formed, upon the repayment of the money invested by the District Advisory Board by the local church, it is deemed advisable that the District Advisory Board transfer the title to the local church. [235.3]

102.2. When a local church is incorporated, all property acquired shall be deeded directly to the church in its corporate name when it is possible to do so.

102.3. The pastor and the secretary of the church board shall be the president and secretary of the church, incorporated or not incorporated, and shall execute and sign all conveyances of real estate, mortgages, releases of mortgage, contracts, and other legal documents of the church not otherwise provided for in the Manual and subject to the restrictions set forth in

102.4. The Articles of Incorporation of each local church shall include the following provisions:

1. The corporate name shall include the words "Church of the Nazarene."

2. The bylaws of the corporation shall be the Manual of the Church of the Nazarene.

3. The Articles of Incorporation shall not contain any provision which might prevent the local church from qualifying for any tax exemption available to churches in the same area. 4. Upon dissolution, the assets of the corporation shall be

distributed to the District Advisory Board.

The Articles of Incorporation may contain additional provisions when appropriate under local law. No provision, how-ever, shall be included which can cause the property of the local church to be diverted from the Church of the Nazarene. [101-1.1. 104.2. 106.6.2]

102.5. In multicongregational churches, where more than

54 [1103]

LOCAL GOVERNMENT

one organized church shares the same facility, incorporation

offe of galaxies caures marres the same incluty, incorporation may take place in partnership where local laws allow. 103. Property: The local church considering the purchase of real estate, the exection of churchs or church-related build-ings, a major remodeling of either, or leasing real property for any reason, shall submit its proposal to the district superinten-dent and the District Church Properties Board for their consideration, advice, and approval. No indebtedness, whether consideration, advice, and approval. No incenteenness, wnenner involving a mortgage or not, shall be incurred in the purchase of real estate or the erection of buildings or a major remodeling of either, without the written approval of the district superinten-dent and the District Church Properties Board. [224-35.6]

dent and the Diatric Church Properties Board, 1234-35.6 J 103.1. In case argrement cannot be reached between the church board and the district superintendent and the District Church Properties Board, the issue may be submitted to the general superintendent having jurisdiction for his decision. El-ther the church or the district superintendent may appeal such decision to the Board of General Superintendents of ra a frand decision to the Board of General Superintendents for a frand decision. decision. All such appeals, rebuttals of appeals, or arguments pertaining three, whether to the general superintendent in jurisdiction or the Board of General Superintendents, shall be ments pertaining three pages (Publish of appeals, or argu-ments pertaining three pages). The second perturb district superintendent shall be sent to nurth board or the volved. The minute record of a cluwich board appeal shall in-clude the appeal resolution, arguments sustaining it, and the record of the vois taken.

Record of the voice taken, 104. Restrictions. The local church may not purchase real estate, nor sell, mortgage, exchange, or otherwise dispose of real estate except by two-third voice of the members present at an annual meeting, or at a special meeting duly called for that superiord, and except upon the written approval of the district superimendant and the District Church Properties Board, 113 a 113 [113.3, 113.6, 113.13, 235.4] 104.1. The real estate of the local church shall not be mort-

aged to meet current expenses.
 104.2. Trustees and/or a local church may not divert property from the use of the Church of the Nazarene. [113-13.1]

104.3. Withdrawal of Churches. No local church may withdraw as a body from the Church of the Nazarene, or in any way sever its relation thereto, except by provision of the General Assembly, and upon agreed conditions and plans. 105. Morzers. Two or more local churches may be merged

105. Mergers. Two or more local churches may be merged youn two-thirds favorable vote by ballot of the members present and voting at specially called meetings of the churches involved, provide: The merger shall be aroommended by a majority vote by ballot of all the members of the respective church boards, and the merger shall have been approved in writing by the district superintendent, the District Advisory Board, and the general superintendent in sirvidiction.

The merger shall be finalized in a special meeting of the new congregation for the purpose of electing officers and making pastoral arrangements. The district superintendent, or an elder appointed by him, shall preside.

The organization thus created shall combine the total memberahip of the former churches, the membership of all departments of these churches, and may combine part or all of the assets and liabilities of those churches subject to the approval of the district superintendent, the District Advisory Board, and the general superintendent in jurisdiction. The merger will also combine the budget allocations.

Upon the notification by the district superintendent, the general secretary of the Church of the Nazarene is authorized to remove the names of the inactive churches from the roll of churches.

106. Discognization of Churches A local church may be discognized by action and formal processments of the Board of General Superintendents. Such action shall be taken only after (a) the district superintendent has consulted with the general superintendent in jurisdiction concerning the possibility of disconstinuing a local church organization; and (b) on recommendation of the district superintendent and the District Advisory Board.

106.1. In case a local church becomes disorganized, any church property which may exist may in no way be diverted to other purposes, but title shall pass to the District Advisory 56 [\$106.2]

Beard acting as agent for aild district where such has been incorporated, or other authorized agenti, for the use of the morporated, or other authorized agenti, for the use of the direct, and trastees holding property for the discognizated horder, shall all or dispose of the same only on the ceder and under the direction of the District Advisory Board or other proved of the general maperintendent in juridicition; either conveying and property or delivering the proceeds from the sale prover born.

106.2. No trustee or trustees of a disorganized church may divert property from the use of the Church of the Nazarene. [141-45]

 106.3. Only those churches officially disorganized may be dropped from the records of the general secretary.
 106.4. Churches may be declared inactive for a period of

106.4. Churches may be declared inactive for a period of transition by action of the Board of General Superintendents on the recommendation of the District Advisory Board.

B. Membership

107. Full Membership All percents who have been cognitized into a lood clutter by those authorized to to do, and all who have been publicly received by the pastor, the district superintendent, or the percent superintendent, after having decletant their apprintence of advantion, and their belief in the doctrinse of the Courset of the Natureme, and their willingens to advantise the Courset of the Natureme, and their willingens to advantise the Courset of the Natureme, and their willingens to advantise of the local church however, early church manual or present church: however, early church manufacture (2022, 407) 1051 hirthdy shall be entitled to yot with the church, the 1071. When percent desize to units with the church, the

107.1. When persons desire to units with the church, the pastor shall explain to them the privileges and responsibilities of membership in the church, the Articles of Faith, the requirements of the General and Special Rules, and the purpose and mission of the Church of the Nazarene. Specific indoctrination and orientation shall be provided to qualify candidates for meaningful church membership.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT

[1109.2] 57

After consulting with the Evangelism and Church Membership Committee, the minister shall receive acceptable candidates into the membership of the church in a public service, using the approved form for the reception of members [801]. [26, 32-38. 101-014, 225]

107.2. Members of a Church-Type Mission. Where the organization of a local church has not been effected, a churchtype mission shall receive and report church members according to 107 and 107.1 in the annual statistics. 108. Probationary Membership. Where a district makes pro-

108. Probationary Membership. Where a district makes provision, a local church may have probationers who shall have all the privileges of church members, with the exception of voting and holding church office. [203.26]

108.1. Probationers may be received into full membership or dropped at any time, at the discretion of the pastor and Evangelism and Church Membership Committee.

109. Inactive Membership. A local church may designate persons as "inactive members" for the reasons stated in 109.1 and 109.2.

106.1.A member of a local church who has moved to acobser community and ensate to be active at his of the other theorem and the respective of the second church wave of the second second second second second second second that change of readence directly or through the Church for the scheme of readence directly or through the Church for the scheme of readence directly or through the Church for the scheme of readence directly or through the Church for the scheme of the scheme theory of the scheme of the scheme in an accord is a scheme of the scheme of the scheme of the committee and active of the church how the scheme of the scheme of

109.2. When a member of a church has been absent from all religious services of the church for six successive months 58 [1109.3]

LOCAL GOVERNMENT

without a reason deemed justifiable by the church board, and attempt has been made to encourage him or her to become active when possible, that person's membership may be declared inactive upon recommendation of the Evangelism and Church Membership Committee and action of the church board. The person shall be informed by a redemptive letter from the pastor within 7 days of the action of the church board, and a 120-day waiting period including prayer and supplication shall follow these actions. After such action of the church board, the pastor shall write opposite the member's name "Placed on the Inactive Membership Roll by the church board [date]." An inactive member may request in writing that the church board return his or her name to the active role of the church. The request must include a reaffirmation of the vows of membership and renewed participation in the worship activities of the local church. The church board shall respond to the request within 60 days. Full membership may be restored to such a person by recommendation of the Evangelism and Church Membership Committee and action of the church. board.

109.3. Inactive members shall be included in the full mem-bership of the local church with active members and shall be reported to the district assembly accordingly.

109.4. Inactive members shall not be eligible to vote in annual or special church meetings or hold office.

C. Evangelism and Church Membership Committee

110. The church board shall provide an evangelism and church membership committee of not fewer than three persons acting in an advisory capacity to the pastor, who shall be the chairman. Its duties shall be:

110.1. To promote evangelism in the local church and seek

10.0.1 To promote evangement in the local church and seek to conserve the fruits of evangelism. [107-7.1, 129.22] 110.2. To study and recommend to the church board and departments ways to emphasize evangelism in the whole life of the church.

110.3. To serve as the local committee to implement the

LOCAL GOVERNMENT

[\$112] 59

denominational programs, both general and district, of evangelism.

penamini 110.4. To urge new converts to qualify for church membership by a consistent devotional life, a study of the Bible and the Manual individually and/or in a pastor's membership class, remembering that members received by profession of faith help to conserve the fruits of evangelism. (25-26, 34.4)

110.5. To endeavor to bring new members into total fellowship and service of the church.

110.6. To work with the pastor in developing a continuing program of spiritual guidance for new members.

110.7. To recommend to the church board, upon nomination by the pastor, the evangeliats for local campaigns. It is recommended that at least one campaign each year be conducted by a commissioned or registered evangelist.

ducted by a commissioned or registered veragelist. **110.8.** No person shall be received into full membership of the local church until the pastor first consults with the Evangelism and Church Membership Committee concerning that person's reception. [107.1]

D. Change of Membership

111. Transfer The pastor, when requested by a member, may grant a transfer of church membership (see form in 813.4) to any local Church of the Nazareen that may be named, such transfer to be valid for three months only. When the reception of the transfer is acknowledged by the receiving local church, such person's membership in the former local church shall cease. [813.3]

111.1. Commendation. The pastor, when requested by a member, may grant a certificate of commendation [see form in \$13.2] to any evangelical church that may be named, after which such person's membership in the local church issuing the certificate shall cease immediately.

E. Termination of Membership

112. Ministers. When a licensed or an ordained minister has united with the church membership or ministry of another

LOCAL GOVERNMENT

60 [\$112.1]

denomination, his membership in the local church shall, because of that fact, immediately cease, and there shall be written opposite his name, "Removed by uniting with another denomination." [403.9, 411.10]

112.1. When a member of a local church has accepted The intervention of the in son shall secure the annual written approval of the local church board of the church in which he holds his membership and the annual written approval of the District Advisory Board of the district in which that church is located.

112.2. Release from Membership. The pastor, when re-quested by a member, may grant a letter of release [see form in 813.3], thus terminating such person's membership immediately, [111.1]

112.3. After two years from the date when a person's membership was declared inactive, his or her name may be removed from the church roll by action of the church board. After such action of the church board, the pastor shall write opposite the

member's name "Removed by the church board [date]." 112.4. A church board may not remove more than 10 per-cent of the membership of the local church in any one assembly year without the written approval of the District Advisory Board and the district superintendent. The names of those to be removed and the reason for their removal shall be presented in writing to the Advisory Board by the local church secretary.

E Church Meetings

113. A meeting of the members of a local church for confer-ence and for the transaction of business shall be known as a church meeting. [104, 113.6, 115, 123, 425]

113.1. Only those persons who have been received into full membership and have reached their 15th birthday shall be enti-

ted to vote in church meetings. [107] 113.2. Business Transactions. Business, including elections, in harmony with the spirit and order of the church, and not

otherwise specially provided for, may be transacted at any church meeting.

113.3. Comply with Civil Law. In all cases where the civil law requires a specific course of procedure in calling and conducting church meetings, that course should be strictly followed. [142]

113.4. Presiding Officer: The pastor, who shall be ex officio president of the local church, or the district superintendent, or the general superintendent having juridiction, or someone appointed by the district superintendent or the general superintendent, shall preside at annual or special church meetings. [210.1, 310.1, 422.22]

113.5. Secretary. The secretary of the church board shall be the secretary of all church meetings; in his absence a secretary pro tempore shall be elected. [134.4]

113.6. Annual Mering. An annual church meeting ahall be hald within 00 days prior to the meeting of the district assembly. Public notice of the annual meeting must be given from the public on at least two Sundays before the meeting. This annual meeting may be conducted on more than one day or in more than one service upon approval by the church board. In cases where the district assembly will converse so that the

In cases where the district assembly will convene so that the 60-day period is during the vacation season, the local church may, upon recommendation of the local church board and with the written approval of the district superintendent, hold its annual meeting within 90 days prior to the meeting of the district assembly.

113.7. Reports. Reports shall be given at the annual church meeting by the pastor [423,14]. the chairman of the Christian Life and Sunday School Board [15,14], the president of the Nazarene Youch International [153,3], the president of the Nazarene Youch International [153,3], the president of the Assarene World Mission Society [159,2], the desconses [414], the desconses [416], the local ministers [402,1], the stewards [138], the trustes [144], the secretary [134,2], and the treasurer 135,51 of the church board.

suff [135.3] of the church overa.
113.8. Nominating Committee. A nominating committee shall be used to nominate officers, boards, and district assembly delegates, whose nominations are not provided for elsewhere. 62 [¶113.9]

The Nominating Committee shall consist of not fewer than The Nominating Committee shall consist of not fewer than three nor more than seven members of the church, including the pastor, and appointed by the pastor, or district superinten-dent, who shall be chairman of the committee. [38] **113.9**. Elections. At the annual church meeting there shall be an election, by ballot, of the stewards [130], the trustees [144, 142.1], the chairman of the Christian Life and Sunday

School Board [150-51], and the members of the Christian Life and Sunday School Board [149], to serve for the next church year and until their successors are elected and qualified. All those elected as church officers shall be members of that same local Church of the Nazarene, [38]

local Church of the Nazzenes, [39] 113.10. Where laws permit, and in churches where such procedure and the number to be elected are approved by a probability of the second second second second second account of the second second second second second second account of the second second second second second itself into committees to carry out assigned responsibilities. If a schurch has detect an inthe snarma committee as part of its second second second second second second second second its of the second second second second second second second its at schurch has detect an electronic committee as part of its second se

If a church has elected an education committee as part of its board in harmony with 180, that committee will constitute the Education Committee of the church howst. [104.04.66] proceedings is a straight of the straight of the straight of heat present at a day called annual meeting, after receiving the written approval of the district superirationst, a church mode of the straight of the straight of the straight of the straight designation is a straight of the straight designation of the straight of the st

election, by ballot, of lay delegates to the district assembly, on the basis of representation fixed by the General Assembly according to 201-1.2.

cording to 201-1.z. 113.13. Special church meetings may be called at any time by the pastor, or by the church board after having obtained the consent of the pastor, or of the district superintendent or of the general superintendent having jurisdiction. [104]

[1116.1] 63

113.14. Public notice of special church meetings shall always be given from the pulpit in at least two preceding regular services, or in such manner as meets the requirements of civil law. [120, 123-24, 136, 138, 142.1, 144]

G. The Church Year

114. The administrative year shall run congruently with the statistical year of the local church and shall be recognized as the church year.

114.1. The statistical year shall close within 60 days prior to the opening of the district assembly; and the new statistical year shall begin the day following its close. The exact date of the beginning and close of the statistical year within these bounds shall be set by the District Advisory Board. [222.1]

H. Calling of a Pastor

115. An elder or licensed minister [422] may be called to pastor a church by two-thirds favorable vote by ballot of the church members of voting age present and voting at a duly called annual or special meeting of the church, provided that such elder or licensed minister shall have been nominated to the church by the church board, which, after having advised with the district superintendent, made such nomination by manation shall have been approved by the district superintendent. This call shall be subject to review and continuance as here-inafter provided. The initial term of service for a pastor who is an elder shall be for a period of two years. A licensed minister shall serve for one year. [118, 123.2, 129.2, 205.7, 208.6]

116. The pastor of a church which has been organized for less than five years, or has less than 35 voting members, or is receiving regular financial assistance from the district, may be appointed by the district superintendent with the consent of the general superintendent having jurisdiction and the District Advisory Board. [208.1, 208.3] 116.1. In such a church a pastoral vacancy in the interim

64 [1117]

LOCAL GOVERNMENT

between district assemblies shall be filled by appointment by the district superintendent.

the district supermemonent. 117. In case of disagreement between the church board and the district superintendent regarding pastoral arrangements, the church board or the district superintendent may submit the matter to the general superintendent having jurisdiction for his decision. From such decision either the church board or the district superintendent may appeal to the Board of General Superintendents. All such appeals, rebuttals of appeals, or ar-Superintemediatis. All succe mappents, restormant or appends, or any generatis perfaining therein, owhether to the general superinten-dent in prindicidion or the Board of General Superintendents, and the superintendent shared by approximation of appends, or azyments perfaining therein's payment, perfaining therein the district superintendent shall be sent to the other party in-clude the append resolution, arguments sustaining it, and the record of the vote states. If a minister under consideration with-record of the vote states. If a minister under consideration withdraws his name, or if a pastoral candidate is found to be unwavailable for consideration, the appeal process should terminate immediately, and the district superintendent and church board shall continue with pastoral arrangements. 118. When a pastor who is a licensed minister accepts the

116. when a pastor who is a necessary minister accepts the call to a local church after the beginning of the church year [114], his ministry shall be for a term including the next church year, and the call may be renewed as hereinafter provided, except that in case his license should not be renewed by the next district assembly, his pastorate shall terminate at the final ad-journment of the assembly.

journment of the assembly. 115.1. When a parket who is an elder accepts the call to a 115.1. When a parket who is an elder accepts the call to a ministry shall be for a term of of the shared synap (114), his the call may be rensed or extended is hereinafter provided. 110. In case a church has not called a pastor prior to the presenting at the district assembly. Support approximation and the District Advisory Board, in concurrence with the dela-post and the more and the pattern hard market pattern and the presenting at the district assembly approximation of the distribution (110) and (1 [222.3, 308.1]

120. Acceptance of a call to pastoral relations shall be given by the minister not later than 30 days from the date of the church meeting voting the call.
121. When a pastor is called, the local church should

121. When a pastor is called, the local church should specify the expected remainering. The sum of the first part of the second of the result of the second seco

The local church should also make provision for his traveling and moving expenses. [37, 129.7-29.8]

121.1. The remuneration of the pastor shall commence on the Monday preceding his first official Sunday of service to the local church.

122. No pastor shall terminate the pastorate of a church without giving the church board and the district superintendent written resignation at Least 30 days before the termination of his pastorate, and without having this resignation accepted by the church board and approved in writing by the district superintendent. When the resignation has been accepted, termination may be any time agreed upon within 30 days. 122.1. The source shall, in coccention with the source shall.

122.1. The pastor who resigns shall, in cooperation with the secretary of the church board, prepare a correct list of the church membership roll with current addresses. This roll must correspond numerically with the last published district minutes showing deletions and additions for the current year.

I. Renewing the Call of the Pastor

123. When a minister is called to a local church as pastor, he will serve at least 12 months before a renewal vote is taken. 66 [123.1]

The call of the pastor who is an elder may be continued for a two-spare preiod and max bucceeding two spare preiod of the pastransic without nonintation of the church based, by two-thicks the structure of the structure of the structure of the restriction of the structure of the structure of the notice being given from the papit at two preceding regular arrives, the first non-the based given and the structure structure of the structure of the structure of the then 180 days prior to the data of covering the next district district angentaneous within 30 days after such call. Its full district angentaneous within 30 days after such calls of the structure of the structure of the structure of the structure of the district angent negative structure of the structure of the district angent negative structure of the district angent negative structure of the structure

123.1. In case of disagreement regarding the disapproval of the renewal call by the district superintendent within the specifield time, either the church or the district superintendent may submit the matter to the general superintendent having jurisdiction for a decision. From such decision either the local church or the district superintendent may appeal to the Board of General Superintendents.

control of General Superintendents. 123.2. A pastor receiving less than two-thirds vote on a renewal call shall terminate his ministry with that church at the close of the district assembly.

123.3. The chairman of the Board of Tellers shall personally inform the pastor of the results of a pastoral renewal vote before any public announcement is made.

123.4. The pastor of a church which has been organized for less than five years, or has less than 35 voting members, or is receiving regular financial assistance from the district, may be reappointed by the district superintendent with the consent of the general superintendent having jurisdiction and the District Advisory Board.

Advisory poard. 124. Extended Call. The local church, when voting to renew pastoral relations of the pastor who is an elder, may vote to extend the call to a total of three or four years; or after a pastor has served that church for a minimum of four years, he shall be eligible for an indefinite call. The conditions for either kind of extended call are: (1) The pastoral vote for two years has been

LOCAL GOVERNMENT

[1126] 67

presented and a forweal-be vote received; (2) that it is be considered in the final year of his present call and within the time period for remewing the call of the pastor, namely, at least 10 period for remewing the call of the pastor, namely, at least 10 the theoret district samely; (3) such tensioned call shall have been recommodel by majority vote by halls of all numbers of the charch board; (a) payors all n withing the district angenment is by irres black were by by or church, mash a work owing age present and voting and must takk and a televismention of the prime black of the same same same same meeting duty called for the papose at least 10 days hut not district an ansemby.

When the encounted call is for an indefinite period of time, the parton relationship halls be reviewed at last every four years parton relationship halls be reviewed at last every four years by the district superintendent meeting with the district. In each other and the second second second second second part on the district assembly. If we vote is called for during the review and at least a majority vote by balls of all chartch board members are in fewer, the indefinite call shall be conboard members are in fewer, the indefinite call shall be concontinuing the indefinite call, the pastered reviewed shall be presented to the chartch membership for a vote ascording to 123, with the option of 23 at allowing the starts' hourd to recomsent the start of the start of the start based to recomting the start of the start of the start of the start board based, the indefinite call will be continued until another the chartch board, the indefinite call will be continued until another [113,13].

124.1. It shall be understood that this extended call shall include the two-year renewal call period. In the case of additional renewals of such pastorate, the procedure shall be the same as that stated herein.

125. In case the church meeting for the renewal call is held at a date later than 90 days prior to the convening of the next district assembly, the procedure shall be that of calling a pastor according to 115.

126. In case the district superintendent and the church

68 [126.1]

board shall be of the opinion that the question of the continuance of pattern trainion beyond the close of anyy year of an extended pattern it term should be submitted to the clurch, the distinct superintendent and the charch board by a row third vote of all in samehers together may order the question submities the structure of the structure of the structure of the structure than 150 doys, prior to be due of convening the following form: "Shift like present pattern relations to continued beyond the end of the present charch space" [113,13]. It, by a two thirds well by hold by the there have magnetized the structure of the structure of the structure space of the structure structure beyond the end of the present charch space" [113,13].

If, by a two-thirds vote by ballot of the church members of voting age present and voting, the church decides to continue its present pastoral relations, the office of the pastor shall continue as though such vote had not been taken. If, however, the church fails to decide by such vote to con-

If, however, the church fails to decide by such vote to continue the present pastoral relations, the term of office of the pastor shall terminate with the close of the district assembly. 126.1. When in the opinion of the district asperintendent

126.1. When in the opinion of the district superintendent and the District Advisory Board, a local church is in crisiafinancial, morale, or otherwise—and this crisis seriously affects the stability and future of the church, the tenure of a pastor may be terminated by the unanimous vote of the District Advisory Board, the approval of the general superintendent in jurisdiction, and a majority vote of the local church hoard.

J. The Church Board

127. Membership: Bvery local church shall have a church bord, composed for the parkot, the chirama of the Christian Life and Sunday School Board, the president of the Nazarene World Misthe State of the State of the State of the State of the the members of the Christian Life and Sunday School Board when elected as the Education Committee of the church board by the strengt church meeting. Elders unsasigned by the district of the State of th

128. Meetings. The church board shall have a regular meeting within the first 15 days of each calendar month and shall
meet specially when called by the pastor, the district superintendent, the secretary only with the approval of the pastor, or the district superintendent when there is no pastor. Between the annual church meeting and the district assem-

bly the newly elected church board may meet for organization purposes, at which time it shall elect a church secretary and a church treasurer as provided hereafter and any other officer which it shall be their duty to elect. [113.6, 129.17-29.18] 129. Business, The business of the church board shall be:

129.1. To care for the interests of the church and its work, not otherwise provided for, in harmony with the pastor, [162, 4251

129.2. To nominate to the church, after having consulted with the district superintendent, any elder or licensed minister whom it may deem the proper person to become pastor, pro-vided the nomination be approved by the district superintendent. [115, 208.6]

129.3. To recommend to the church, with the approval of the district superintendent, that the call of the pastor be renewed for a term longer than one/two year[s], [124, 126]

129.4. To arrange for pastoral supply, after conference with the district superintendent, until such time as a pastor shall be regularly called by the church. [209] 129.5. To provide for the development and adoption of an

annual budget for the church, all auxiliaries, any day-care/preschool/weekday schools projecting income and expenditures.

129.6. To assign a committee of the board responsibilities for (a) monitoring the church budget, (b) reporting to the board on the financial conditions and concerns of the church.

129.7. To determine the amount of salary the pastor shall receive, and to review it at least once a year. [121]

129.8. To provide ways and means for the support of the pastor, the pastoral supply, or any other paid workers of the church; to give attention to the continuing educational needs of the pastor and staff, [121, 143.3]

129.9. To determine the financial support and housing allowance an evangelist should receive and notify the person of

70 [¶129.10]

such minimum support at the time of the call by the church board.

129.10. To give proper attention to the support of the district superintendent and the general superintendents, in accordance with the authorized plans.

129.11. To license, or renew the license of, at its discretion, any person who has been recommended by the pastor for (a) local minister, or (b) lay minister. [402.1, 402.3]

129.12. To recommend, at its discretion, to the district assembly upon momination by the pastor, any person who desires to receive a certificate for any of the assigned roles of ministry; including all lay and ministerial candidates aspiring to be recognized for ministries beyond the local church, if such recommendation is required by the Manual.

129.13. To recommend, at its discretion, to the district assembly, upon nomination by the pastor, any person who desires the Licensed Minister's Credential or its renewal. [402.5, 403.1]

129.14. To recommend, at its discretion, to the district assembly, upon nomination by the pastor, renewal of deaconess' license in harmony with 415.

129.15. To elect upon nomination of the Christian Life and Sanday School Board, with the approval of the pastor, a director of children's ministries, a director of youth ministries (who may be the NYI president), and a director of adult ministries. [162.6]

129.16. To approve the selection of the administrators of Nazarene day-care/preschool/weekday schools. [423,17]

129.17. To elect a secretary at the first meeting of the new board, to serve until the close of the church year and until a successor has been elected and qualified. [113.5, 128, 134.1-34.5]

129.18. To elect a treasurer at the first meeting of the new board, to serve until the close of the church year and until a successor has been elected and qualified. [128, 135.1-35.6]

129.19. To cause careful account to be kept of all money received and diabursed by the church, including any weekday schools and all auxiliaries, and make report of the same at its regular monthly meetings, and to the annual meeting of the church. [135.3]

129.20. To provide a committee, no fewer than two members of which shall count and account for all money received by the church. [143.3]

129.21. To appoint an auditing committee which shall audit, at least annually, the financial records of the trensurer of the church, the Nazarene Youth International, the Christian Life and Sunday School Board, Nazarene day-care/preschool/ weekday schools, and any other financial records of the church.

129.22. To provide an evangelism and church membership committee of no fewer than three persons. [110]

129.23. To function, if advisable, as the Christian Life and Sunday School Board in churches of no more than 50 members. [149.3]

[129.24. To appoint a trial committee of five in case written charges are pending against a church member. [501]

129.25. To elect, with the written approval of the district superintendent and upon the nomination of the pastor, such paid assistants as assistant pastors, directors of Christian education, directors of youth work, directors of music, and directors of weekday schools. [158,3, 166, 206.9]

129.26. To elect a local minister or a licensed minister as an unpaid assistant pastor only if approval is given annually in writing by the district superintendent.

129.27. To provide for a long-range planning committee for the church with the pastor as ex officio chairman.

130. The church bard, together with the pastor, shall follow plans adopted by the General Assembly and agreed to by the district assembly for raising apportionments of General Budget funds and District Budget funds made to the local church, and shall raise and regularly pay these apportionments.

131. The church board shall perform the duties of a Christian Life and Sunday School Board in a newly organized church until such hoard has been regularly elected. [149, 149.3] 131.1. The church board and pastor of the newly organized

131.1. The church board and pastor of the newly organized church shall decide when a chairman of the Christian Life and Sunday School Board will be elected. [129.23]

132. The church board may remove from the membership roll the name of an inactive church member after a period of two years has elapsed from the date when his or her name was declared inactive, [112.3]

133. The church board may suspend or revoke the license of any locally credentialed person.

134. Church Secretary. The duties of the secretary of the

134.1. To record correctly and preserve faithfully the minutes of all church meetings and meetings of the church boad, and do whatever else may pertain to the office. [122.1, 129.17]

134.2. To present to the annual meeting of the church an annual report of all the activities of the local church, including statistics on membership. [113.7]

134.3. To see that official papers, records, and legal docu-ments pertaining to the local church, including deeds, ab-stracts, insurance policies, loan documents, church mem-bership rolls, historical records, church board minutes, and incorporation papers are held in sacred trust in either fireproof or secure safes on the local church premises. When feasible they may be placed in safe deposit facilities in local banks or similar institutions. Access to such shall always be shared with the pastor and church treasurer, and care for such shall be deliv-ered immediately to the church secretary's successor in office.

134.4. To be the secretary of all annual and special church meetings; and to be custodian of the minutes and other papers

meetings; and to be customan of the minutes and other paperes of such annual and special church meetings. [113,6] 134.45. To certify in writing to the district superintendent the results of the vote for the calling of a pastor, a pastoral renewal vote, and the vote for an extended pastoral renewal call. Such certification shall be made within one week of the

134.6. To send to the district superintendent a copy of the minutes of all church meetings and meetings of the church board within three days of such meetings when that local church is without a paster.

134.7. To sign in conjunction with the pastor all convey-

ances of real estate, mortgages, releases of mortgage, contracts, and other legal documents not otherwise provided for in the Manual. [102.1, 103-4.2]

135. Church Treasurer. The duties of the treasurer of the church board shall be:

135.1. To receive all moneys not otherwise provided for, and disburse the same only on order of the church board. [129.19] 135.2. To make monthly remittances of all district funds to

135.2. To make monthly remittances of all district funds to the district treasurer, and of all general funds to the general treasurer, except as otherwise provided. [423,16]

135.3. To keep a correct book record of all funds received and disbursed. [129.19]

135.4. To present a detailed monthly financial report for distribution to the church board. [129.19]

135.5. To present an annual financial report to the annual church meeting. [113.7, 129.19]

135.6. To deliver to the church board the complete treasurer's records at such time as the treasurer shall cease to hold the office.

K. The Stewards

130. The stewards of the church shall be no fewer than 3 nor more than 15 in number. They shall be elected by ballot, at the annual or a special church meeting, from among the members of the church, to serve for the next church year and until their nuccessors have been elected and qualified. [38, 113.6, 113.9, 127]

137. The duties of the stewards are:

137.1. To serve as a church growth committee with the responsibilities of outreach, evangelism, and extension, including sponsoring new churches and missions, with the pastor as ex officio chairman.

137.2. To provide assistance and support for the needy and distensed. A biblical role of lay leaders is that of ministering in areas of practical service [Acts 61-3; Romans 126-8]. Therefore stowards should offer their time and spiritula gifts in acts of service, administries.

74 [137.3]

137.3. To serve, at the discretion of the church board, as the Evangelism and Church Membership Committee as outlined in 110-108.

137.4. To assist the pastor in organizing the church so that Christian service opportunities are available to all members. Special attention should be given to the development of ministries toward those of other cultural and socioeconomic backgrounds in the immediate and nearly communities. 137.5. To serve as liaisons to community Christian action

137.5. To serve as liaisons to community Christian action and service organizations.

 137.6. To give assistance to the pastor in public worship and Christian nurture in the local church.
 137.7. To provide the elements for the Lord's Supper, and

137.7. To provide the elements for the Lord's Supper, and when requested by the pastor, to assist in the distribution of the same. [33.5, 423,10]

same (55.6, 45.5.6) 138. For faithfulness in the discharge of their duties the stewards shall be amenable to the local church. They shall make a report to the church at the annual church meeting. [113.7]

139. A vacancy in the office of steward may be filled by the local church at a duly called church meeting. [113,13]

L. The Local Stewardship Committee

140. The stewards shall constitute the Stewardship Committee, whose daty it shall be to promote the cause of Christian stewardship in the local church in cooperation with the pastor and the Stewardship Services office of the General Finance Division, [37:3741]

M. The Trustees

141. The trustees of the church shall be no fewer than three nor more than nine in number. They shall be elected from among the members of the local church to serve for the next church year and until their successors have been elected and qualified. [38, 1139, 127]

142. In all cases where the civil law requires a specific mode of election of church trustees, that mode shall be strictly followed. [113.3] 142.1. Where no particular mode of election is required by civil law, the trustees shall be elected by ballot at the annual meeting of the local church or at a special meeting duly called for that purpose. [113.8, 113.9]

143. The duties of the trustees shall be:

143.1. To hold the tile to church property and manage it as trustees of the local church, where the local church is not ported, or where the civil law requires it, or where the solution reasons it is deemed bast by the district experimendant or the District Advisory Board, subject to the guidance and the restrictions as set forth in 102-43.

strictions as set forth in 102-4.3. 143.2. To give guidance to the development of the physical facilities and to financial planning, unless the church board has provided otherwise.

143.3. To give special attention, under the direction of the church board, to raising money for the support of the church and of the pastor, that he may be free from secular care and anxiety and may give himself wholly to the work of the ministry. (129.8, 129.20)

144. For faithfulness to their trust, the trustees shall be amenable to the local church. They shall report to the annual church meeting. In the interim of annual church meetings, they shall make reports to the church board of which they are a part. [102, 1042, 1061-62, 1137]

145. A vacancy in the office of trustee may be filled by the local church at a duly called church meeting. [113.13]

N. Christian Life and Sunday School

146. Christian Life and Sunday School, as an organization of the local cluvch, has as its primary task to reach people for Christ. It promotes the organization and work of Sonday Schools; it plans, promotes, direct, and coordinates the total CL/SS of the local church, including Sunday, weakday, annual/special ministry, and training. The organization shall be supervised by the Christian Life and Sunday School Board under the direct ever of the nanotaction.

146.1. Christian Life and Sunday School shall provide ministry to all age-groups: children, birth to age 12 or completion of

76 [1147]

grade six; youth, age 12 or grade seven through age 23; adults, married or 24 years of age and older. 147. The objectives of Christian Life and Sunday School

147. The objectives of Christian Life and Sunday School are:

147.1. To locate and reach the largest possible number of unchurched people for Christ and the church.

147.2. To bring the unchurched into the fellowship of the church.

147.3. To teach the Word of God effectively in order to lead people into salvation and the experience of entire sanctification.

147.4. To teach the doctrines of the Christian faith revealed in the Bible and interpreted by the Articles of Faith of the Church of the Nazarene; to develop the simplicity and spiritual power of Christlike character, attitudes, and habits; and to establish Christian homes.

147.5. To prepare believers for membership in the Church of the Nazarene.

147.6. To motivate and equip believers for involvement in appropriate Christian ministry.

147.7. These objectives are to be accomplished through devout and diligent study and teaching of the Bible, in and through any other contributive agencies. 148. Byiaus. Each Sunday School shall be organized and

148. Byfaws. Each Sunday School shall be organized and administered according to the bylaws in 812.

148.1. The officers and teachers of the Sunday School shall be professing Christians, exemplary in life, and in full harmony with the doctrines and polity of the Church of the Nazarene.

148.2. The Christian Life and Sunday School year shall be the same as the church year defined in 114. 148.3. At the close of the statistical year it shall be the duty

148.3. At the close of the statistical year it shall be the duty of the pastor to supervise carefully the preparing of the annual statistical report of the Christian Life and Sunday School and the forwarding of it to the district secretary. [114, 423.12]

0. The Christian Life and Sunday School Board

149. Every church shall have a Christian Life and Sunday

School Board composed of a chairman [150.1-50.2, 152.4] and three to nine persons elected at the annual church meeting. They shall elect a scretary and such other officers as deemed necessary. All members shall serve until the close of the next year and until their successors are elected and qualified.

149.1. Ex officio members of the CL/SS Board shall be the pastor, the NWMS president, children's ministries director, youth ministries director, and adult ministries director.

149.2. A vacancy on the CL/SS Board may be filled at a duly called church meeting. 149.3. In churches of 75 members or less the church board

149.3. In churches of 75 members or less the church board may function as the CL/SS Board. [131]

149.4. The church may choose to elect an education committee as a part of the church board at the annual church meeting in lieu of a CL/SS Board. [113.10]

149.5. The church desiring to elect an education committee as a part of the church board must follow the Manual requirements for the minimum number of stewards and trautese, [136, 141] Committee members will be elected within the framework of the maximum number of church board members.

149.6. If an education committee [149.4] is elected, the ex officio members [149.1] shall serve along with church board members on this committee.

150. The Chairman of the Christian Life and Sunday School Board. The qualifications shall be:

150.1. A member of the local church in which he serves.

150.2. In the experience of entire sanctification and in full sympathy with the doctrine and polity of the Church of the Nazarene. [38]

151. The chairman shall be elected by majority vote by ballot in the annual church meeting. [113.9, 152.4] 151.1. An incumbent chairman may be reelected by a "yes"

151.1. An incumbent chairman may be reelected by a "yes" or "no" vote when such election is ordered by the CL/SS Board and approved by the pastor.

151.2. A vacancy in the office of chairman of the CL/SS Board shall be filled by the local church at a duly called church meeting. [113-13.3]

151.3. The chairman shall be an ex officio member of the

78 [1151.4]

church board, the CL/SS Board, and the district assembly held immediately prior to his year of office. He shall submit a report to the annual church meeting and a monthly report to the church board, and shall preside over the regular meetings of the CL/SS Board or Education Committee of the church board. [201]

151.4. The chairman is responsible for giving strong leadership to the Sunday School by promoting programs of growth in enrollment, attendance, and leadership training.

152. The duties of the Christian Life and Sunday School Board shall be:

152.1. To hold regular meetings for the transaction of necessary business. Special meetings may be called by the chairman or the pastor.

152.2. To promote and supervise the growth of the Sunday School in the local church.

152.3. To coordinate the total Christian Life and Sunday School ministry of the local church, including decisions regarding curriculum materials to be used. Nazarene materials should always form the basis for biblical study and doctrinal interpretation.

152.4. To submit one or more nominations approved by the pastor to the annual church meeting for chairman of the CL/SS Board. The chairman is not to be present when the nominees are selected.

152.5. To nominate to the church board with the approval of the pastor a director of children's ministries, a director of youth ministries.NY1, and a director of adult ministries. Where advisable, the elected NY1 president may be the youth ministries director.

152.6. To elect the Children's, Youth, and Adult councils from nominations by the directors of children's, youth, and adult ministries with approval by the pastor and chairmann of the CL/SS Board. The elected NYI Council may be the Youth Ministries Council.

152.7. To elect all age-group Sunday School supervisors, teachers, and officers from nominations by the directors of children's, youth, and adult ministries, with approval by the pastor and chairman of the CL/SS Board.

152.8. To elect a local director of Continuing Lay Training, who shall organize, promote, and supervise training opportunities for the entire membership of the church. The CL/SS Board shall have the option of naming the Continuing Lay Training director as an ex officio member to this hoard. 153. Children's Ministries Director. The duties of the local

director of children's ministries shall be

153.1. To organize, promote, and coordinate the total Christian Life and Sunday School ministry for children from birth to age 12 (completion of grade six). 153.2. To give leadership to the children's division of the

Sunday School by promoting programs of growth in enrollment and attendance for children in the local church, in cooperation with the CL/SS Board.

153.3. To give leadership for additional Sunday, weekday, annual, and special ministries, evangelism, and fellowship activities for children.

153.4. To nominate to the CL/SS Board the leadership for the various children's ministries, including Sunday School su-pervisors, teachers, and officers. The nominees shall be ap-proved by the pastor and the chairman of the CL/SS Board.

153.5. To recommend to the CL/SS Board for approval, any

supplemental curriculum and resources to be used. 153.6. To provide leadership training for children's workers in cooperation with the CL/SS Board and the director of Continuing Lay Training.

153.7. To chair the Children's Ministries Council. The Children's Ministries Council shall be responsible for planning the total Christian Life and Sunday School ministry for chil-dren in the local church. The council is composed of at least one Sunday School representative and the directors of: children's church, Caravan, Vacation Bible School, quizzing, mission education, and any others deemed necessary. The council size should vary with the number of ministries being offered to children in the local church as needs are identified and leadership is available.

80 [1153.8]

153.8. To submit an annual asking budget to the CL/SS Board and/or church board, and administer funds in accordance with such budget approval.

153.9. To receive all reports, including Sunday School, Caravan, Vacation Bible School, and other children's ministries. A monthly report of Sunday School enrollment, attendance, and children's ministries activities shall be submitted to the chairman of the CL/SS Board.

153.10. To submit a quarterly calendar of children's activities to the CL/SS Board to be coordinated with the total Christian Life and Sunday School ministry of the local church.

154. Youth Ministries Director. A local church board may assign the following responsibilities of the local youth ministries director to the local NYI president [158.3-58.4]. The duties of the local youth director shall be:

154.1. To organize, promote, and coordinate the total Christian Life and Sunday School ministry for youth age 12 (seventh grade) through 23 years of age.
154.2. To give leadership to the youth division of the Sun-

154.2. To give leadership to the youth division of the Sunday School by promoting programs of growth in enrollment and attendance for youth in the local church, in cooperation with the CL/SS Board.

154.3. To nominate to the CL/SS Board the leadership for the various youth ministries, including Sunday School supervisors, teachers, and officers. The nominees shall be approved by the pastor and the chairman of the CL/SS Board.

154.4. To recommend to the CL/SS Board for approval any supplemental curriculum and resources to be used.

154.5. To provide leadership training for youth workers in cooperation with the CL/SS Board and the director of Continuing Lay Training.

134.6. To chair the Youth Ministries Council. The Youth Ministries Council shall be responsible for planning the total Christian Life and Sunday School ministry for youth in the local church. [155.4, 155.6, 810] 134.7. To submit an annual asking budget to the CL/SS

154.7. To submit an annual asking budget to the CL/SS Board and/or church board, and administer funds in accordance with such budget approval. 154.8. To receive all reports, including Sunday School and other youth ministries and NY1 activities. A monthly report of Sunday School enrollment, attendance, youth ministries, and NY1 activities shall be submitted to the chairman of the CL/SS Board, and an annual report shall be submitted to the annual meeting of the local church. [113,7, 127]

154.9. To submit a quarterly calendar of youth activities to the CL/SS Board to be coordinated with the total Christian Life and Sunday School ministry of the local church.

155. Adult Ministries Director. The duties of the local director of adult ministries shall be:

155.1. To organize, promote, and coordinate the total Christian Life and Sunday School ministry for adults from marriage or 24 years of age through senior adult years.

155.2. To give leadership to the adult division of the Sunday School by promoting programs of growth in enrollment and attendance for adults in the local church in cooperation with the CL/SS Board.

155.3. To give leadership for additional Sunday, weekday, annual, and special ministries, evangelism, and fellowship activities for adults.

155.4. To nominate to the CL/SS Board the leadership for the various adult ministries, including Sunday School supervisors, teachers, and officers. The nominees shall be approved by the pastor and the chairman of the CL/SS Board.

155.5. To recommend to the CL/SS Board for approval any supplemental curriculum and resources to be used.

155.6. To provide leadership training for adult workers in cooperation with the CL/SS Board and the director of Continuing Lay Training.

136.57. To chair be Adult Ministrise Council, The Adult Ministrise Council shall be responsible for planning the total Ministrise Council shall be responsible for planning the total Christian Life and Sunday School ministry for adults in the Modult Ministrise Council a composed of at least one Sunday School representative and the directors of marriage and family life, senior adult ministrise, somethy and work of the Roll Parent Angultant and any others desmed necessarily and any dense desmed necessarily and the Roll Parents, and any others desmed necessarily and the Roll Parents, and any others desmed necessarily and the Roll Parents, and any others desmed necessarily and the Roll Parents, and any others desmed necessarily and the Roll Parents, and any others desmed necessarily and the Roll Parents, and any others desmed necessarily and the Roll Parents, and any others desmed necessarily and the Roll Parent Alexandrian and the Roll Parents, and the Roll Parents, and any others desmed necessarily and the Roll Parents, and any others desmed necessarily and the Roll Parents, and any other desmed necessarily and the Roll Parents, and any other desmed necessarily and the Roll Parents, and any other desmed necessarily and the Roll Parents, and any other desmed necessarily and the Roll Parents, and any other desmed necessarily and the Roll Parents, and any other desmed necessarily and the Roll Parents, and the

82 [1155.8]

LOCAL GOVERNMENT

sary. The council size should vary with the number of ministries being offered to adults in the local church as needs are identified and leadership is available.

155.8. To submit an annual asking budget to the CL/SS Board and/or church board, and administer funds in accordance with such budget approval. 155.9. To receive all reports, including Sunday School en-

155.9. To receive all reports, including Sunday School enrollment, attendance, and adult ministries activities in the local church. A monthly report shall be submitted to the chairman of the CL/SS Board.

Linute: A second sec

P. Nazarene Christian Day Schools

156. Nazarene day-care/preschool/elementary, junior high, or high schools may be organized by the local church board(s) after receiving the approval of the district superintendent and the District Advisory Board. [208.9-8.10, 222.12, 339.8, 423.22, 424]

Q. The Local Nazarene Youth International

158. Youth in the local church may be organized into units of the Nazarene Youth International for the spiritual benefit of young people, cooperation in bringing youth to Christ, and equipping them for the advancement of the work of the church.

158.1. The local units of the Nazarene Youth International may be organized into divisions as needed and shall be in harmony with the Constitution for the local society as approved by the General Assembly, [810]

158.2. The local Nazarene Youth International shall be amenable to the local church and pastor.

108.3. The president of the local Nazarene Youth International shall be nominated by the Nominating Committee, connisting of not less than three nor more than seven members of NYI, including the pastor, and appointed by the pastor. This committee shall submit at least two names for the office of

[\$159.2] 83

president, providing, however, that a president may be reelected by a "yea" or "or "ore when such election is recommended by the Nominating Committee and approved by the pastor. The present and voting by ballot. His election shall be subject to the approval of the clurch board. He add be a number, ar officio, langerous and the clurch board. He shall be a number, are officio, house the start of the start of the start of the start of the double line in the start of the start of the start of the local clurch. [113, 714, 127]

A church having a paid staff person with responsibility for the youth program shall have the option for that person to serve in place of an elected NYI president. In such cases the staff person will have the privilege of the floor in church board meetings but no vote. [166.4]

158.4. Each local organization of Nazarene Youth International ahall be represented in the district assembly by its newly elected president of which district assembly he shall be a member. He shall report the condition of the society to the district assembly. [201]

R. The Local Nazarene World Mission Society

159. Upon the authorization of the church board, local organizations of the Nazarene World Mission Society may be formed within any age-group in harmony with the Constitution of such local societies approved by the World Mission Department. [811.]

139.1. The local Nazarene World Mission Society shall be a constituent part of the local church and subject to the supervision and direction of the pastor and the church board. [424] 139.2. The president of the local society shall be nominated

159.2. The president of the local society shall be nominated by a committee of three to serve active members of the Nararrene World Mission Society appointed by the pastor, who shall serve as chairmann. This committee shall aben't one or more norms for the office of president. The president shall be elected world. In the server a share the server as the server

84 [\$160]

church board, and a member of the district assembly held immediately prior to his year of office. The president shall present a report to the annual meeting of the local church. [113.7, 114, 127, 201]

160. All funds raised by the local society for general interests of the Church of the Nazarene shall be applied to the General Badget apportionment of the local church with the exception of offerings for Alabaster, World Mission Radio, Memorial Roll, Distinguished Service Award, Medical Plan and Retirement Pund, and Christmas Gift Pund.

100.1. The Medical Plan and Retirement Fund is to be held in trust by the general treasure for the General Council of the Nararene Werld Mission Society, to be used for medical aid for active missioners, pensions and medical aid for retired missionaries, such aid to be granted by the World Mission Department according to the setablished policy. Funds shall be raised by placing of names on the Memorial Roll, the Distinguished Service Navad, and/or offerings.

Service Award, and/or otterings. 1400.2. After primary consideration has been given to the full payment of the General Budget, opportunities may be given to make offerings for the support of world missionary work, such contributions to be known as "specials."

161. Funds for the support of general interests shall be raised in the following manners:

161.1. From gifts and offerings designated for the General Budget and general interests.

161.2. From special offerings such as Easter and Thanksgiving.

161.3. No part of the above funds shall be used for local or district expense or charitable purposes.

S. Prohibition of Financial Appeals

162. It shall not be lawful for a local church, its officers or members, to send appeals to other local churches, their officers and members, to solicit money or financial assistance for their local church needs or for the interests that they may support.

It is provided, however, that such solicitation may be made to local churches and church members located within the bounds

[165] 85

of the assembly district in which the solicitor is located, but only on condition that the solicitation be approved in writing by the district superintendent and the District Advisory Board.

by the district soperimement and the District Forward power 163. Members of the Church of the Nazarene who are not authorized by the General Board or one of its divisions shall not solicit funds for missionary or kindred activities spart from the General Budget, from congregations of local churches, or from members of such churches.

T. Use of the Church Name

164. The name of the Charch of the Nazarena, any local charchs, or any copromision or institutions which is a part of in any manner affiliated with the Charch of the Nazarena, or any Charch of the Charch of the Nazarena of the Charch of the Nazarena of the Nazarena of the Nazarena of the Nazarena of the Board of General Shoprimelineth, particularly a considering any charge starting the Nazarena of the Board of General Shoprimelineth, particular and the Nazarena of the Desard of the Nazarena of the Naza

U. Church-sponsored Corporation

165. No local church, local church loard, dittrict corportion, district bound, near you core members of any other provides, and the set of them, asting individually cerebration, and the set of them, asting individually cerebration, association, the set of the s

86 [1166]

be sponsored or operated primarily or exclusively by or for the benefit or service of members of the Church of the Nazarene, without the express prior written consent of the district superintendent and the District Advisory Board.

V. Paid Assistants in the Local Church

166. There may be those who feel called to prepare them: shews for certain viail also services in the church, either partlines or full-dime. The church necessities the place of such lay the service of the service of the service of the service of the line or full-dime. The Go and others the their and previous of all its members according to their abilities. When paid assistance in the local church, whether ministerial or log, laconess necesmary for presider efficiency, if must be such as will not devialities found in the service of the service of the church's foundation of the service of the service of the service of the foundation of the service of th

166.1. All local assistants, paid or unpaid, such as assistant pastors, directors of Christian education, directors of youth work, directors of mulci, and directors of weekdow schools, shall be elected by the church hoard, having been nominated by the pastor. All nomistions must have approval in writing by the district superintendent, who shall respond within 15 days after receipt of the request. [1664, 20, 90, 9]

106.3. The temperature of the satisfants shall be for no more than one year properties of a subscription of a subscription of the pastor with the write permeasure of the shareh starts and the subscription of the subscriptio

166.3. The duties and services of such assistants are to be determined and supervised by the pastor. A clear, written statement of responsibilities (job description) shall be made available to such assistants within 30 days of the beginning of their responsibility to the local church.

166.4. No paid employee of the church shall be eligible for election to the church board. If a church board member should

become a paid employee of the church he or she shall not remain a member. [166.1]

106.5. Upon the resignation of the pastor, paid and unpaid aff members you has assistant partament, directors of Christian education, directors of youth work, and directors or music shall patter the start of the start of the start of the start patter However, nor more of the association may remain longer with the approval of the district superintendent and the start of the start of the start of the start of the new the privilege of rens of start. The incoming patter may have the privilege of rens of start of the start of the start patter privilege of the start of the start of the start of the new privilege of rens of start of the start of the start of the privilege of rens of start of the start of start memters privilege of the start of the start of the start of the start of the privilege of the start of the

166.6. Communication with staff members, the church board, and the congregation regarding the effect of 166.5 on staff members at the time of pastoral change shall be the responsibility of the district superintendent. [208.9]

166.7. The pastor of a congregation having approval to function as a local church according to 100.1 shall not be considered a staff member. DISTRICT GOVERNMENT

88 [1200]

CHAPTER II

THE DISTRICT ASSEMBLY

A. Bounds and Name

200. The General Assembly shall organize the membership of the church into district assemblies.

The bounds and name of a church assembly district shall be such as shall be declared by the General Assembly, or by the assembly district involved, with the final approval of the general superintendent or superintendents having jurisdiction. [29]

² **300.1**. The Covation of New Districts. New districts in the Chemts of the Nasarem may be created by the division of our district into two or more districts, the combination of two or more district our of which a larger mouther of districts mays be created, or by the creation of a pionese rave within an existing district [20, 20, 17]. Propresent of stabilizing new district may be initiated by the district noperimembers and District. Advio of the general superimediant/way) (at district havpoint mendation of the general superimetedent(s) in juriodiction. [78,1]

¹⁰ (2014) 200.2. Missionary work in the Church of the Nazarene may lead to the establishment of new districts and district assembly boundaries. Regular districts may emerge as quickly as possible according to the following pattern: Phase 1—*The Flower District*. Such a district represents the

Phase 1—The Pioneer District. Such a district represents the beginning stages of work in a given country or area and will be under the supervision of a missionary superintendent. Phase 2—The National-Mission District. A pioneer district

Phase 2—The National-Mission District. A pioneer district may become a national-mission district when a measure of ability for self-government and for financial support has been demonstrated. A national leader shall be selected as district superintendent.

Phase 3-The Mission District. A district having a national superintendent and having achieved 50 percent self-support.

DISTRICT GOVERNMENT

[1201] 89

Phase 4—The Regular District. A district having a national superintendent and having achieved full district self-support and having not less than 1,000 nonprobationary district membership.

In each instance the change in designation shall be upon the recommendation of the department of the General Board having supervision of the work and with the approval of the Board of General Superintendents and the General Board.

200.3. When a recommendation to establish a new district has been made, her matter shall be solution to the Church of Borren Davison has been approximately a second second is and church member analysis. The report of the Church Growth Davison has been appeard and be absord of General Superstructures and the submitted to the David of General Statistical and the submitted to the David of General second seco

200.4. If any or all of the district assemblies involved fail to act, or if the actions of the several district assemblies are in disagreement, the recommendation shall be submitted to the next General Assembly for action.

B. Membership and Time of Meeting

201. Membership: The district assembly shall be composed of all assigned descender 160-53, 40-64, 41,19; all assigned descender 160-53, 10-64, 14,19; all assigned discrete 4603; between 46,19; all assigned between 4603; between 46,19; all assigned bet

dent of the District Nazarene World Mission Society [244.2]; the newly elected chairman or vice chairman of each local Christian Life and Sunday School Board [151.3]; the newly elected president or vice president of each local Nazarene Youth International [158.4]; the newly elected president or vice president of each local Nazarene World Mission Society [159.2]; or an appropriately elected alternat may represent these or-ganizations in the district assembly; those serving in assigned roles of ministry according to 412-33.1; the lay members of the District Advisory Board [22.13]; and the lay delegates from each local church in the assembly district [29, 113.12, 201.1].

201.1. Local churches in districts of fewer than 5.000 church members shall be entitled to representation in the dis-trict assembly as follows: two lay delegates from each local church of 50 or fewer church members, and one additional lay delegate for each successive 50 church members and the final major part of 50 church members. [29, 113.12, 201] 201.2. Local churches in districts of 5.000 or more church

members shall be entitled to representation in the district assembly as follows: one lay delegate from each local church of 50 or fewer church members, and one additional lay delegate for each successive 50 church members and the final major part of 50 church members, [29, 113.12, 201]

202. Time. The district assembly shall be held annually, at

202. Time, The district assembly shall be hold annually, at the time appointed by the general aspeciated as the strong particular star and the strong particular strength of the strong strength of the strong strength of the strength of the strength of the strength streng

C. Business of the District Assembly

203. The business of the district assembly shall be:

203.1. To hear or receive reports from all elders and licensed ministers serving as pastors or commissioned evange-

DISTRICT GOVERNMENT

[1203.7] 91

galists; and to consider the character of all elders, deacones, and deaconesses. By vote of the district assembly the record of written reports received by the secretary may be accepted in place of oral reports of all other elders, deacons, deaconesses, and licensed ministers not engaged in active service, and those ministers having district certificates for all roles of ministry in 412-33.1 (403.-38, 411.3, 428)

203.2, To license as licensed ministers, after careful examination, persons who have been recommended by church boards or the District Advisory Board and who may be judged to be called to the ministry and to renew such license upon favorable recommendation of the Ministerial Credentials Board. [129.13, 402.5, 403.1, 403.3]

203.3. To renew as licensed deaconesses, after careful examination, persons who have been recommended by church boards and who may be judged to be called to the office of deaconess upon favorable recommendation of the Ministerial Credentials Board. [129.14]

203.4. To elect to the order of elder, or to the order of deacon, persons judged to have fulfilled all the requirements for such orders upon favorable recommendation of the Ministerial Credentials Baard. 1404.3.405.31

203.6. To recognize the orders and credentials of persons coming from other denominations who may be judged qualified and desirable for placement in the Church of the Nazarene upon favorable recommendation of the Ministerial Credentials Board. 1403.2.4061

203.6. To receive, by transfer from other districts, persons having ministerial credentials, elders, deacons, licensed ministers, and those having continuing ministry role commissions, in harmony with 415-19.1, who may be judged as desirable for membership in the district assembly upon favorable recommendation of the Ministerial Credentials Board. 1408-8.2]

203.7. To issue a transfer of elders, descons, licensed ministers, and those having continuing role commissions according to 415-191, who desire to transfer to another district upon favorable recommendation of the Ministerial Credentials Board, [408-8.1]

DISTRICT GOVERNMENT

203.8. To commission or register for one year those persons deemed qualified for the roles of ministry named and defined in 412-33.1 upon favorable recommendation of the Ministerial Credentials Board.

200.8. To elect, by two-thirds for consider that the second district assembly following his district assembly following the district assembly following his distribution of the accessor is elected electron and utility accessor is electron of the distribution of the distribution of the accessor is electron and units shall be by a "ym" or "an" halled vote. No eider shall be considered slightfor for or "and" halled vote. No eider shall be considnt or the second of the distribution of the distribution of the distribunct of the birthday.

203.1.0. After a district superintendent of a regular or mission district [2020] has mered a district on a lensa two assume by years, the district assumbly may redict him for a period of the district assumbly may redict him for a period of the has been relevant on the distribution of the distribuent of a committee composed of the District Advisory Boent Boent president of the District NWMs and Sundow School Boent president of the District NWMs and Sundow School Boent president of the District NWMs and Sundow School Boent president of the District NWMs and Sundow School Boent president of the District NWMs and Sundow School Boent president of the District NWMs and Sundow School Boent president of the District NWMs and Sundow School Boent president of the District NWM and the school School Boent president of the present of the common scheme and school as a school boot of the school School School Boent president of the school School School School Boent president of the school School School School School Boent president of the school School School School School Boent president of the school Scho

In the case of additional elections to an extended term of office, the procedure shall be the same as stated herein; but each successive election shall not be for longer than four years for regular and mission assembly districts. [200.2]

100 reguar and mission assembly districts. [2002] 2003.11. In case the general superintendent and the officers of the district, namely, the District Advisory Board, chairman of the District Orithrian Life and Stundy School Board, president of the District NWMS, and president of the District NYI, shall be of the opinion that the services of the district superintendent should not continue beyond the current year of an extended term, the general superintendent having juridiction and the district officers may order the question submitted for a vote of the district assembly. The question shall be submitted in the following form: "Shall the present district superintendent be continued in office beyond this district assembly?"

If the district assembly, by a two-thirds vote by ballot, decides to continue the district superintendent in office, he shall continue to serve as though such vote had not been taken.

cases to continue the district superintement in ortho, he shall continue to serve as though such vote had not been taken. If, however, the district assembly fails to decide by such vote to continue the district assembly fails to decide by such vote office shall terminate with the close of that district assembly. [206]

203.12. To elect a district secretary, to serve until the final adjournment of the next district assembly and until his successor is elected and qualified. [216]

203.13. To elect a district treasurer, to serve until the final adjournment of the next district assembly and until his successor is elected and gualified. [219]

203.14. To elect, by ballot, three ordained ministers and three laymen to the District Advisory Board, to serve for a term not to exceed three years, as determined by the district assembly, and until their successors are elected and qualified.

When the district exceeds a total membership of 6,000, it may elect one additional ordained minister and one additional layman for each successive 2,500 members and the final major part of 2,800 members. [221]

203.15. To store a District Ministerial Credentials Board of not lease than 5 nor more than 15 ordinate diministerial. Towara and until their successors are selected and qualified. This board shall meet prior to the district assembly to consider all matters assigned to its authority and, insofar as is possible, to complete its work prior to the district assembly. (230-38) 203.18. To select a District Ministerial Studies Board of five

203.16. To elect a District Ministerial Studies Board of five or more ordained ministers, to serve for four years and until their successors are elected and gualified. [229]

203.17. To elect a District Church Properties Board in keeping with provisions of 234, [204.]]

203.18. To elect, at its discretion, a District Ministerial Be-

DISTRICT GOVERNMENT

nevolence Board, of as many members as the district assembly may choose, to serve until the final adjournment of the next district assembly and until their successors are elected and qualified. [204.]. 236]

203.19. To elect, at its discretion, either or both of the following. (1) a District Evangelism Board of no less than five members including the district superintendent, (2) a district director of evangelism, both to serve until the final adjournment of the next district assembly and until their successors are elected and qualified, [204.1] 203.20. To elect a District Christian Life and Sunday

203.20. To elect a District Christian Life and Sunday School Board in harmony with the procedure stated in 239, to serve until their successors are elected and qualified. [204.1, 212]

203.21. To letex a District Home Missions Board, of equal lays and ministerial membership, of no fewer than 6 nor more than 18, not including the district superintendent, who shall be a member ex officio, to serve until the next district assembly and until their successors are elected and qualified, however, the district assembly may order that the District Advisory Board may constitute the District Home Missions Board, 1233.

203.22. To elect a standing District Finance Committee of equal hay and ministerial representation to serve until the final adjournment of the next district assembly and until their successors are elected and qualified. The district superintendent and district treasures shall be members ex officio.

203.23. To det a District Court of Appeals, consisting of five ordained ministers, including the district superintendent, to serve unit the final adjournment of the next district assembly and until their successors are elected and qualified. [309.1, 506]

203.24. To elect annually, at its discretion, a district colporteur, upon the recommendation of the Communications Division of the General Board. [238]

203.25. To elect, by ballot, at a session within 16 months of the meeting of the General Assembly, all of the lay delegates and all but one of the ministerial delegates, since one shall be the district superintendent. In areas where travel visas or other

DISTRICT GOVERNMENT

[1203.31] 95

unuual propurations are necesary, the election may be held with 34 months of the menticy of the Gaeral Assembly. Soery regular and minima district assaulty shall be settled to minimized and up designsts. The district superintendent at the time of the Gaeran I Assembly shall be one of the minimized all district appertunctions. In our bar of the settle superintendent fairties appertunction has not been specification at the new district appertunction has no these specification of the protos of the settlement of the settlement of the settlement to attempt of the settlement taining at least three times the number of despects engine from that district, is such astronger, minimized and lay From mumbers shall be settlement. Despects elected are expected to attempt tend faither the settlement of the settlement of the settlement tend faither of the settlement of the settlement of the settlement tend faither of the settlement of the settleme

203.26. To establish, at its discretion, a system of probationary membership for its local churches, but probationers must not be counted as full members for purposes of representation.

203.27. To provide for the auditing of all district treasurer's books annually, either by an elected District Auditing Committee or by an auditing firm or certified public accountant.

tee or by an auditing firm or certified public accountant. 203.28. To present to the General Assembly, through the district sacretary, a full official journal for the preceding quadrennium, bound in permanent binding. [205.4, 217.7]

203.29. To grant a retired relation to any minister in good standing requesting it. [407-7.2] 203.30. To place in the retired relation, at its discretion,

203.30. To place in the retired relation, at its discretion, any minister in good standing who is disqualified for active ministerial labors because of physical disability or old age. [407.3]

203.31. To consider and care for the entire work of the Church of the Nazarene within the bounds of the assembly district. 96 [1203.32]

203.32. To transact any other business pertaining to the work, not otherwise provided for, in harmony with the spirit and order of the Church of the Nazarene.

204. Other Rules Pertaining to the District Assemblies. The district assembly may authorize, where civil law permits, the District Advisory Board to incorporate. After incorporation as above provided, the District Advisory Board shall have power, on its own resolution, to purchase, own, sell, exchange, mortage, deal in trait, hypothetasti, leases, and convey any property; real and personal, as may be necessary or convenient for the purpose of the corporation, 1203.18, 2226]

204.1. As far as possible membership of district boards and committees shall be equal between ministers and laymen unless specifically provided otherwise by the *Manual*.

204.2. The district superintendents of national-minimum and maissine districts that be chosen either by election or appointners under the guidance or the general superintendent in signification with resomendations from the World Mission of Choreft Orewth divisions. A national-minision or mission district that subsequently fails to agree upon an appointners of observations of a single transmission or provide the single sector of the state of the single sector of the single sector of the solution and be directed by a missionsy superintendent station substates and be directed by a missionsy superintendent station and mission of Prasa of Jimsion J states.

20.4.3. When the presiding officer of a district assembly deems that it is impossible to combine with the business of the district assembly and therefore adjourns the district assembly because of uncentrollable physical disaster or hocd disturbance, the general superintendent in jurisdiction, in consultation with the Board of General Superintendents, shall appoint all district officers not elected prior to the adjournment of the district assembly. In survey for a period of one year.

D. The District Assembly Journal

205. The journal shall be the record of the regular proceedings of the district assembly.

205.1. The journal shall be signed by the presiding officer and the district secretary.

205.2. The journal must be either written or typewritten manuscript, or printed, and substantially bound.

205.3. Separate items of business shall be placed in sepa-

rate paragraphs. 205.4. The journal should be edited carefully with the view to its examination by the General Assembly. [203.28, 217.7]

205.5. The full official journal for each quadrennium shall be bound in permanent binding, one copy being preserved in the district assembly files and one copy in the General Assembly files, [217.5, 217.7]

205.6. The journal shall be arranged as far as possible according to the table of contents prepared by the general secretary in consultation with the Board of General Superin-tendents. The table of contents shall be furnished to the district secretary prior to the convening of the district assembly.

205.7. The journal should contain not only the assignment of pastors to local churches, but also all regular and special engagements entered into by ministerial and lay members of the district assembly who are engaged in any line of denominational service that would entitle them to consideration if applying for benefits from the Pensions Board having the respon-sibility for the pensions and benefits program of that district.

E. The District Superintendent

206. The district superintendent who is elected by the district assembly shall be elected to a term of two full assembly years and to the final adjournment of the district assembly at which his successor is elected or appointed and qualified. The district superintendent who is appointed by the general superintendent in jurisdiction shall serve the remainder of that church year and two succeeding assembly years and until the final adjournment of the district assembly at which his successor is elected or appointed and qualified.

207. If for any cause a vacancy shall occur in the interim of sessions of the district assembly, the general superintendents.

DISTRICT GOVERNMENT

98 [1208]

jointly and severally, may fill the vacancy, upon consultation with a committee composed of the District Advisory Board, the chairman of the District Christian Life and Sunday School Board, and the presidents of the District NWMS and NYI. [309]

208. The duties of a district superintendent shall be

208.1. To organize, recognize, and supervise local churches within the bounds of his assembly district, subject to the approval of the general superintendent having jurisdiction. [100, 310. 411.12]

208.2. To visit the local churches in his assembly district at least once a year, insofar as is possible, and as necessary meet with the church hoard to consult with reference to spiritual, financial, and pastoral matters, giving such helpful advice and assistance as he may deem proper.

208.3. To have special supervision of all the missions of the Church of the Nazarene within the bounds of his assembly district.

208.4. To appoint someone to fill a vacancy, should one occur in the office of district secretary, [216.1]

208.5. To appoint someone to fill a vacancy, should one occur in the office of district treasurer. [219.1]

208.6. To advise with the church board concerning the nomination of an elder or a licensed minister to pastor a local church and to approve or disapprove such nomination. [115, 129.2]

208.7. To approve or disapprove the renewal of the call of a pastor. [123]

208.8. To approve or disapprove the granting of license to any member of the Church of the Nazzerene who may request local minister's license or renewal of local minister's license from the church board of a local church not having an elder as pastor. [402.1, 402.3]

208.9. To approve or disapprove in writing for nomination by the pastor to the local church board such paid local assistants as assistant pastors; ministers or directors of Christian education; directors of children's, youth, and adult work; directors of music; and directors of weekday schools. [129.25, 166-66.7]

208.10. To approve or disapprove, with the District Advisory Board, requests from local churches to operate Christian day school programs. [156, 222.12, 339.8, 424]

208.11. To execute and sign, along with the secretary of the District Advisory Board, all legal documents of the district. [222.6]

208.12. To nominate to the District Advisory Board and to supervise any paid assistants on the district, [246]

208.13. To appoint pastors in keeping with 116 and 116.1.

208.14. The district superintendent may, with the approval of the District Advisory Board, appoint the members of the church board (stewards, trustees), the chairman of the Christian Life and Sunday School Board, and other church officers (scretary, treasure) if a church has been organized for less than five years, or has less than 35 voting members, and is receiving result rinneila assistance from the district.

200. The district superintendent, with the consent of the church board, may appoint a pastoral supply to fill a vacency in the office of pastor until the next district assembly. Such appointed pastoral supply shall be subject to removal by the district superintendent when his services are not antisfactory to the church board and the local church. [1204, 4026, 431]

210. The district superintendent is authorized to perform for a local church within the bounds of his assembly district all the functions of pastor when that local church is without a pastor or pastoral supply. [422]

210.1. The district superintendent may preside at the annual, or a special, meeting of a local church, or appoint someone to represent him. [113.4]

21.1. If for any reason the general superintendent having jurindicition finite to be present or to appoint a representative to be present in his stead at the district assembly the district superintendent shall call the district assembly to order and shall preside until other provision may be made by the district assembly. [308]

100 [1212]

DISTRICT GOVERNMENT

212. The district superintendent may fill vacancies in the District Ministerial Studies Board [229.1], the District Christian Life and Sunday School Board [239.7], the District Ministerial Credentials Board [226.1], the District Auditing Committee [203.27], the District Home Missions Board [233.21], the District Church Properties Board [203.17], and the District Finance Committee [203.22].

212.1. The district superintendent may appoint all chairmen and secretaries of the district boards and standing committees where such are not provided in the *Manual* or assembly action.

213. The district superintendent shall be ex officio chairman of the District Advisory Council [245], the District Advisory Board [221.2], and the District Ministerial Credentials Board [227.1].

213.1. The district superintendent shall be a member ex officio of the District Christian Life and Sunday School Board, the District Home Missions Board, the District Church Properties Board, the District Finance Committee, the council of the District Nazarene Worth International, and the council of the District Nazarene Worth Mission Society. [203.21-3.22, 234, 29, 810. 81.12]

214. All official acts of the district superintendent shall be subject to review and revision by the district assembly, and subject to appeal. [507,3]

E The District Secretary

216. The district secretary, elected by the district assembly, shall serve until the final adjournment of the next district assembly and until his successor is elected and qualified. [203.12]

216.1. If the district secretary shall cease to serve, for any cause, in the interim of sessions of the district assembly, the district superintendent shall appoint someone to succeed him. [208.4]

216.2. The district secretary shall be a member ex officio of the district assembly, [201] 217. The duties of the district secretary shall be:

217.1. To record correctly and preserve faithfully all minutes of the district assembly.

217.2. To record correctly and preserve all statistics of the

217.3. To forward all statistical charts to the general secre-tary to be audited before their publication in the official journal [324.6]

217.4. To be custodian of all documents of the district assembly, and turn them over promptly to his successor. 217.5. To cause to be bound in permanent binding for dis-

trict files the full official journal for each guadrennium. [205.5]

217.6. To forward sufficient copies of the printed journal of each district assembly to General Headquarters for distribution among the general officers and general boards of the Church of the Nazarene.

217.7. To present to the General Assembly, for the district assembly, the full official journal for the preceding quadrennium, bound in permanent binding. [203.28, 205.4-5.5] 217.8. To do whatever else may pertain to his office.

217.9. To refer all items of business coming to him during the year to the proper assembly committee or standing board. 218. The district secretary may have as many assistants as

the district assembly shall elect.

G. The District Treasurer

219. The district treasurer, elected by the district assembly. shall serve until the final adjournment of the next district assembly and until his successor is elected and qualified. [203.13]

219.1. If the district treasurer shall cease to serve, for any cause, in the interim of seasions of the district assembly, the district superintendent shall appoint someone to succeed him. [208.5]

219.2. The district treasurer shall be a member ex officio of the district assembly. [201]

220. The duties of the district treasurer shall be:

220.1. To receive all such moneys from his district as may be designated by the General Assembly, or by the district as102 [1220.2]

DISTRICT GOVERNMENT

sembly, or as the needs of the Church of the Nazarene may require, and disburse the same according to the direction and policies of the district assembly and the District Advisory Board.

220.2. To keep a correct record of all moneys received and disbursed and to render an annual report to the district assembly, to which he shall be amenable.

H. The District Advisory Board

221. The District Advisory Board shall be composed of the district superintendent ex officio and three ordained ministers and three laymen elected annually or for terms not to exceed three years, by ballot by the district assembly, to serve until the final adjournment of the next district assembly and until their successors are elected and qualified.

When a district exceeds a total membership of 5,000, it may elect one additional ordsined minister and one additional layman for each successive 2,500 members or the final major part of 2,500 members. [203,14]

221.1. A vacancy on the District Advisory Board may be filled by the remaining members thereof.

221.2. The district superintendent shall be ex officio chairman of the District Advisory Board.

221.3. The lay members of the District Advisory Board shall be ex officio members of the district assembly. [201, 221]

222. The duties of the District Advisory Board shall be:

222.1. To set the date for the beginning and closing of the statistical year in harmony with the provisions of 114.1.

222.2. To give information to and consult with the district superintendent respecting the ministers and local churches of the assembly district. [426]

222.3. To inform and advise with the general superintendent regarding the pastoral arrangements for the coming year. [119]

222.4. To appoint an investigating committee consisting of three or more ordained ministers in case an accusation is filed against an elder, a deacon, or a licensed minister. [502-2.1] 222.5. To select a trial court in case charges are made against an elder, a deacon, or a licensed minister. [502.2-2.3]

222.6. To incorporate, where circl har permits and when authorised by the district sameliky. Alter incorporation, an above provided, the District Alterian and a stream of the incorporation, and end on the stream of the stream of the stream of the stream end on the stream of the stream of the stream of the stream end on the stream of the stream of the stream of the stream end on the stream of the stream of the stream of the stream end on the stream of the stream of the stream of the stream end of the stream of the stream of the stream of the stream end of the stream of the stream of the stream of the stream end of the stream of the stream of the stream of the stream end of the stream of the stream of the stream of the stream end of the stream of the stream of the stream of the stream end of the stream of the stream of the stream of the stream end of the stream of the stream of the stream of the stream end of the stream of the stream of the stream of the stream end of the stream of t

222.7. To serve in an advisory capacity to the district superintendent in his supervision of all the departments, boards, and committees of the district.

222.8. In states where the civil law does not permit such incorporation, then the district assembly may elect the District Advisory Board an district travetse with power, on its own resolution, to purchase, own, sell, exchange, mortgage, deed in trust, hypothecaste, lease, and convey any property, real and personal, as may be necessary or convenient for the purpose of carrying on its work in the district, 11001, 122.81

222.9. The District Advisory Board, in states where it is possible for local churches to incorporate, aball, with the adviso of competent legal counsel, provide pattern incorporation forms adequate for the state or states of its district, This pattern incorporation forms shall always include the provision set forth in 102-25.

222.10. To submit to the Board of General Superintendents any plans proposed for the creation of a district center. Such plans aball require the approval in writing of the Board of General Superintendents before they are put in operation. [319]

222.11. To recommend the renewal of license for the licensed minister serving as pastor. [403.5]

222.12. To approve or disapprove requests from local

104 [\$222.13]

churches to operate Christian day school programs. At the dis-cretion of the district superintendent and the District Advisory Board. a District Christian Day Schools Committee may be established. Its function shall be to recommend policy, procellures, and philosophy to the District Adminute pointy, pro-cellures, and philosophy to the District Advisory Board for ap-plication in the local church day school, and to help establish, support, and monitor such weekday schools. [156, 208.10, 424] **222.13**. To elect or dismiss any paid assistants employed by

the district. [246-46.1]

222.14. To protect all district property, real or personal, including all equity therein, from being diverted to any personal or corporate use other than for the Church of the Nazarene. [102.4. 204]

223. The District Advisory Board may issue a transfer of membership to an elder, a deacon, a licensed minister, a minis-ter of Christian education [419], or a deaconess [415], who desires to transfer to another district assembly, before the meeting of the district assembly in which such persons's mem-bership is held. Such transfers may be accepted by the receiving District Advisory Board, granting to those transferred full rights and privileges of membership on the district on which it is received. The receiving district assembly shall have final approval of all such Advisory Board transfer receptions. [203.6--3.7, 408-8.21

224. The District Advisory Board, with the approval of the district superintendent, may suspend a licensed desconess when it is required for the good of the church, after a confer-ence with the church board of the local church of which the licensed desconess is a member, and after giving her a fair

Maring, 225. In case a licensed or ordained minister presenting cre-dentials from another evangelical denomination shall, during the interim of sessions of the district assembly, make applica-tion to unite with the Church of the Nazarene, his credentials shall be examined by the District Advisory Board. Only with the favorable recommendation of the District Advisory Board ahall such applicant be received into membership in the local church. [403.2, 406, 427]
I. The District Ministerial Credentials Board

226. The District Ministerial Credentials Board shall be composed of not less than 5 nor more than 15 ordained ministers, one of whom shall be the district superintendent. They shall serve for a period of four years and until their successors are elected and qualified. However, their terms of service may be staggered by electing a proportion of the board annually. [203.15]

226.1. A vacancy occurring in the Ministerial Credentials Board in the interim of the district assemblies may be filled by the district superintendent. [212]

227. Following the election of the Ministerial Credentials Board the district superintendent shall call a meeting of the board for organization as follows:

227.1. The district superintendent shall serve as chairman ex officio of the board; however, upon his request the board may elect an acting chairman to serve in such relationship until the close of the next district assembly. [213]

227.2. The board shall elect from its membership a permanent secretary who shall provide a suitable system of records, at the expense of the district assembly, which shall be the property of the district. The secretary shall carefully record all actions of the board and faithfully preserve them along with such other records as shall be relevant to the work of the board and promptly transmit them to his successor.

228. The duties of the Ministerial Credentials Board shall be:

228.1. To carefully examine and evaluate all persons who have been properly presented to the district assembly for election to the order of elder, the order of deacon, and for minister's license.

228.2. To carefully examine and evaluate all persons desiring to receive a certificate for any of the assigned roles of ministry, including all lay and ministerial candidates aspiring to be recognized for ministries beyond the local church, and any other special relations provided by the Monual. 106 [1228.3]

223.3. To carefully inquire of each candidate and make any other investigation they deem advisable concerning pink in er her personal experience of salvation; personal experience of entire sanctification by the bargiam with the Holy Spirit; knowledge of the doctrines of the Bible full acceptance of the doctrines, the General and Special Roles, and the polity of the church, the General and Special Roles, and the polity of the church, and general fitness for the ministry to which the candidate feels called.

228.4. To review for approval for reappointment any local preacher who has been appointed as supply pastor if he or she is to continue his or her service after the district assembly following his or her appointment. [402.6]

28.8.5. To investigate and review the cause of failure of an ordained minister to report to the district assembly for two successive years and make recommendation to the district assembly relative to the continued listing of the name on the published rolls of elders or deacons.

23.8.6. To investigate reports concerning an ordained minister indicating that he or abe has placed his or her church membenihp with any other church et that he or abe has joined with the ministry of another denomination or group, or is participating in independent activities without duby authorized permission, and make recommendation to the district assembly relative to his or her relension on the old relaters, 12(2, 41.11)]

228.7. To recommend to the district assembly the retired relation for any minister upon his or her request or who, in the discretion of the board, is unable to continue in the active ministerial labors because of physical disability. (203.29-3.30, 407)

J. The District Ministerial Studies Board

229. The District Ministerial Studies Board shall be composed of five or more ordained ministers, elected by the district assembly within six months of a General Assembly, to serve for a term of four years and until their successors are elected and qualified. [203,16]

[1230.5] 107

229.1. Vacancies occurring in the District Ministerial Studies Board, in the interim of sessions of the district assembly, may be filled by the district superintendent. [212]

229.2. The chairman and the secretary of the District Ministerial Studies Board are authorized to enroll a student in the Directed Studies Program, in consultation with the district superintendent. [230]. 302. 434.3]

230. Before the close of the district assembly in which the board is elected, the district superintendent or district secretary shall call a meeting of all the members of the board for organization and assignment as follows:

230.1. The board shall elect from among its members a permanent chairman and a permanent sceretary, who with the other members shall have the responsibility or examining and advancing candidates through the Minister's Directed Studies Program to the completion of study requirements for ordination. They shall maintain a record of all grades until he is ordained, 1203, 643.3]

230.2. The chairman shall assign to the other members of the board the sequensibility for and supervision of all candidates enrolled in the five courses of the physical states and gram. Such assignment shall continue as long as the candidkree remain actively enrolled during the committee member's term of office unless otherwise mutually arransed.

30.3.3. The chairman shall attend all meetings of the board, unless providentially prevented, and shall oversee the work of the board each year. In case of necessary absence of the chairman, the secretary shall do his work nor tempore.

230.4. The secretary shall, at the expense of the district assembly, provide a suitable record book of ministerial studies, which shall be the property of the district assembly, and shall be used according to instructions in the Handbook on Ministerial Studies.

230.5. The other members of the board shall attend faith-fully the meetings of the board and shall supervise the candidates assigned to them by (1) fraternal encouragement, counsel, and guidance (2) tutoring in specific subjects when needed and feasible, and (3) administering of or arranging for written ex-

aminations in cooperation with the Pastoral Ministries office. [230.1]

231. The board may establish classes or seminars in order to asist licensed ministers or other candidates in the pursuit of the various courses of study, and establish, subject to approved district funding, central libraries of all books for loan when necessary.

231.1. The board shall cooperate with the district superintendent and the Pastoral Ministries office in seeking ways to encourage, aid, and guide the candidates who are pursuing the courses of study in a Nazarene college or seminary.

231.2. The board shall carry out its responsibilities in conformity with the official Handbook on Ministerial Studies.

231.3. The board shall report all relevant data concerning the candidate to the District Ministerial Gredentials Board upon request and recommend to the district assembly placement and advancement, and in conjunction with the Pastoral Ministries office, recommend graduation from the various courses of study.

231.4. The District Ministerial Studies Board shall be responsible, in cooperation with the regional college and the Pastoral Ministerie office, and under the general guidance of the district superintendent, for the promotion on the district of continuing education for ordained ministers and other staff ministers.

K. The District Home Missions Board

233. The District Home Missions Board shall be composed of equal by an eministerial methodenship, of no forew than 6 nor more than 18, not including the district supprintendent, who shall be a member ex officio. Members may be detected by the district assembly to serve for a term of four years and until their successors are elected and qualified, however, the District Advisory Board may constitute the District Home Missions Board. [2022]

Boards [200.24] 233.1. The District Home Missions Board shall seek by all means—by the diffusion of home missionary information, by

the holding of local meetings and district conventions, by the employment of speakers who have the vision and spirit, by careful study of its metropolitan areas, and by any other contributive agency—to stir the people to holy zeal and devotion for, and liberality toward, the sacred cause of home missions.

233.2. The District Home Missions Board, under direction of the district assembly, and in cooperation with the district superintendent, may have charge of all home mission work conducted by the assembly district within its bounds.

L. The District Church Properties Board

234. The District Church Properties Board shall be composed of the district superintendent es officio and no fewer than two ordained ministers and two laymen elected annually by ballot by the district assembly and until the final adjournment of the next district assembly and until their success ons are elected and qualificd. The District Advisory Board may serve as the District Advisory Board may may have of the district assembly (2001)

235. The duties of the District Church Properties Board shall be:

235.1. To advance the cause of building churches and church-related buildings within the bounds of the assembly district, in cooperation with Church Extension Ministries.

235.2. To verify and conserve the titles to church property.235.3. To assist local churches to incorporate. [102]

235.4. To consider propositions submitted by local churches relating to the purchase of real estate or the erection of church buildings or parsonages, and to advise them concerning the propositions submitted. [103]

285.5. To approve or disapprove, in conjunction with the district superintendent, propositions submitted by local churches relative to church building plans and the incurring of indebtedness in the purchase of real estate or the erection of buildings.

235.6. To do whatever else the district assembly may direct regarding the matter of church property.

110 [1236]

M. The District Ministerial Benevolence Board

236. The District Ministerial Benevolence Board shall be composed of as many members as the district assembly may elect, to serve until the final adjournment of the next district assembly and until their successors are elected and qualified. [202.18]

236.1. The District Ministerial Benevolence Board shall have full power to dispense local benevolence according to its judgment, subject to the approval of the district assembly.

N. The District Finance Committee

237. The duties of the District Finance Committee shall be: 237.1. To make recommendation to the district assembly concerning all budgets and the allocation of those budgets to the local churches.

237.2. To do whatever else the district assembly may direct in areas of district finance.

O. The District Colporteur

238. A district colporteur may be elected annually by the district assembly upon the recommendation of the Communications Division of the General Board, he shall labor under the jurisdiction of the district superintendent and shall be amenable to the district assembly. [203.24]

238.1. The district colorteur shall cooperate with the Communications Division in the systematic distribution of gospel literature.

P. The District Christian Life and Sunday School Board

239. The District Christian Life and Sunday School Board shall be composed of the district superintendent. Be district NWMS president, the district NYI president, and the chairman of the District Christian Life and Sunday School Board, who comprise the Executive Committee, and three additional members who are elected from six pominees, with one being elected for a term of three years, one for a term of two years, and one for a term of new saw. Thereafter, and shyars, one promoshall be situated by the district assembly or the District CL/SS Resolution of the start of the same shyars of the term concessor is elected and qualified. The district assembly or the CL/SS Convention of qualified. The district assembly or the CL/SS Convention of the same year between the same show the property of the same show the abase of the same show the same transformation of the same show the

239.1. When the district exceeds a total membership of 5000, two CL/SS Board members may be elected to serve for a term of three years, two for a term of two years, and two for a term of one year. Thereafter, each year, two persons may be elected to serve for the full term of three years and until their successors are elected and qualified. Where possible, four of the mine should be lawmen.

230.0.2. The Diariet CL/R8 Board shall neet to organize within one week following their electric. They shall elect a nerretary, a treasure, a district director of shalt ministries, a district director of children's ministries, a diariet director of Continuing Lay Training, who together shall be as difficie members. They shall also elect other district directors from nominations by the Essecutive Committee of the board as demend necessary, but ministries and the share of the director form comminations by the Essecutive Committee of the board as demend necessary but ministries.

239.3. They shall elect a Children's Ministries Council whose chairman shall be the district director of children's ministries and whose members shall be the district directors of boys' and girls' camps, Caravan, Vacation Bible School, quizzine, children's church, and any others deemed necessary.

zing, children's church, and any others deemed necessary. 239.4. There shall be a Youth Ministries Council whose chairman shall be the district NYI president and whose members shall be the District NYI Council.

239.5. They may elect an Adult Ministries Council whose chairman shall be the district director of adult ministries and

112 [1239.6]

DISTRICT GOVERNMENT

whose members shall be the district directors of: marriage and family life, senior adult ministries, single adult ministries, laymen's retreat, small-group Bible studies, women's ministries, Cradle Roll Parents, and any others deemed necessary.

239.6. The chairman of the District CL/SS Board is responsible for giving leadership to the Sunday School by promoting programs of growth in enrollment and attendance, shall coordinate all programs relating to children's, youth, and adult ministries, and prepare for the board a written report for printing in the annual assembly journal.

239.7. Vacancies occurring in the CL/SS Board, including the chairman, in the interim of sessions of the district assembly, shall be filled by appointment by the district superintendent. [212]

239.8. The District CL/SS Board shall hold a meeting immediately preceding or at the same time as the district assembly to complete its work for the year and to prepare a report to be presented to the district assembly. Additional meetings may be held whenever necessary.

239.9. The chairman of the District Board shall be an ex officio member of the district assembly.

240. The District CL/SS Board shall arrange for an annual District CL/SS Convention, an NYI Convention in conjunction with the District NYI Council, and other conventions to be held at some time during the year or immediately preceding the meeting of the district assembly. [239]

240.1. The District CL/SS Board, in consultation with the district superintendent, shall determine if elections for the District CL/SS Board members and chairman will be held in the district assembly or in the District CL/SS Convention.

240.2. At the District CL/SS Convention the chairman of the CL/SS Board and age-group ministries directors of all local churches are expected to be present and take part as opportunity affords.

241. The district may be divided into zones with zone chairmen appointed by the District Board, who shall work under the supervision of that board.

[1244.1] 113

242. The District CL/SS Board shall have full supervision

of all Sunday School interests of the district. 242.1. The District CL/SS Board shall plan and implement district or zone Continuing Lay Training classes.

242.2. The District CL/SS Board shall report to the Head-quarters Christian Life and Sunday School Division accurate Sunday School statistics.

242.3. The District CL/SS Board shall assist the CL/SS Division of the General Board in securing information relating to district and local Sunday School interests.

242.4. The District CL/SS Board shall recommend to the District Finance Committee the annual District CL/SS Board budget.

Q. The District Nazarene Youth International

243. The District Nazarene Youth International shall be composed of the local organizations of Nazarene Youth International of the assembly district.

243.1. It shall be governed by the Constitution of the District Nazarene Youth International approved by the General Assembly [810]

243.2. The president of the District Nazarene Youth International shall be elected by its annual convention and shall serve without salary. When so elected and approved, he shall be a member ex officio of the district assembly. [201]

R. The District Nazarene World Mission Society

244. The District Nazarene World Mission Society shall be composed of the local Nazarene World Mission Societies within the boundaries of the assembly district. The district society shall be suxiliary to the General Nazarene World Mission Society. [811.2-11.3]

244.1. The District Nazarene World Mission Society shall be governed by the Constitution of the District Nazarene World Mission Society approved by the World Mission Department, It shall be subject to the district superintendent, the District Advisory Board, and the district assembly, [811.2]

244.2. The president of the District Nazarene World Mission Society shall serve without salary and shall be a member ex officio of the district assembly. [201]

S. The District Advisory Council

245. The district baseds shall form an advisory council over which the district superintendent shall preside, said council to meet, if possible, once each six months for counsel and advice as to the best methods of forwarding the work of the assembly district. [213]

T. District Paid Assistants

246. When paid assistants become necessary for the greater efficiency of the district administration, such persons, ministerial or hys, shall be nominated by the district apporting the distribution of the second be written approval of the general superintendent in jurisdiction. They shall be detected by the District Advincey Beart in the employment of such assistants shall be dation of the district superintendent and the majority vote of the Advicey Beart (2021, 12012).

246.1. Dismissal of such assistants prior to the end of the employment period must be by the recommendation of the district superintendent and the majority vote of the District Advisory Board. [222,13]

246.2. The duties and services of such district assistants are to be determined and supervised by the district superintendent.

246.3. Within 30 days after a new district superintendent assumes his administrative duties on the district, the term of service of the paid assistants shall be considered concluded, unless otherwise situplated by national labor law, [Such clerical assistants as office accretaries shall not be included in the above provisional.

U. Disorganization of a District

247. When it seems clear to the Board of General Superintendents that a district no longer should continue as such, it may, upon their recommendation, be disorganized by a twothirds favorable vote of the General Board of the Church of the Nazarene and a formal pronouncement thereof. [2001]

BIRDE Results were as in we common source to are should be associated with the second second second second electronic second second second second second second electronic second second

116 [1280]

CHAPTER III

THE REGION

A. Origin and Purpose

280. In the growth of the church worldwide, there has developed a grouping of several organized districts into geographical areas identified as regions. These regions are a clustering of districts amenable to general government, providing, on the one hand, a sense of area and cultural identification so that their peoples have an awareness of representation in the life of the international church, and on the other hand, a grouping of sufficient size and strength to perform such functions as may be assigned to them. The composition of the regions shall be by action of the General Board, upon recommendation of the Board of General Superintendents.

B. Functions

280.1. The present principal duties of the regions are: (1) To nominate persons to the General Assembly and General Conventions for elections to the General Roard and General Councils: and

(2) In harmony with Manual provisions, to establish and maintain such schools and colleges or other institutions as they shall determine.

280.2. Nominations for the General Board shall be made as provided in 330.30.5

280.3. Educational institutions, whether established by a General Board department or in some other way shall, when qualified, be governed by their respective regional boards in harmony with provisions of the Manual and the Education Services office

280.4. Where deemed feasible by the Board of General Superintendents, a regional council shall be constituted to facili-

[1280.5] 117

tate the work of the region and to semilegislatively deal with matters pertaining to the respective region under the chairmanship of the general superintendent in jurisdiction. All conclusions reached may be implemented immediately with the approval of the Board of General Superintendents but shall be subject to ratification by the General Assembly. The composition of this council shall be: the district superintendents of Phase 4 [regular], Phase 3 [mission], and Phase 2 [nationalmission] districts; a pastor and layman from Phase 4 [regular] districts; General Board members from the region; the presidents of theological training institutions in the region; the regional auxiliary organizations' General Council representa-tives; two District Christian Life and Sunday School Board chairmen from the districts within the region; and regional and mission directors in World Mission-administered regions. The officers of the council shall be a chairman who would be the general superintendent in jurisdiction and a secretary and trea-surer elected by the council. As the church grows and needs arise, the General Assembly may provide for further administrative organization and may assign further duties to the re-

280.5. The Church of the Nazarene at the time of the printing of this Manual is divided into the following regions:

- (1) Africa
- (2) Asia-Pacific
- (3) Canada (4) Caribbean
- (5) Central USA
- (6) East Central U.S.A.
- (7) Eastern USA
- (8) Eurosia
- (9) Mexico and Central America
 - (10) North Central U.S.A.
 - (11) Northwest U.S.A.(12) South America
 - (13) South Central U.S.A.
 - (14) Southeast U.S.A.
 - (15) Southwest U.S.A.

118 [\$300]

CHAPTER IV

THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY

A. Functions and Organization

300. The General Assembly is the supreme doctrineformulating, lawmaking, and elective authority of the Church of the Nazarene, subject to the provisions of the church Constitution. [30,1-30,9]

300.1. The General Assembly shall be presided over by the general superintendents, jointly and severally. [30.6, 307.2] 300.2. The General Assembly shall elect its other officers

300.2. The General Assembly shall elect its other officers and organize itself for the transaction of its business according to its wisdom and pleasure. [30.7]

B. Membership of the General Assembly

B01. The General Assembly shall be composed of miniterial and by definition in equal number from each Phase 4 (peuko) distort, the district superintendents serving an one of an experimental service of the service of the service of the service of the Charch of the Naterent; the general superinbilities of the Charch of the Naterent; the general superintergeneral service of the General Board, the screenity of Education and in the jet definition of the service of the service of the General Board, the screenity of Education of Isolance the direction of the service of Education Services (see the General Board, the screenity of Education Institutions much the officient General Board, the screening Institutions main institutions much the officient General Board the screening storage in the service of the General Board, the screening in the service storage of the service of the storage of the screening of the storage in the service of the screening definition of the service of the screening of the storage definition of the service of the screening definition of the screening of the storage of the screening of the screening definition of the screening to Storage more and additional minimizer, definition of the screening to Storage more and the screening of the screening definition of the screening to Storage more and the screening of the screening definition of the screening to Storage more screening definition of the screening definitio

the missionary representative shall be elected by the World Mission Department.

301.1. Each Phase 4 [regular] district shall be entitled to representation in the General Assembly by: one ordained minister and one additional ordained minister and one additional layman for the first 2,000 or fewer church members, and one additional ordained minister and one additional layman for the next 1 to 3,500 members [2,001 to 5,500], and for each successive additional 1 to 3,500 members [5,501 to 9,000, 9,001 to 12,500, etc.].

301.3. Zeah Phase 3 [mission] district shall be entitled to one delepts to the General Assembly for the first 2000 members and one additional delegate for the next 1 to 3,600 members [2001 to 5,600 and for each successive additional 1 to 3,600 members [3,601 to 1,900, 0,001 to 12,800, etc.]. The first delegate shall be the district appendimenta, and for accessive additioned ministers.

301.3. A Phase 1 [pioneer] or Phase 2 [national-mission] district shall be entitled to one delegate to the General Assembly. The district superintendent shall be the delegate. The district shall elect an alternate who must be a member of the district when elected and at the time of the General Assembly.

301.4. The right of a ministerial delegate-elect to the General Assembly to represent the district assembly electing him shall be vacated in case he shall accept a pastoral charge or the office of district superintendent on another assembly district, or if he shall seve the active, full-line ministry of the Church of the Nazarene prior to the convening of the General Assembly.

301.5. The right of a lay delegate-elect to the General Assembly to represent the district assembly electing him shall be vacated in case he shall remove his church membership to some local church on another assembly district prior to the convening of the General Assembly.

C. The Time and Place of Meeting

302. The General Assembly shall meet in the month of June, every fourth year, at such time and place as shall be

120 [1302.1]

GENERAL GOVERNMENT

determined by a General Assembly Commission composed of the general superintendents and an equal number of persons chosen by the Board of General Superintendents. The general superintendents and said commission shall also have power, in case of an emergency, to change the time and place of the meeting of the General Assembly.

302.1. The General Assembly shall open on Sunday with a full day of devotional and inspirational services. Provision shall be made for the orderly and careful transaction of business, and for such services at the close of the session as it may order. The General Assembly shall fix the time at which its session shall adicurn, 180.41

D. Special Sessions

303. The Board of General Superintendents, or a majority thereof, by and with the written consent of two-thirds of all the district superintendents, shall have power to call a special assesion of the General Assembly in case of an emergency, the time and place thereof to be determined by the guarent superintendents and a commission chosen by the Board of General Superintendents.

303.1. In case of a special session of the General Assembly, the delegates and alternates to the last preceding General Assembly, or their duly elected and qualified successors, shall serve as delegates and alternates to the special session.

E. General Assembly Arrangements Committee

304. The general secretary, the general treasurer, and three persons appointed by the Board of General Superintendents at least one year before the convening of the General Assembly shall constitute the General Assembly Arrangements Committee.

304.1. The General Assembly Arrangements Committee shall have authority to arrange all necessary details regarding offices, exhibits and space, entertainment and meals, and whatever else may be needful to contribute to the comfort, convenience, and efficiency of the General Assembly, and enter into contract necessary to provide the same. 304.3. The General Assembly Arrangements Committee with the general superintendents shall formulate a program for the General Assembly, including anniversaria for each of the general interests a Communion savice, and other religious services for the first three days of the General Assembly or until a committee on public worship shall have been appointed; all of which program shall be subject to approval by the General Assembly.

F. Business of the General Assembly

305. The business of the General Assembly, subject to Part II, Article IV, Section 9, of the church Constitution, shall be: [30.9]

100.1.1. To slock, by a two-thirds voto of its members present and voting, as many supersal superstituations as it may dema with the stress of the stress of the stress of the stress then next General Assembly and until their successors are elected and qualified provided that the first holds shall be a stress of the stress

305.2. To elect a general superintendent to the emeritus relation when deemed advisable, provided be shall have become disable of shall have reached his 68th birthday, and shall have served as general superintendent for at least two terms, with a term defined as the length of time that is served from one General Assembly to the next. It is thereby understood that his election to emeritus relation is of life tourse. [314.1]

305.3. To place in the retired relation a general superintendent who has attained to the age of 68 years, or who, in the judgment of the General Assembly, has become disqualified by physical disability, or by old age, or by any other disqualified 122 [\$305.4]

GENERAL GOVERNMENT

tion that would prevent him from caring adequately for the work of the general superintendency; and provided that he has served in the office of general superintendent for a reasonable term of years. The General Assembly may grant retired relation when a general superintendent who has attained the age of 65 years requests it.

Should speneral superintendent who has attained the age of 65 years request retirement in the interim of General Assembles, his request may be granted by the General Board in regular session upon recommendation of the Board of General Superintendents. [314,1]

305.4. To fix a suitable retirement pension for each retired general superintendent.

305.5. To elect a General Board, as provided in 330.1-31.4, to serve until the final adjournment of the next General Assembly and until their successors are elected and qualified. [329, 901.1]

305.6. To elect a General Court of Appeals, consisting of five ordained ministers, to serve until the final adjournment of the next General Assembly and until their successors are elected and qualified. [30.8, 507, 901.2] 305.7. To elect boards of control for educational institu-

305.7. To elect boards of control for educational institutions serving multiregional areas, to serve until their successors are elected and qualified and in accordance with the following provisions:

a. The boards of control shall be comprised of persons from the respective areas served by the institution.

b. In instances where the institution serves a multiregional area, election of that board shall be conducted in the General Assembly regional caucus(es) composed of delegates from the regions primarily served by the schools.

305.8. To do anything else, in harmony with the Holy Scriptures, that windom may dictate for the general welfare of the Church of the Nazarene and the holy cause of Christ, subject to the church Constitution. [30.9]

305.9. To reference all resolutions, recommendations, and implementing legislation from commissions and special committee reports and other documents to assembly standing com-

[1309] 123

mittees, special committees, or regional caucuses for consideration before being presented to the assembly.

G. The General Superintendents

306. The general superintendents, elected by the General Assembly, shall serve until the final adjournment of the next General Assembly and until their successors are elected and qualified. [305.1]

306.1. A general superintendent shall hold no other general office in the church during his term of office as general superintendent. [311]

306.2. The general superintendents shall be members ex officio of the General Assembly. [301]

307. The duties of the general superintendents shall be:

307.1. To have general supervision of the Church of the Nazarene, subject to the law and order as adopted by the General Assembly.

307.2. To preside over the General Assembly and over the General Board of the Church of the Nazarene, jointly and severally. [300.1, 333.2]

307.3. To ordain, or appoint others to ordain, in connection with the ordained ministers present, those who have been duly elected to be elders or deacons. [411.5]

308. A general superintendent shall preside over each district assembly; or, should he be hindered, shall make suitable arrangements for such presidency. [202, 211]

306.1. The general superintendent, presiding over a district assembly, the district superintendent, and the District Advisory Board, in concurrence with the delegates of local churches, shall appoint pastors over such local churches as have not regularly called pastors. 1119. 222.31

309. The general superintendents, jointly and severally, may appoint district superintendents over assembly districts where vacancies occur in the interim of district assembly sessions, upon consultation with a committee composed of the District Advisory Board, the chairman of the District CL/SS Board, and the presidents of the District NWMS and NYI. [207] 124 [1309.1]

309.1. The general superintendent having jurisdiction shall appoint an ordained minister to fill a vacancy that may occur in a District Court of Appeals in the interim of sessions of the district assembly. [203.23, 506]

309.2. The general superintendent having jurisdiction may, prior to the convening of the district assembly, appoint a nominating committee to serve during the annual session of the district assembly. [202.1]

310. The general superintendent having jurisdiction may, after consulting with the district superintendent, organize local churches or recognize the local churches already organized, wherever there may seen to be need and providential openings. Official reports shall be filed in the Church Extension Ministries office. Here may appoint pastors to have charge of such local churches until such time as pastors may be duly elected. [100, 2081, 411.12]

310.1. The general superintendent having jurisdiction may preside at the annual, or a special, meeting of a local church, or appoint someone to represent him. [113]

311. The general superintendents shall not be members of any of the general boards of the Church of the Nazarene. 1306.11

312. All official acts of the general superintendents shall be subject to review and revision by the General Assembly. 312.1. Any official act of a general superintendent may be

312.1. Any official act of a general superintendent may be nullified by a unanimous vote of the remaining members of the Board of General Superintendents.

313. The office of any general superintendent may be declared vacant, for cause, by the unanimous vote of the remaining members of the Board of General Superintendents, supported by a majority vote of all the district superintendents of Phase 4 Iregulari and Phase 3 Imission il districts.

H. General Superintendents Emeriti and Retired

314. All general superintendents emeriti and retired general superintendents shall be members ex officio of the General Assembly. [301]

[\$317.1] 125

31.4.1. A general superintendent who has been elected to the emeriture relation or placed in the relater letter relation shall not be a member of the Board of General Superintendents and shall be relieved of all official responsibility. However, in the event that an active general superintendent should be inexpaciated investment of the second structure of the second structure simulation is absorbed for any suggestion of the second constrainting its absorbed for any suggestion of the second signment any vertice general superintendent, 103:2-54, 400.11

314.2. A general superintendent shall qualify for full pension at the end of 16 years of service as a general superintendent.

L The Board of General Superintendents

315. The general superintendents shall organize as a board and arrange for and assign to the members thereof the particular work over which they shall have special jurisdiction.

316. Younce, If a vacancy cours, by dealth or otherwise, in the Board of General Superitandenks, in the interim of setsions of the General Assembly, the question of alling for an electron in off the vacancy shall be dealed by the Board of the general scoresary shall needing vacance and the set of the general scoresary shall needing vacance and the set of the general scoresary shall needing vacance and the set of the start of the set operation of the start of the set for the district superintendents of the Phase 4 (regular) districts shall dealty in sto-birth who do for allights to vacan other of the Church of the Nazarene to fill the vacance und to molecument of the suff General Scores (the Score Score Scores).

316.1. The general secretary shall report the result of the vote to the Board of General Superintendents, which shall announce the same to the Church of the Nazarene through the Herald of Holiness.

317. The duties of the Board of General Superintendents shall be:

317.1. To have supervision of the missionary work of the Church of the Nazarene throughout the world. [343.6]

126 [1317.2]

317.2. To recommend, in consultation with the respective directors of the World Mission Division and Church Growth Division, changes in the assignment of the areas under the administration of these General Board departments subject to the approval of the General Board.

317.3. To have supervision of all general boards and the department of the General Board. The policies and plans adopted by the board or department shall have the approval to Board of General Board. The second second second second term and the second second second second second second events and the second second second second second second metal second second

ment to the constant board of the Carotin or the taxate and appointment as missionaries. [3366, 3391, 343.6] 317.4. To function as a nominating committee, in conjunction with the General Board Executive Committee, to bring one or more names to the General Board for election of a general accretary and a general treasurer.

60 more name to use to construct the secretary and a general treasurer. 317.5. To declare vacant with cause by a two-thirds vote the office of general secretary, general treasurer, *Herald of Holiness* editor, Nazarene Publishing House manager, or division director. 133641.

317.6. To fill vacancies that may occur in the membership of the General Court of Appeals in the interim of sessions of the General Assembly. [508, 901.2]

317.7. To fill vacancies that may occur in any special commission or committee in the interim of General Assemblies or General Board.

317.8. To approve the appointments and elections made by the General Board of the Church of the Nazarene in filling vacancies that may occur in its membership. [332-32.1]

317.9. To fill vacancies, upon nomination made by the remaining members thereof, on the corporate board of the Nazarene Publishing House. [See General Board Bylaws] 317.10. To appoint one of the zeneral superintendents to

317.10. To appoint one of the general superintendents to serve on the General Council of the Nazarene Youth International. [901.3]

[\$322] 127

317.11. To appoint general superintendents to serve as advisors of all institutions of higher education affiliated with the Education Services office and to serve as responsible general superintendents for all divisions of the General Board, 1901,51

317.12. To arrange, in conjunction with the Pastoral Ministries, Directed Studies for local ministers, licensed ministers, and those serving in ministerial roles, lay or credentialed. [434-36]

317.13. The Board of General Superintendents, with the General Board, is authorized and empowered to apportion the General Budget to the several assembly districts. [333.7]

317.14. To approve in writing the restoration of credentials to a former elder as required. [409.3, 410.3]

318. The Board of General Superintendents shall be the authority for the interpretation of the law and doctrine of the Church of the Nazarene, and the meaning and force of all provisions of the Manual, subject to an appeal to the General Assembly.

319. The Board of General Superintendents shall consider and pass upon plans for district centers, which plans shall not be carried out until they have been approved in writing by the Board of General Superintendents. [222,10]

320. The Board of General Superintendents shall have discretionary power in the ordaining of divorced persons to the office of eldes or in the Church of the Nazarene, provided such divorced persons have scriptural grounds for divorce. [403.3, 411.14]

321. The Board of General Superintendents may declare vacant with cause the office of a district superintendent of any Phase 3 [mission] or Phase 2 [national-mission] district upon recommendation of the general superintendent having jurisdiction.

322. The Board of General Superintendents shall have authority to do anything else in the service of the Church of the Nizarene, not otherwise provided for, according to the dictates of its wiadom, in harmony with the general church order, and subject to the church Constitution.

J. The General Secretary

323. The general secretary, elected by the General Board as provided by General Board Bylaws, shall serve until the final adjournment of the next General Assembly and until his suc-cessor is elected and qualified, or until removed according to 317.5 or General Board Bylaws. [900.2]

323.1. The general secretary shall be a member ex officio of the General Assembly, [301]

323.2. If in the interim of sessions of the General Board a vacancy should occur in the office of the general secretary for any cause, it shall be filled by the General Board, upon nomination as provided in 317.4. [333.21]

323.3. The general secretary shall be amenable to the Board of General Superintendents and the General Board.

324. The duties of the general secretary shall be: 324.1. To record correctly and preserve the journal of the proceedings of the General Assembly.

324.2. To record correctly and preserve all general statistics of the Church of the Nazarene. 324.3. To preserve all documents belonging to the General

Assembly, and promptly deliver the same to his successor.

324.4. To preserve carefully, in permanent form, all decisions rendered by the General Court of Appeals. [510] 324.5. To file and preserve all surrendered credentials of ministers and deliver them only on proper order made by the district assembly of the assembly district from which they were received. [409.3]

324.6. To sudit assembly district statistical charts for publication, [217.3]

324.7. To do faithfully whatever else may be necessary for the fulfillment of his office.

325. The general secretary shall be custodian of, and hold in

10.00 The general exerctany is authorized to collect available historic material relating to the rise and development of our denomination, and shall be the custodian of all such records and material.

326. The general secretary, in conjunction with the general superintendents, shall, prior to the opening of the General Assembly, prepare all necessary forms, including Rules of Order, "Manual" Abridgement for revision, and other things necessary for expediting the work of the General Assembly. The expense incurred shall be provided for out of the General Assembly expense fund.

Signal A. The general secretary may have as many assistants for his work as the General Assembly shall elect, or, in the interim of sessions of the General Assembly, the Board of General Superintendents may appoint.

K. The General Treasurer

327. The general treasurer, elected by the General Board as provided by General Board Bylaws, shall serve until the final adjournment of the next General Assembly and until his successor is elected and qualified or until removed according to 317.5 or General Board Bylaws, [900.3]

327.1. The general treasurer shall be a member ex officio of the General Assembly. [301]

327.2. The general treasurer shall be amenable to the responsible general superintendent for the Finance Division, the Board of General Superintendents, and the General Board.

328. The duties of the general treasurer shall be:

328.1. To have the custody of all funds belonging to the general interests of the Church of the Nazarene.

323.8.2. To receive, and disknare on order, the funds of the Church Growth Department, Christian Life and Standes School Department, Communications: Department, Finance Departproperty biology of the General Baserie of the and this property biology of the General Baserie of the approximation the general superinteredents' fund; the general contingent fund; the General Assembly expenses fund, other general benevolent church funds; the funds of the General Massree Worth Mission Society (3233).

328.3. To give bond for the faithful performance of his du-

130 [1328.4]

GENERAL GOVERNMENT

ties, in a reliable surety company, in a good and sufficient sum, as the General Board may direct.

328.4. To furnish such reports to the boards and divisions, for whose funds he may be custodian, as may be required by them.

328.5. To furnish to the General Board an annual report of all finances of the Church of the Nazarene, including investments. [333.12]

328.6. To safeguard annuity funds invested in real estate by proper insurance policies and to provide against the lapsing of such policies.

328.7. To secure monthly reports of receipts and disbursements from all schools, orphanages, rescue homes, and other institutions of the Church of the Nazarene.

L. The General Board

329. The General Board of the Church of the Nazarene, a religious and churiable corporation incorporated under the laws of the state of Missouri at Kanasa City, Mo, U.S.A., shall be composed of members who shall be elected by ballol by the General Assembly from among the persons nominated as provided in 330.431.4 To be detected a member of a loss of the detected by the detected and the state of the detected by the detected by the state of t

329.1. No one shall be eligible for election to the General Board or shall remain a member of the General Board who is an employee of the General Board, or an employee of any division or institution controlled by the General Board, or deriving a major part of its operating funds from the General Board or general church funds, or an employee of any of our educational institutions, except as provided in 330.3.

329.2. The general secretary shall be ex officio secretary of the General Board.

329.3. The general treasurer of the Church of the Nazarene shall be ex officio treasurer of the General Board and also of the divisions thereof. [328.2]

[1330.2] 131

330. Nominations for the General Board shall be made as herein provided:

330.1. After the delegates to the General Assembly have been elected, each Phase 4 [regular] and Phase 3 [mission] district delegation shall meet to select candidates for nomination to the General Board in the following manner. Each Phase 4 [regular] district may present names of two ordained ministers and two laymen. Each Phase 3 [mission] district may present names of one ordained minister and one layman.

present names of one ordained minister and one layman. The names of these candidates shall be sent immediately to the office of the general accretary to be placed on ballots for presentation to the General Assembly delegates from each region. [203,25]

330.2. From the list of these candidates, the General Assembly delegates from each region shall nominate to the General Assembly as follows:

Each region of 30,000 or fewer members shall nominate one ordinient aminister and one layonan each region exceeding 30,000 and up to 80,000 members shall nominate two ordinied ministers, one district superintendent and one pastor or evangelist, and two laymen; and one additional layman and one additional ordinate minister for regions exceeding 80,000 members, with the following provisions: (1) On those regions whose membership is in excess of

(1) On those regions whose membership is in excess of 80,000, one ordained minister shall be a pastor or evangelist; another shall be a district superintendent; and the other ordained minister may be in either category.
(2) No district shall be entitled to more than two members

(2) No district shall be entitled to more than two members on the General Board, and no region shall be entitled to more than aix nombers (with the exception of institutional representatives and auditym remembers). Whenever more than two candidates from a district receives a higher number of votes than district receiving the next higher number of votes shall be selected as nomines from the region. [2005, \$901.1]

(3) In each region the layman/laymen, the pastor or evangelist, and/or the district superintendent who receive the highest number of votes in their respective classifications shall be

132 [1330,3]

nominated by majority vote to the General Assembly. In the instance of the larger regions where six members are to be elected, the layman and the ordained minister who receive the next highest number of votes shall be the additional nominees. [902.11]

330.3. The General Assembly Committee on Ministry and Education shall nominate to the General Assembly four persons from the educational institutions, two ordained ministers and two laymen. [329.1]

330.4. The General Council of the Nazarene Youth International shall nominate to the General Assembly two members of the General Council. [382.1]

330.5. The General Council of the Nazarene World Mission Society shall nominate to the General Assembly two members of the General Council. [383.3]

331. Elections to the General Board shall be as herein provided:

331.1. Each nominee presented by the respective regions shall be elected by the General Assembly by a majority "yes" vote by ballot. [902.11]

331.2. From the nominees presented by the General Assembly Committee on Ministry and Education, the General Assembly shall elect two, one of whom shall be an ordained minister and one a layman.

331.3. From the nominees presented by the General Council of the Nazarene Youth International, the General Assembly shall elect one. [382.1, 901.3]

and the back our point, occur, 331.4. From the nominees presented by the General Council of the Nazarene World Mission Society, the General Assembly shall elect one. [383.3, 901.4] 332. The members of the General Board shall hold office

332. The members of the General Board shall hold office until the final adjournment of the next General Assembly and until their successors are elected and qualified. [30:5,1] In the event that a member of the General Board shall move his church membership or residence during the quadrennium from the region which he represents, his mombership shall be terminated immediately. The vacancy so created shall be filled promptly. However, if his move or change occurs after the sectemation of the section of the

[1333.1] 133

ond annual meeting of the quadrennium, he may complete the term for which he was elected. [329]

term for which he was elected, [2129] 1828.1. Viscoint covering in the methodship of the Gau-Bill, 1. Wondow covering in the methodship of the Gau-Bill, 1. Wondow the the general scoretary as non- an feasible who chall present to the general scoretary as non- an feasible we take the the general scoretary as non- and feasible sentation the AdVicey Boards of the districts of the region on which the vacancy coverent shall set one also a majority vole built of the Gaussian score the score and the score and the method of the scoretary of the score and the score mail. For representation from NP1 and NWM noninses shall and proposed for the score and the score and the score and mails to the Gaussian from NP1 and NWM noninses shall a model to the score and the score and the score and the score and mails to the Gaussian from NP1 and NWM noninses shall a model to the Score and mails to the Gaussian from NP1 and NWM noninses shall a model to the score and the s

POWERS AND DUTIES OF THE GENERAL BOARD

333. The General Board shall promote the financial and material affino of the departments of the Church of the theorem of the start of the start of the start of the phase and existing is a shall constrained and the phase and existing to the survey constrained spartments within a start of the phase of the start within a start of the start of a start of the start of

333.1. The General Board shall have power to buy, own, hold, manage, mortgage, sell and convey and donate, or otherwise acquire, encumber, and dispose of both real and personal property, sold, devised, bequeathed, donated, or otherwise con134 [\$333.2]

GENERAL GOVERNMENT

veyed to it in trust for any lawful purpose, and to execute such trust; to borrow and to loan money in the execution of its lawful purposes.

purpose. 33.3.2. The General Board shall meet before or immediately following the final adjournment of the General Assembly and shall organize by desing officers and committees, and members to departments as required by its articles of incorporation concentrations, are not adjusted. The thermal methods income concentration and the shall be adjusted as the shall be adjusted incoments and the shall be adjusted as the shall be adjusted as general based. 3303.1-3823

Starting Dona (Leveral) and the second shall meet in annual session, at a time specified by the bylaws of the said board, at Kanasa City, Mo, however, the hour, date, and place of the annual meeting may, by resolution unanimously adopted at any regular or special meeting, be changed to suit the best interests of the General Board and its departments.

333.4. Special meetings of the General Board may be called by the chairman, the president, or the secretary.

333.6. Finance Department. The General Board shall below a Finance Department. The General Board shall be partners. The Finance Department shall be partners and the sense of the sense of the sense which a share there is the sense of the sense and the sense of the sense of the sense of the sense and the sense of the sense of the sense of the sense beauting the sense of the sense of the sense of the sense beauting the sense of the sense of the sense of the sense beauting the sense of the sense of the sense of the sense the sense of the sense (1994).

333.6. General Budget. The General Budget shall be the grand total of all division budgets and other funds to be raised by the whole denomination for the support, maintenance, and promotion of its general activities.

From the statements of budget requests submitted by the various divisions and agencies of the church, and from the statements of the general transurer, the General Board shall determine the amount to be allotted from the General Bodget

to each division and fund. When the General Budget with its proposed allotment to each division shall have been agreed upon, it shall be submitted to the Board of General Superintendents for its consideration, suggestions, or amendments before final adoption by the General Board.

33.37. When the total amount of the General Budget has been fixed for the next fixed year by the General Board, the General Board and the Board of General Superintendenta are authorized and empowered to apportion the General Budget to the several assembly districts on a basis of equity to both the district and general interests affected. [317.13] 33.38. The General Board shall have authority to increase

333.8. The General Board shall have authority to increase or diminish the amount requested by any division or fund. Items of finance adopted by the General Assembly shall be referred to the General Board, who shall be authorized to adjust proportionately with existing economic conditions the annual allocation of any institution or agency of the church, in keeping with the total financial commitment of the general church.

when use total manacua commitment of the general church. 333.9. The General Board shall approve appropriations from the General Budget for the Nazarene Theological Seminary and the Nazarene Bible College as it may deem advisable in line with the availability of funds.

333.10. The General Board shall review and make necessary adjustments in the salaries and related benefits of the general superintendents in the interim of General Assemblies.

333.11. Reports. The General Board shall, at its annual meeting, receive a detailed report of the activities of the divisions for the past year, including a financial report. Each division shall also submit a proposed expenditures budget for the ensuing year.

ensuing, years. 333.1.2. The general treasurer shall annually present to the General Board a detailed frammid report of receipts and the the mark years infinition of which has a secon constant, together with a detailed statement of the proposed expenditures for the ensuing years of funda not included in the badgets of divisions of the General Board. The general treasurer shall be responsible to the General Board for the faithful performance of his duties.

333.13. The General Board shall meet before or immediately following the final adjournment of the General Assembly and shall elect a general scretery, a general treasure, and the editor[i] of the Herad[s] of Holiness as provided in General Board Bylaws, who shall hold office until the final adjournment of the next General Assembly and until their successors are elected and exalified.

333.14. The General Board shall elect the editor[s] for the Herald[s] of Holiness and its equivalent publications, upon nomination by the Communications Department. Such nomination[s] shall have been approved by the Board of General Superintendents.

333.15. The General Board shall elect a Pensions Board U.S.A. following each General Assembly, who shall serve until the adjournment of the next General Assembly and until their auccessors are elected and qualified. [General Board Bylaws]

and appointment of the max definition Appendixy and diract deep successors are elected and qualified. (General Jacon Bylaws) 333,16. The General Board shall elect a Nazarene Publishing House Board following each General Assembly, who shall serve until the adjournment of the next General Assembly and until their successors are elected and qualified. [376] 333,17. The General Board shall elect a Nazarene Publish-

333.17. The General Board shall elect a Nazarene Publishing House manager in the manner prescribed by 333.19 and General Board Bylaws. [General Board Bylaws]

General Board payaws. (Journeral Board Signaws) 333.18, The General Board shall properly relate any commission or committee authorized by the General Board to Board as a whole, and assign its work, responsibility, and budget. 333.10, Distain Directors, The General Board Hahl elect a division director, by hallo, for each of its several divisions, to new until the final adjournment of the next General Assembly

333.10. Disision Directory, The General Board shall elect a series of the series of the seriest division, by enve until the final adjournment and the line and the series of the capable conflictence of the series of the series of the capable conflictence of the series of the series of the capable conflictence of the series of the series of the capable conflictence of the series committee will bring two or more names to the Nominating committee, composed of the six mentation. The Nominating Committee, composed of the six

[\$335] 137

general superintendents and the Personnel Committee from the respective department, shall submit one or more names to the General Board for election by majority vote.

333.30. Executives' Salarise. The General Board shall establish and document a "performance evaluation" and salary administration program which includes the division director and ministry/revise directors and provides for a salary structure which recognizes both levels of responsibility and merit. The General Board shall annually review and approve the salarises of division directors, the Nazareae Poblishing House elected by the General Board.

333.21. The General Board, during the interim of sessions of the General Assembly and/or General Board, upon nomination as provided in the General Board Bylaws and 317.4, shall fill any vacancy which may occur in the offices listed in 333.13, 333.19, and any other security offices created by the General Assembly, General Board, or their elected departments.

334. The retirement for all officers and any other director listed in 333.13 and 333.19, and any other agency head employed by the General Assembly or its elected commissions, the General Board and its divisions, shall occur at the time of the General Board meeting following their 70th birthday. Where there are vacancies, they shall be filled in accordance with Manual proceedures.

M. General Board Organization ORGANIZATIONAL UNITS

335. In the conduct of the work of the General Board the church recognises that there are two distict areas of responsibility: POLICY and OPERATIONS. Policy is the primary responsibility of the General Board. In matters of operations the Board of General Superintendents shall select one of their members to appendix the work of each Headquarter division for the General Board. These assigned responsible general superintendents in conjunction with their respective division directors 138 [1335.1]

shall assure the effective conduct of the work of the divisions and shall provide an annual report to the appropriate General Board department.

335.1. Department: The General Board shall organize itself into departments to conduct, on behalf of the General Board, a review of the plans, programs, and budgets proposed by the assigned divisions [317.3] and to recommend to the General Board for approval, amendment, or rejection.

335.5. Executive Constructors The General Board shall beer operations and a view pensidient who shall save along with the second second second second second second second second entering and the second second second second second meetings in harmony with the General Board policy. The general scretchy and the general transvers shall serve as difficutions of the second sec

436.5. Disinise: The highest unit of the Headquarters or: paintainto to which is assigned program, arrive, or administrative reponsibilities which have a logical prior to the theory of the other. The functions of a division shall relate to basic, compoing needs for the fulfilment of the mission of the church. A divicin, therefore, shall tend to be a permanent part of the organirational structure. A responsible general superintendent shall be assigned to each respective division.

335.4. Ministry or Service A unit of a division, to which is anigned a specific near of responsibility. The task of a ministry or service normally related to current needs to accomplish the order of the service of the service of the service of the highest degree of efficiency and effectiveness to the total equitation. Charges in ministrices or exvices may be made upon the recommendation of the Bourd of General Superinterlents initiated by the General Board. or such change my be 335.5. Boord: An agency which functions in a subaidiary capacity to the General Board and is administratively related to a department/division whoose membership needs to include representative persons or qualified specialists in a related technical field and assigned a special area of program, service, or administrative responsibility. Such a board may or may not be separately incorporated.

335.6. Commission: A unit created by the General Assembly, the General Board, or the Board of General Superintendents, with a specific function assigned. It shall report back to its creating unit, or upon request to the General Board.

335.7. Auxiliary: A subsidiary organization having its own constitution and bylaws approved by the General Assembly, but related to a division or ministry/service in a helping role.

DEPARTMENT FUNCTION

335.8. The General Board shall have the following departments whose members are designated by vote of the General Board:

I. Christian Life and Sunday School Department

II. Church Growth Department

III. Communications Department

IV. Finance Department

V. World Mission Department

335.0. All business transaction bupartinities coordinated as appropriate with the responsible general superintendent for the related Headquarters division and submitted for the approval of the General Board. 335.10. Each department of the General Board shall be

335.10. Each department of the General Board shall be constituted until the final adjournment of the next General Assembly and until successors are elected and qualified unless otherwise specified.

336. The responsibilities of each General Board department shall include:

336.1. To meet before or immediately following the final adjournment of the General Assembly and organize by choosing a chairman, a vice chairman, a recording secretary, and three persons to serve along with the officers as the Personnel 140 [1336.2]

Committee, one of whom should be designated to serve with the chairman on the Search Committee.

336.2. To submit to the General Board, in conjunction with the Board of General Superintendents, one or more noninness from which a division director shall be elected according to 33.19. [The Communications Department shall follow this same procedure toward the election of the Nazarene Publishing House manager and the editor of the *Head of Holiness*.]

336.3. To approve the nomination of any ministry or services director according to General Board Bylaws.

3364. To call, by two-thinds vote, for the termination of a division directly the Communications Department may call for the termination of the Nazarene Publishing House manager $Mead \ A \ Michael S \ Michael Markan \ Michael \ Michael\ Michael \ Michael \ Michael \ Michael \ Michael\ Michae$

336.5. To converse as many days prior to the plenary meetings of the General Board as may be necessary to transact its business. Special meetings may be called by the chairman or the recording secretary when budget for such has been justified and approved by the responsible general augerintendent.

336.6. To carry forward the work assigned, to review and recommend for approval an annual budget for its respective divisional office, to account to the General Board for funds and expenditures, and to report annually to the General Board.

330.6.7. To prepare minutes of all meetings which shall be submitted via the general secretary to the responsible general superintendent and the Board of General Superintendents in its the minutes, the minutes will be forwarded to the General Superintendent and the State of the recommendation in the minutes, the minutes will be forward by superintendents in out in greeness with more than the superintendents in out in greeness with any of the superintendents in out in greeness with any of the superintendents in out in greeness with any of the superintention advantation to the General Board, for further considering advantation of the General Board, for further consider-
GENERAL GOVERNMENT

[\$337.3] 141

ation with the responsible general superintendent of the Board of General Superintendents.

336.8. To operate within the policies established by the General Assembly and the General Board and be responsive to the guidance of the Board of General Superintendents. 336.9. To review and forward to the Board of General Su-

336.9. To review and forward to the Board of General Stuperintendents and General Board the respective quadrannial division report of all work done during the preceding four years, including funds received from all sources and the amounts and purposes for which disbursed, and a program of activities for the succeeding quadranium. This report when approved shall become a part of the report of the General Board to the General Assembly.

HEADQUARTERS PLANNING AND BUDGET COUNCIL

337. There shall be a Haedquarters Planning and Budger Concelit to coordinate operation for the General Board. It shall be composed of the general superintendents, the fidework of the scenario of the second transment and the secrettary of Klovation Services. The chairman shall be elected by the bloort of General Signariantomical, and the secretary shall dents is the authoritative body concerning the recommended program and budget priorities.

The functions of the council shall be:

337.1. To establish and maintain a long-range plan for the general church operations which includes certain basic elements such as: (a) goals and objectives; (b) environmental considerations; (c) programs; (d) resource requirements; and (c) provision for annual review and undate:

337.2. To establish a planning cycle correlated with the fiscal year which: (a) provides for a review and evaluation of both existing and proposed programs; and (b) establishes priorities for budget planning purposes.

337.3. To develop a proposed operating budget that is balanced within the total amount of funds approved in advance by the General Board Finance Department. The presidents of Nazarene Theological Seminary and the Nazarene Bible Col142 [1337.4]

GENERAL GOVERNMENT

lege shall submit the proposed budgets of their respective insitutions to the Board of General Superintendents and share in the prioritizing deliberations of the council. In such deliberations each general superintendents and short and advocate for the portion of the operation for which he is responsible. The yote for the proposed budget will be participated in by the general superintendents only. This proposed operating budget will then be submitted to the frame Ponare Denation.

337.4. To monitor budget expenditures to provide early visibility of variations from the authorized budget and to initiate corrective action as necessary.

DIVISION FUNCTION

338. A division is the Headquarters operational office of a department of the General Board. Each division shall be composed of the ministry/services assigned to it by the General Board.

CHRISTIAN LIFE AND SUNDAY SCHOOL DIVISION

339. The functions of the Christian Life and Sunday School Division are:

339.1. To develop and promote age-group curriculum materials that are biblically sound and in harmony with the doctimes of the Lourich of the Nazarene and which reflect the best age-level educational philosophy and objectives for continuity in the learning experiences from childhood through adulthood.

339.2. To promote the organization and work of Sunday Schools for all ages and foster any schools, classes, and ministries which will enhance Christian learning through the local Churches of the Nazarene.

339.3. To administer the activities of the General Nazarene Youth International, which is an auxiliary of the Christian Life and Sunday School Division [382].

339.4. To provide for training throughout the church by the development of courses of study, texts, and special classes. 339.5. To provide general, regional, and district training

339.5. 10 provide general, regional, and district training conferences, seminars, and workshops for Sunday School, children's, youth, and adult leaders.

GENERAL GOVERNMENT

[1341.3] 143

339.6. To provide texts, periodicals, and other resources for equipping local and district leaders. 339.7. To plan and provide for a coordinated General Chris-tian Life and Sunday School Convention in accordance with

the bylaws of the Sunday School and NYI.

339.8. To register, support, and resource all Nazarene Christian day schools and day-care centers.

CHURCH GROWTH DIVISION

340. The functions of the Church Growth Division are:

340.1. To contribute to the growth of God's kingdom by encouraging growth in the Church of the Nazarene.

340.2. To promote aggressive evangelism in all of its many forms throughout the denomination.

340.3. To encourage and assist local churches and district leaders to pursue an aggressive program of church planting. [100]

340.4. To increase the effectiveness of the Christian ministry by providing resources in education, development, guidance, and support for pastors and all ministers serving in the various roles of ministry described in 412-331. 340.5. To provide administrative and pastoral support to

Nazarene chaplains, to recruit and endorse qualified elders for specialized ministries, and to maintain a ministry to Nazarene service members and families in the global community.

COMMUNICATIONS DIVISION

341. The functions of the Communications Division shall her

341.1. To communicate the gospel of Jesus Christ, emphasizing the doctine of entire sanctification, publicizing the Church of the Nazarene and its worldwide ministries through radio, television, audiovisuals, and the printed page.

341.2. To work with all divisions of the general church in planning, producing, and promoting print and nonprint media resources sponsored by those divisions.

341.3. To have the general supervision and management of all editorial and publication concerns affecting the interests of the Church of the Nazarene internationally. This will include 144 [1341.4]

responsibility for the work of the Book Committee, the Music Committee, the various editorial committees of the denomination, international publications [in cooperation with, and with the advice of, the World Mission director], and national or international electronic media

341.4. To edit and publish the Herald of Holiness.

341.5. To conduct the operations of the Nazarene Publishing House.

342. The functions of the Finance Division are:

342.1. To facilitate the budget planning, preparation, and review process of the services and programs of the general church and to recommend long-range financial policies.

342.2. To be responsible for Headquarters Personnel Ser-vices, Equipment Services, Property Services, and any other services necessary for congenial, effective, and efficient functioning of the Headquarters operation.

342.3. To provide services which promote Christian stew-ardship of life's residual resources, including gifta, bequets, scatte planning, and deferred giving.
342.4. To challenge the people of the Church of the Naza-rene to greater stewardship of time, talent, and other resources

in harmony with the basic beliefs of the church.

in infinitely with the use user owners of the crutch. 342.5. To provide pension and benefit programs for minis-ters and district-credentialed lay employees of local churches on U.S. districts participating in the Pensions and Benefits Fund, and to provide guidelines, consultation, and review on behalf of the General Board for pension plans in other areas of the international church. 342.6. To administer the General Church Loan Fund.

WORLD MISSION DIVISION

343. The functions of the World Mission Division are:

343.1. To establish and conduct ministries of the Church of the Nazarene in assigned world regions.

343.2. To supervise and administer the work of organizing and supporting churches, districts, dispensaries, hospitals, mis-

sion schools, and such other compassionate ministries as may be approved. [700-755, 901.5]

343.3. To administer the activities of the General Nazarene World Mission Society, which is an auxiliary of the World Mis-sion Division. [383]

343.4. To approve or disapprove nominations for member-ship on the General Council of the Nazarene World Mission Society. [383, 811.3]

343.5. To work with all divisions and ministries to provide materials for the establishment of the church in areas under its administration.

343.6. To make nominations of missionaries, both lay and ministerial, to be appointed and commissioned by the General Board, provided all such nominations shall have been first duly approved in writing by the Board of General Superintendents.

343.7. To prepare and publish upon approval of the General Board the Statement of Policy of the World Mission Division. which shall regulate various aspects and programs of the division.

343.8. To authorize, supervise, and correlate all mission ed-ucation programs and material for the Church of the Nazarene, in cooperation with the Mission Education Committee.

EDUCATION SERVICES

344. Education Services is a staff function which shall serve the church in matters pertaining to Nazarene institutions of education, in order to strengthen the bonds between the institutions and the church at large. Activities of Education Services shall be under the direction of a secretary who shall be appointed by the Board of General Superintendents. The secre-tary shall report to the responsible general superintendent for staff and commissions.

345. The functions of the Education Services office are: 345. The functions of the Education Services office are: 345.1. To provide a medium by which the college presi-dents, the General Board, and the general superintendents can interact in matters affecting both the institutions and the general church.

146 [1345.2]

345.2. To provide a supporting and advisory relationship to all institutions of higher education in the Church of the Naza-rene, except those under the World Mission Division, [90.3] 345.3. To propose institutional classification and standards and recommend supporting territory of each.

345.4. To prepare recommendations for the Board of General Superintendents and the General Board for the estab-lishment, merger, or discontinuation of institutions of higher education within the Church of the Nazarene, except those under the World Mission Division.

345.5. To obtain from each institution affiliated with Education Services (1) an annual statistical report on profile forms cation Services (1) an annual statistical report on prome torms provided by the office; (2) an annual fiscal statement duly au-dited by a certified public accountant; (3) the financial budget for the current year; and (4) the latest annual or semiannual report of the president of the institution to the Board of Trust-

ees, and to preserve these reports in permanent files. **345.6.** Using the materials listed in 345.5 to prepare annual reports both for the Board of General Superintendents and the General Board, and to recommend to the General Board at its annual meeting any grants to be allotted to these institutions.

345.7. To provide support and encouragement to all institu-tions in carrying out their mission to provide for the historical, literary, practical, and devotional study of the Bible, moral edu-cation, and instruction in the holiness ethic and life-style.

345.8. To provide director services for the Education Council; the Nazarene College Consortium; Phi Delta Lambda; the Nazarene Athletic Association; and the cochairmen of the an-nual Nazarene Student Leadership Conference.

345.9. To prepare an annual report of activities, plans, and recommendations for submittal to the General Board.

N. General Church-related Boards

PENSIONS BOARD

375. There shall be a Pensions Board, or equivalent authorized body, with fiduciary responsibility for each church-related pension plan. A pension plan may be authorized by the General GENERAL GOVERNMENT

[1379] 147

Board to serve at organizational, district, multidistrict, national, regional, or multiregional level as the needs may dictate. All proposed pension plans must have the approval of the General Board.

375.1. The General Board shall establish and maintain guidelines which are relevant to all General Board-authorized pension programs worldwide. The guidelines shall be the basis for the General Board authorization of any proposed pension plan.

375.2. All changes in the articles of incorporation, constitution, or bylaws of any authorized pension plan must be approved by the General Board before they can become effective.

375.3. All authorized pension plans shall submit an annual report to the General Board through Pensions and Benefits International in the form and format requested.

NAZARENE PUBLISHING HOUSE BOARD

376. Paragraphs relating to the Nazarene Publishing House Board are to be studied, documented, and defined in the General Board Bylaws for the quadrennium 1985-80. Copies of the bylaws are to be available to the church upon request to the general secretary.

O. General Committees and Agencies

THE GENERAL BOUNDARY COMMITTEE

378. Following the General Assembly, the Board of General Superintendents shall appoint a General Boundary Committee of seven membera to serve for the ensuing quadrennium whose duty shall be:

378.1. To work in cooperation with any districts on division or boundary adjustments. The written approval of the Board of General Superintendents shall be required before such votes are taken by the district assemblies. [200.1]

THE CHRISTIAN ACTION COMMITTEE

379. Following the General Assembly, the Board of General Superintendents shall appoint a Christian Action Committee secretary and three members who reside within convenient.

148 [1379.1]

travel distance of Kansas City, Mo., one of whom shall be the general secretary, who shall report the committee's work to the General Board.

The duties of the General Christian Action Committee shall

379.1. To provide for our people constructive information on such matters as alcohol, tobacco, narcotics, and gambling.

379.2. To emphasize the sanctity of marriage and the sacredness of the Christian home and to point out the problems and evils of divorce.

379.3. To lend encouragement to our people who are serving in places of leadership in temperance organizations and in similar organizations working for civic righteousness. 379.4. To alert our people regarding the Lord's Day obser-

vance, oath-bound secret orders, the theater, including the movies, worldliness of other types, and such related subjects as may need emphasis. 379.5. To assist and encourage each district to establish a

Christian Action Committee: and to provide each district committee with information and material on current moral issues to be disseminated to each local church for appropriate action. 379.6. To monitor moral issues of national and internation-

a) importance, and to present the scriptural viewpoint to the appropriate organizations for their consideration.

THE GENERAL CHURCH PROPERTIES COMMITTEE

380. There shall be a General Church Properties Commit-tee appointed by the Board of General Superintendents to pro-vide the general oversight of the general church properties. This committee shall be convened at the call of the Board of General Superintendents. The duties of the General Church Properties Committee

shall be:

380.1. To reivew any request for new building on general church property held in the name of the General Board and make recommendation to the General Board concerning building location. Any building proposal must receive a two-thirds affirmative vote of the General Board

CENERAL COVERNMENT

[1383] 149

380.2. To approve general design for any new building proposed in keeping with 380.1 and to make recommendations concerning the same.

380.3. To study detailed building plans and make recom-

380-33. To study detailed building plans and make recommodation for their approval to the General Board. 380-64. To receive a General Bodget impact study report instruction of the General Bodget impact and the study report instruction of the study of the study of the study of the impact study should reflect initial huilding costs and project use cosis for an animum of five years. 380-05. To inspect final construction of building and recom-mend acceptance of completed project to the General Board.

P. The General Nazarene Youth International

382. The General Nazarene Youth International shall be composed of all district and local Nazarene Youth International

It shall be governed by the Constitution of the General Nazarene Youth International approved by the General Assembly.

382.1. The General Nazarene Youth International shall be represented on the General Board of the Church of the Nazarepresented on the General Board of the Church of the Nuzz-rene by one member elected by the General Assembly from nominations made by the General Council of the General Naz-arene Youth International. (3304, 331.3) 382.2. There shall be a General Quadrannial Convention.

which shall meet at a time fixed by the General Council in consultation with the Board of General Superintendents. The General Quadrennial Convention shall be composed of such members as are designated in \$10.

Q. The General Council of the General Nazarene World Mission Society

383. The General Council of the General Nazarene World Mission Society shall be composed of the general president, general director, and of that number of members prescribed by the Constitution of the General Nazarene World Mission Society and elected in accordance therewith.

150 [1383.1]

383.1. The General Council shall be governed by the Constitution of the General Nazarene World Mission Society. This organization shall be auxiliary to the World Mission Department, [81.3]

383.2. The General Council shall approve by two-thirds ballow tore agreement director who shall be nominated by the director of the World Miasion Division and the Board of General Sequence and the transmission is not speeral sequence of the state of the sequence of the sequence Board of General Superintendents shall solving further nomanions utill one is approved by two which hablot vote of the General Council. The general director shall be an ex officio and or number of the Mission Division.

383.3. The General Nazarene World Mission Society shall be represented on the General Board by one member elected thereto by the General Assembly from nominations made by the General Assembly room nominations made by Society, 1300, 5.31.41

385.4. There shall be a Quadrennial Casaveniton held under the direction of the General Council of the General Narareee World Mission Society at the same time as, or immediately receiving the entry of the General Council of the General Narametry of the General Council of the General Council or The Mission Society in Among with the Counties and the General Council of the General Council of the General be a member so officio of the General Council of the General Narareee World Mission Society; 1811,31

R. Administrative Boards

384. Wherever an administrative board of the Church of the Nazarene has been established to administer the business of the Church of the Nazarene in a country/countries/region. such a board shall be the established anthronity of the Church of the Nazarene in that country/countries/region. The membership of the Administrative Board shall consist of

The membership of the Administrative Board shall consist of those persons duly elected or appointed as district superintendents in that country/countries/region and additional repre-

GENERAL GOVERNMENT

[1385] 151

sentation of ordained ministers and laymen as approved by the General Board and the Board of General Superintendents.

A copy of the articles of organization or incorporation of such board shall be filed immediately with the general secretary. Any business transacted by the Administrative Board shall be subject to the approval of the Board of General Superintendents. The minutes of the annual and special meetings of the Administrative Board shall be submitted to the general secretary for reading and approval by the General Board.

S. National Boards

385. Wherever in world mission areas a national board of the Church of the Nararene is necessary for the acquiring, holding, selling and conveying of property, or any other business relative to the Church of the Nazarene for which no other provision is made in the Manual, such a board shall be established and shall be recognized as the lawful authority of the Church of the Nazarene in that country for the above stated purposes.

Where only one district of the Church of the Nazarene is organized in the country, the duly elected District Advisory Board shall be the national Administrative Board to conduct business as outlined above.

Where the transmission of the second second

A copy of the national articles of organization or incorporation of such board shall be filed mediately with the general secretary. All basiness transacted by the national Administrative Board shall be subject to the approval of the Board of General Superintendents. The minutes of the annual and spacial meetings of the national Administrative Board shall be submitted to the general secretary for reading and approval by the General Board. 152 [1386]

GENERAL GOVERNMENT

T. The Fiscal Year

386. The fiscal year for all general interests of the Church of the Nazarene shall end at a time specified in the bylaws of the General Board.

Ministry and Christian Service

CALL AND QUALIFICATIONS OF THE MINISTER CREDENTIALS AND MINISTERIAL REGULATIONS CATEGORIES AND ROLES OF MINISTRY EDUCATION FOR MINISTERS

CHAPTER I

CALL AND QUALIFICATIONS OF THE MINISTER

400. The Church of the Nazarene recognizes and insists that all believers have committed unto them a dispensation of the gospel which they are to minister unto all people. We also recognize and hold that the Head of the Church calls

some men and women to the more official and public work of the ministry. As our Lord called unto Him whom He would, and chose and ordained His 12 apostles "that they should be with him, and that he might send them forth to preach" [Mark 3:14]. so He still calls and sends forth messengers of the gospel. The church, illuminated by the Holy Spirit, will recognize the Lord's call.

Lord's call. The church also recognizes on the basis of Scripture and experience that God calls individuals to a lifetime of ministry who do not witness to a specific call to preach. When the church discovers this divine call, the proper steps should be taken for its recognition and endorsement, and all

suitable help should be given to open the way for the candidate to enter the ministry.

or ensert the ministry. 401. The perpetuity and efficiency of the Church of the Nazarene depend largely upon the spiritual qualifications, the character, and the manner of the of its ministres. [411.16] 401.1. The minister of Christ is to be in all things a pattern to the flock--in punctuality, discretion, diligence, earnestness, "by pureness, by knowledge, by longuatfering, by kindness, by "by pureness, by knowledge."

"by pureness, by knowledge, by longuittering, by Kuönness, by the Holy Ghost, by lowe unfeigned, by the world of truth, by the power of God, by the armour of righteoaness on the right hand and on the left [2 Corinthians 66-7]. **401.2.** The minister of the gospel in the Church of the Naz-arene must know that he or she has pace with God through our Lord Jeaus Christ, and that he or she is an actified wholly by the baptism with the Holy Spirit. He or she must have a deep sense of the fact that souls for whom Christ died are perishing, and 156 [¶401.3] MINISTRY AND CHRISTIAN SERVICE

that he or she is called of God to proclaim or make known to

them the glad tidings of salvation. 401.3. The minister must likewise have a deep sense of the necessity of believers going on unto perfection and developing the Christian graces in practical living, that their "love may abound yet more and more in knowledge and in all judgment" [Philippians 1:9]. He or she must have a stong appreciation of oth salvation and Christian ethics.

401.4. The minister must have gifts as well as grace, for the work. He or she will have a thirst for knowledge, especially of the Word of God; he or she must have sound judgment, good understanding, and clear views concerning the plan of redemption and salvation as revealed in the Scriptures. Saints will be edified and sinners converted through his or her minstry. He or she must be an example in prayer.

MINISTRY AND CHRISTIAN SERVICE [1402.3] 157

CHAPTER II

CREDENTIALS AND MINISTERIAL REGULATIONS

A. The Local Minister

402. A local minister is a lay member of the Church of the Nazarene whom the local church board has licensed for ministry, under the pastor's direction, and as opportunity affords, thus providing for the demonstration, employment, and development of ministerial gifts and usefulness.

4962.1. Any manufasor of the Charachever the Nazarene who fields called G of Got presels or to prace lifetime ministry through the charach may be licensed as a load minister for easy approximate the second second second second second second particle and the second second second second second bard of a load shareh recommodation or by the charachbornd of a load shareh recommodation runt first is approximately and the second secon

402.2. The church board shall issue to each local minister a license signed by the pastor and the sceretary of the church board. Where a church is supplied by a person who does not have a district license, that person may be issued a local ministr's license, or the renewal of license, by the District Advisory Board upon the recommendation of the district superintendent.

402.3. The license of a local minister may be renewed by the church board of a local church having an elder as pastor, upon the recommendation of the pastor, or by the church board of a local church not having an elder as pastor, provided that

158 [9402.4] MINISTRY AND CHRISTIAN SERVICE

the renewal of license is recommended by the pastor and approved by the district superintendent. [129.11, 209.8] 402.4. Local ministers shall pursue the course of study for

402.4. Local ministers shall pursue the course of study for ministers under the direction of the District Ministerial Studies Board. Local license cannot be renewed after two years without the written approval of the district superintendent if the local minister has not completed at least two subjects in the course of study.

402.5. A local minister, having served in that relation for at least one full year, and having passed the necessary studies, may be recommended by the church board to the district assembly for minister's license; but, if not received, he or she shall sutain his or her former relation. (123), 4031, 4241

402.6. A local minister who has been appointed as supply pastor must be approved by the Ministerial Credentials Board if he or she continues this service after the district assembly following the appointment. [209, 228.4]

B. The Licensed Minister

403. A licensed minister is one whose ministerial calling and fifth have been formally recognized by the district assembly through the granting of a ministerial license, authorizing the minister for, and appointing this more bet to, a larger aphere of service and to greater rights and responsibilities than these pertaining to a local minister, as a use to toward ordination as an elder or a descon. [403.7]

403.1. When there are members of the Charch of the Nater rese who find called to the ministry; they may be licented as miniators by the datafetic assembly provided thay (1) have had complete first-year course of totaly for ministers, or if a sensitive in the sense of the units preservice in the coulsege sensitizary program, or one shield of the Bible college ministerial curriculum: of the local term council of the ord minister of the could minister of the local term of ter

MINISTRY AND CHRISTIAN SERVICE [1403.3] 159

and usefulness; (5) have been carefully examined, under the direction of the direct assembly of the direct within the bounds of which they hold their church membraship, regarding the second strain the second strain the second straints of the membraship of the second straints of the second straints of and (7) have hold and discutilicities), which may have been used in the second straints of the second writing by the district superintendent and the District Advisory Board of the district superintendent straints (1) and the second straints of the second straints (1) and the second s

403.3, Lionned ininisters from other even gelial denominations, during online with the Gluebart to the Shoarens, motion (and the relation with the Gluebart to the Shoarens, mothylicit they forwards built their monitoring and further probations and the credential is anoth to them by the forwards and the shoarens for local ministers (2) have given being and further prolamation the course of study preserving by the Church of the Nanzense for local ministers (2) have given revisions of grave, gifts, and use the study of the study of the study of the study of the they are machined (2) have given revisions of grave, gifts, and use of the (3) have given revisions of grave, gifts, and use of the (3) have given revisions of graves, gifts, and use of the (3) have given revisions of (3) have promuted to iminiters and categorithms for each sharing (20), 4(11) 4(11).

403.3. A ministr's license shall terminate with the close of the next district assembly. It may be renewed by vote of the district assembly, provided 101 that the candidates for resease the start of the same shall be a start of the same shall be same shall be a start of the same start of

MINISTRY AND CHRISTIAN SERVICE 160 [[403.4]

tion of the pastor. In case, however, he or she shall not have passed the course of study required, the license may be renewed by the district assembly only upon submittal of a written expla-nation for this failure. Such explanation shall be satisfactory to the Ministerial Credentials Board and approved by the general superintendent presiding, [203,2]

403.4. To qualify for ordination, candidates must achieve graduation from the course of study within eight years from the granting of the first district license. Any exception, due to unusual circumstances, must be recommended to the district assembly, including a specified time limit, by the Ministerial Cre-dentials Board and be subject to the approval of the general superintendent in jurisdiction.

A licensed minister who is disgualified from ordination by reason of age or failure to complete the course of study within the prescribed time limit may be granted renewal of minister's license upon recommendation of the District Advisory Board and the Ministerial Credentials Board.

403.5. In the case of licensed ministers who are serving as pastors, the recommendation for the renewal of minister's li-cense shall be made by the District Advisory Board rather than by the local church board. [222.11]

403.6. The general superintendent having jurisdiction shall sue to each licensed minister a minister's license signed by

issue to each licensed minister a minister's license signed by hissail, the district supervised ends, and the district screences 4035. The second ministers shall be vested with aubo-by to preach the Work and provided hurps as annually be or are involved in a full-time active management by the district on which there membership is half, they shall also be vested with authority to administer the sacraments of baptian and the Lord's Sopring in this way competition, and to dir-cite at marriages where the laws of the state do not prohibi-lis (55, 42), 423, 320, 803]

403.8. All licensed ministers shall hold their ministerial membership in the district assembly of the district wherein their church membership is held, and shall report to this body annually. [201, 203.1, 428]

MINISTRY AND CHRISTIAN SERVICE [1404.3] 161

403.9. In case a licensed minister has united with the church membership or ministry of another denomination, his or her church membership and ministerial membership in the Church of the Nazarene shall, laceuse of that fact, immediately cease, and the district assembly shall cause to be entered into is minute record the following statement: "Removed from the membership and ministry of the Church of the Nazarene by uniting with another denomination" [107, 112]

C. The Deacon

404. A denom is a minister whose call of God to Christian ministry, gifts, and usefulness have been demonstrated and enhanced by proper training and experience, who has been separated to the service of Christ by a vote of a district assembly and by the solemn act of ordination, and who has been invested to perform certain functions of Christian ministry. [405.3] 404.1. The denom does not witness to a superfixed all to a specific and the specific and the specific all to a specific and the specific and the specific all to a specific and the specific and the specific all to a specific and the specific and the specific all to a specific and the specific and the specific all to a specific and the specific and the specific all to a specific and the specific and the specific and the specific all to a specific and the specific and the specific and the specific all to a specific and the specific

404.1. The descon does not witness to a specific call to presch. The church recognizes, no the basis of Scripture and experience, that God calls individuals to lifetime ministry who do not witness to such a specific call, and believes that individuals to added the state of t

404.3. The denorm must meet the requirements of the order for education, which the appropriate fifts and graces, and be for education, which the appropriate fifts and the order of the direction of a supervising elder and on occasion to conduct workly and to preach. It is understood that the Lord and the chardren may use his percoin gifts and graces in various associate mainters. As a symbol of the servent ministry of the Body and the transformation of the servent ministry of the relation at the server of the servent ministry of the relation outside the institutional chardre.

404.3. One who is called of God to this ministry, and who has fulfilled all the requirements of the church for the same, who has successfully completed the full course of study prescribed for licensed ministers and candidates for ordination as

162 [1404.4] MINISTRY AND CHRISTIAN SERVICE

deacon, who has been recommended for renewal of district li-cense by the church board of the local church in which he or she holds membership or by the District Advisory Board, and has been carefully considered and favorably reported by the Minis-terial Credentials Board to the district assembly, may be elected to deacon's orders by two-thirds vote of the district assembly; provided he or she has been an assigned minister not less than two consecutive years; and provided further that any dispualification which may have been imposed by a district assem-bly has been removed in writing by the district superintendent and District Advisory Board of said district; and provided further that his or her marriage relationship does not render him or her ineligible for ordination. [411.14]

40.4.4.1(i) in the pursuance of his or her ministry, the or-dained deacon feels called to the preaching ministry, he or she may be ordained elder upon completion of the requirements for that credential and the return of the deacon credential.

D. The Elder

405. An elder is a minister whose call of God to preach, gifts, and usefulness have been demonstrated and enhanced by proper training and experience, and who has been separated to the service of Christ through His church by the vote of a district assembly and by the solemn act of ordination, and thus has been fully invested to perform all functions of the Christian

405.1. We recognize but one order of preaching ministrythat of elder. This is a permanent order in the church. The elder is to rule well in the church, to preach the Word, to administer the sacraments of baptism and the Lord's Supper, and to solem-nize matrimony, all in the name of, and in subjection to, Jesus Christ, the great Head of the Church. [33.5, 411.12, 422-23.3, 423.101

405.2. The church expects that one called to this official ministry should be a steward of the Word and give full energy through a lifetime to its proclamation. 405.3. One who is called of God to this ministry, and who has fulfilled all the requirements of the church for the same,

MINISTRY AND CHRISTIAN SERVICE [1406.1] 163

who has successfully completed the full course of study pre-scribed for licensed ministers and candidates for ordination as elder, who has been recommended for renewal of district license by the church board of the local church in which he or she holds membership or by the District Advisory Board, and has been carefully considered and favorably reported by the Ministerial Credentials Board of the district assembly, may be elected to elder's orders by two-thirds vote of the district assembly, provided he or she has been an assigned minister not less than two consecutive years either as a pastor or as a registered evange-list, and has spent the major portion of that time actively in the field, or has served four consecutive years full-time as associate read on the sortion for consecutive years tun-time as associate or assistant pastor; or one year as pastor and two consecutive years as an assigned associate or assistant pastor; or has served four years as an assigned toacher in the religion department of one of our Nazarene institutions of higher education, or in a one of our Nazarene institutions of higher education, or in a Christian ministry in such other institutions and assigned roles approved by the Board of General Superintendents; and pro-vided further that any disqualification which may have been imposed by a district assembly has been removed in writing by Imposed by a discrict assembly has been removed in writing by the district superintendent and the District Advisory Board of the district where the disqualification was imposed; and provid-ed further that his or her marriage relationship does not render him or her ineligible for ordination. [2024, 320, 411.4, 434]

E. The Recognition of Elder's Orders

408. Edsen from other evangelical denominations, during to unlie with the Christer's of the Namers and presenting their ordination papers, may have their orders recognized by the distribution of the Namers and Christer and

164 [1406.2] MINISTRY AND CHRISTIAN SERVICE

issue to the elder so recognized a certificate of recognition signed by himself, the district superintendent, and the district secretary. [411.6]

406.2. When the orders of an elder from another church shall have been duly recognized, the credentials issued by said church shall be returned to him or her inscribed in writing or stamped across the face as follows:

Accredited by the	District Assembly of the
Church of the Nazarene this	day of
19, as the basis of the new	credentials.
Gener	al Superintendent
, Distric	t Superintendent
, Distric	t Secretary

F. The Retired Minister

407. A retired minister is one who has been placed in the retired relation by the district assembly in which he or she holds ministerial membership. [203.29-3.30]

407.1. Any minister who is in good standing may request a retired relationship and, at his or her request, shall be placed in the retired relation by his or her district assembly upon recommendation by the Ministerial Credentials Board. [203.29, 228.7]

4007.2. Any minister who is in good standing may request a retired relationship, and upon recommendation by the Ministerial Credentials Board, may be placed in either the "assigned" or "unassigned" retired relation by his or her district assembly. [203.29, 228.7]

407.3. Any minister who is in good at noting, but who is disqualified by physical disability or old age from angaing in such active ministerial labors as will afford sufficient income for support, may upon recommendation of the Ministerial Cordentials Board, be placed in the retired relationship by his or her district assembly. [203.301]

407.4. Retirement shall not compel cessation from ministerial labors or in itself deprive of membership in the district assembly. A minister who was serving in an "assigned" role may

MINISTRY AND CHRISTIAN SERVICE [\$408.2] 165

be in an "assigned retired" relation. However, a minister in an "unassigned" status at retirement will be in an "unassigned retired" relation. [201, 411.9]

407.5. The minister, having attained his or her 65th birthday and applied for pension benefits or assistance from the Pensions Board having responsibility for the pensions and benefits program on the district in which he or she is serving, shall be required to be placed in retired relationship by the district assembly as a condition to receiving or continuing to receive financial assistance.

G. The Transfer of Ministers

408. When an elder, decom, or licensed minister desires to transfer to another district, transfer of ministerial membership may be issued by vote of the district assembly, or by the District Advincey Deast in the interior of assembly, in which his or here by the District Advincey Totari and the interior district assembly more type. The second seco

408.1. The transfer of a licensed minister shall be valid only when accompanied by a detailed record of the licensee's grades in the course of study for licensed ministers, properly certified by the sccretary of the District Ministeral Studies Board of the issuing district assembly. The minister being transferred shall actively pursue the matter of the reporting of his or her grades in the course of study to the receiving district

408.2. The district assembly receiving a transfer shall notify the district assembly issuing aid transfer of the reception of the transferred person's membership. Until the transfer received by vote of the district assembly to which addressed, district assembly. Such transfer wild indy until the close of the next session following the date of issue of the district assembly to which addressed, 203.6]

166 [1409] MINISTRY AND CHRISTIAN SERVICE

H. The Resignation or Removal from the Ministry

409. When a minister ceases from an assigned ministry to purues a calling or vocation other than the Christian ministry in the Charch of the Nazarene, he or she may resign his or her ordination and return the credential of elder or descon to the district assembly in which he or she holds standing, to be placed in the care of the general scretary. The record in the district minutes will show that he or she was "removed from the cold standing, having low general".

409.1. A minister may be removed from the Riol of Minister II for earls receives a Latter of Commentium from hise or the resolution and the resolution of the resolut

409.2. An elder, deacon, or licensed minister may be expelled from the ministry of the Church of the Nazarene eilber through voluntary surrender of his or her credentials to avoid judicial action or through judicial processes and disciplinary action according to 502-5.

action according to 502-5. 409.3. When an elder or deacon has been deprived of his or her credentials by expulsion or any other disciplinary action, or has surrendered his or her credentials for any reason, such credentials shall be sent to the general secretary to be filed and preserved subject to the order of his or her district assembly. [324.5]

4095.4. Pastors and local church boards are advised not to engage a person who has lost his or her credentials as an elder, descon, or licensed minister by action of a board of discipline in any official capacity such as a supply minister, song director, Sunday School teacher, or other until his credentials are re-

MINISTRY AND CHRISTIAN SERVICE [1410.3] 167

stored, except on written approval of both the district superintendent where such credentials were lost and the general superintendent in jurisdiction of that district. 409.5. When an unretired elder or deacon ceases from the

409.5. When an unretired elder or deacon ceases from the active ministry and takes full-time secular employment, after a period of four years he or she shall be required to resign from elder's orders and return his or her credentials to the general secretary. The District Ministerial Credentials Board shall report to the district assembly, "_____resigned from elder's orders."

Exceptions may be granted in exceptional cases, upon written request to the Ministerial Credentials Board.

This action should be considered nonprejudicial to his or her character.

I. The Restoration of Ministers to Church Membership and Standing

410. Any minister who is expelled or withdraws under charges may require with the Church of he Nazares only with the consent of the district assembly of the assembly district from which he or she withdraws or was expelled. Should two appeals for restoration be denied, a request may be granted by the Board of General Superintendents to transfer responsibility for restoration to another district where placement may be considered.

410.1. If for any reason the name of an elder or deacon shall be removed from a district assembly roll, that elder or deacon shall not be recognized in any other district without having secured the written consent of the district assembly from whose roll his or her name was removed.

410.2. When an elder or descon in good standing has filed bis or her credentials, such credentials may, at any subsequent time, he returned to the elder or descon upon order of the district assembly where it was filed, provided that the return of his or her credentials shall have been recommended by the district superintendent and the District Advisory Board.

410.3. When an elder is deceased whose credentials were filed without prejudice to his character and standing as an el-

168 [1411] MINISTRY AND CHRISTIAN SERVICE

der, the elder's family, may, upon written request to the general secretary, and approval by the district superintendent of the district where such filing is recorded, receive said elder's certificate of ordination.

J. General Regulations

Terms and Definitions

- Assigned-A licensed minister, deacon, or elder who is active in one of the listed roles.
- Unassigned—A minister in good standing but not presently active full-time in a recognized assignment.
- Filed Credential—A minister in good standing who, because of inactivity in the ministry, has filed his or her credential with the general secretary.
- Surrendered Credential—A minister who, because of misconduct, accusations, confessions, or result of action by a board of discipline or voluntary action because of the above, has turned in his or her credential.
- Return of Credential—Pertains to a minister who has filed his or her credential.
- Restoration of Credential -- Pertains to a minister who has surrendered his or her credential.
- Resigned A minister in good standing who, for personal reasons, has decided he or she no longer wishes to be considered as a minister, but instead become a layman on a permanent basis.

marene cosses. [Note: An elder er deacon who has filed his or her credential is still an elder or deacon. An elder or deacon who has surrendered his or her recedential is still an elder or deacon but is under discipline and thus is denied the privilages of an elder or deacon since he or she has been supreshed or expelled.]

411. In case allocated minister, descon, or elder shall, without the written approval of the District Advisory Board of the assembly district in which he or she holds ministerial membership or the written approval of the Board of General Superintendants, regularly conduct independent church activities which are not under the direction of the Church of the Nazarens, or be connected with the operating staff of an indepention.

MINISTRY AND CHRISTIAN SERVICE [\$411.7] 169

dent church of another religious group, he or she shall be subject to trial under the law dealing with the discipline of a minister. [411.11, 502]

411.1. The licensed minister, deacon, and elder shall always abow due regard for the united advice of the district superintendent and the District Advisory Board. [426]

41.1.2. Any claim to participation by a licensed minister, decom, elder, and/or his or her dependents in any plan or fund that the church may have now or hereafter for the assistance or support of its disabled or aged ministers shall be based only upon regular, full-time, active service rendered by the minister an an assigned pactor or evengelist or other recognized roles, exclude from such participation all those in part-time and occusional service.

411.3. A licensed minister assigned as pastor or full-time associate or assistant pastor of a Church of the Nazarene shall be a voting member of the district assembly. [201] 411.4, No person shall be ordained elder or deacon after

41.1.4. No person shall be ordnined elder or deacon after passing his or ber 60th birthdog, scoregi that a licensed minister in active service at the present time, who has served as a fulltime pastor for 15 consecutive years or more, and who has completed all other requirements for ordination, and is barred only by the age retriction, about be considered an eligible candidate for ordination, subject to the spproval of the Board of General Superintendents.

411.5. The candidate elected to the order of elder or order of descon shall be ordained by the laying on of the hands of the general superintendent and ordained ministers with appropriate religious exercises, under the direction of the presiding general superintendent, [307,3]

411.6. The general superintendent having jurisdiction shall issue to the person so ordained a certificate of ordination signed by himself, the district superintendent, and the district secretars. (406.1)

411.7. In case the credentials of an elder or deacon have been misplaced, mutilated, or destroyed, a duplicate certificate may be issued upon the recommendation of the District Advi-

170 [1411.8] MINISTRY AND CHRISTIAN SERVICE

sory Board. Such recommendation shall be made directly to the sory Board. Such recommendation shall be more unrecity so use general superintendent in jurisdiction and upon his approval aball be issued by the general secretary. On the back of the certificate, the original number should be identified along with the word DUFLICATE. If the general superintendent or the dis-trict secretary signing the original curficate is not available, the general superintendent having jurisdiction, the district sucperintendent, and the district secretary of the district requesting the duplicate certificate shall sign the certificate. On the ing the depinted of the set of th

This certificate is given to take the place of former certificate of ordination given to _____(name)_, on the ______day of _____(month)_, A.D. 19 ____, by the _____(ordaining)____(organization), at which date he was ordained and h former ordinatis tificate signed by ______ and _____ The former certificate was (misplaced, mutilated, destroyed). , General Superintendent , District Superintendent District Superintendent

411.8. All elders and descons shall hold church membership in some local church, [429]

411.9. All elders and deacons shall hold their ministerial membership in the district assembly of the district wherein their church membership is held, to which body they shall retheir church membership is held, to which hody they shall re-port annually. Any elder or deacon who for two consecutive years does not report to his or her district assembly or elect, coase to be a nearber thereof. [29, 201, 2021, 407.4, 423] 411.10, In case an ordained minister has united with the church membership or ministery of enother denomination, his or her clurch remotership in the

Church of the Nazarene shall, because of that fact, immediately cease, and the district assembly shall cause to be entered into its minute record the following statement: "Removed from the

MINISTRY AND CHRISTIAN SERVICE [1411.13] 171

membership and ministry of the Church of the Nazarene by uniting with another denomination." [107, 112] 411.11. No ordained minister shall regularly conduct inde-

411.11. No ordained minister shall regularly conduct independent church activities which are not under the direction of the Church of the Nazarene, or carry on independent missions or church activities, or be connected with the operating staff of an independent church or other religious group or denomination, without the annual written approval of the District, Advisory Board or the written approval of the Board of General Superintendent.

Where the said activities are to be conducted on more than one district or a district other than the district on which said minister holds ministerial membership, the written approval of the Board of General Superintendents must he obtained prior to the participation in said activities, The Board of General Superintendents shall notify the respective District. Advisory Boards that a request for said approval is pending before their board.

Should an ordained minister fail to comply with these requirements, he or she may, on recommendation by a two-thirds vote of the entire membership of the Ministerial Credentials Board, and by action of the district assembly, be dropped from the membership of the Church of the Nazarene.

The final determination as to whether any specific activity constitutes "an independent mission" or "an unauthorized church activity" shall reat with the Board of General Superintendents. [112-12.1]

41.1.12. An assigned minister may start a local church when suthorized to do so by the district experimendant or the general superintendent having jurisdiction. Official organization reports are to be filed in the general Church Extension Ministries office by the district superintendent. [100, 208.], 310]

411.13. Membership in the district assembly shall be by virtue of being a pastor or other assigned minister who is actively serving and maintains employment in such ministry as his or her primary vocation in one of the assigned ministerial roles defined in Chapter III.

172 [411.14] MINISTRY AND CHRISTIAN SERVICE

411.14. Persons who obtain divorce under the civil law where the acriptural ground for divorce, namely, adultary, does not exist and who subsequently remarry are ineligible for the office of the ministry in the Church of the Nazarene. [320, 403.1-32.4043.4053.406]

41.1.15. It shall be the dary of every minister of the Church of the Nazarese to hood in traxt and confidence any communiof the Nazarese to hood in traviat and confidence any communiof the compression while he or also is acting in his or her profersional characters as a lenserad or reduined minister of the Church of the Nazarese. The public finaseministion of and commutication of the state of the lates the above regulation and performance of the state of the

411.06. Any other or denson within 64 hours of the filing of a spends for diverse or legal termination of a smarring by the spends the diverse or legal termination of a smarring by the implication of the spends of the spends of the seminates and the sponse of the there of densis in for the nertransition of the spends of the spends of the sedimeter of the spends of the spends of the sedimeter of the spends of the spends of the sedimeter of the spends of the spends of the sedimeter of the spends of the spend of the spends of the spends of the spends of the spend of the spends of the spends of the spends of the spend of the spends of the spends of the spends of the spend of the spends of the spends of the spends of the spend of the spends of the spends of the spends of the spend of the spends of the spends of the spends of the spend of the spends of the spends of the spends of the spend of the spends of the spends of the spends of the spend of the spends of the spends of the spends of the spend of the spends of the spends of the spend of the spend of the spends of the spend of t

411.17. When an elder, deacon, or district licensed minister suffers a moral lapse of adultery or other sexual immorality, and of his or her own volition confesses this to the district superin-

MINISTRY AND CHRISTIAN SERVICE [1411.18] 173

tendent, her or her may apply to the District Advisory Board for commissionis on or resolutions of credenbial hadre two full approxtemes and the second second second second second second second tends is already with the second second second second second table in the duration or waveling service. The Advisory Board Table and the second second second second second second table and the second second second second second second restoration to the District Ministerial Creation and the second second second second second second second second restoration to the District Ministerial Creation and the second second second second second second second second control of the second second second second second second General Bayerian density for the second seco

41.1.18. If an elder densero, or district licensed ministra endfers a moral layer and, contrary to making a volumitary confereion as stated in the above paragraph, shall have to be confound and or accessed, and then shall littlere confess to guilt or be found guilty by a board of discipling, he or she shall surresthe his or her credentials or license and shall not be eligible to spely consort the an outil form years have passed, at which time of at least its performance and the spelin respiring a total of at least its present paragram. MINISTRY AND CHRISTIAN SERVICE

CHAPTER III

174 [\$412]

CATEGORIES AND ROLES OF MINISTRY

412. The Church of the Nazarene recognizes only one order of the preaching ministry, that of the elder. It also recognizes that the ordained elder, the ordained deacon, or the licensed minister preparing for ordination may serve the church in various capacities. Christ has called some to be "apostles: and some. prophets; and some, evangelists; and some, pastors and teach-ers; for the perfecting of the saints, for the work of the ministry, for the edifying of the body of Christ" [Ephesians 4:11-12]. The church recognizes the following categories of service in which a charts recognizes the coloring calculation of service in which a district assembly may place an elder, descon, or, as circum-stances warrant, a licensed minister: pastor, evangelist, mis-sionary, teacher, administrator, chaplain, and special service. Service within these categories that qualifies as being an "assigned minister" would include that service for which ministerial training and ordination are normally required, or greatly desired. The Handbook on Ministerial Studies shall provide guidelines for each category of ministry which will aid district boards in identifying the qualifications necessary for consid-eration to be an assigned minister. Only assigned ministers shall be voting members of the district assembly.

412.1. All persons assigned to a particular role shall file a report annually to the assigning district assembly.

412.2. All persons assigned to a particular role may request and obtain annually from the assigning district a certificate of their role of service, signed by the district superintendent and the district secretary.

412.3. All persons assigned to a particular role of ministry, when placed on disability by approved medical authority, may be listed as "assigned disabled."

The roles of ministry are listed in alphabetical order for convenience. MINISTRY AND CHRISTIAN SERVICE [1416.1] 175

A. The Administrator

413. The administrator is an elder or a descon who has been elected by the General Assembly as a general difical; or an elder, dascon, or licensed minister who has been elected or employed by the General Board to zerve in the general charch or an elder who has been elected by the district assembly as district superintendent; or an elder, descon, or licensed minister who has been elected or employed full-time in the service of a district. Such person is an assigned minister.

B. The Chaplain

414. The chaplain is an elder or a deacon who has been approved by the Chaplaincy Advisory Council and the Board of General Superintendents, and commissioned an institutional chaplain or by his or her government as a military chaplain. His or her district shall list him or here as an assigned minister.

C. The Deaconess

415. A woman who is a member of the Church of the Name on and ballews which as the is divised led to engage in ministering to the side, and the needly, combridge the operation of the side, and the needly combridge the division of the side of t

D. The Educator

416. The educator is an elder, deacon, licensed minister, or layman serving as an educator.

416.1. When an educator having a ministerial credential has been employed to serve on the administrative staff or fac-

176 [9417] MINISTRY AND CHRISTIAN SERVICE

ulty of one of the educational institutions of the Church of the Nazarene, the district shall designate such a person as an assigned minister.

E. The Evangelist

417. The evanplitit is an lefter or licensed minister who devote himself or braveling only presching the populand who is authorized by the church to promote revisal and to spread the good of Josus. Christ abraviation in the land. The Church of the Nazarane recognizes two levels of literarant evangislins to which addretic assembly may assign ministere regitered evangists and comparisoned evanghist. An evanghist who gives full time to evangations at he are per primary assigntance of the spread of the spread of the spread of the assignment of the departments or institutions, shall be an assigned minister.

417.1. A registered evangelist is an elder, or a licensed minister, who has indicated a purpose to devote full time to evangelism. Such registration shall be for on eyear. Renewal by subsequent district assemblies shall be granted on the basis of actual full-time work in evangelism in the year prior to the assembly.

417.2. A commissioned evangelist is an elder who has met all the requirements of a registered evangelist for two full years. The commission is for one year and may be renewed by subsequent district assemblies for one who continues to meet the requirements.

417.3. An elder or licensed minister desiring to enter the field of evangelism between district assemblies may be recognized by the general office of Evangelism Ministries upon reommendation of the district superintendent. The registration or commission shall be voted by the district assembly upon recommendation by the district superintendent.

417.4. Guidelines and procedures for certification of evangelists' roles will be contained in the Handbook on Ministerial Studies.
MINISTRY AND CHRISTIAN SERVICE [1419] 177

F. The Lay Minister

418. All Christians should consider themselves ministers of Christ and seek to know the will of God concerning their appropriate avenues of service. [400 and Handbook on Ministerial Studies]

418.1. Any member of the Church of the Nazarene who feels called to serve as a church planter, bivocational pastor, teacher, lay evangelist, stewardship minister, church staff minister, and/or other specialized ministry within the local church, but who does not at the present time feel a special call to become an ordained minister, may pursue a course leading to a certificate of lay ministry.

44.18.2. The here's basic parts of the second second second second second second parts or shall second second second second second second parts or shall second second second second second second work of the church, and satisfy itself as to the lay minister's qualifications for such ministry. 4.18.3. The local church board shall issue to each lay minister's 4.18.3. The local church board shall issue to each lay minister's 4.18.3. The local church board shall issue to each lay minister's 4.18.3. The local church board shall issue to each lay minister of the local church board shall issue to each lay minister's 4.18.3. The local church board shall issue to each lay minister's 4.18.3. The local church board shall issue to each lay minister's 4.18.3. The local church board shall issue to each lay minister's 4.18.3. The local church board shall issue to each lay minister's 4.18.3. The local church board shall issue to each lay minister's 4.18.3. The local church board shall issue to each lay minister's 4.18.3. The local church board shall issue to each lay minister's 4.18.3. The local church board shall issue to each lay minister's 4.18.3. The local church board shall issue to each lay minister's 4.18.3. The local church board shall issue to each lay minister's 4.18.3. The local church board shall issue to each lay minister's 4.18.3. The local church board shall issue to each lay minister's 4.18.3. The local church board shall board shall issue to each lay minister's 4.18.3. The local church board shall board board shall board shall board shall board shall board sh

418.3. The local church board shall issue to each lay minister a certificate signed by the pastor and the secretary of the church board. The certificate of the lay minister may be renewed annually by the church board upon the recommendation of the pastor.

418.4. The lay minister shall report annually to the church board.

The lay minister serving outside the local church where he or she is a member shall be subject to the appointment and supervision of the district superintendent and the District Advisory Board.

418.5. The course of study will depend upon the specific area of ministry chosen. [See Handbook on Ministerial Studies for the outline of such study.] However, the provision for taking the course, and for grading and recording the same, will be made at the local level.

G. The Minister of Christian Education

419. An elder, deacon, or licensed minister employed in a ministerial capacity in a Christian education program of a local

178 [\$419.1] MINISTRY AND CHRISTIAN SERVICE.

church may be assigned as a minister of Christian education. 419.1. A person who was, in the years preceding 1985, li-censed or commissioned as a minister of Christian education, shall continue in good standing. However, those persons de-siring to begin the pursuit of the role of minister of Christian education may complete the requirements for ordination to the order of descon as their credential for this ministry.

H. The Minister of Music

420. A member of the Church of the Nazarene who feels called to the ministry of music may be commissioned as a minister of music for one year by the district assembly, provided such person (1) has been recommended for such work by the church board of the local church in which membership is held; (2) gives evidence of grace, gifts, and usefulness; (3) has had at least one year of experience in music ministry; (4) has had not less than one year of vocal study under an accredited teacher and is pursuing the course of study or its equivalent prescribed for ministers of music or has completed the same: (5) is regularly engaged as a minister of music; (6) has been carefully examined, under the direction of the district assembly of the assembly district within the bounds of which the person holds his or her church memberahip, regarding his or her intellectual and spiritual qualifications, and general fitness for such work. [203.8]

420.1. Only such persons who maintain a full-time employ-ment in this ministry as their primary assignment and vocation and have ministerial credentials shall be considered assigned

I. The Missionary

421. The missionary is an elder, deacon, licensed minister, 42.1. The missionary is an elder, descon, licensed minister, or lapperson who has been appointed by the General Board to minister for the church through the World Mission Department or through the Church Growth Department. A missionary with an appointment and having a ministerial credential shall be considered an assigned minister. MINISTRY AND CHRISTIAN SERVICE [[423.13] 179

J. The Pastor

422. A pastor is a minister [115] who, under the call of God and His people, has the oversight of a local church. A pastor in charge of a local church is an assigned minister. [210]

423. The duties of a pastor are:

423.1. To preach the Word.

423.2. To receive persons as members of the local church according to 107 and 107.1.

423.3. To administer the sacraments in harmony with 403.7

423.4. To care for the people by pastoral visitation, particularly the sick and needy. 423.5. To comfort those who mourn.

423.6. To reprove, rebuke, and exhort, with all long-suffering and doctrine.

423.7. To seek, by all means, the conversion of sinners, the entire sanctification of the converted, and the upbuilding of God's people in the most holy faith. [24]

423.8. To have the care of all departments of local church work

423.9. To appoint the teachers of the Sunday School in harmony with 148.1.

narmony was 149.1. 423.10, To administer the sacrament of the Lord's Supper at least once a quarter A licensed minister who has not com-piled fully with the provisions of 403.7 [see also 620] shall ar-range for the administeriation of the sacrament by an elder. 423.11, To read to the congregation the Constitution of the Church of the Nazarene and the Special Roles contained in 7.62, 52.38, both inclusive, within each yard [114] or have this

section of the Manual printed and distributed annually to the members of the church.

423.12. To supervise the preparation of all statistical re-ports from all departments of the local church, and present promptly all such reports through the district secretary to the district assembly. [114.1. 148.3]

423.13. To give leadership to the evangelism, education, de-votion, and expansion programs of the local church in harmony

180 [5423.14] MINISTRY AND CHRISTIAN SERVICE

with the district and general church promotional goals and programs.

423.14. To submit a report to the annual church meeting, including a report on the status of the local church and its departments, and an outline of areas of future needs with recommendations for reference by the church to any of its officers or departments for study and/or implementation in future steps for growth and progress.

423.15. To appoint an investigating committee of three in case of accusation filed against a church member.

423.16. To see that all General Budget funds raised through the local missionary society are remitted promptly to the general treasurer, and that all District Budget funds are remitted promotly to the district treasurer. [135.2]

423.17. To nominate to the church board all persons who are paid employees of the local church, and to have supervision of the same. [166.1-66.3]

423.18. To sign in conjunction with the church secretary all conveyances of real estate, mortgages, releases of mortgages, contracts, and other legal documents not otherwise provided for in the Manual [102.1, 103-4.2]

423.19. To notify the pastor of the merset church when a member or fined of a local church or any of its departments moves to another locality in the same assembly district where vital association with the previous local church is impractical, giving the member's or friend's address. If the move is to a locality beyond the assembly district, the pastor shall immediately inform the Moving Nazarees Services of the Church Growth Division, giving the name and the new address.

alory miorm the working valarates Services of the church forwith Division, giving the name and the new address. 423.20. To arrange, together with the church board, according to plans adopted by the General Assembly and agreed to by the district assembly, for the raising of the apportionment of the General Budget funds, and the seportionment of the Ditrict Budget funds, made to the local church; and to raise these apportionment [372.130.160]

423.21. The postor may, when requested by a member, grant a transfer of church membership, a certificate of commendation, or a letter of release. [111-11.1, 112.2]

MINISTRY AND CHRISTIAN SERVICE [1430] 181

423.22. The pastor shall be, ex officio, president of the local church, chairman of the church board, head of the church schools and any weekday Nazarene school organization, the Nazarene Youth International, the Nazarene World Mission Society, and all other subsidiary organizations in connection with the local church, [127, 146, 156, 158.2, 159.1]

424. The pastor shall have the right to a voice in the nomination of all heads of all departments of the local church and

nation of all heads of all departments of the local church, and any Narazene weekday school organization. 425. The pastor shall not contrast bills, create financial ob-ligations, count monies, or disburse funds for the local church unless authorized and directed by majority vote of the church board or by majority vote of a church meeting scatch action, if taken, must be approved in writing by the District Advisory Board and shall be duly recorded in the minutes of the church

board or of the church meeting. [129.1, 129.19-29.20] 426. The pastor shall always show due regard for the united advice of the district superintendent and the District Advisory Board [222.2, 411.1]

Board, 1222, 41.11 427. In case a licensed or ordained minister presenting cre-dentials from another denomination shall, during the interim of sessions of the district assembly, make applications for mem-bership in a local church, the pastor may not receive such appli-cant without first having obtained the favorable recommenda-tion of the District Advisory Board, 107, 225] 428. For the accessical of this diffes the pastor shall be ams-428. For the accessica of this diffes the pastor shall be ams-

nable to the district assembly, to which he or she shall report annually and give brief testimony to his or her personal Christian experience. [203.1, 403.8] 429. The nastor shall automatically become a member of

the church of which he or she is pastor; or, in case of more than one church in his or her charge of the church of his or her choice [411.8]

430. Pastoral Service includes the ministry of a pastor, an associate pastor, and/or an assistant pastor, who may specialize in such ways as minister of Christian education, minister of music, minister of visitation, or minister of youth. An elder, a deacon. or a licensed minister called to any of these levels of

182 [9431] MINISTRY AND CHRISTIAN SERVICE

pastoral service in connection with a church or mission may be considered an assigned minister.

431. Supply Pastors. A district superintendent shall have the power to appoint a supply pastor, who shall serve subject to the following regulations:

(1) A supply pastor may be a Nazarene elder, deacon, or licensed minister serving in some other assignment, a local minister or a lay minister of the Church of the Nazarene, a minister in process of transfer from another denomination, or a minister who belongs to another denomination.

(2) A supply pastor shall be appointed temporarily to fill the pulpit and to provide a spiritual ministry, but shall not have authority to administer the ascaments or to perform marriages unless that authority adheres to him or her on some other basis, and he or she shall not perform the administrative function of the pastor except in the filling of reports, unless authorized to do so by the district superintendent.

(3) A supply pastor's church membership shall not be automatically transferred to the church where he or she is serving.

(4) A supply pastor shall be granted a certificate of authorization to supply on the form provided, and shall be a nonvoting member by some other right.

(5) A supply pastor may be removed or replaced at any time by the district superintendent.

K. The Song Evangelist

432. A song evangalist is a member of the Church of the Nazarene whose intention is to devote the major portion of his or her time to the ministry of evangalism through music. A song evangalist who has a ministerial credential and who gives full time to evangalism as his or her prinary assignment, and who does not sustain a retired relationship with the church or any of its departments or institutions, shall be an assigned minister.

432.1. Guidelines and procedures for certification of song evangelists' roles will be contained in the Handbook on Ministerial Studies. MINISTRY AND CHRISTIAN SERVICE [\$433.1] 183

L. Special Service

433. An elder, deacon, or licensed minister in active service not otherwise provided for shall be appointed to special service, if such service is approved by the district assembly, and shall be listed by the district as an assigned minister.

instet by us unstruct as an assigned minister. 433.1. An elder or deacon employed in a ministerial capacity as an officer in a church-related organization serving the church, or approved upon careful evaluation of his or her ditrict assembly to serve with an educational institution, evangolistic, or missionary organization not directly related to the church, may be appointed to special service subject to 411.11. MINISTRY AND CHRISTIAN SERVICE

CHAPTER IV

184 [5434]

EDUCATION FOR MINISTERS

A. For Ministers

434. The ministerial course of study is designed to maint in the training of God-stall minister whose nervice is with 100 with the training of God-stall minister whose nervice is with 100 with of even admitting of a star in the star of the star in the star of even admitting of a star in the star in the star in the star size to HD, barech in Matthew 2320 20, to "go and make discilation to HD, barech in Matthew 2320 20, to "go and make discilision to HD, barech in Matthew 2320 20, to "go and make discilision to HD, barech in Matthew 2320 20, to "go and make discilision in the star in the star in the star in the star of the Charterh of the Nanzerse. Students are enrolled, ad-Ministerial Studies Board, The Dirich Manisterial Studies Board that direct and grade all examinations and determine to physics.

434.1. Collage or College-Seminary Program. When a candidate elects to pursue preparation for the ministry in one of the liberal attacologies of the church, or any other college approved by Education Services, and/or Nazarene Theological Seminary, the candidate shall be graduated from the course of study when transcripts from either college or seminary or both show a minimum credit in the following subject areas:

	Term Hours	Semester Hours
Biblical Literature	. 18	12
Theology (including one semester of Doctrine of Holiness)		12
Homiletics, Practics, and Religious Education (including some credit in each		
of these fields)	. 18	12

MINISTRY AND CHRISTIAN SERVICE [1434.4] 185

	Term Hours	Semester Hours
Church History (including one course in		
the History and Polity of the Church of th		
Nazarene with special concentration in the		12
Manual)		8
Evangelism and Missions	6	4
English, Literature, and Speech	18	12
Philosophy and Psychology (including some		
credit in each)	12	8
History and Social Science (This would include all History courses other than Church History; Social Science would include Sociology,	12	8
Economics, and Political Science.) Science. (This would include any Physical or Natural Science, such as Biology, Chemistry, Physics, etc.)	6	4
Thetal	100	80

434.2. Nazarene Bible College. Licensed ministers shall be graduated from the course of study when they have satiafactorily completed the approved three-year Bible college ministerial program of studies.

434.3, Directed Studies. A four-year program of Directed Studies is available, which shall be directed and supervised by the District Ministerial Studies Board, Pastoral Ministries will provide a handbook on the courses of study as the official guide for the District Ministerial Studies Board. All grades shall be reported to Pastoral Ministries for a permanent record.

434.4. Preparation for the ministry pursued in non-Nazarene schools or under non-Nazarene auspices shall be evaluated in conformity with the curricular requirements stated in the *Handbook on Ministerial Studies* provided by Pastonal Ministeries.

186 [1434.5] MINISTRY AND CHRISTIAN SERVICE

434.6. All courses, academic requirements, and official ediministrative regulations shall be provided by Pastoral Ministries in *Handbook on Ministerial Statilis*. This *Handbook nash* as become necessary shall be appointed by a Course of Study Advisory Committee, the General Board, and the Board of General Superintendents. The Course of Study Advisory Committee shall be appointed by the Board of General Buserintendents.

B. General Guidelines for Preparation for Christian Ministry

435. General guidelines for preparation for Christian ministry are:

435.1. The required courses of study, together with the necessary procedures concerning their completion for song evanglists, minister of mucic, and deconcessas, are to be found in the *Handbook on Ministerial Studies*. Language and cultural adaptations may be made with the suproval of Pastoral Ministries Write to Pastoral Ministries, 6401 The Paseo, Kansas City, MO 64131.

436.5.2. In regions administratively related to the World Mission Division, all courses of study, as stated in the Hand book on Ministerial Studies, may be adapted to the needs and available literature in those districts with the approval of Pastoral Ministries. [434.5]

Judicial Administration

0

CHURCH DISCIPLINE DISCIPLINE OF A LAYMAN DISCIPLINE OF A MINISTER RULES OF PROCEDURE DISTRICT COURT OF APPEALS GENERAL COURT OF APPEALS REGIONAL COURT OF APPEALS REGIONAL COURT OF APPEALS GUARANTY OF RIGHTS

I. CHURCH DISCIPLINE

500. The object of church discipline is not the punishment of offenders, but vindication of the truth, purification of the church, warning of the caveless, and reformation and salvation of the guilty. Members of the church who do violate to the membernia you want would be dealt with kindly yet faithfully, according to the prievousness of their offenses. Holiness of heart and ill be being the New Testament standard, Holiness of heart and life being the New Testament standard.

Holiness of heart and life being the New Testament standard, the Church of the Nazarene insists upon a clean ministry and requires that those who bear its credentials as ministers be orthodox in doctrine and holy in life. Thus the purpose of the discipline of a minister is not puritive or retributive, but its to determine the ministerial standing and church relations of a minister accessed of misconduct.

II. DISCIPLINE OF A LAYMAN

501. If a request is made for investigation of a ky member accured of unchristian conduct, such charges shall be placed in writing and signed by at least two members who have been in faithul attendance for at least its months. The pastor shall appoint an investigating committee of three members of the local charks, abaylete to the approval of the district superistandent three the superior of the single start superistandent three. This based as a written report of its inwith the charter board.

After the investigation and pursuant thereto, any two sensbers in good standing in the local church may aign charges against the accused and file same with the church board. Thereupon the church board shall appoint, subject to the approval of the district superintendent, a local board of discipline of five members, who are unprojudiced and able to hear and dispose of the case in a fair and impartial manner. This board the isause involved. After hearing the testimory of writewases 190 [\$501.1]

JUDICIAL ADMINISTRATION

and considering the evidence, the Board of Discipline shall either absolve the accused or administer discipline as the facts shall establish to be proper. The decision must be unanimous. Discipline may take the form of reprimand, suspension, or expulsion from membership in the local church. Repentance, apology, or restitution may be required.

501.1. An appeal from the decision of a local board of discipline may be taken to the District Court of Appeals within 30 days by either the accused or the church board.

501.2. When a layman has been expelled from membership in the local church by a local board of discipline, he may reunite with the Church of the Nazarene on the same district only with the approval of the District Advisory Board. If such consent is granted, he shall be received into the membership of that local church using the approved form for the reception of church members. [40, 20-38, 112.1-12.4, 801]

III. DISCIPLINE OF A MINISTER

505. It as ship, desco, or locansed minister is accuss of conduct unbecoming a minister, or of scating decirition soil of harmony with the doctrinal statement of the Church of the Nazaras, or eff average locality in the endocement of the Scature in the state of the Church of the Nazaras, or eff average locality in the endocement of the Scature for the Nazaras was estimated by as least two members of the Church of the Nazaras was estimated by a least two members of the Church of the Nazaras who are set the time in good standing. Accusation et al. Interface states was an exact the state of the s

The District Advisory Board shall, within 10 days, give written notice to the accused that accusations have been filed, using certified or registered mail, or by personal delivery. The accused and his or her counsel shall have the right to examine the accusations and to receive a written copy of the same immediately upon request, but no later than three days after notification. .092.1. When a written accussion is filed, the District Advisory Board shall appoint a committee of three or norse elsels to investigate the first and circumstances involved and report to investigate the first and circumstances involved and the transmitter of the second s

502.2. In case charges are filed, the Diatric A Advancy Board shall appoint for outside ministers of the diatric to the same distinct in the size of the diatric to the same distinct in the same of the diatric to the same distinct in the same distinct and the same and same distinct in the same distinct and the same distinct and the same distinct and the same distinct and the same distinct distinct and the same distinct distinct and the same distinct distinct. This Board of Distingtion shall are very as processories with a distinct minister. This Board of Distingtion shall have power to violate and absolve the accussed in connection with a distinct minister. This Board of the charch, or hold, public to private opprimum, or not other discipling and the public distingt a partiel of probation not the scenario one years. [22:1], 502:3.1, 10:1 here the accussed or the Distinct Advancy Board Board of Distinct Advancy Board Board of Distinct Advancy Board Board Distinct Board Board Distinct Advancy Board Board Distinct Advancy Board Board Distinct Advancy Board Board Distinct Advancy Board Board Distinct Board Board Distinct Advancy Board Board Distinct Advancy Board Board Distinct Advancy Board Board Distinct Board Board Distinct Advancy Board Board Distinct Advancy Board Board Distinct Advancy Board Board Distinct Board Board Distinct Board Board Distinct Advancy Board Board Distinct Board

502.3. If either the accused or the District Advisory Board ahall so request, the Board of Discipline shall be a Regional Board of Discipline. The regional board for each case shall be appointed by the general superintendent in juriadiction of the district where the accused minister holds his or her memberahin. 192 [1502.4]

JUDICIAL ADMINISTRATION

502.4. It is provided that in no case shall disciplinary action be taken against a missionary by a Phase 2 [national-mission] district as such.

502.5. The decision of a board of discipline shall be unanimous, shall be written and signed by all members, and shall include a finding of "guilty" or "innocent" as to each charge and specification.

502.6. Any hearing by a board of discipline herein provided for shall always be conducted within the bounds of the district where the charges were filed at a place designated by the board which is to hear the charges.

502.7. The procedure at any hearing shall be according to Rules of Procedure hereinafter provided. [222.4-22.5, 403.9, 411.11, 505]

502.8. When a minister is charged with conduct unbecoming a minister and shall admit to guilt, or shall confess to guilt without being charged, the District Advisory Board may assess any of the disciplines provided for in 502.2.

502.9. When a minister is accused of conduct unbecoming a minister, and shall admit to guilt, or shall confess to guilt prior to being brought before a board of discipling, the District Advisory Board may assess any of the disciplines provided for in 502.2.

560. Blowing a decision by a band of discipline, the sccouch, the District Advisory Board, no those who sign the charges shall be entitled to appead the decision to the General Court of Appead her those in the bindle states and Constance, or appead hall be begun within 30 days after such decision, and the court is all previous the entities record discovers any substantiate more prepadiated to the right or day present, it shall a manner equable of giving reliefs to that previous fixed a manner equable of giving reliefs to that previous fixed and writely be previous precedings on the class.

504. When the decision of a board of discipline is adverse to the accused minister and the decision provides for suspension from the ministry or cancellation of credentials, the minister

JUDICIAL ADMINISTRATION

[1506] 193

shall thereupon immediately suspend all ministerial activity; and, if he refuses to do so, his right of appeal shall be for that reason forfeited.

504.1. When the decision of a board of discipline provides for suspension or cancellation of credentials and the accused minister desires to appeal, he shall file with the secretary of the court to which the appeal is made, at the time the notice of appeal is filed, his written credentials as a minister, and his appeal is filed, his written credentials as a minister, and his right of appeal shall be confiltoned upon his compliance with this provision. When such credentials are so filed, they shall be constant of the state of the state of the state of the case, and thereupon the same shall either be concalled or re-turned to the minister as the court may direct. **504.3**. Appeals to the General Court of Appeals may be made by the accused or the Board of Discipling from decisions of a Regional Court of Appeals. Such appeals abuil be by the

same rules and procedures as other appeals to the General Court of Appeals.

IV RULES OF PROCEDURE

505. The General Court of Appeals shall adopt uniform Rules of Procedure governing all proceedings before boards of discipline and courts of appeal. After such rules are adopted and published, they shall be the final authority in all judicial proceedings. Printed Rules of Procedure shall be supplied by the general secretary. Changes or amendments to such rules may be adopted by the General Court of Appeals at any time, and when these are adopted and published, they shall be effective and suthoritative in all cases. Any steps that are thereafter taken in any proceeding shall be in accordance with such change or amendment. [502]

V DISTRICT COURT OF APPEALS

506. Each organized district shall have a District Court of Appeals composed of five ordained ministers elected annually by the district assembly. This court shall hear appeals of church

members concerning any action of a local church or church board when they are aggrieved or adversely affected by such action. Notice of appeal must be given in writing within 30 days after such action or after appellant has knowledge thereof. Such notice shall be delivered to the District Court of Appeals or a member thereof, and a copy of such notice shall be delivered to the pastor of the local church and to the secretary of the church board concerned. [203.23, 309.1]

506.1. The District Court of Appeals shall have jurisdiction to hear and decide all appeals of laymen or churches from the action of a board of discipline appointed to discipline a layman.

VI. GENERAL COURT OF APPEALS.

507. The General Assembly shall elect five ordained ministers to serve as members of the General Court of Appeals during each ensuing quadrennium, or until their successors are elected and qualified. This court shall have jurisdiction as fol-

507.1. To hear and determine all appeals from the action or decision of any District Board of Discipline.

507.2. To hear and determine appeals concerning the action of any district assembly affecting the interests of a minister amenable to that assembly.

507.3. To hear and determine appeals from the action of any district superintendent in matters affecting the interests of a minister. When such appeals are so determined by said court, such determination shall be authoritative and final. [214, 305.6]

508. Vacancies which may exist in the General Court of Appeals during the interim between sessions of the General

Appeals during the interim between sessions of the General Assembly shall be filled by appointment of the Board of Gen-eral Superintendents. [317.6] 509. Per diem and expense allowances for members of the General Court of Appeals shall be the same as that of members of the General Board of the church, when the members of the court are engaged in official business of the court, and payment therefor shall be made by the general treasurer. JUDICIAL ADMINISTRATION

[\$512.2] 195

510. The general secretary shall be custodian of all permanent records and decisions of the General Court of Appeals. [324.4]

VII. REGIONAL COURT OF APPEALS

01.1 There shall be a Regional Court of Appeals for each region other than the United States and Canada. Each Regional Court of Appeals shall consist of five ordinized ministers elected by the Board of General Superintendents: Take May and the States of Course of Appeals and the States of The Course of Appeals and Course of A

VIII. GUARANTY OF RIGHTS

512. The right to a fair and impartial bearing of charges pending aquinat an accused minister or layman shall not be denied or unduly postponed. Written charges shall be given an early bearing in order that the innocent may be abolved and the guilty brought to discipline. Nevy accused is entitled to the presumption that he is innocent until preven guilty. As to each charge and specification, the prosecution shall have the burden double. guilt on a most extensity and bypond are sensonable double.

512.1. The cost of preparing the record of a case, including a verbatin transmitty of all statistican given at the tain, for the purpose of an appeal to the General Cost of Appeala, shall be borne by the district where the barring was label and disciplinary action taken. Every minister or layman who appeals aball have the right to present or all a well as written argument upon his appeal, but this right may be waived in writing by the accured.

512.2. A minister or layman who is accused of misconduct or any violation of the church Manual and against whom charges are pending shall have the right to meet his or her acJUDICIAL ADMINISTRATION

196 [1512.3]

cusers face-to-face and to cross-examine the witnesses for the prosecution.

512.3. The testimony of any witness before a board of discipline shall not be received or considered in evidence unless such testimony be given under oath or solemn affirmation. 512.4. A minister or layman who is brought before a board

512.4. A minister or layman who is brought before a board of discipline to answer charges shall always have the right to be represented by counsel of his or her own choosing, provided such counsel be a member in good standing in the Church of the Nuzarene. Any full member of a regularly organized church against whom no written charges are pending will be considered in good standing.

512.5. A minister or layman shall not be required to answer charges for any act which occurred more than five years before the filing of such charges, and no evidence will be considered at any hearing for any matter which occurred more than five years before the charges were filed.

512.6. A minister or layman shall not be twice placed in icepardy for the same offenane. It shall not be considered, however, that such person was placed in jcepardy at any hearing or proceeding where the court of appeala discover neversible error committed in the original proceeding before a board of discipline.

Boundaries

85

ASSEMBLY DISTRICTS-UNITED STATES AND CANADA

ASSEMBLY DISTRICTS-WORLD MISSION

CHAPTER I

ASSEMBLY DISTRICTS— UNITED STATES AND CANADA

600. The following are Phase 4 [regular] or Phase 3 [mission] districts in the United States and Canada, whose boundaries have been established and recognized at the time of the 1985 General Assembly: [200-200.4]

601. AKRON DISTRICT shall include that portion of the state of Ohio in the counties of Belmont, Carroll, Columbiana, Guernsey, Harrison, Jefferson, Mahoning, Monroe, Noble, Portage, Stark, Summit, Trumbull, and Tuscarawas.

602. ALABAMA NORTH DISTRICT shall include that portion of the state of Alabama north of Pickens, Tuscaloosa, Bibb, Shelby, Taladega, Clay, and Randolph counties.

603. ALABAMA SOUTH DISTRICT shall include that portion of the state of Alabama south of Lamar, Fayette, Walker, Jefferson, St. Clair, Calhoun, and Cleburne counties.

son, St. Clair, Calhoun, and Cleburne counties. 604. ALASKA DISTRICT shall include the state of Alaska, and for administrative purposes the Yukon Territory.

605. ARIZONA DISTRICT shall include the state of Arizona and that portion of the state of Utah lying south of the northern boundary of Beaver, Piute, Wayne, and San Juan counties along with Clark and Lincoln counties in the state of Nevada.

606. CANADA ATLANTIC DISTRICT shall include the four Atlantic provinces of Nova Scotia, New Brunswick, Prince Edward Island, and Newfoundland.

607. CANADA CENTRAL DISTRICT shall include the provinces of Ontario and Quebec.

608. CANADA PACIFIC DISTRICT shall include the province of British Columbia.

609. CANADA WEST DISTRICT shall include the provinces of Alberta, Saskatchewan, Manitoba, and the Northwest Territories.

610. CENTRAL CALIFORNIA DISTRICT shall include that nortion of the state of California beginning at the northern

200 [\$611]

intersection of the Santa Clara-Sanialaus courty lines, preceeding east only the northern boundary of the Stanlaud the intersection of Caleverna and Tvolume courty lines, then east along the northern boundary of the "Nuolamo Courty lines, to the intersection with Alsien County, then such on a line to the intersection with the Nuolamo Courty lines in the intersection with the Nucleon Courty, then such on the Courty wave of U.S. Highway and north of the "Takahaji environment" of the intersection with the Court August watern boundaries of the intersection with the San August watern boundaries of the intersection with the San August ourty lines of the Santa Clara Santa Sa

61.1. CDETRAL FLORIDA DISTRUCT shall include that postion of the state of Poinch between a line on the south made up by the north and westerly county lines of Manates, Hardie, Highlands, Okseeboes, and S.L. Lacie counties; and on the north by a line formed by the southern extent of Township 18, south, from the Atlantic Ocean north of Oak Hill to the seat south, from the Atlantic Ocean north of Oak Hill to the seat south, from the Atlantic Ocean north one Homosone County, then due west following the southern screen of Townhip 19, south, to the Guid of Mession near Homosones.

612. CENTRAL LATIN AMERICAN DISTRICT shall include the state of Texas, except that portion within the boundaries of the New Mexico District, and the states of Oklahoma, Kansas, and Colorado.

613. CENTRAL OHIO DISTRICT shall include that portion of the state of Ohio in the counties of Athens, Fairfield, Franklin, Gallia, Hocking, Jackson, Lawrence, Licking, Meigs, Morgan, Muskingum, Perry, Pickaway, Pike, Ross, Scioto, Vinton, and Washington.

614. CHICAGO CENTRAL DISTRICT shall include that portion of the state of Illinois that lise east of the west boundaries of McHenry, Kane, Kendall, Grundy, Kankakee, and Ford counties, and north of the north line of Champaign County and that part of Vernillion County which lies morth of U.S. High-

[624] 201

way 10, including the city of Danville but not including the town of Oakwood.

615. COLORADO DISTRICT shall include the state of Colorado.

616. DAKOTA DISTRICT shall include the states of North and South Dakota.

617. DALLAS DISTURCT shall include that portion of the state of Texas cast of the 97th meridian, excepting that portion of Dallas County west of said meridian and with the exception of that portion of Denton Courty seast of said meridian; and north of a line beginning at the east border of the north line of Sohne Courty and continuing weat on the north boundary of San Augustian County to Grisby, theree west through Aite and the othis line. The sender the state of the intervention of the line of the single sender the sender of the north.

618. EASTERN KENTUCKY DISTRICT shall be composed of that portion of the state of Kentucky east of the eastern boundaries of Gallatin, Owen, Scott, Fayette, Jeasamine, Garrard, Lincoln, Pulaski, and Wayne counties.

619. EASTERN LATIN AMERICAN DISTRICT shall include the geographical area of the New York District and the states of Massachusetts, Connecticut, and New Jersey.

620. EASTERN MICHIGAN DISTRICT shall include that portion of the state of Michigan known as the Lower (Southern) Peninsula that lies east of the west boundaries of Tuzcola, Genessee, Livingston, Washtenaw, and Lenawee counties.

621. EAST TENNESSEE DISTRICT shall include that portion of the state of Tennessee which lies east of the west boundary line of Macon, Trousdale, Wilson, Rutherford, Bedford, and Lincoln counties.

622. GEORGIA DISTRICT shall include the state of Georgia.

623. HAWAH PACIFIC DISTRICT shall include the state of Hawahi and the Marianas Islands.

624. HOUSTON DISTRICT shall include that portion of the state of Texas lying east of the 97th meridian and south of a line beginning at the east border of the north line of Sabine County and continuing west through Alto and Tesque to the

202 [1625]

97th meridian, with the exception of the towns and cities on this line.

625. ILLINGS DISTRICT shall include that portion of the state of Illinois lying south of the north boundary of Adams, Brown, Cass, Menard, Logan, DeWitt, Piat, and Champaign counties and that portion of Vermillion County south of U.S. Highway 10 and including the town of Oakwood.

HighWay 10 slith commung use constraints and to activate S264. INDANANCAS DISTRICT shall include the portion of the state of the state of the state of the state of the formed by the west boundary of Boone, Hendricks, and Morgan counties, nerth of the south boundary of Mongan, Johnson, and Shelly counties; and east of the west boundary of Decatur, Jennings, and Jefferson counties.

627. INFIRMATION AND ADDITION THAT I HARI INCIDENT ADDITION TO ADDITION THAT INFORMATION ADDITION ADDITION ADDITION ADDITION ADDITION ADDITION ADDITIONAL ADDITIONALADDITICANAL ADDITIONAL ADDITION

628. Iowa DISTRICT shall include the state of Iowa.

629. JOFLIN DIFFIET shall include that portion of the state of Kanasa bying east of the west boundaries of Coffey, Woodson, Wilson, and Montgomery counties and south of the north boundary of Coffey, Anderson, and Linar counties; and that portion of the state of Missouri bying south of the north boundary of Bates, Henry, Benton, and Morgan counties and west of the east boundary of Morgan, Camden, Laclede, Wright, Douglas, and Ozark counties.

630. KANSAS DISTRAT shall include that portion of the state of Kansas lying west of the east boundaries of the following counties, namely, Marshall, Pottawatomie, Wabaunsee, Lyon, Greenwood, Elk, and Chautaogua.

631. KANSAS CITY DISTRICT shall include that portion of the state of Kansas lying east of the west boundary of Nemaha, Jackson, Shawnee, and Osage counties and north of the north

[1639] 203

boundary of Coffey, Anderson, and Linn counties; and that portion of the state of Missouri lying west of the east boundary of Mercer, Grundy, Livingston, Carroll, Saline, and Pettis counties and north of the north boundary of Bates, Henry, Benton, and Morgan counties.

632. KENTUCKY DISTRICT shall be composed of that portion of the state of Kentucky west of the eastern boundaries of Gallatin, Owen, Scott, Fayette, Jessamine, Garrard, Lincoln, Pulaski, and Wayne counties.

633. Los ANDREED DEPERT shall include that portion of the attact of California bying south of the northern boundary of but attact of California bying south of the northern boundary of portion of Kern County north of the Theshespin Meantaines the Posific Ocean and Impedial Boaleword and constances Street, Washington Boaleword, Rio Honde Hiver, the creat of Pownet Hills, and the San Diama Carpon Road to the create of Pownet Kills, and the San Diama Carpon Road to the create of Pownet Kills, and the San Diama Carpon Road to the create of Pownet Kills, and the San Diama Carpon Road to the create of Pownet Kills, and the San Diama Carpon Road to the create of Pownet Kills, and the San Diama Carpon Road to the create of Pownet Kills, and the San Diama Carpon Road to the context of the August Pownet Road to the Carpon Road to the contex

634. LOUISIANA DISTRICT shall include the state of Louisiana.

635. MAINE DISTRICT shall include the state of Maine.

636. MICHERAN DISTRICT shall include that portion of the state of Michigan known as the Lovers (Fouthern) Peninsula that lies west of the west boundaries of Tuscola, Genesses, Livingston, Wankhenaw, and Lenawe counties, and that part of the Upper Peninsula that lies east of the east county lines of Delta and Alger counties.

637. MINNESOTA DISTRICT shall include the state of Minnesota.

638. MISSISSIPPI DISTRICT shall include the state of Mississippi.

639. MISSOURI DISTRICT shall include that portion of the state of Missouri lying east of the western boundaries of the counties of Putnam, Sullivan, Linn, Chariton, Howard, Cooper, Monteau, Miller, Pulaski, Texas, and Howell. 204 [1640]

640. NAVAJO NATION DISTRICT shall include all Navajo churches previously on the North American Indian District. 641. NEBRASKA DISTRICT shall include the state of Ne-

641. NEBRASKA DISTRICT shall include the state of Nebraska.

642. NEW ENGLAND DISTRICT shall include the states of New Hampshire, Vermont, Massachusetts, Rhode Island, and that portion of the state of Connecticut east of a line running north from Bridgeport, Conn., excluding Bridgeport, to the Massachusetts line.

643. NEW MEXICO DISTRICT shall include the state of New Mexico and that portion of the state of Texas west of the 103rd meridian.

644. New Youx Distruct shall include that portion of the state of New York which lies south of the southers boundary of Delaware, Greene, and Columbia counties, that portion of the state of New Jerey lying north of a line drawn between Phillipsburg and Long Branch, including the city of Long Branck, that portion of the state of Connecticut west of a line running north from Bridgeport, Conn., including Bridgeport, to the Masachusett line; and the island of Bernuda.

646. NORTH ARRANASS DETENT: shall lackade that pertion of the stard of Arkanas that lines are hold of a lark formably lines of the stard of Arkanas that lines are hold of a lark formably North Link Inois, at the Dash Hollow Interchange of Highway 14,07 and 10% incomes due north to acknowline Boulerouth OC with the start of the start of the start of the start of the interaction of Longenson and the start of the start Constant, and the start of the start Indiana start of the start of the start of the start Indiana start of the start Indiana start of the start of the start of the start High Starts, south on High and Bascem to Crystal Street boundary of these the interactions of High and Bascem to Crystal Street boundary of these the interactions of the start of the start Adamsan Sheer Inners waterly along the Adamsan and Man-Alassan Sheer Inners waterly along the Adamsan and Mandest boundary of these to along the start of the start of the start Adamsan Sheer Inners waterly along the Adamsan and Mandaes to Start Restor 1, and starts in David to the Start Rest of the start start of the start start of the start start of the sta

[1651] 205

erly line of Sebastian County to the Oklahoma state line. The towns and cities on Highway 10 and Sebastian county line are on the South Arkansas District.

646. NORTH CAROLINA DISTRICT shall include the state of North Carolina.

647. NORTH CENTRAL OHIO DERTRICT shall include that portion of the state of Ohio in the counties of Ashland, Ashtabula, Coshocton, Crawford, Cuyahoga, Delaware, Erie, Geauga, Holmes, Huron, Knox, Lake, Lorain, Marion, Medina, Morrow, Ottawa, Richland, Sandusky, Seneca, Weyne, and Wyandot.

648. NORTH FLORIDA DISTRICT shall include that portion of the state of Florida lying north of a line formed by the southern extent of Township 18, south, from the Atlantic Ocean month of Oak Hill to the east line of Lake County, then south to the north line of Orange County, then do were following the southern extent of Township 19, south, to the Gulf of Mexico near Homosansa.

649. NORTHEAST OKLAHGMA DISTRUT shall include that perion of the state of Oklahoma and of the line formed by the Missouri, Kamana, and Thean Railway from Oklahoma City, in a northerly direction to the Arkanasa River, including the towns and citise thereon except Oklahoma City, thence the Arkanasa River to the Kamas state line, and oroth of U.S. Highway 26 from Oklahoma City to Henryetta, thence U.S. Highway 26 from Oklahoma City to the Arkanasa tate line.

- 60.0. Never use respectively is to use research all flutte influences of the second seco

651. NORTHERN CALIFORNIA DISTRICT shall include the following counties of the state of California: Del Norte, Humboldt, Mendocino, Lake, Sonoma, Marin, Napa, Contra Costa, Alameda. San Francisco. San Mateo. Santa Clara. Santa Cruz. 206 [1652]

San Benito, Monterey, and that portion of Solano County lying west of a line drawn due southward from the point where the line of Solano and Napa counties turns sharply westward to the channel of Suisun Bay.

652. NORTHWEST DISTRICT shall include that portion of the state of Washington east of the Cascade Mountains; that portion of the state of Idaho north of the Salmon River; and Sherman, Gilliam, Morrow, and Umatilla counties in the state of Oregon.

653. NORTHWEET INDANA DISTRUCT shall include that portion of the state of Indiana bying north and west of a line starting at the 40th parallel on the Hamilton and Madison county lines, running due north to the Mami county line, west to the Casa county line, north to the northwest correct of Mami County, thence east to the Wabash county line, following the Fulton and Kosciusko county lines to Marshall County, thence north to the Michigan state line.

054. NORTIVENT OLLARGAN DIFFICULT shall include this provides of the third of Chikamon table in morth of U.S. Hilden way (66, not including the towns and clinks thereas with the form the Nuclei Channel and the Hilden Versene, and the Street, and other the Nuclei Channelin River to MacArithan From 20th to 20th Street, surface of the Nuclei Chikamon, and Texas Radhway, and way remains profits the street, and note the Other Street, and the Nuclei Chikamon, and Street, and the Street, and the Nuclei Chikamon, and Texas Radhway, and way remains profits the Street, and the Nuclei Chikamon, River the MacArithan From 20th to 20th Street for the Nuclei Street, and there and the Nuclei Chikamon, River and Street Street, and there, not including the towns and clinks there to the Street Street to the Kamon.

655. NORTHWESTERN ILLINOIS DISTRICT shall include that portion of the state of Illinois north of the south boundary of Hancock, Schyler, Mason, Tazerell, and McLean counties and west of the east boundary of McLean, Livingston, LaSalle, DeKabl, and Boone counties.

656. NORTHWESTERN OHIO DISTRICT shall include that portion of the state of Ohio west of the west boundary of Pickaway, Franklin, Delaware, Marion, Wyandot, Seneca, Sandusky, and Ottawa counties and north of the north boundary of Preble, Montgomery, Greene, and Fayette counties.

billing of the set of the set

468. PULLAURLPHA DUTNET hall be composed of Clin. to Courty and that part of the state of Pennsylvania bying east of the boundary line between Potter and Trigon counties and east of a line drawn from a point at the northern creat of the Alleghery Monstains to Louceanco, thence following the Mongolauma River to be Maryland attee line; and that porbusy the the New Jeney which lies south of a line drawn between Long Brachi and Philippace, including the city of Philipping.

659. PTTTSHUGH DERTRICT, with the exception of Clinton County, which belongs to the Philadelphia District, shall include that portion of the state of Pennsylvania west of the boundary line of Fotter and Tioga counties, thence following a line due south through Clinton County, to the cress of the Allegheny Mountains, and south along this crest to the Maryland state line.

660. ROCKY MOUNTAIN DISTRICT shall include the states of Montana and Wyoming.

661. SACAMMENTO DIFFUSTOR shall include that proteins of the state of California embrancing the following counties, namely, Modeo, Siakiyoo, Trainiry, Shanta, Tehama, Butta, Gierne, Cohun, Satter, Vola, Neved, Mol, Searzametro, Jheser, El Dornk, Alpino, Caliwersa, Anador, San Josepia, Mono, and Valo counties most, and running outbawed on the Napa-Sohano county line to where the line trans abardy west; from their point do south to the Shann Boy them, from their point do south to the Shann Boy them do south sharp their point do south to the Shann Boy them does and sharp with the sharp of the state of Nava and Sharp Monte, from their point do south to the Sharp Monte and Sharp West; from their point do south to the Sharp Monte and Sharp West; from their point of the state of Nava and Sharp Monte. The Monte Markan Monte Markan Monte Markan Monte Markan Monte Markan 208 [1662]

BOUNDARIES

following counties, namely, Washoe, Storey, Lyon, Douglas, Churchill, Mineral, Esmeralda, and Nye.

662. SAN ANTONIO DISTRICT shall include that portion of the state of Texas lying between the 97th meridian and the 103rd meridian, south of the 32nd parallel, except that all the incorporated city of Midland and none of the incorporated city of Hillsbore shall be included in the San Antonio District.

663. SOUTH ARKANSAS DISTRICT shall include that portion of the state of Arkansas that lies south of a line formed by Interstate 40 from the Tennessee state line to the city limits of North Little Rock at the Dark Hollow Interchange of Highways I-40, 67, and 167; thence due north to Jacksonville Boulevard at Bel-air and northeasterly along Jacksonville Boulevard to Mc-Cor Street, north to a point approximately four blocks beyond Corstreet, note to a point approximately note blocks beyond the intersection of Lansing and Hill Boulevard; then west to a point approximately one block north of the intersection of Lockridge with Crestwood, north to Ridewood Road and Greenhurst, west to Lowrance at a point approximately a block north of Tanglewood, north on Lowrance Drive to 63rd Street, west to High Street, south on High and Baucum to Crystal Street; thence westerly to the intersection of Hilliard with the west boundary of Burns Park, south along the park boundary to the Arkansas River; thence westerly along the Arkansas and Maumelle rivers to Pinnacle Valley Road, south on Pinnacle Valley Read to State Route 10, and west on Route 10 and the southerly line of Sebastian County to the Oklahoma state line. The towns and cities on U.S. Highway 10 and Sebastian county line are on the South Arkansas District.

664. SOUTH CAROLINA DISTRICT shall include the state of South Carolina,

665. SOUTHEAST OKLANDAA DEFINITY shall include that perion of the state of Oklahoma and of a line formed by the Santa F Railway from the Red River in a northerly direction to Oklahoma City, excluding the toroma and citica thereon, but including that portion of Norman and Gui Atlahoma City Ying east of a line from the southern wity limits of Norman along U.S. Highway 77 northerly to State Highway 9, east to 24th Street, northerly to Rohiman Dirve, west to 18th Street, northerly

[1671] 209

to Rock Creek Road, east to Air Depot Arema, then northerly on Air Depot Aremas to the Okhahema county line, west on Oklahoma county line to Eastern Aremas, north on Eastern Aremas to 1-35 to U.S. Highway Cg, and south O U.S. 62 from Oklahoma City to Henryvetta; thence U.S. Highway 266 to Warner; thence U.S. Highway 64 to the Arkansas state line, including the towns and cities thereon. Def08. SOUTHEM CALADIONAE DEFINITE and include the

696. SOUTHERN CALIFORMA DEFINITY shall include that portion of the state of California higo south of a line beginning in Los Angeles County at the Pacific Ocean and Imperial Boulevard and continuing in a northesistery direction along Imperial Bouleward, Alameda Street, Washington Bouleward, Rio Canyon Road to the southern boundars of A new Ro, Dimas Conyon Road to the southern boundars of the site and Parest and the San Bernardino county line; and of the northern boundary of San Bernardino County.

667. SOUTHERN FLORIDA DISTRICT shall include that portion of the state of Florida lying south of and including the counties of Manatee, Hardee, Highlands, Okeechobee, and St. Lucie.

668. SOUTHWEST INDIAN DISTRICT shall include all churches previously on the North American Indian District excluding any Navajo churches.

669. SOUTHWEST INDIANA DISTRICT shall include that portion of the state of Indiana that lies south of the 40th paraliel west of a line formed by the east boundary of Montgomery, Putnam, and Owen counties; south of the north boundary of Monroe, Brown, and Bartholomew counties; and west of the east boundary of Bartholomew, Jackson, Scott, and Clark counties.

670. SOUTHWEST LATIN AMERICAN DISTRICT shall include the states of Arizona, Colorado, New Mexico, and that portion of the state of Texas west of the 103rd meridian.

671. SOUTHWEST OKLAHOMA DISTRUCT shall include that portion of the state of Oklahoma that lies west of a line formed by the Santa Fe Raiiway running northerly from the Red River to Oklahoma City, including the towns and cities thereon, except the portion of Oklahoma City and Norman included in the 210 [1672]

ROUNDARIES

Southeast Oklahoma District north of the intersection of US. Highway 77 and the southern city limits of Norman: also excepting that portion of Oklahoma County above specified.

672. SOUTHWESTERN OHIO DISTRICT shall include that nortion of the state of Ohio west of the west houndary of Sciota Pike, Ross, and Pickaway counties and south of the north boundary of Preble, Montgomery, Greene, and Fayette counties.

673. TENNESSEE DISTRICT shall include that portion of the state of Tennessee that lies west of the east boundary of Sumner, Davidson, Williamson, Marshall, and Giles counties, 674. UPSTATE NEW YORK DISTRICT shall include all the

portion of the state of New York north of and including Delaware, Greene, and Columbia counties.

675. VIRGINIA DISTRICT shall include the state of Virginia.

676. WASHINGTON DISTRICT, with the exception of Clinton County, which belongs to the Philadelphia District, shall include that portion of the state of Pennsylvania lying west of a line drawn from a point at the northern crest of the Alleghersy Mountains to Duncannon, including the town of Duncannon and west of the Susquehanna River and east of the crest of the Allegheny Mountains; all of the atates of Delaware and Maryland; that portion of the state of West Virginia composed of the counties of Hardy, Grant, Mineral, Hampahire, Morgan, Berke-ley, and Jefferson; and the District of Columbia.

677. WASHINGTON PACIFIC DISTRICT shall include that portion of the state of Washington west of the Cascade Mountains.

678. WEST TEXAS DISTRICT shall include that portion of the state of Texas north of the 32nd parallel and west of the 97th meridian, excepting the portion in Dallas County west of said meridian, with the addition of that portion of Denton County east of said 97th meridian.

679. WEST VIRGINIA NORTH DISTRICT shall include that portion of the state of West Virginia north of Cabell, Putnam, Kanawha, Fayette, Nicholas, Greenbrier, and Pocahontas counties, and west of Pendleton and Grant counties. 680. WEST VIRGINIA SOUTH DISTRICT shall include that

portion of the state of West Virginia south of Mason, Jackson, Roane, Clay, Braxton, Webster, and Randolph counties. 681. WESTERN LATIN AMERICAN DISTRICT shall include the state of California.

682. WISCONSIN DISTRICT shall include the state of Wisconsin and that portion of the state of Michigan known as the Upper Peninsula lying west of the east county lines of Delta and Alger counties.

CHAPTER II

ASSEMBLY DISTRICTS-WORLD MISSION

700. The following are Phase 4 [regular] or Phase 3 [mission] districts outside the United States and Canada, whose boundaries have been established and recognized at the time of the 1986 General Assembly: [200-200.4]

701. ARGENTIAN CENTRAL DISTRUCT shall include the following boundaries within the country of Argentina: all of Buence Argentina: all of Buence Argentina: and the Buence Argentina: and the Buence Argentina: and the Buence Argentina: and the Argentina of the province south of the province; and that part of Santa Fe Province south of Highway Detween Rosario and the point at which the highway intersects the Santa Fe-Cortoba Province South of Province South of Santa Fe-Cortoba Province South of Province South of Santa Fe-Cortoba Province

702. AUSTRALIA NORTHERN PACIFIC DISTRICT shall include the continent of Australia excepting the states of New South Wales, South Australia, Victoria, Tasmania, and Western Australia.

703. AUSTRALIA SOUTHERN DISTRICT within the continent of Australia shall include the states of New South Wales, South Australia, Victoria, and Thamania.

704. BARBADOS DISTRICT shall include the country of Barbados.

705. BELIZE DISTRICT shall include the country of Belize.

706. BOLVA LA PAZ DIFFRICT shall include the following boundaries within the country of Bolivis: the provinces of Ingavi, Pacies, Aroma, Loayza, and Gauberto Villarrock; those sections of the provinces of Loa Andes, Murillo, and Inquisivi that are not included in the Bolivia Titicaca District and the Bolivia Los Yungan District; Canton Lambate of Sud Yungas Province and Canton Totors of the province of Sajams in the department of Oruno.

707. BRAZIL SOUTH MINAS-CENTRO OESTE DISTRICT shall include the following states in the country of Brazil: Minas Gerais, Goias, and the Distrito Federal.
[1722] 213

708. BRAZIL SOUTH RIO-SAO PAULO DISTRICT shall include the following states in the country of Brazil: Sao Paulo, Rio de Janeiro, and Espiritu Santo.

709. BRITISH ISLES NORTH DISTRICT shall include Scotland, Northern Ireland, and the English counties of Cumbria, Northumberland, Tyne and Wear, Durham, and Cleveland.

710. BRITISH ISLES SOUTH DISTRUCT shall include Wales, and all of England except the counties of Cumbria, Northumberland, Tyne and Wear, Durham, and Cleveland. 711. CAPE VERDE DISTRUCT shall include the country of

711. CAPE VERDE DISTRICT shall include the country of Cape Verde.

712. COSTA RICA DISTRICT shall include the country of Costa Rica.

713. CUBA DISTRICT shall include the country of Cuba.

714. EL SALVADOR DISTRICT shall include the country of El Salvador.

715. GUATEMALA CENTRAL DISTRICT shall include the following departments in the country of Guatemala: Jalapa, Jutiapa, Santa Ross, Esquintla, Sacatepequez, Chimaltenango, and Guatemala City.

716. GUATEMALA LAS VERAPACES DISTRICT shall include in the country of Guatemala the departments of Alta Verapaz and Baia Verapaz.

717. GUATEMALA NORTH DISTRICT shall include in the country of Guatemala the department of El Peten.

718. GUYANA DISTRICT shall include the country of Guyana.

719. HATT CENTRAL DISTRUCT shall include that portion of the Republic of Hatii lying south of the Artibionite River with the southern boundary being the line between the Central and Southeast departments and the western boundary being Highway 204 from Fauche to the boundary line between the Central and Southeast departments.

720. HATTI LA GONAVE DISTRICT shall include in the Republic of Haiti the island of La Gonave.

721. JAMAICA DISTRICT shall include the country of Jamaica.

722. JAPAN DISTRICT shall include the nation of Japan.

214 [1723]

723. KOREA CENTRAL DISTRICT shall include in the Republic of Korea all of Kyonggi Province south of the 38th parallel, excluding I-chun and Yoju districts.

724. KOREA EAST DISTRICT shall include in the Republic of Korea all of Kangwon Province south of the 38th parallel, plus I-chun and Yoiu districts of Kyongzi Province.

725. KOREA HONAM DISTRICT shall include in the Republic of Korea all of North and South Cholla provinces and Cheju Island.

726. KOREA SOUTH DISTRICT shall include in the Republic of Korea all of North and South Ch'ungch'ong provinces.

727. KOREA YOUNG NAM DISTRICT shall include in the Republic of Korea all of North and South Kyongsang provinces.

728. MEXICO CENTRAL DISTRICT shall include in the Republic of Mexico the states of Puebla, Guerrero, Tlaxcala, Hidalgo, Morelos, Queretaro, Mexico, Veracruz north and west of the city of Veracruz, and the Federal District.

729. MEXICO NORTHEAST DISTRICT shall include in the Republic of Mexico the states of Nuevo Leon, Tamaulipas, and Coahuila.

730. MEXICO NORTHWEST DISTRICT shall include in the Republic of Mexico the states of Baia California and Sonora.

731. MEXICO SOUTH DISTRICT shall include in the Republic of Mexico the state of Chinnas.

732. MEXICO SOUTH PACIFIC DISTRICT shall include in the Republic of Mexico the state of Oaxeea.

733. MEXICO WEST DISTRICT shall include in the Republic of Mexico the states of San Luis Potosi, Michocou, Nayarita, Guanajuato, and Jalisco.

734. MIDDLE EUROPEAN DISTRICT shall include West Germany (including West Berlin) and Switzerland.

735. MOZAMBIQUE LIMPOPO DISTRICT

736. MOZAMBIQUE MANJACAZE DISTRICT

737. MOZAMBIQUE MAPUTO DISTRICT

738. MOZAMBIQUE MAVENGANE DISTRICT

739. NEW ZEALAND DISTRICT shall include the country of New Zealand.

[1751] 215

 NICARAGUA DISTRICT shall include the country of Nicaragua.

741. PANAMA DISTRICT shall include the country of Panama.

742. PAPUA NEW GUINEA HIGHLANDS DISTRICT shall include in the country of Papua New Guinea the Western and Southern provinces.

7443. PERI NORTEN DISTRUCT shall be composed of the following eigentraments of the country of Perur. Tumbes, Piara, Lambayeque, Cajamarca, Amanonas, San Martin, La Libertad, Ancash, the part of Huamaco north of the Trams-Amazon Highway, the part of Loreto north of the Trams-Amazon Highway, to the hordrer of Renil.

744. PHILIPPINES LUZON DISTRICT shall include in the Republic of the Philippines all of the Philippine Government Regions of 1 through 4 excluding Rizal Province (which includes Region 4a—Metro Manila).

745. PHILIPPINES WESTERN VISAUAN DISTRICT shall include in the Republic of the Philippines all of the Philippine Government Region 6 (principally the island of Panay and the Negros Occidental portion of the island of Negros).

746. PUERTO RICO DISTRICT shall include the commonwealth of Puerto Rico.

747. REPUBLIC OF SOUTH AFRICA EUROPEAN DISTRICT shall include the work among the Europeans in southern Africa.

748. REFURLE OF SOUTH AFECK WESTERN CAVE DIS-TRUT shall include that portion of the Cape Province of the Republic of South Africa as follows: The eastern border shall be the 22nd meridian from the Indian Ocean to the 29th parallel; the northern border shall be the 29th parallel; the westorn and southern borders shall be the Atlantic and Indian oceans respectively.

749. SOUTHERN AFRICA NORTH EASTERN DISTRICT

750. SOUTHERN AFRICA SOUTH SOUTHWESTERN DIS-TRICT

751. SWAZILAND NORTH DISTRICT shall include all of the Kingdom of Swaziland north of the Usutu River plus one

216 [1752]

church at the site of the Usutu pulp mills on the south side of the river.

752. TAIWAN DISTRICT shall include the Republic of China (Taiwan).

753. TRANS SOUTH AFRICA NATAL DISTRICT aball include, within the Republic of South Africa, the Natal Province and that portion of the Cape Province and of the western Transval border, or any area of the Cape Province not included in any other district.

754. TRANS SOUTH AFRICA NORTHERN DISTRICT shall include, within the Republic of South Africa, the Transval, the Orange Free State, and the Northern Cape down to the 29th parallel in the south.

755. TRINIDAD AND TOBAGO DISTRICT shall include the country of Trinidad and Tobago.

PART VIII Ritual

THE SACRAMENT OF BAPTISM

THE RECEPTION OF CHURCH MEMBERS

THE SACRAMENT OF THE LORD'S SUPPER

MATRIMONY

THE FUNERAL SERVICE

INSTALLATION OF OFFICERS

CHURCH DEDICATIONS

800. THE SACRAMENT OF BAPTISM

800.1. The Baptism of Believers

DEARLY BELOVED: Baptism is the sign and seal of the new covenant of grace, the significance of which is attested by the apostle Paul in his letter to the Romans as follows:

"Know ve not, that so many of us as were baptized into Je Christ were baptized into his death? Therefore we are buried with him by baptism into death: that like as Christ was raised up from the dead by the glory of the Father, even so we also should walk in newness of life. For if we have been plant agether in the likeness of his death, we shall be also in the likeness of his resurrection" [Romans 6:3-5].

The earliest and simplest statement of Christian belief, into which you now come to be hantized, is the Anostles' Creed. which reads as follows:

"I believe in God the Father Almighty, Maker of heaven and earth

"And in Jesus Christ, His only Son, our Lord; who was conceived by the Holy Ghost, born of the Virgin Mary, suffered under Pontius Plate, was crucified, dead, and buried, the descended into helt the third day He rose again from the dead; He ascended into helt the third day He rose again from the dead; He ascended into helt the thence He shall come to judge the quick and the dead.

"I believe in the Holy Ghost, the holy Church of Jesus Christ. the communion of saints, the forgiveness of sins, the resurrec-tion of the body, and the life everlasting."

Will you be haptized into this faith? If so, answer, "I will." Reeronee: I will.

Do you acknowledge Jesus Christ as your personal Savior, and do you realize that He saves you now?

Response: I do.

Will you obey God's holy will and keep His commandments, walking in them all the days of your life? Response: I will

The minister, giving the full name of the person aprinkling, pouring, or immersion-shall say: and using the preferred form of butism, I baptize thee in the name of the Father, and of the Son, and of the Holy Spirit, Amen.

rather, and of the Son, and of the Holy Spirit. Amen.

800.2. The Baptism of Infants or Young Children

When the sponsors shall have presented themselves with the child [or children] before the minister at his call, the minister shall say:

DRANK BRLOWER: While we do not hold that buptism imputes the regnorating grave of God we do believe that Gravit gave this holy ascrement as a sign and seal of the new covernon. Christian hugtion signifies for this yourge child God agravitous acceptances on the basis of His preventient graves in Christ, and points forward to his, the presental appropriation of the benefits of the Atomement when he [heb] reaches the age of moral accountability and exercises conscious awarin faith in .1eaux Christ.

ability and services consistion serving faith in *A*-max Christ. In presenting this hold for buptimy one as hereby witches ing to your own personal Christian faith and to your purpose to guide him (berl equive) in fill to a knowledge Christ as shown? I will be the service of the service of the service of the shall be do its inser, the nature affer all (a_{10}) may make that the service of the service of the service of the satury to drive the likely service of the service of the starty to drive the likely service of the service will amortize and habits and, a much an iny out into the heigh Will we weakeever to do not be the height service to the Will we weakeever to do not be the height of Cord II fin a maximum of the service of the service of the service of the service of Cord II fin a maximum of the service of the s

Will you endeavor to do so by the help of God? If so, answer, "I will."

The minister may then ask the parents or guardians to name the child; he shall then buptize the child, repeating his [her] full name and saying:

, I baptize thee in the name of the Father, and of the Son, and of the Holy Spirit, Amen.

The minister may then office the following preper or may use an entemporary preper.

Heaven's Father, we humbly pay that Thou with take this child into Thy lowing zera. Annualmathy enrich have with Thy heaven's price bring him they asfet through the period childhood; deliver him ther I four the temptations of youthlead him bler! to a personal knowledge of Christ as Saviors help him Berl 10 zoris windom, and in fatarrar, and in favor with God and man, and to persovere threein to the end. Uphold the apprents [garafficas] with lowing care, that with wise connel

RITUAL

[1800.3] 221

and holy example they may faithfully discharge their responsi-bilities to both this child and to Thee. In the name of Jesus Christ our Lord, Amen.

800.3. The Dedication of Infants or Young Children

When the parents or guardians have presented if the minister at his call, the minister shall say:

"Then were there brought unto him little children, that he should put his hands on them, and pray: and the disciples re-buked them. But Jesus said, Suffer little children, and forbid hem not, to come unto met for of such is the kingdom of saven" [Matthew 19:13-14].

In presenting this child for dedication you not only signify your faith in the Christian religion, but also your desire that he [abe] may early know and follow the will of God, may live and die a Christian, and come unto everlasting blessedness. In order to attain this holy end, it will be your duty, as par-

In order to attain this holy end, it will be your duity, as par-ents [guardians], to teach him [her] endry the fear of the Lord, to watch over his [her] education, that he [she] be not led satzay; to direct his [her] youthful mind to the Holy Scriptures, and his [her] feet to the sanctuary; to restrain him [her] from evil associates and habits; and, as much as in you lies, to bring him [her] up in the nurture and admonition of the Lord.

Will you endeavor to do so by the help of God? If so, answer, "I will?

Pastor: I now ask you, the congregation: Will you commit yourself as the Body of Christ to support and encourage these parents (guardians) as they endeavor to fulfill their responsibil-ities to this child and to assist ______ by nurturing is [her] growth toward spiritual maturity?

Response: We will

Our loving Heavenly Father, we do here and now dedicate ____ in the name of the Father, and of the Son, and of the Holy Spirit, Amen.

Then the minister may affer the following prover or mer use an est

Heavenly Rather, we humbly pray that thou wilt take this child into Thy loving care. Abundantly enrich him [her] with Thy heavenly grace, bring him [her] safely through the perils of

childhood; deliver him [her] from the temptations of youth; lead him [her] to a personal knowledge of Christ as Savior; help him [her] to grow in wisdom, and in stature, and in favor with God and man, and to persevere therein to the end. Uphold the parents [guardians] with loving care, that with wise counsel and holy example they may faithfully discharge their responsi-bilities both to this child and to Thee. In the name of Jesus Christ our Lord. Amen.

800.4. The Dedication of Infants or Young Children (Ritual for Single Parent or Guardian)

When the parent or goardian has presented himself or harself with the child (or children) before the minister at his call, the minister shall age

"Then were there brought unto him little children, that he should put his hands on them, and pray: and the disciples re-buked them. But Jesus said, Suffer little children, and forbid them not, to come unto me: for of such is the kingdom of heaven" [Matthew 19:13-14].

In presenting this child for dedication you not only signify your faith in the Christian religion, but also your desire that he your must in the Carrissian religion, but also your desire that he (she) may early know and follow the will of God, may live and die a Christian, and come unto everlasting blessedness. In order to attain this holy end, it will be your duty, as a parent [guardian], to teach him [her] early the fear of the Lord.

to watch over his [her] education, that he [she] be not led astray; to direct his [her] youthful mind to the Holy Scriptures, and his [ber] feet to the sanctuary; to restrain him [her] from evil associates and habits; and, as much as in you lies, to bring him [her] up in the nurture and admonition of the Lord.

Will you endeavor to do so by the help of God? If so, answer, "I will."

Pastor: I now ask you, the congregation: Will you commit yourself as the Body of Christ to support and encourage this parent [guardin] as he [she] endeavors to fulfill his [her] re-sponsibilities to this child and to assist _____ by nurturing his [her] growth toward spiritual maturity?

Response: We will. Our loving Heavenly Father, we do here and now dedicate

[1801] 223

_____ in the name of the Father, and of the Son, and of the Holy Spirit. Amen.

Then the minister may offer the following prayer or may use an entemporary prayer.

Hencevely Bather, we humbly ney that Theo: with take this doubt not They lower one. Abundany merich hum Bayel with The havenedy gence, bring him Jarel safely through the parells of childhood, deliver him Heyl Teom the tempatations of system, lead him Jarel to personal knowledge of Christ as Storicy help him Jarel Togenstani window, and in states with bodied the generat figuration of the loring earch, that where occurs and a store of the state of the lower of the state of the state system of the lower of the lower of the low the state of the space Christ care Lead. Amon.

801. THE RECEPTION OF CHURCH MEMBERS

The prospective members having come forward to stand before the altar of the church, the paster shall address them as follows:

DEARLY BELOVED: The privileges and bleasings which we have in association together in the Church of Jeaus Christ are very sacred and precious. There is in it such hallowed fellowship as cannot otherwise be known.

ship as cannot otherwise be known. There is such helpfulness with brotherly watch care and counsel as can be found only in the Church.

There is the godly care of pastors, with the teachings of the Word; and the helpful inspiration of social worship. There is cooperation in service, accomplishing that which cannot otherwise he done.

The doctrines upon which the church rests as essential to Christian experience are brief. We believe in God the Father, Son, and Holy Spirit. We especially emphasize the deity of Jesus Christ and the personality of the Holy Spirit.

We believe that man is born in sin; that he needs the work of forgiveness through Christ and the new birth by the Holy Spirit; that subsequent to this there is the deeper work of heart cleansing or entire sanctification through the infilling of the

224 [1801]

RITUAL

Holy Spirit, and that to each of these works of grace the Holy Spirit gives witness.

We believe that our Lord will return, the dead shall be raised, and that all shall come to final judgment with its rewards and

Do you heartily believe these truths? If so, answer, "I do."

Do you acknowledge Jesus Christ as your personal Savior. and do you realize that He saves you now?

Response: I do.

Desiring to unite with the Church of the Nazarene, do you covenant to give yourself to the fellowship and work of God in connection with it, as set forth in the General Rules and Special Rules of the Church of the Nazarene? Will you endeavor in every way to glorify God, by a humble walk, godly conversation, and holy service; by devotedly giving of your means: by faithful attendance upon the means of grace; and, abstaining from all evil, will you seek earnestly to perfect holiness of heart and life in the fear of the Lord?

Response: I will.

The minister shall then say to the person or persons:

I welcome you into this church, to its sacred fellowship, re-sponsibilities, and privileges. May the great Head of the Church bless and keep you, and enable you to be faithful in all good works, that your life and witness may be effective in leading others to Christ.

He shall then take each one by the hand, and with appropriate words of pressonal greeting welcome each lots the church.

(Alternate form for members joining by letter of transfer.)

formerly a member [members] of

It gives me pleasure on behalf of this church to welcome you into our membership. We trust that we will be a source of encouragement and strength to you and that you, in turn, will be a source of blessing and help to us. May the Lord richly bless you in the salvation of souls and in the advancement of His kingdom.

RITUAL.



802. THE SACRAMENT OF THE LORD'S SUPPER

The administration of the Lord's Supper may be introduced by an appropriate sermon and the reading of 1 Coriethians 11:33-39; Lake 22:14-30, or some other autable passage. Let the miniater then give the following invitation:

The Lord himself ordinates this holy ascrument. He commodel Hi disciples to particles of the bread and wins, emblems of His breken theory and abed blood. This is His takes the first first the disciples, Let all those when have with true unto asily and the second second second second second tritle, particle of the life of second critics, to your second comfort and poj. Let us remember that it is the memorial of the dash un on forger that we are one, at one unide with the Lord.

The minister may after a prayer of confession and supplication, concluding with the following putor of consecution:

Almighty God, our Heavenly Pather, who of Thy tender mercy dida type Thine only Son, heave. Christ, to suffer death upon the Cross for our redemption: Hear us, we most humbly besech Theo. Cross for our redemption: Hear us, we most humbly besech Theo. Cross for an encoding to the holy institution of Thy Son, our Sevior Jeaux Christ, in remembrance of Hip seasion and death, we may be made partakers of the benefits of His atoning service.

We are reminded that in the same night that our Lord was be berreged. It to observed and, when Ite had given thanks, Ite broke it and gave it to Hai disciples, arying. "Takes, east this is broke its broken for your do this in remembrance of Me." Likewise, after supper, He took the cop, and when He had your hands, He gave it to them, arying. "Drink ye all of this, you and for many, for the remainsoin of sing do this, as oft as ye shall drink it, in remembrance of Me."

May we come before Thee in true humility and faith as we partake of this holy sacrament. Through Jesus Christ our Lord. Amen.

Then may the miniater, first partaking himself, with the ausistance of any other ministers present, and when necessary, of the stawards, administer the Communion to the pople. 226 [1803]

RITUAL

While the head is being distributed, let the minister say:

The body of our Lord Jesus Christ, which was broken for you, preserve you blameless, unto everlasting life. Take and eat this, in remembrance that Christ died for you.

As the cop is being passed, let the minister my: The blood of our Lord Jesus Christ, which was shed for you, preserve you blameless unto everlasting life. Drink this, in remembrance that Christ's blood was shed for you, and be thank-

803 MATRIMONY

At the day and time appointed for the soleranization of matrimony, the persons to be married—having been qualified according to hav—standing together, the more on the right hand and the woman on the left, the mainter shall address the construction an followir

DEARLY BRLOVED: We are gathered together here in the sight of God, and in the presence of these witnesses, to join together this man and this woman in holy matrimony, which is an honorable estate, instituted of God in the time of man's innocency, signifying unto us the mystical union that exists between Christ and His Church. This holy estate Christ adorned and beautified with His presence and first miracle that He wrought, in Cana of Galilee, and St. Paul commended as being honorable among all men. It is, therefore, not to be entered into unadvisedly, but reverently, discreetly, and in the fear of God.

Into this holv estate these persons present now come to be

Addressing the couple to be married, the minister shall say

. I require _____ and ____ and charge you both that, if either of you knows any impediment why you may not be lawfully joined together in matri-mony, you do now confess it: for be well assured that so many as are coupled together otherwise than God's Word allows are as all coupled together by God, neither is their matrimony lawful. If no impelient be sliggt, then shall the minister say unto the man:

will you have this woman to be your wedded wife, to live together after God's ordinance in the holy estate of matrimony? Will you love her, comfort her, honor RITUAL.

[1803] 227

and keep her in sickness and in health; and forsaking all others, keep yourself only unto her, so long as you both shall live? Response: I will.

_____, will you have this man to be your wedded husband, to live together after God's ordinance in the holy estate of matrimony? Will you love, honor, and keep him, in sickness and in health: and forsaking all others, keep yourself only unto him, so long as you both shall live?

Response: I will.

Who gives this woman to be married to this man?

Response (by the father, or whoever gives the bride in marriage): I do.

Facing each other and joining right bands, the couple shall then eachange the fulle The man shall repeat after the minister: ., take you,

to be my

wedded wife, to have and to hold from this day forward, for better-for worse, for richer-for poorer, in sickness and in health, to love and to cherish, till death us do part, according to God's holy ordinance; and thereto I pledge you my faith. The second shall repeat ofter the minister

. take you.

wedded husband, to have and to hold from this day forward, for better-for worse, for richer-for poorer, in sickness and in health, to love and to cherish, till death us do part, according to God's holy ordinance; and thereto I pledge you my faith.

If desired, a ring correspondy may be inserted at this point. The minister receives the ring from the generations and, in turn, passes it to the groun. As he then places it upon the hidd's frame, be shall repeat, after the minister:

This ring I give you as a token of my love and as a pledge of my constant fidelity.

Repeat for double ring ceremony

O Eternal God, Creator and Preserver of all mankind, Giver of all spiritual grace, the Author of everlasting life, send Thy blessing upon these Thy servants, this man and this woman. 228 [1804]

RITUAL

whom we now bless in Thy name; that as Isaac and Rebekah lived faithfully together, so these persons may surely perform and keep the vow and covenant made between them this hour and may ever remain in love and peace together, through Jesus Christ our Lord. Amen.

Then shall the minister say:

Forsamuch as this man and woman have consented together in holy wellock, and have witnessed the same before God and this company, and have declared the same by joining of hands. I pronounce that they are husband and wife together, in the name of the Futher, and of the Son, and of the Holy Spirit. Those whom God has joined together let not man put as under.

The minister shall then add his blessing:

God, the Father, the Son, and the Holy Spirit, bless, preserve, and keep you; the Lord mercifully with His favor look upon you, and fill you with all spiritual benediction and grace. May you so live together in this life that in the world to come you may have life eventating.

The minister may then conclude with an extemporaneous proper and/or benediction. [403.7]

804. THE FUNERAL SERVICE

DIARUM BILLOWED: We are gathered today to pay our final tribute of respect to that which was mortal of our deceased loved one and friend. To you members of the family who mourn your loss, we especially offer our deep and nincere sympathy. May we share with you the comfort afforded by God's Word for such a time as this:

and it into an account be troubled: ye believe in God, believe also in each num Webther's bound are many mansions: if it were not so, I would have told you. I go many mansions: if it were not so, I would have told you. I go month a place for And if I go and prepare a place for you's will come again, and receive you unto myself; that where I am, there yee may be also [John 14:-3].

"I am the resurrection, and the life: he that believeth in me, though he were dead, yet shall he live: and whoseoever liveth and believeth in me shall never die" [John 11:25-26]. RITUAL.

[\$804] 229

INVOCATION (in the minister's own words or the following):

Almighty God, our Heavenly Father, we come into this sanctany of sorrow, realizing our utter dependence upon Thee. We know Thou dost love us and canst turn even the shadow of death into the light of morning. Help us now to wait before Thee with reverent and submissive hearts.

Thou art our Refuge and Strength, O God-a very present Help in time of trouble. Grant unto us Thine abundant mercy. May those who mourn today find comfort and healing balm in Thy sustaining grace.

We humbly bring these petitions in the name of our Lord Jesus Christ, Amen.

A HYMN OR SPECIAL SONG

SELECTIONS OF SCRIPTURE:

"Blessed be the God and Father of our Lord Jesus Christ, which according to his abundant mercy hath begotten us again unto a lively hope by the resurrection of Jesus Christ from the dead, to an inheritance incorruptible, and undefiled, and that fadeth not away, reserved in heaven for you, who are kept by the power of God through faith unto salvation ready to be revealed in the last time. Wherein ye greatly reloice, though now for a season, if need be, ye are in heavines through manifold temp-tations: that the trial of your faith, being much more precious than of gold that periaheth, though it be tried with fire, might be found unto praise and honour and glory at the appearing of be found unto praise and honour and glory at the appearing of Jesus Christ: whom having not seen, ye low; in whom, though now ye see him not, yet belleving, ye rejoice with joy unspack-able and full of glory: receiving the end of your faith, even the salvation of your scales" (1. Peter 13-9). [Other pensar which ight be sales at Matter 35.4.8, Holdar 75.4, 13.1.4, 481.4, 151.1)

MPREACE

A HYMN OR SPECIAL SONG

CLOSING PRAVER

de .

AT THE GRAVESIDE

When the people have assembled, the minister may read any or all of the following scriptures: "For I know that my redeemer liveth, and that he shall stand

230 [1804]

at the latter day upon the earth: and though after my skin worms destroy this body, yet in my flesh shall I see God: whom I shall see for myself, and mine eyes shall behold, and not another" (Job 19:25-27).

"Behold, I shew you a mystery; We shall not all sleep, but we shall all be changed, in a moment, in the twinkling of an eye, at the last trump: for the trumpet shall sound, and the dead shall be raised incorruptible, and we shall be changed....

"Then shall be brought to to pass the saying that is written, "Then shall be brought to pass the saying that is written, Death is swallowed up in victory. O death, where is thy sting? O grawe, where is thy victory? The sting of death is sin; and the strength of ain is the law. But thanks be to God, which giveth us the victory through our Lord Jesus Christ.

"Therefore, my belowed brethren, be ye stedfast, unmoveable, always abounding in the work of the Lord, forasmuch as ye know that your labour is not in vain in the Lord" (1 Corinthians 1651-62, 54-58).

"I heard a voice from heaven saying unto me, Write, Blessed are the dead which die in the Lord from henceforth: Yes, saith the Spirit, that they may rest from their labours: and their works do follow them" (Revelation 14:13).

The minister shall then read one of the following committal statements:

For a Believer:

Pressure as the spirit of our departed loved one has returned to God, who gave it, we therefore tenderly commit his [her] body to the grave in area trust and certain hope of the resurrection of the dead and the life of the world to come, through our Lord Jesus Christ, who shall give to us new bodies like unto His glorious body. "Blessed are the dead which die in the Lord".

For a Nonbeliever:

We have come now to commit the body of our departed friend to its hindred dual. The spirit we have with God, for we know the meriful Judge of all the earth will do right. Let us who remain definant ourselves answ to live in the fear and love of God, so that we may obtain an abundant entrance into the heavenly Kingdom. For a Child:

In the sure and certain hope of the resurrection to eternal life through our Lord Jesus Christ, we commit the body of this child

RITUAL

[1805] 231

to the grave. And as Jesus, during His earthly life, took the children into His arms and blessed them, may He receive this dear one unto himself, for, as He said, "Of such is the kingdom of heaven."

PRAYER:

Our Heavenly Father, God of all mercy, we look to Thee in this moment of sorrow and bereavement. Comfort these dear ones whose hearts are heavy and sad. Wilt Thou be with them, sustain and guide them in the days to come. Grant, O Lord, that they may love and serve Thee and obtain the fullness of Thy promises in the world to come.

Promises in the work to const. "Now the God of peace, that brought again from the dead our Lord Jesus, that great haphered of the absep, through the blood of the everlasting covenant, make you perfect in every good work to do his will, working in you that which is wellpleasing in his sight, through Jesus Christ; to whom he glory for ever and ever. Amen" [Herewas 132:0-21].

805. INSTALLATION OF OFFICERS

Fellowing the singing of an appropriate hymor, let the secretary read the narraws and positions of the efficient to be installed. These may come fermed and stand at the ablast of the checks, facing the mixinter. A coverance care? whereas the provided for each. The mixinter shall then say:

Recognizing God's method of setting apart certain workers for specific areas of Christian service, we come to this moment of installation of these officers [and/or teachers] who have been duly chosen to serve in our church for the ensuing year. Let us consider God's instructions to us from His Holy Word.

any chosen to serve in our church to the ensuing year. Let us consider Gori sintructions to us from His Holy Weight and the "I better hypothese the server and the server and the server unto God, which is your reasonable service. And he not conformed to this word hour to yet reasonable service. And he not organize the server and the server and the server and the your mind, that ye may prove what is that good, and acceptable, and perfect, will of God' [Romans 121-2].

"Study to shew thyself approved unto God, a workman that needeth not to be ashamed, rightly dividing the word of truth" [2 Timothy 2:15].

"Let the word of Christ dwell in you richly in all wisdom;

^{*}Available from the Nazarene Publishing House.



teaching and admonishing one another in psalms and hymns and spiritual songs, singing with grace in your hearts to the Lord" [Colossians 3:16].

"Let him that is taught in the word communicate unto him that teacheth in all good things" [Galatians 6:6].

We now come to this important moment when you who stand We now come to this important moment when you who stands block that are not to take upon yourselves the task of caring the start of the start of the start of the start of the start May you look upon the assignments you now assume as special apticula blessing in the performance of your respective dulus, duling the start of the start of the start of the start approximation of the start of the start of the start duling of the start start of the start of the start of the start of the start start of the start of the start of the start of the start start of the start of the start of the start of the start start of the start of the start of the start of the start start of the start of the start of the start of the start start of the start start of the start start of the start of th

dom and strength as you do His work for His glory.

You have been given a card on which is printed a covenant. We shall read it in unison, and as we do so, let us make it a nersonal commitment.

WORKER'S COVENANT

In consideration of the confidence placed in me by the church in being selected for the office I now assume, I hereby covenant: To maintain a high standard of Christian living and example in harmony with the ideals and standards of the Church of the

To cultivate my personal Christian experience by setting

To be present at the regular Sunday School, the Sunday moti-ing and Sunday evening preaching services, and the midweek prayer meeting of the church, unless providentially hindered.

To attend faithfully all duly called meetings of the various boards, councils, or committees to which I have been, or will be, assigned.

To notify my superior officer if I am unable to be present at the stated time, or to carry out my responsibilities in this office.

To read widely the denominational publications, and other books and literature which will be helpful to me in discharging the duties of my office.

[\$806] 233

To improve myself and my skills by participating in Con-

To endeavor to lead people to Jesus Christ by manifesting an active interest in the spiritual welfare of others and by attending and supporting all evangelistic meetings in the church.

The minister shall then offer an appropriate prayer, and a special song of dedication may be smag, silve which be shall say

Having pledged together your hearts and hands to the task of carrying forward the work of this church in your particular assignments. I herewith install you in the respective positions assignments, a nerverin instant you in the respective positions to which you have been elected or appointed. You are now a vital part of the organizational structure and leadership of this church. May you, by example, by precept, and by dilgent ser-vice, he effective workers in the vineward of the Lord.

The minister shift as the comparison to rise, such shift address them as follow: You have beend the pledge and covenant entered into by your church leaders for the coming year. I now charge you, as a constraintion, to be loval in your support of them. The burdens congregation, to be loyal in your support of them. The burdens which we have alid upon them are heavy, and they will need your assistance and prayers. May you always be understanding of their problems and tolerant of their seeming failures. May you lend assistance joyfully when called upon, so that, as we work together, our church may be an effective instrument in winning the lost to Christ.

Infining the lost to Christ. The miniater may then lead in a concluding payor or have the congregation repeat the Leef's

806. CHURCH DEDICATIONS

Minister: Having been prospered by the hand of the Lord and enabled by His grace and strength to complete this building to the glory of His name, we now stand in God's presence to dedicate this structure to the service of His kingdom.

To the glory of God our Father, from whom cometh every good and perfect gift; to the honor of Jeau Christ, our Lord and Savior; and to the praise of the Holy Spirit, Source of light, and life, and power—our Sanctifier,

Congregation: We do now, with joy and gratitude, humbly dedicate this building.

234 [1806]

RITUAL

Minister: In remembrance of all who have loved and served this church, establishing the heritage we now enjoy, and who are now part of the Church Triumphant,

Congregation: We gratefully dedicate this edifice [sanctuary, education building, fellowship hall, etc.].

Minister: For worship in prayer and song, for the preaching of the Word, for the teaching of the Scriptures, and for the fellowship of the saints.

Congregation: We solemnly dedicate this house of God.

Minister: For the comfort of those who mourn, for the strengthening of the weak, for the help of those who are tempted, and for the giving of hope and courage to all who come within these walls.

Congregation: We dedicate this place of fellowship and prayer.

Minister: For the sharing of the good news of salvation from sin, for the spreading of scriptural holiness, for the giving of instruction in righteousness, and for the service of our fellowmen,

Congregation: We reverently dedicate this building.

Unison: We, as laborers together with God, now join hands and hearts and dedicate ourselves anew to the high and holy purposes to which this building has been set apart. We piedge our loyal devotion, faithful stewardship, and diligent service to the end that in this place the name of the Lord shall be glorified, and His kingdom shall be advanced; through Jesus Christ our Lord. Amen.

Auxiliary Constitutions

NAZARENE YOUTH INTERNATIONAL NAZARENE WORLD MISSION SOCIETIES SUNDAY SCHOOLS

CHAPTER I

810. CONSTITUTIONS FOR NAZARENE YOUTH INTERNATIONAL

The 1985 General Assembly referred the Constitution and Bylaws of NYI to the General Board for resolution and to harmonize with the structured Christian Life and Sunday School Division.

Copies may be obtained by writing the Youth Ministries office.

[Until the new Constitution and Bylaws are announced the 1980 provisions are in force.]

* * *

CHAPTER II

811. CONSTITUTIONS FOR NAZARENE WORLD MISSION SOCIETIES

811.1. Local Nazarene World Mission Society

ARTICLE L Name

This society shall be called the Nazarene World Mission Society of the Church of the Nazarene.

ARTICLE II. Object

The object of this society shall be to ensite the members of the church in active minicosystemic, in united program, and in the study of the advation method of the world, to presente a wider knowledge of the mainten field of our study. The study of the study of the mainten field of our study of the study study of the study of the study of the study of the study at the study of th

ARTICLE III. Membershin

The membership of the local NWMS shall be divided into two classes: active and associate.

SECTION 1. Active Members

Any person who is a member of the Church of the Nazarene may become an active member of the society in that local church to participate in the achieving of the above-stated objectives. Voting and holding office shall be limited to active members who are 15 years or older, except in children's and youth groups.

SECTION 2. Associate Members

Any person who is not a member of the Church of the Nazarene may become an associate member of the society to participate in the achiev-

ARTICLE IV. Officers

SECTION 1. Election of the Council

The officers of the society shall be: president, vice president, secre-tary, treasurer, and secretaries for mission education, publicity, LINKS, World Mission, membership, and prayer and fasting. An officer may serve in more than one position if desired.

The vice president, secretary, and treasurer shall be elected by ballot annually by plurshity vote, by members of the society. All other secretaries may be elected by the society or appointed by the

Execution Committee

The Executive Committee shall be composed of the president, vice president, secretary, treasurer, and two other council members elected by the council.

In consultation with the pastor, a local council may add an additional officer, namely, a Work and Witness coordinator. The nomination and election of this officer shall follow the same procedure specified for election or this other sham rouge the same processiv spectrum officers other than the local president. These officers and secretaries, together with chapter chairpersons, children's and youth directors, and pastor, shall constitute the local

NWMS Council.

Any duly elected District NWMS Council member shall auto-matically be a member ex officio of the local NWMS Council of the church of which he or she is a member.

SECTION 2. Election of President

The president shall be nominated by a committee of not less than

[\$811.1] 239

three nor near than seven active members of the Namerase World Marsion Society appoints later was a chargence in Society appoints a shall be about one or more manned for the off core of penident, perioding, however, that ary incombine predicton in a recommended by a structure of the society of the structure of the society is society in society of the society of the society of society is society in society of the society of the society of the society is society in society a member of the society of the society is society in society a member of the society of the society of the distribution of the society theory of the distribution of the distribution society is society as the society of the distribution of the society of the distribution of the society theory of the distribution of the society of the distribution of the society theory of the distribution of the society distribution of the dis

NOTE: Where there are two or more chapters in the local society, follow the plan provided for in Article VIII,

See local byfaws for daties of officers, appointment of directors, assistants, and committees.

SECTION 3. Vacancies

Any vacancy in the office of the president shall be filled by ballot by majority vote by the members of the acciety at any regular meeting. Vacancies accouring in any other elected office shall be filled by a plarality vote of active NWMS members present at any regular monthly meeting of the society.

In the case of a vacancy in the office of the local president, the Executive Committee shall nominate one or more names for the office of president.

ARTICLE V. Representation at District Convention

Local representation at the District NWMS Convention shall be composed of:

1. The partor of the local church, fill-time salarised associate ministers of local churches, and the local NWMS president, members of the District NWMS Corrention by virtue of officion and the president évent that the local president is stated in his or her place. In the event the local vice president is stated in his or her place, in the elected vice president as unable to attend or serve, the newly elected vice president may be associated in his or her place.

 Two elected delegates for the first 25 active NWMS members or less, and one additional delegate for each additional 25 active members or major portion thereof. 240 [1811.1]

AUXILIARY CONSTITUTIONS

ARTICLE VI. Meetings

SECTION 1. Monthly

There shall be one or more meetings for mission information, inspiration, and prayer held each calendar month; a minimum of 12 meetings a year.

SECTION 2. Annual

The annual meeting of the society shall be held at least 30 days prior to the district assembly, at which meeting officers for the ensuing year shall be elected.

Chapter officers shall be elected and/or appointed before the District Convention.

Officers shall assume their duties by the close of the district assembly.

ARTICLE VII. Funds

SECTION 1. General Budget

All funds raised by this society for the General Budget shall be sent directly to the general treasurer.

unterly to the present totanties. Funds for the support of General Budget shall be raised in the following manner. (1) from the regular missionary society General Budget offeringe, (2) from special disting offerings if the local church so desires; (3) from special offerings such as the Easter and Thanksgiving offerings.

SECTION 2. Specials

Opportunity shall be given to contribute to world mission specials over and above the General Budget apportionment such as Alabaster and World Mission Radio. Additional world mission specials may be approved and authorized by the World Mission Division.

SECTION 3. Medical Plan Fund

The Medical Plan Fund shall be hold in trust by the general treasure for the Garceni Narazame World Ministro Society and shall be hold for medical ald for active and verticed missionaries, not hold to be granted by the World Ministro Torikois according to the stabilized pointly. Funds the World Ministro Torikois according to the stabilized pointly. Funds are shared to the stabilized pointly of the stabilized pointly and the stabilized point of \$30,000 for that purpose (\$13,000 for duplicates); (12) presenting a Diataignihed Service Aural to a chosen recipient to be homeout for service to the Kingleon hy the purposet of \$30,000 for Ministro Para.

[[811.1] 241

SECTION 4. General Funds Exclusive

No part of the above general funds shall be used for local or district expense or charitable purposes.

SECTION 5. Local Expense

A local expense fund shall be provided either by assessment or freewill offerings (the amount to be determined by local needs). A percentage of the local expense funds may be set aside to help defray the expenses of the delegates to the District Convention.

NOTE: Since our church is strictly opposed to engaging in any form of merchan-diairg to mise funds for the support of the church and its missionary program, local societies shall refusin from engaging in the sale of merchandlise or food as an organization or in the name of the Namereew World Mission Society.

ARTICLE VIII. Chapters

SECTION 1. Chapters

This society may have one or more chapters as may be authorized by the Executive Committee, and approved by the pastor and local church board. These together shall constitute the local society. A chapter is an integral part of the local society, the division being made for the matter of convenience.

A local society may request the organization of women's chapters, men's chapters, chapters including both men and women, youth chap-ters, and children's chapters. Age groupings should correspond with the Christian Life and Sunday School Division.

SECTION 9 Election

These chapters mosting in joint session shall elect the officers authorized in Article IV. The Executive Committee of the local society shall literature for distribution to the various chapters, necessing and sending reports for the combined chapters.

SECTION 3. Chapter Officers

DECLIPS - A - Unifield 'UIICOPS The officers of such chapter shall be chaltperson, vice-chairperson, soccetary, treasures, and secretarias for minion enfocution, publicity, LINES, Word Mexim, number by hour line neurality by the numbers of the chapter prior to the District Convention. (Officers of the local coicety may hold office in any chapter). The chapter chapternon, vice-chapter enforcement, researce, and two other numbers of tested by the chapter enforcement.

242 [1811.2]

AUXILIARY CONSTITUTIONS

SECTION 4. Nomination of Chapter Officers

Chanter officers shall be nominated by a nominating committee anpointed by the pastor.

A chapter chairperson is a member of the local NWMS Council.

ARTICLE IX. Amendments

This Constitution may be amended by a two-thirds vote of all mem-bers present and voting at the General Convention of the Nazarene World Mission Society, and by the approval of the World Mission Dapartment.

811.2. District Nazarene World Mission Society

ARTICLE I. Membership

All local Nazarene World Mission Societies within the boundaries of _____ District shall be members of the District Nazarene World Mission Society. The activities of this society shall be under the supervision of the district superintendent, the District Advisory Board, the district assembly, and the District NWMS Council

ARTICLE II. District Convention

SECTION 1. Purpose

Three shall be an annual District Convention of the Nazarene Weld Mission Society for the purpose of bearing reports, uniting in prayer for the work, making aggressive plans for propagating missionary informa-tion and imprization in the local societies, and conducting any business pertaining to the district organization.

The time and place of the annual NWMS Convention shall be decided by the District NWMS Council in consultation with the district superintendent.

SECTION 2. Membership

SECTION 2. Membership The District Convention shall be composed of the District NWMS Council, the district superintendent, pasters and full-time salaried asso-ciate ministers of the local churches, NWMS some chairpersons, the presidents of local nocieties, two delegates from each local society having an ucitive numbership of 25 or lens, and con additional delegate for each additional 25 active members, or major portion thereof); and General NWMS Council members, retired missionaries, retired elders, missionaries on furbugh, missionary appointees who hold their church membership on the district, and any former district presidents who

[\$811.2] 243

reside on the district which they served. The membership of the District Convention shall also include the newly elected NWMS presidents, or newly elected vice presidents if the newly elected presidents cannot

ARTICLE III. Officers

SECTION 1. District Council

SECTION 1. District Council The officers of this society shall be president, vice president, secr-tary, treasurer, and secretaries for mission education, publicity, LINKS, World Mission, membership, and payer and fasting. The 10 named officers shall constitute the District NWMS Council. The district super-intendent shall be so officio member of the District NWMS Council.

The District Executive Committee shall be composed of the presi-The Linking Executive Committee shall be composed of the presi-dent, vice president, accretary, treasurer, and two other council members (elected by the District Council). The district superintendent shall be an

(elected by the District Coancil). The district superintendent shall be an ex officio member of the Executive Committee. When a district coancil in comulation with the district superinten-dent shall desire, as additional officier may be added to the District Coancil, namely, a Work and Witness corelinator. The nomination and election of this officer shall follow the same procedure specified in Article III, Section 5, for officers such addee than district previotents.

SECTION 2 Election of Officers

The District Preside

The barrier treasion The District Convention shall sheet a district president who shall be: (a) elected by two chirds forceasible vote by ballot from two or more meanizes presented by an one administration by the district systemization (b) or in case of resolution by the district specification and $\pi^{aa} = a^{aa} = a^{aa} = a^{aa}$ bub district president may be releted by a specification of the district specification spectra distribution. The district president shall serve without salary.

Other Officers

The other district officers shall be elected by a majority vote by ballot

The other started officers shall be elected by a majority vole by ballot by the corresting from two nominese presented for each office by a nominating committee appointed by the District Executive Committee. Or, the District Convention may elect a district transarter and eight others to acro on the District NWMS Council. Or the district transarter may be absted by a "yea" or "no" vole when such vola is recommonded by the District NWMS Council, with the suproval of the district superintendent. They shall be elected by majority with whallot from nomi-nees submitted by a nominating committee appointed by the District 244 [1811.3]

AUXILIARY CONSTITUTIONS

Executive Committee. Where deemed advisable, these nominees may be selected and presented in such a way that each zone is represented on the District Council on the basis of proportionate representation in relation to its active NWMS membership.

relation to its active is works memory and active interface of the district president and district NWMS treasurer, shall organize, assigning each member reasonabilities in accordance with Section 1.

SECTION 3. Election of Youth Representatives

The District Convention may elect by ballot one, and not more than two, youth members to the District NWMS Council.

The Nominating Committee appointed by the District Executive Committee shall nominate twice the number to be elected.

SECTION 4. Vacancies

A vacancy in the district presidency shall be filled by a majority vote of the District NWMS Council, two nominees having been submitted by the District NWMS Executive Committee in consultation with the district superistendent.

All other vacancies occurring in the District Council between annual conventions shall be filled by majority vote of the District NWMS Council.

ARTICLE IV. Amendments

This Constitution may be amended by a two-thirds vote of all members present and voting at the General Convention of the General Nazareas World Mission Society and by the approval of the World Mission Department.

811.3. General Nazarene World Mission Society

ARTICLE I. Membership

All district and local Nazarene World Mission Societies shall constitute the General Nazarene World Mission Society. It shall be auxiliary to the World Mission Division.

ARTICLE II. General Convention

SECTION 1. Time and Place

There shall be a General Convention of the Nazarene World Mission Society preceding the General Assembly. The time and place shall be decided upon by the General Council in consultation with the responsible grown superintendent and the World Mission Division.

[1811.3] 245

SUCTION 2. Members of the General Convention

SMC:1000 2. Memories of the General Convention 1. This convention shall be composed of the following members: members of the General Council; district NWMS presidents; two dele-gates frem each regular or mission district of 1,000 or fewer active NWMS members, and one additional delegate for each additional 700 active members (or major part thereof), delegate to be elected by hallow the bits of the General Conby the District Convention within 20 months of the General Convention. It is suggested that the number to be nominated on the ballot has three times the number of delegates to be elected. (See Bylaws, Section 7.)

Section 7.2 There shall also be one delegation for houses to be dimensioned by 2 (autointo mission) district, the spin of houses to the dimension (NBMS) 2 (autointo mission) district, the spin of the share to the dimension of the missionaria from ease of the following work housine regions: (1) Also are being integration of the share the share the share the spin of the Regions (1) Also house for clearal Amarice Regions (2) Starbhauses Regions and one additional minimum Adaption and (3) South Amazine Regions and one additional minimum Adaption and (3) South Amazine Regions and one additional minimum Adaption and (3) South Amazine Adaption and the share the share the share the share the share mission of the share the sh

hald membership at the time of his or her election. If any elected delegate moves off the district, the privilege of representing the former district is forfeited. (Not intended to apply to those living mear district oundaries where their home residence may be across the line from the

place of regular church participation.) 3. In the event the district president cannot attend the General Con-vention, the district vice president (ex officio) shall be allowed to represent the district.

sent the output. 4. In the case of world mission districts, General Convention repre-sentation shall be poverned by the divisions of the general church and their respective policies. However, when district presidents of Phase 1 (pioner) or Phase 2 (mational-mission) districts cannot attend, the district president may designate allermates to be seated.

ARTICLE III. General Council

SECTION 1. Nomination and Election of the General President

SECTRN 1. remniation and institution of an ordered resident The general president shall be elected from nominees selected by a nominating committee composed of the General Council region repre-sentatives, the general director, and one other representative from each

246 [5811.3]

reorraphic region appointed by the Executive Committee of the General Council. No two members of the Nominating Committee may be from the same district. The general director shall serve as chairperson of the Nominating Committee.

The committee shall submit the names of two and not more than three persons for general president. The nominations shall be approved by the Board of General Superintendents. From these nominees the General Convention shall elect by two-

From these meanines the terminal president. thirds majority vote by ballot a general president. The term of general president shall be limited to two full terms of

service.

The general president shall be an ex officio member of the General Council and shall serve without salary.

SECTION 2. Election of the General NWMS Council

The members of the General NWMS Council shall consist of one representative per region. A member of the General Council shall be a member of and resident

A measure of the General Courts had be a memory of and reasons in the region, sceep in the case where the council members moves from that region within 12 months prior to the General Convention. All council members (except general president and general director, otherwise provided for) shall be elected by the General Convention by

biline provide row and the two from different districts receiving the highest number of votes on the first ballot in the caucus voting shall be declared General Council nominees. In the case of a tie between second and third or any decisive position, the regional caucus shall meet to vote off the tie.

The term of service of a General Council member shall be limited to two full consecutive terms.

The director of the World Mission Division shall be an ex officio member of the General Council.

SECTION 3. Nomination of General Council Members

Regional representatives on the General Council shall be nominated by regional caucuses, held at the General Convention, each district on the region having the privilege of submitting two names from the dis-trict to the ceneras

The region in caucus shall elect by ballot the nominees from the The Pagon in caucus sham every by DBBOs the nominees submitted to region (twise the number to be elected). Of the nominees submitted to the General Convention for election, no two shall be from the same district.

Successon A. Council Organization

The general director shall be nominated by the director of the World Mission Division, in consultation with the responsible general superin-tendent for the World Mission Division, and shall be approved by a majority vote of the General Council before being submitted to the World Mission Department for approval by a majority vote with the recommendation submitted for election by the Board of General Superintendents. The general director shall be an ex officio member of the General NWMS Council and a member of the staff of the World Mission

The council shall also elect from its own number a vice president and two other members, who with the peneral president and general director shall constitute the Executive Committee, three of whom shall constitute a morum.

The General Council shall be authorized to elect a man to serve as a voting member of the council whose responsibility is to encourage the

vexues meanine or the council whose responsibility is to encourage the continued involvement of men in the missions program of the church. Council normbers shall hold office until the final adjournment of the next General Covernition, exceept an provided for in Section 2, and until their successors are elected and qualified. The council shall assign to its numbers responsibility for the various simplanes and projects.

SECTION 5. The Executive Committee

The Executive Committee shall:

1. In case of vacancy in the general presidency in the interim between sessions of the General Convention, submit the names of two nominees for general president in accordance with Article IV, Section 1, of the General Constitution.

2. Transact any business deemed necessary between sessions of the

SECTION 6. General Superintendent Adviser One general superintendent shall be appointed by the Board of Gen-eral Superintendents as adviser to the General Council to serve for the quadrennium.

SECTION 7. General Board Representative The General Council shall nominate to the General Assembly two members of the council, one of whom shall be elected by the General memours of the council, one or wrom some be encoded by the General Assembly as a member of the General Board of the Church of the Nazarene as a representative of the General Nazarene World Mission 248 [1811.3]

AUXILIARY CONSTITUTIONS

SECTION 8, Council Meeting

The council shall meet a minimum of three times during the quadrennium. A majority shall constitute a quorum. A condensed report of the business transacted in each meeting of the council shall be referred to the World Mission Division for approval.

ARTICLE IV. Vacancies

SECTION 1. General President

Bisedia 4 vacancy occur in the office of general president in the interim between sensions of the General Convention, a general president shall be elected from nominess nelected by the Rescurity Committee of the General Council in comutation with the general superintendent advisor by two-khiels vote of all district presidents to fill the vacancy and to perform the dation of general president until adjournment of the electron to fill the vacancy shall be decided by the General Council in comutation with the general superintendent adjourned council in commutation with the general superintendent adjourned council in commutation with the general superintendent adjourned council in commutation with the general superintendent adjourned council in commitation with the general superintendent adjourned counci

SECTION 2. Council

Should a vacancy occur in the council during the quadrennium, the Executive Committee shall present two names a nominees approved by the director of the World Miasion Division and the Board of Gaeneral Superinteedents. The vacancy shall then be filled by a majority wet by ballot of the members of the council provided that the question of celling for an stection to fill the vacancy is approved by the director of the World Mission Division and the Board of General Superintements.

SECTION 3. Executive Committee

Should a vacancy occur in the Executive Committee during the quadrennium, two names as nominees from the council shall be presented. The vacancy shall then be filled by a majority vote by ballot of the council.

ARTICLE V. Amendments

This constitution may be amended by a two-thirds vote of members present and voting at a General Convention of the General Nazarene World Mission Society, and by the approval of the World Mission Department.

* * *
[1812] 249

CHAPTER III

812. BYLAWS OF THE SUNDAY SCHOOL

The purpose of the Sunday School is threefold: 1. To teach the Word of God effectively until pupils are saved, ann-tified wholly, and meaturing in Christian experimen. 2. To help Christians grow spiritually by involving them in a reach-ing, teaching, and sool grow spiritually by involving them in a reach-ing, teaching, and sool grinning ministry. 3. To locate and visit uncharented poole until they become enrolled

and regular in attendance.

ARTICLE I. Membership

Responsibility List [Enrollment]

Each local church should assume responsibility for reaching all per-sons in the community who are not actively involved in another local church. The traditional enrollment list should be looked upon as the active responsibility list. This list shall include all persons who declare their willingness to attend with some degree of regularity. Each local church should also maintain two additional lists:

 The extended ministry [outreach] responsibility list shall include all persons who are regularly contacted or involved in an extended Sunday School ministry. [Article I, Section 2c]

A prospect list which includes the names of all who have not agreed to attend with any degree of regularity but who have a possibility of being brought into the local church.

SECTION 1. The local Christian Life and Sunday School Board shall determine whether the following shall be included on the Sunday School active responsibility list [enrollment], the extended ministry [outreach]

active responsionity usis (encounterly, tore extension ministry (outreach) responsibility list, or the prospect fist: a. CRAERE ROLL PARENTS: Children under four years of age who, along with their parents, do not attend Sunday School may be enrolled in the Cealle Roll Parents Department.

-The children are considered as prospects for the Sunday School preschool classes, and the parents in the corresponding adult classes. —When the supervisor has been appointed he is responsible for regu-

ar visits and program materials to be taken to these families.

250 [1812]

regularity they should be transferred to the Sunday School active re-

-If they have not started attending by the child's fourth birthday, they should be transferred to the prospect list of the Kindergarten and Adult departments and dropped from the Craile Roll Parents list. —Until they begin attending with some degree of regularity they shall

continue to be listed on the prospect responsibility list. b. Howe Derartmurr. Any person physically or vocationally un-able to attend a regular Sunday School class may be enrolled in the Home Department

-The Christian Life and Sunday School chairman and adult ministries director, in consultation with the pastor, shall appoint a Home Department supervisor each church year whose responsibility is to visit and present the Sunday School lesson each week. --These persons vaited weekly and taught the Sunday School lesson

shall be listed on the active responsibility list. —If there is no regular weekly visit or Sunday School lesson taught, these perions should be listed on the extended ministry responsibility list [outreach].

c. BIBLE STUDY GROUPS: Any group assembled under the spon-sorship of the local church for the purpose of studying the Bibbe, which would include some persons who are on the Sunday School active responsibility list [enrollment] and some who are not. These persons who are not shall be added to the extended ministry responsibility list [outreachl

d. NUBBING HOME/CONVALESCENT CENTER/HEALTH CARE FACIL-ITY: Any residents confined to one of these centers who attend a weekly session sponsored by the local church may be listed on the active responseaton sponsored by the local church may be insted on the active responsibility its interposition of the sectored an instarty responsibility its (notreach) according to the following: 1. If the resident attively participates in a weekly study of the Naza-rene Sunday Skolod curriculum he shall be included on the active re-sponsibility like (nonlineart): 2. If the resident attenda a weekly service but is unable to actively participate or if the Nazarene Sunday School curriculum is not tangled.

he shall be added to the extended ministry responsibility list/enroll-

If there is any question, list all names on the extended ministry responsibility list [outreach].

e. EXTENSION SUNDAY SCHOOL AND/OR CHURCH-TYPE MISSION: Any group sponsored by the local church who meets weekly in another

[\$812] 251

location to study the Sunday School lesson with the goal of becoming an rganized Church of the Nazarene shall be added to the active responsibility list [enrollment] of the sponsoring church by designated name/location of the new work

f. NAZARENE WEEKDAY SCHOOLS: Any group of students in a Naza-rene weekday school under the sponsorship of the local church shall be included on the prospect responsibility list.

Any groups not listed above who meet weekly under the sponsorship of the local church shall be evaluated by the local Christian Life and Sunday School Board to determine whether they meet the criteria for listing on the extended ministry [outreach] responsibility list or on the prospect list.

SECTION 2. Once a person is listed on any responsibility list the local church should actively seek to minister to that person until he is brought into the followship of that church. Dropping names should be done only with the approval of the pastor after every effort to reach the person has been made by the local church. Names should only be dropped from the lists:

Names should only be dropped from the in a. When they die b. When they move out of town c. When they ioin another Sunday School

d. When they specifically ask to have their names removed

ARTICLE II. Attendance Counting Sunday School Attendance

The purpose of counting Sunday School attendance in the local church is to measure the effectiveness of that church's ministry to the

cheards for summary the effectiveness of that thereby similarly us the community and particle Red Bendrop Reduct interpret effects. The summary stars are superscription of the summary stars are super-scription of the summary stars are superscription. The superscription of the summary stars are superscription of the superscription of the superscription of the superscription of the super-scription of the superscription of the superscri

SECTION 1. Regular Sunday School Session. A regular Sunday School session shall be defined as an organized group of people who School session shall be defined as an organized group of people who meet weakly at a specified time and place. The purpose of this meeting must be to study the Bible, using Sunday School curriculum approved by the Christian Life and Sanday School Board. This will constitute the regular Sunday School weakly attendance. a. Attendance counts shall be closed no later than the halfway point.

of the regular Sunday School session. This shall also apply to unified or special services.

b. An enrollee in a local Sunday School shall be considered present in his local Sunday School when attending on that Sunday, a local, zone, district, region, or general church-sponsored function as a retreat, assembly, camp meeting, and so on, as long as he is not counted in another local Sunday School where he is attending. Such functions shall include not less than one-half hour of Bibbe study.

c. All regular Sunday School sessions shall be used in determining c. All regular Sumday School sessions shall be used in determining the average attendance for the year, and that attendance shall be re-ported monthly to the district. For most churches, the number of Sunday School sessions held will be 52. In some geographical areas weather will occasionally prohibit regular Sunday School sessions. The District Christian Life and Sanday School Board, in consultation with the district superintendent, shall determine any valid exceptions.

SECTION 2. Extension Sunday School and/or Church-Type Mis-BECTRON 2. Extension Sounday School and/or Cherner-type ansion for Martine School School and/or Cherner-type mainson at the schemelter or a district with the purpose of sounday becoming a fully expanded cherner. The meeting must be hadd a least a half how weekly to study the BBBs, using an approved Standay Gehool corrections. The schemelter of the schemelter must be hadden and a schemelter in the schemelter of the schemelter schemelter schemelter. The schemelter of the schemelter schemelter schemelter schemelter methods which is schemelter schemelter schemelter schemelter methods which is schemelter schemelte

sions is to be reported to the district monthly and included in into com-bandly should attachmatch for the district. Standard Gold and the con-tained standard standard standard standard standard standard promission in close presenters in a stratication. Standard standard standard discus should be reported under the sponsessing to the sizes, this attac-ment should be reported under the sponsessing in charch's statements and listed by mass and heating. It is local charch sponses more than one with the strategies and the local charch sponses more than see planting instations and the local charch sponses mer some distance from the new work, these extension Simular Schoola and/or charch-types from the sponse work, these extension Simular Schoola and/or charch-types

[1812] 253

missions may be listed separately, if desired, by the district, with their

own name and location. C. Stretendé Ministry (ourreach). The stiendance of all extended ministries shall be counted as the extended ministry attendance for the local church. Extended ministry attendance shall be dafined a promous involved in a study of the Bible for at least one-half hour, but net otherwise meeting the criterio of a regular Bonday School seasion (Ste-tion 3), for example, thal could include House Department on Bible in 2). tion 2). For example, this could include hold to be a study groups. If the local church has more than one type of extended ministry, all figures should be added together in one total and reported seearately each month from the regular Sunday School total and from separatery each month from the regular standard school out and the the extension or church-type ministry total. d. Since extended ministries and new works can begin or end any

time during the church year, the yearly average about be determined by dividing accumulative figures by the number of weeks the ministries

e. Attendance totals for the week, month, and year should be e. Attendance recorded as follows: Regular Sunday School Attendance Extension Sunday School/Church/Type Mission

(Blue Valley)

Extended Ministries (outreach) 25 SUMMARY: The General Christian Life and Sunday School Division needs to have correct enrollment and attendance figures from each district in order to compile an accurate report of Sunday School growth within the denomination each year.

SECTOR 3. Carlinstan Day-Carl/Preschool/Weekday Schools. We recognise that many Nazarese churches will conduct regular Bible indu-nation of the state and Christian training in their Nazarese dy-care/preschool/weikday school. The attendance in these programs about be counted and re-ported annually to the demonitation by means of the psate's annual report only.

ARTICLE III. Classes and Departments

SECTION 1. The Sunday School shall be divided into classes for children and youth on the basis of school grade. For adults the classes should

SECTION 2. When the number of classes within the children's, youth, or adult division increase, attention should be given to depart-mentalization with a supervisor appointed by the Christian Life and Sunday School Board.

254 [1812]

AUXILIARY CONSTITUTIONS

Success 1. The during of the department supervisor shall be to (d) conclinate the work of the trachers within the department; (c) conclination department, (c) c

ARTICLE IV. Teachers

SECTION 1. The department supervisors and teachers shall be appointed annually according to Manual.

SECTION 2. While the ideal is for each teacher to serve for the entire year, in certain circumstances it may be advisable to appoint teachers for a shorter term.

SECTION 3. In case of properly proved unsoundness of doctrine, imprudent conduct, or neglect of duty, the Christian Life and Sunday School Board shall have the right to declare the office of any officer or teacher vocant according to Manual.

BETTER 4. All Standay School teachers and substitutes should: (a) attent workers' meetings regulariy; (b) contact such student, showning, and prospect on a regular basis; (c) avail themselves of all training opportunities provided; (d) provide feldowship opportunities for the class periodically; (b) to enzymeable for seeing that the teaching area is attractive and conducive to learning; (f) propare an effective leason each work; and (c) be act to salviding opportunities for each student.

ARTICLE V. Officers and Their Duties

SECTION 1. Under the direction of the pastor, the duties of the chairman of the Christian Life and Sunday School Board shall be to: (a) be superintendent of the Sunday School; (b) plan regular teachers' and workers' meetings; (c) provide training opportunities for teachers, sub-

18121 255

stitute teachers, and prospective teachers; (d) communicate Sunday School enrollment and attendance campaign plans to all workers; (e) report the statistics of the Sunday School to the zone chairman each month; and ()) encourage attendance at district and general Christian Life and Sunday School functions.

SECTION 2. The duties of the are-group directors are outlined in the Manual

SECTION 3. The Christian Life and Sunday School Board shall elect a person to keep the Sunday School records. He shall keep an accurate record for the entire Sunday School, of the responsibility list (en-rollment), extended ministry list, prospect list attendance, visitors, and other items as may be required.

SECTION 4. The Christian Life and Sunday School Board shall elect a treasurer to keep an accurate account of all monies raised by the Sunday School each week and authorize the discursement according to the direction of the board. A monthly report shall be given to the

SECTION 5. The Christian Life and Sunday School Board shall appoint a person to be responsible for ordering the Sunday School curricprovide a permute to be responsible for ordering the Stantay School curric-ulum and other resources requested by the age-group directors and/or department supervisors. He shall distribute to the appropriate age-group director all information received from Nazarene Publishing House and prepare the order after approval of the chairman and pastor.

ARTICLE VI. Administration and Supervision

SECTION 1. The Sunday School is under the care of the pastor, ame-nable to the local church board, and under the general supervision of the

Currition Late and Sunday School Store and no municidate leadership of the chairman and age-group directions. Succross 2. If a church who has employed a full-time director of Christian education withost to elect that person as chairman of the Christian Life and Sunday School Board, the procedure is as follows: (a) the local church Nominating Committee world recommend to the an-ual church meeting that no clairman be elected for the coming church much church schemester. year, and this the run-same associate will serve as chairman; (b) the congregation should affirm the decision by majority vote; (c) the fullcongregation anoses minimilities decision by majority voies (c/108 full-time associate will become the chairman of the Christian Life and Sunday School Board and will attend church board meetings to discuss Commy School nouri and will steem chards heard meetings to discuss Christian education interests but will not be a voting member. [166.4] The same procedure should be followed for full-time paid associates who are requested to serve as the local age-group directors.

256 [1812]

AUXILIARY CONSTITUTIONS

It shall be understood that these are temporary arrangements, and that all possible effort should be made to train and resource local law leaders for these positions as soon as possible.

ARTKLE VII. Conventions

SECTION 1. District Conventions. It is important that each district plan a District Christian Life and Sunday School Convention annually in order to provide inspiration, motivation, and training for all Christian Life and Sunday School workers. The promotion of Sunday School should be a highlight of each convention.

a. Ex officio members of the District Christian Life and Sunday School Convention shall be: the district superintendent; all pastors, children's, youth, and adult directors; elected members of the District Christian Life and Sunday School Board; and any Nazarene full-time professors of Christian education with membership on that district.

b. Each local Sunday School shall elect additional representatives equal to 25 percent of the officers and teachers of the school in the c. The Christian Life and Sunday School Board shall serve as a

nominating committee to select twice the number of nominees to be elected by plurality vote. These nominees should be members of the elected by plurality vote. These nominees should be members of the Church of the Nararence, be actively involved in one of the ministries of Christian Life and Sunday School, and should be selected from the varicas age-groups (children, youth, aduk workers). In case elected representatives cannot attend, alternate representatives shall be desig-nated in the order of the votes received.

d. The representatives to the District Christian Life and Sunday School Convention may elect the District Christian Life and Sunday

SECTION 2. General Convention

SECTEM 2. General Convention a. Rx office prepresentatives to the General Christian Life and Sun-day School Convention shall be directors and staff of the Christian Life and Sunday School Division, processors of Christian education at Naza-rune colleges and seminary, district auperintendents, district chairmon, district director of children, district directors of youth, and district directors of adults.

b. Each district should elect four additional representatives which is the number equal to the district ex officio members (excluding NYI president who is elected by the NYI Convention) or a number equal to 1 percent of the Sunday School officers on the district, whichever num-

ber is larger. c. The following guidelines should be adhered to in elections for

General Christian Life and Sunday School Convention representatives: (1) The Nominsting Committee shall be comprised of the district superintendent. District Christian Life and Sunday School Roard chair. man, and at least three others appointed by the District Christian Life and Sunday School Board. They shall select three times the number of

nominens to be elected. (2) The Ditrict Gonvention shall elect an equal number of represen-tatives from all Christian Life and Sundry School ministrise (accepting youth). Those elected should be persones who are presently and actively involved in the respective area to which they are elected. Pernons should not be elected who will serve as delogates to the General Nuazeros World Musion Society Convention or the General Nuazeros World Musion Society Convention or the General

(3) Representatives shall be elected by ballot in the District Chris-(3) Representatives shall be elected by ballot in the District Christian Life and Studiy School Convention (except NYI despates) within 16 months prior to the General Convention. The District NYI Convention according to the General NYI Constitution. (4) As nearly as possible, elect as equal number of laymen and (4).

clergy-that is, 50 percent laymen and 50 percent full-time active min-isters, elders or licensed ministers. When the total number is uneven the extra representative shall be a layman. (5) Incumbent district Christian Life and Sunday School leaders

(b) Incument district Christian Life and Sunday School leaders newly elected prior to and holding office at the time of the General Convention shall be the ex officio members of the convention.
(6) All elected and ex officio representatives present in the District

Convention shall be eligible to vote. (7) A plurality vote shall be sufficient for election.

 A pluriality vote small be sufficient for election.
 In case elected representatives cannot attend, alternate representatives shall be designated in the order of the votes they receive on a new ballot. The number of alternates elected should include alternates for exofficio membere

(9) If a district cannot finance the full number of representatives to the General Christian Life and Sunday School Convention as prescribed in the Manual, it may elect as many persons as the district can afford to 258 [[812]

AUXILIARY CONSTITUTIONS

send, as determined by the District Christian Life and Sunday School Board.

(10) Representatives who attend the convention should have financial assistance from the district comparable to expenses provided from the district for Nazarene Youth International and Nazarene World Mission Society convention delegates.

(11) If no convention is held, representatives shall be elected at the district assembly.

ARTICLE VIII. Amendments

These bylaws may be amended by a majority vote of the members present and voting at a General Assembly.



THE LOCAL CHURCH THE DISTRICT ASSEMBLY BILLS OF CHARGES

CHAPTER I

813. THE LOCAL CHURCH

813.1. Recommendation to the District Assembly

The Church Board of the		Church of the	
Nazarene at	recommends		
to the		District Assembly	
for *			
We certify that		has fulfilled all the	
requirements for such request. By vote of the Church Board this 19	day of		
		Chairman	
		Secretary	
Credentials *District minister's license Renewal of district minister's license	commissi Song evang Renewal of Consecratio	fucation minister's	
NOTE: This form may be used for differe	of recommendation	o. Fill in at asterick the	

appropriate certificate dealered.

813.2. Certificate of Commendation

This certifies that	is a
member of the Church of the Nazareze at	and is
hereby commended to the Christian confidence of thos certificate may be presented.	e to whom this

Pastor Date -19 NOTE: When a certificate of commendation is given a parson, his mean reasons in the local church insering the certificate. [111.1] 261

262 [1813.3]

FORMS

has been until t	that
release.	
	Pastor
NOTE Membersh	up terminates immediately upon issance of a setter or susance, [112.3]
	813.4. Transfer of Members
This certifies	that
is an active/ina	ctive member in good standing in the Church of the
Nazarene at	and, at h request, is hereby the Church of the Nazarene at
transferred to th	District.
When the rec	eption of this transfer is acknowledged by the receiving
local church, my	embership in this local church will cease.
	Pastor
	Address
Date	
NOTE: A transfe	r is valid for three months only. [111]
	13.5. Transfer Acknowledged
This certifies	that
has been receiv	ed into membership by the Church of the Nazarene a this day of
19	una
10	
	Pasto
	Addres
	Parto Address 813.6. Local Minister's License Serrory that

FORMS

[\$813.6] 263

the Holy Scriptur	chings correspon- ts as held by said	d with the establish church.	ied doctrines of
By Order of the Church Board of the			Church of
Done at	the	day of	
19			,



264 [1814]

CHAPTER II

814. THE DISTRICT ASSEMBLY

Official district forms may be secured from the General Secretary, 6401 The Passo, Kansas City, MO 64131.

CHAPTER III

815, BILLS OF CHARGES

Section 1. In Trial of a Church Member

Section 2. In Trial of an Elder

Section 3. In Trial of a Licensed Minister

Bills of Charges can be secured from the General Secretary, 6401 The Paseo, Kansas City, MO 64131.



GENERAL OFFICERS

ADMINISTRATIVE BOARDS, COUNCILS, AND EDUCATIONAL INSTITUTIONS

ADMINISTRATIVE POLICIES

INTERPRETATION OF CHURCH LAW

CURRENT MORAL AND SOCIAL ISSUES

CHAPTER I

900. GENERAL OFFICERS

900.1. General Superintendents

Eugene L. Stowe Jerald D. Johnson Charles H. Strickland John A. Knight William M. Greathouse Raymond W. Hurn

General Superintendents Emeriti and Retired

D. L. Vanderpool, Emeritus Samuel Young, Emeritus Edward Lawlor, Emeritus George Coulter, Emeritus V. H. Lewis, Emeritus Orville W. Jenkins, Emeritus

900.2. General Secretary B. Edgar Johnson

900.3. General Treasurer Norman O. Miller

INTERNATIONAL HEADQUARTERS 6401 THE PASEO KANSAS CITY, MO. 64131



APPENDIX

CHAPTER II

901. ADMINISTRATIVE BOARDS, COUNCILS, AND EDUCATIONAL INSTITUTIONS

901.1. General Board

MEMBERS BY CHURCH REGIONS

(1) Africa Region L. B. Smith	D. Mahlangu
(2) Asian Region Jung-Dae Kim Young-Baek Kim	E. B. Bansod Ozias Liboon
(3) Canada Region William Stewart	Bob Rimington
 (4) Central U.S.A. Region William Griffin Kenneth Jewell C. Neil Strait 	John Dickey Richard Jones Vernon Lann
(5) East Central U.S.A. Region Harold Graves Jack Archer	L. Thomas Skidmore Paul Gamertafelder
(6) Eastern U.S.A. Region Dallas Mucci Howard Chambers	Ronald Mercer Merritt Mann
(7) Europe, Middle East Region David Tarrant	Manfred Dannewitz
(8) Mexico, Central America, an S. Onesimo Pot Danilo R. Solis G.	d Caribbean Region Enrique Rojas D. Jose J. Trevino A.
(9) North Central U.S.A. Region Jim Diehl Paul Cunningham	D. Ray Cook Leland King
(10) Northwest U.S.A. Region Melvin McCullough Don Wellman	Leon Doane Willard Friesen

APPENDIX

[1901.3] 269

(11) South America Region Joaquim A. Lima Solomon Barboza	Lidia D'Allessandro Jacy A. DaSilva
(12) South Central U.S.A. Reg W. M. Lynch Ponder Gilliland	sion David McClung L. Glenn McArthur
(13) South Pacific Region Max Stone	John Green
(14) Southeast U.S.A. Region Talmadge Johnson Millard Reed	Mark Greathouse Odie Page
(15) Southwest U.S.A. Region Robert Scott Harold Bonner	David Barton Howard Wooten
(16) Ministry and Education Stephen Nease	Homer Adams
(17) Nazarene World Mission Lela J	Society ackson
(18) Nazarene Youth Internati Woodie	

901.2. General Court of Appeals

Paul Benefiel Ponder Gilliland Stephen Nease Bruce Taylor Gordon Wetmore, Secretary

901.3. General Council of the Nazarene Youth International

Woodia Stevens, General Pesident David Wine, General Secretary Emmanual Docensany, Africa Region Ernesto Rolloda, Asian Region David Murray, Canada Region Bob Kring, Central USA. Region Michael M. Hancock, Bast Central USA. Region Ron McCermick, Easter U.S.A. Region Poul Tarrats, Europe and Mödlig East Region 270 [1901.4]

901.4. General Council of the Nazarene World Mission Society

Mn. Laka katum, President Mn. Laka katum, President Mn. Parotis J. Manna, Anten Bargion Mn. Parotis B. Mason, Anten Bargion Mn. Parotis B. Mason, Anten Bargion Mn. Berley B. Markow, Anten Bargion Mn. Berley Presning, Bard Catrull USA, Rogion Mn. Delito Caraban, Darretta USA, Rogion Mn. Berly Domens, Berley Catrull, S. K. Bargion Mn. Berly Domen, Sterla Catrult, S. Bargion Mn. Berly Domen, Sterla Catrult, S. Bargion Mn. Berly Domen, Sterla Catrult, S. Bargion Mn. Berly Born, Sonth Catrul USA, Rogion Mn. Berly Born, Sonth Catrul USA, Rogion Du V, Stephen Gasher, South America Rogion Du V, Stephen Gasher, South Catrul, Lis, Rogion Mn. Berly Bottes, South Catrul USA, Rogion Mn. Berly Bottes, South Catrul, Lis, Rogion Mn. Berly Bottes, South Catrul, Lis, Rogion Mn. Berly Bottes, South Status, Rogion Mn. Berly Bottes, Southeru USA, Rogion Mn. Berly Bottes, Southwett USA, Rogion Mn. Berly Bottes, Southwett USA, Rogion APPENDIX

[1901.5] 271

901.5. Nazarene Institutions of Higher Education (G= graduate level; U= undergraduate level) GENERAL CHURCH INSTITUTIONS Nazarene Theological Seminary (G), Kansas City, Missouri Nazarene Bible College (U), Colorado Sorings, Colorado COUNCIL OF EDUCATION CANADA REGION Canadian Nazarene College (U), Winnipeg, Manitoba, Canada CENTRAL U.S.A. REGION Olivet Nazarene College (G), Kankakee, Illinois EAST CENTRAL U.S.A. REGION Mount Vernon Nazarene College (U), Mount Vernon, Ohio EASTERN U.S.A. REGION Eastern Nazarene College (G), Quincy Massachusetta RUBASIA REGION British Isles Nazarene College (U), Manchester, England NORTH CENTRAL U.S.A. REGION Mid-America Nazarene College (G), Olathe, Kanaaa NORTHWEST U.S.A. REGION Northwest Nazarene College (G), Nampa, Idaho SOUTH CENTRAL U.S.A. REGION Bethany Nazarene College (G), Bethany, Oklahoma SOUTHEAST U.S.A. REGION Trevecca Nazarene College (G), Nashville, Tennessee SOUTHWEST U.S.A. REGION Point Loma Nazarene College (G) San Diszo, California CHURCH GROWTH DIVISION INSTITUTIONS SOUTHWEST U.S.A. REGION Nazarene Indian Bible College (U) Albuquerque, New Mexico WORLD MISSION DIVISION INSTITUTIONS

AFRICA REGION Africa Nazarene Theological College (U) Florida, Republic of South Africa 272 [1901.5]

Africa Nazarene Theological College (U) Port Elizabeth, Republic of South Africa Africa Nazarene Theological College (U) ASIA-PACIFIC REGION Asia-Pacific Nazarene Theological Seminary (G) Metro Manila, Republic of the Philippines Australasian Nazarene Bihle College (U) Thornlands, Queensland, Australia Indonesia Nazarene Bible College (U) Yog ya Karta, Indonesia Japan Christian Junior College (U) Chiba Shi, Japan Janan Nazarene Theological Seminary (U) Tokyo, Japan Korean Nazarene Theological Seminary (U) Lazon Nazarene Bibbe College (U) Beguio City, Republic of the Philippines Taiwan Nazarene Theological College (U) Taiwan, Republic of China Visayan Nazarene Bible College (U) Iloilo City, Republic of the Philippines CARIBREAN REGION Caribbean Nazarene Theological College (U) Port of Spain, Trinidad EURASIA REGION European Nazarene Bible College (U) Schaffhausen, Switzerland MEXICO, CENTRAL AMERICA REGION San Jose, Costa Rica Seminario Nazareno Mexicano, A.C. (U) Merico City Merico SOUTH AMERICA REGION Seminario e Instituto Biblico da Igreja do Nazareno (U)

Sao Paulo, Brasil

[1902.4] 273

CHAPTER III

902. ADMINISTRATIVE POLICIES

902.1. Parliamentary Procedure

We recommend the adoption of Robert's Rules of Order where applica-ble when no definite method of parliamentary procedure is indicated in the Manual [1980]

902.2. Annuities

The General Board and institutions of the church are prohibited from using annuity gifts until such have become their valid property by the death of the annuitant, and that such gifts are to be carefully invested in funds usually accepted as it rust funds by the courts of the land, [1989]

902.3. Deht

No institution may incur any debt on the strength of pledges, and pledges are not to be counted as assets. [1980]

902.4. Bible Societies

(1) Annound Bible Societies

The Course of the Notareen place special emphasis upon the Bible as the written the Notareen places as paid in the only effective agency of the only effective agency to win new followers to assume the vertex of the set of the set

around the word. Second, That we endorse the observance of Universal Bible Sunday, directing attention on this day to the essential place the Scriptures should occupy in the lives of Christian propio. Third, That the General Assembly authorine its general secretary, or

Bible Society held in December at Bible House in New York City.

(2) Offering for Bible Societies

Resolved, That the Church of the Nazarene designate the second Sunday of December of each year as a special time for the presentation



of this important matter and the taking of an offering for the American Bible Society in the United States, and the respective Bible Societias in Canada and the British Islee; also that a special effort be made to have all of our churches take part in such an offering. [1980]

NOTE: It is understood that our churches in Scotland and their contributions to the Noticeal Bhile Society in Scotland; the churches in Scatland; to the Ucitish and Rossign Bhile Society; and the churches in Canada, so the Canadian Bhile Society; The churches of the United States forward contributions to our denominational Hondyacatery, 600 The Passo, Kerness Cite, Mol 6130], for the uncent of the Avention Bhile Society

902.5, Athletics

The schools and colleges of the Church of the Nazarene shall be bound by such regulations regarding intercollegiate activities as shall be recommended by Education Services and adopted by the General Board. [1976]

902.6. Dramatics

WHEREAS, There is danger in the excessive use of dramatic productions in our schools and colleges; he it

Resolved, That this practice be carefully restricted and greater emphasis be placed on the spiritual exercise that leads to sound Christian experience. [1980]

902.7. Manual Editing Resolution

Be it Resolved, That the members of the Manual Editing Committee appointed by the Board of General Superintendents be and they are bereby constituted the Manual Editing Committee and they are breefly Resolved, That the Manual Editing Committee be and they are breefly

Revolved That the Monual Bitting Committee be and they are hreely authorized to harmonize conflicting statements which may appear in the record of the actions of the Twenty first (neureal Assembly in regard to changes in the Monual and also to make such editorial changes in the text of the present Monual as will correct the language without altering the meaning.

The Monasi Editing Committee is hereby further authorized to substitute pinhy understood works or expressions for confusing words or expressions, to revise the rundbreing of chapters, paragraphs, sections, and other divisions of the Manual in harmony with any actions andopted by the Twetty-first General Assembly, and Jako to prepare the index in harmony with any actions adopted by the Twenty-first General Assembly.

Further resolved that the supervision of all translations of the Manual shall be a duty of the Manual Editing Committee. [1985]

902.8. Manual Appendix Review

Any item remaining in Chapters III and V of the Appendix for three Any seen remaining in Chapters III and V of the Appendix for three quadrennia (12 years) without reconsideration shall be referred by the Committee on Reference to the proper committee of the General Assembly by for the same consideration as a modulion to the General Assembly [1976]

902.9. Tenure of Committees

Resolved, That any special committee created for any purpose, unless specified otherwise, will cease to exist at the following General Assembly [1980]

902.10. General Assembly Business

(From the 1985 Delegate's Handbook)

RESOLUTIONS AND PETITIONS.

Rule 26. Presentation. District asembles, a committee autho-rized by the district asembles, the General Board or any of its recognized divisions, official boards or commissions of the general church, or five members or more of the General Assembly, may present resolutions and prittions for the consideration of the General Assembly in accordance with the following rules

a. Resolutions and petitions shall be presented in triplicate and type-written on the official form furnished by the general secretary.
 b. Each resolution or petition presented will include the subject and

b. Each resconse of perturbation presence with matchine the source of delegates or group making the presentation.
c. They shall be presented to the general secretary nt least 90 days prior to the convening of the assembly to be numbered and sent to the Reference Committee in order that they may be printed in the Delegate's

Rule 27. Resolutions and Petitions for Late Reference. With the consent of the assembly, resolutions, petitions, and other items for consideration by the assembly may be presented to the general secretary for reference to a logislative committee no later than 5 PM. on the second

Rule 28. Proposals for Manual Changes, Proposals for changes in the church Manual must be presented in writing and shall give paragraph and section of Manual to be affected and the text of the

276 [1902.11]

APPENDIX

change should it be adopted. Such resolutions, proposals, or petitions shall be submitted no later tham March 1 of the year in which the General Assembly is held. These thall be referred to committees in accordance with Rule 37. These committees shall consider such proposals and report their recommendations to the General Assembly. If adopted, the proposals shall be submitted to the Manual Editing Committee to be harmonized with other Manual Potitions.

902.11. Restrictions on Membership General Church Boards

Resolved, That no person shall serve on more than one of the following boards: General Board, Nazarene Theological Seminary Trustees, Nazarene Bible College Trustees. [1976]

1903.41 277

CHAPTER IV

903. INTERPRETATION OF CHURCH LAW

Judiciary Actions

903.1. Has the District Advisory Board the right to transfer a mem-ber of the district assembly to another denomination?

Ans. The District Advisory Board has no authority to transfer a member of the district assembly to another denomination; however, the provided in the Manual [1976]

903.2. Relating to Special Rule 33.3, "membership in oath-bound secret orders or societies."

(a) Does this mean that the Church of the Nazarene will not permit its members to hold their former insurance in this class of orders, provided that the fees are paid for this purpose only and there is no allowship with the organization?

(d) Does a church have the right to maintain the membership of a person when he holds membership in a socret order solely for the pur-pose of keeping his insurance while it bars from membership other persons because they are members of the same order?

Ans. (a) (b) According to 33.3 of our Manual one cannot be a member of the Church of the Nazarene while holding membership in an oathbound secret order

903.3. Special Rule 33.5 relating to "using of tobacco in any of its

orona, opecad rune 0.0.0 reimag to "umg or toolieffe in any of its forma, or trafficking therein," Does this prohibit church membership in the Church of the Nazarese to a person who is employed in a store, either as clerk or manager, where among other things he is oblighed to sell tobacco?

Ans. There is a distinction between trafficking as the owner of a business and selling as a clerk; and, therefore, we would not interpret the selling as a clerk as violating the letter of the Monuel.

903.4. At a church meeting called for the purpose of voting on the recall of a pastor, is it legal to count the votes of members not present at the time of such voting?

Ans. It would be illegal to count the votes of members not present when voting on the recall of a pastor.

278 [1903.5]

APPENDIX

903.5. If a licensed minister meets all the requirements for the renewal of his license according to 403.3, is the district assembly obliged to renew such license?

Ans. A district assembly is not under obligation according to 403.3 to renew said license.

903.6. A church has a debt on its property. It elects a finance committee of three who are nonmbern of the church head with instructions to receive and diaburse all money which applies to the church debt. Has the church the right to make this committee catachias of that part of the church the right to make this committee catachias of the approximation of the regularity elected church the same independent of the regularity elected church the same independent.

Ans. The church does have such a right.

003.7. A pastor resigns. The district apprintendent calls the church board tograbur to consider the appointment of a man to fill the vecancy until the rest district assembly. He finds that the church board had previously had in meeting and elected a man for the pastorate for the remainder of the district assembly year, and also had called him for the year following. In the church mating within its rights?

Ans. The church is not acting within its rights.

903.8. In case a district superintendent and pastor fail to investigate charges filed against a minister in their assembly district as directed in 502 of the Manual, does this incriminate the district superintendent or the pastor for failure to make this investigation?

Ans. A district superintendent would be incriminated if he faild to investigate written accuations against a minister in his assembly disrict. The fact of his amenability to his district assembly is deducer that he will be subject to charges for failing to discharge his official dats. (1928)

903.9. Clarify the status of an elder who may be dropped from the local membership roli on account of absence of over a six-month pariod, which is unsatisfactorily explained, and the nonsupport of the charde during this period. If a local church drops his name from the roll, what is his assembly relationship?

Ans. It is the opinion of the Committee on Judiciary that the dropping of an eider from the church roll of which he is a member, under the conditions mentioned, cannun affect his status as a member of his assembly district but does place responsibility on such elder to comply with 4118, 1976]

APPENDIX



CHAPTER V

904. CURRENT MORAL AND SOCIAL ISSUES

904.1. Prayer and Bible in Schools and Local, State, and Federal Governments of the United States of America

The Church of the Nazarene recognizes that the founders of the United States of America were very conscious of the law of God and those Christian principles that may be found in the Holy Scriptures as a basis for a just and enduring civil government.

As a consequence the nation has given reverent recognition and honor to God in many ways throughout its history. The First Amendment of the Constitution states that "Congress shall make no law respecting an establishment of religion or prohibiting the free exercise thereof." The free exercise of prayer and Bible reading were not considered to be in

opposition to the constraint atheistic, secular, or even some religious forces have set about to destroy the time-tested fabric of this national life, the Church of the Nazarene firmly resolves to support: (1) All present references to God found on the national currency and

the pledge of allegiance and other reverent usage,

(2) The present system of chaplaincy is federal, state, and local governments.

(3) Voluntary prayer and Bible reading in any public, government, or private institutions.

(4) The traditional practice of public school baccalaureate, and

(5) Prayer and other religious observances by public and civic organizations, [1976]

904.2. War and Military Service

We believe that the ideal world condition is that of peace and that it is the full obligation of the Christian Church to use its influence to seek such means as will enable the nations of the earth to be at peace and to devote all of its agencies for the propagation of the measage of peace.

However, we realize that we are living in a world where wil forces and philosophies are actively in conflict with these Christian ideals and that

280 [1904.3]

there may arise such international emergencies as will require a nation to resort to war in defense of its ideals, its freedom, and its existence.

to resort to war in detense or its ideas, its irreducin, and its existence. While thus committed to the cause of peace, the Church of the Naz-rene recognizes that the supreme allegiance of the Christian is due to God. and therefore it does not endeavor to bind the conscience of its members relative to participation in military service in case of war, although it does believe that the individual Christian as a citizen is bound to give service to his own nation in all ways that are compatible with the Christian faith and the Christian way of life. We also recognize that, as an outgrowth of the Christian tenching and

of the Christian desire for peace on earth, there are among our membership individuals who have conscientious objection to certain forms of military service. Therefore the Church of the Nazarene claims for conminitary service. Interfore the Churce of the variate tension to com-scientious objectors within its membership the same eccomptions and considerations regarding military service as are accorded members of recognized noncombatant religious organizations. The Church of the Naxarene, through its general secretary, shall set

up a register whereon those persons who supply evidence of being men-bers of the Church of the Nazarene may record their convictions as conscientious objectors. [1980]

904.3. Race and Discrimination

We wish to reiterate our historic stand of Christian compassion for men of all men. And that God is the Creator of all men. and that

men or air meas. We betave that God is the Creator of all men, and that of one block are all men created. We bulkev that each individual, repardless of race, color, or cred, should have equality before law, including the right to vote, equal access to educational opportunities, to all public facilities, and to the equal opportunity, according to one's ability, to sare a living free from any job or ecconomic discrimination.

We use our churches everywhere to continue and strengthen pro-We upps our churches everywhere to continue and strengtorm pro-grams of education to promotor renial understanding and harmory. We also feel that the scriptoral admonition "Follow peace with all nom" (Hebrews 12-14) should guide the actions of our people. We uppe that each member of the Church of the Nameres humbly examine his per-tonal attitudes and actions toward other reaces, as a first step in achieving the Christian goal of full participation by all in the life of the church and the entire community. We reemphasize our belief that holiness of heart and life is the basis for right living. We believe that Christian charity between racial groups

will come when the hearts of men have been changed by complete submission to Jesus Christ, and that the essence of true Christianity

APPENDIX

[1904.5] 281

consists in loving God with one's heart, soul, mind, and strength, and one's neighbor as oneself. [1980]

904.4. Tobacco and Its Effects on Health and Morals

In view of our historic stand on the use of tobacco and its attendant evils; and

evili, and WHERELS, medical evidence documented by numerous social, govern-mental, and health agencies throughout the world, have condemned its use as a health hazard, and have shown conclusively that its use may produce and result in changes in normal bodily physiology, both serious ad permanent; and

WHEREAS we are admonished to maintain our bodies as the temple of the Holy Ghost [1 Corinthians 3:16-17; 6:19-20]; and

WHEREAS we are concerned about the protection of our youth against any enemy of health and moreals; and

WHERE AS the above-mentioned organizations and agencies have condemned the use of tobacco: and

WHERENS cancer, eardiversular, and palmonary societies have con-ducted a concerted campaign against smoking, be it *Resolved*, That the Church of the Nasarane continue to speak out against this social evil and that the Christian Action Committee of the

general church, when feasible, encourage these agencies and or-minations which have conducted campaigns against smoking. [1960]

904.5. The Church and Human Freedom

Concerned that our great Protestant heritage be understood and safe-

Concerned that our great Portanta briring be understood and adju-stration, we mained to respect that they being and an eligibiour three under the starting of the individual concerness. We recovery and the starting the starting of the individual concerness. We recovery and the starting the starting of the individual concerness. We recovery and the starting of the starting that the starting of the which detect them when carrying out a public trust. Further, we residue primerion of the spectra of the starting starting spectra of the starting starting of the starting starting starting starting and the starting starti

We believe that the role of the Church is to be prophetic and con-stantly to remind the people that "righteousness exalteth a nation" [Proverbs 14:34]. [1985]

APPENDIX

904.6. Modern or Folk Dancing

The Church of the Nazarene is opposed to all forms of social or folk dancing in public or private gatherings, even under the guise of physical education classes. [33.4] [1980]

904.7. Magazines, Literature, Radio, and Other Electronic Media

Since we are living in a day of great moral confusion in which we face the potential encreachement of the write of the day into the sacred precincts of our homes through various avenues such as current literature, radios thereinion, and other electronic media, it is essential that the most rigid asfegusefu be observed to keep our homes from becoming secularized and worldly.

While we recognize these agencies are of great value in the propagation of the gospel and the salvation of souls, we do deplore the low moral tone of much current literature, comic magazines, articles and pictures of some magurines, and the contents of many books.

We do Barwine algoins the content of sincer paids and the view of the second second second second second second second second second of programm and distribution second grand that fast that the second data to the that the second label of distribution second second second second second label of distribution second s

availability of uncensored movies in the home through Home Box Office, we urge our poople to avoid pregnams which glamorize the world's philosophy of secularism, anemualism, and materialism. We especially recommend that reading, listening, and viewing on the Lord's Day be consistent with our high standards of holiness and that unkens providentially hindred's de- not allow anything leven religious radio and television programs] to become a substitute for church statedance.

We therefore call upon our leaders and pastors to give strong emphasis in our periodicals and from our pulpits to such fundamental truths as will develop the principle of discrimination between the evil and good to be found in these mediums.

[1904.10] 283

We suggest that the standard given to John Wesley by his mother namely, "Whatever weakens your reason, impairs the tenderness of your connectence, obscures your sense of God, or takes off the relish of spiri-tual things, whatever increases the authority of your body over mind, that thing for you is sin," form the basis for this teaching of discrimination. [1980]

904.8. Public Swimming and Recreational Activities

Recognizing the increasing trend toward immodesty of dress in public places of recreation such as beaches and swimming places, we remind our poople of our funditional councy of "modesty that becometh holi-ness" and urge that Christian judgment be exercised in the matter of avienting or sumbathing in public places, [1960]

904.9. Pornography

Pornography is an evil which is understanding the morals of society. Printed and visual materials which degrade the dignity of mankind and are contrary to the scriptural view of the sanctify of marking and the wholescomeness of sex are to be abhored. We believe that we are contable in this image of God and that por-

We believe that we are created in the image of God and that por-ography degrades, exploits, and abases new, we come, and children. The percography industry is motivated by grack, is the ensure of family life. To horse God an Censtor and Redenme, we upper active apposition to percography by every legitimate means and the making of positive efforts to results for Christ these who are incodered in this evil. (1985)

904.10. Women's Rights

Resolved, That while man and woman are created equal spiritually in God's sight [Galatians 3:28], that in the interests of the Christian family, moral and ethical standards, Christian modesty and simplicity, we em-phasize the distinction as male and female and stress that we respect the phasazes the unstanction as make and tenase and stress that we respect the Good given distinction so each may fulfill line or be highest place in the home and in the kingdom of God. We support the right of woman to use their God-given gainzing gifts which in the church W atfirm the historic right of women to be elected and appointed to places of leadership within the Church of the Nazarens. We oppose any legislation which would be against the scriptural teachings of the place of womanhood in society [1980]

284 [1905]

APPENDIX

905. Evidence of Baptism with the Holy Spirit

We believe that the Holy Spirit bears witness to the new birth and to the subsequent work of heart cleansing, or entire samctification, through the infilling of the Holy Spirit.

the initiality of the Holy Splits. We are not solve the initiality of the Holy Splits of

To affirm that even a special or any alleged physical evidence, or "prayer language," is evidence of the baptism with the Spirit is contrary to the biblical and historic position of the church. [1985]
SPECIAL REVISION INDEX

Changes authorized by the 1985 General Assembly are indexed here.

(Numbers refer to paragraphs.)

Constitution Government, 27.1 Abortion, 35 Christian Life and Sunday School Director-adult, 155 Director-children, 153 Director-youth, 154 Church hoard Basiness, 129.5, 129.11-29.14, 129.16, 129.19, 129.21, 129.25-29.27, 120.33 Mestings, 128 Treasurer, 135.4 Elections, 113.9-13.11 Nominating Committee, 113.8 Reports, 113.7 urce year, a subarable Church-type mission, 107.2 active members, 109 ergens, 105 Multicongregation, 100.1 Paid assistants, 106.1, 166.3-66.7 Calling, 115, 117 Extended call, 124 Renewing call, 123.3

Prostees 1433 hoties 203 1-3 11 203 14-3 25 203 29 New districts, 200.1-200.3 Pict Advisory Board Juties, 222.1, 222.4-22.5, 222.9, Membership, 221 atrict Christian Life and Sunday Mauhership, 239, 238,2-39,8, 240-41 Daties, 228-28.7 Membership, 226 212-13.1 Derm, 206 uiniatration boards, 384 and of General Superintendents ties, 309-9.1, 310, 317.1-17.5, 317.11-17.12, 329-21 Daties, 305.1, 305.5-5.7, 305.9 Membership, 301

INDEX

General Board Department function, 335.8-37.4 Division function, 338-43.8 Membershin, 333.2 Organizational units, 335-35.7 General Boundary Committee, 378-78.1 General treasurer, 327, 327.2, 228.2 National boards, 385 all and Qualifications of the Minister. 400-401.4.411-11.9 **Sategories and Roles of Ministry**, 412-12.3 Evangeliat, 417-17.4 Minister of Christian education, 419-19.1 Minister of music, 420-20.1 Pastor, 422, 423.19, 428-51 Credentials and Ministerial Regulations

286

Fider, 435-51, 415.3 Licensed minister, 403-3.4, 403.6, 403.9 Recognition of elder's orders, 406-6.2 esimation or removal from the ministry 409-9.5 Restoration of ministers to church menhership and standing, 410-10.3 Transfer of minister, 408-8.2 Course of study, 434-34.1, 434.3-34.5 General guidelines, 435-35.2 Judicial Administration Levenan, 501, 561.2 Minister 502, 502.3, 502.9, 503. 5541-49 Regional Court of Appeals, 511 Mission district, 200.2 dational-mission district, 203.2 Pioneer district, 200.2 Dedication of infants or young children,

INDEX OF "VACANT PARAGRAPHS"

40-99, 157, 167-99, 255, 232, 248-79, 281-99, 366-74, 377, 381, 387-99, 436-99, 513-99, 683-99, 756-99, 807-9, 816-99

MANUAL INDEX

(Numbers refer to paragraphs.)

Absentoe voting, see Voting Abatinence, total, 33.5 Of church member, 500 Of licensed minister, 502 District, 223.2, 223.5, 240.2 Advisory Board, see District Advisory Africa Nanarene Theological College (3). Alabama North District, 602 Alabama South District, 603 Alberta, prevince of-Canada West District, 609 Assendments to the church Constitution, 31 American Hible Societs, 902.4 Annual meetings-Local church, 113.6: see Church meetings Assolution, 902.2 Of church members, 501.1 Of Isral church, 102.1, 123.1 Annash See District Court of Amoush financial kinds prohibited 162.63

Application for Minister's License, 433.1. Appointment, district superintendent, Appointment, pastoral, see Pastor, appoint-Arcentina Central District, 701 North Arkanaas District, 645 Arrangements Committee, see General Assenbly Articles of Faith, 1-21 Articles of Incorporation, see Church, local Asia-Pacific Nanarene Theological Seminarx 901.5 Assistant pastor, ore Assistants, paid Assistanta, paid, local church-Assistanta, paid, local church-Association of Pentecostal Churches of Whiteirs, college, 902.5 Monement, I, page 15; 6, 19, 25.5 Auditing Committee-Australasian Nanarene Bible College, 201.5 Austrilia-Australia Northern Pacific District, 702 Australia Southern District, 703 Rachaliding, 7 Administered by whom, 403.7, 405.1. 405.5 Article on 19

287

INDEX

Modes, choice of, 19 Bantism with the Holy Soirit, 13, 905 Basis of union, IV, pages 16-17 Bathing places, public, 904.8 Benevolence, ministerial, see Pensions Board Bennett, W. G., X. page 19 Bethany Nazarene College, 901.5 Bible societies, 902.4 District, see Christian Life and Sunday School Church Properties Board, District Discipline, Board of, District District Advisory Beard District Home Missions Board Evangelism Board, District Ministerial Benevolence Board, Dis-Ministerial Cendentials Board, Dis-Ministerial Studies Board, District. General Board General Superintendents, Roard of Christian Life and Sender School Board, local Discipline, Beard of, local Trustees, Board of Bolivia La Pag District, 706 Assembly districts, 200, 600-682, 790-755 trict, 707 Brenil South Rio-Sao Faulo District, 708 Bressee, Phiness F, III, VI, pages 16, 18 British and Brasim Bible Society 202 4

British Columbia, province of-British Commonwealth-Representation on General Board, 330.2 British Isles Nazarene College, 901.5 Budget system, 37.2, 130, 160.2, 242.4, Baildings, see Church buildings Central California District, 659 Southern Colifornia District, 666 Sanadian Nazarene College, 901.5 Caravan director-Caribbean Nanarene Theological College, Central Latin American District, 612 Children's ministries directer-Atonement, 6, 29, 25.5 hith is, 19,20, 25.6 Head of the Church, 400, 405.1 incarnation, 2

Revealed in Trinity as Son, 1-2, 25.1 Vintin Birth, 2 Dristian Action Committee, General, 279 Approval, 129.55 Commission, 419.1 See Assistants, paid Christian family life, see Marriage and fam-Christian Life and Sunday School Beard-Chairman 201 20335-311 229.6. Adult Ministries, 239.5 Children's Ministries, 239.3 Youth Ministries, 279.4 Meetings and conventions, 239.2, 239.8, 240 Membership, 239 Organization, 239-39.5, 243 Vacanties, 212, 223,7 Adult ministries director, 152.5. Children's ministries director, 152.5. Duties, 152-52.8 Education Committee, 149.4-49.6 Membership, 149-49,1, 149.3 North ministries director, 152.5, Christian Life and Sunday School Division. Funds, 228.2

Holy living, guidelines for, 32.2-32.3 Principles, biblical, 32.1, 32.4 Christian perfection, 13 Church-Church Constitution, 1-31 Church attendance, 26.1 Church hoard, local-Chairman, 127, 422, 423, 22 111-22, 124, 126-33, 402-2.3, 402.5, 4831-3.3, 404.3, 405.2, 409.4. Church buildings-Advice on, 103-3.1, 235.4 Articles of Paith, 1-21 ment, 27-30.9 Church, the, 22-26 Preamble, page 23 Fonds, 228.2 Church latters-Commendation, 111.1, 493.31. 813 Church, local-Annual meetings, see Church meetings Liability limited, 121 Psohibition of appeals, 162-63 Membership, 28, 107-9.4 Commendation, 111.1, 423.21, 813.2 loumittee, 107.1, 108.1-10.8 Canditions of, 25, 903.2 Probationary, 108-8.1

INDEX

Occanization and disorganization, 100, 106-6.4, 431.15 Election, 123, 126 Moving expenses, 121 Extended call, 124-24.1 Time of, 125 Vote required, 123.9 President of, 192.3, 113.4, 423.22 Disposition of, 106.1-6.2 Elections by, 113.8-13.12 Reports to, 113.7 Call and notice, 113.3, 113.13-13.14, Fill vacancies, 129, 145 Real estate transactions, 104 Renew nestoral relation, 123, 903.4. Church members, see Members, church Church membership class, see Members, Church Membership Committee, Evan-Duties, 110-10.8 Church name, use of, 164 Church of Christ, New Testament, X page Church Properties Roard, District

Members, 208,17, 234 Church regions, 280-80.5 Colleges-Athletics, 902.5 Dramatics, 902.6 Representation on General Board, 230.3 Colorado District, 615 Amenable to district assembly, 238 Commissions-General Assembly Commission, 302 General Christian Action Committee, 385-80.5 District, 2021, 309.2 Local, 113.8 Communion, see Lord's Supper Communion service-General Assembly, 304.2

New England District, 642 New York District, 644 Conscientious Christian, 32.2-32.3 Church, see Church Constitution NWMS, general, 811.3 NWMS, local, 811.1 Sunday School Bylams, 812 Continuing Lay Training, 152.8, 239.2, Contributions, 26.1 Corporation, see General Boards (corporations) and Incorporation Corporation, clusch-sponsored, 165 Costa Rica District, 712 Adult Ministries, 239.5 Children's Ministries, 239.3 Youth Ministries, 239.4 Course of study-Court of Appeals-Election, 203.23 Memberahin, 203.23, 505 Vacqueies, 309.1 See Adicial Administ Duties, 507-7.3, 530 Jarisdictice, 30.8 Membership, 30.8, 505.6, 507 Vacancies, 317.6, 508 See Audicial Administration ourtesy enjoined, 26.1 Coursesy enjourne, 2011 Condia Roll Passets 222.5, 812 Article I. conduction breighton, J. B., VI, page 18

lancing, 262, 33.4, 904.6 Devis, C. Howard, II, page 15 Day schools, see Christian day schools st. local church, 108-4, 902.3 Scations, church, 806 Bahington District, 676 District assembly lection, 113.12 Ratio of representation, 201,1-1.2 Christian Life and Sunday School, NWMS, 811.2, Article II, Sections 1-2 General Assembly Alternate, 33.2, 200.25 Election, 33.2, 203.25 Elighility forfeited, 301.4-1.5 Feithful attendance expected, 200.55 Christian Life and Sunday School, NWMS, 811.3, Article II, Sections 1-2 Xacipline-District, 502-2.6, 508-4.1 Local 560-1.1 Sharch member, 501 See Jadicial Administration Discrimination, racial, see Recial discrimistrict Advisory Board-Choirman, 213, 221.2 Duties and powers, 106.1, 119, 162, 203.10-3.11, 222-25, 308.1, 403.1,

291

INDEX

4814.35 4043 4053 488 41111 501.2-23. 502.8-3. 900.1 Electice, 203.14, 221 Ex officia members of district assemble. 201, 221.3 Membership, 203.14, 213, 221, 221.2 Vacancies, 221.1 District Advisory Council, 245 Bounds and name, 200, 600-682, 700-755 Authorizes commissions, credentials, licenses, and transfers. Authorizes incorporation of District Contails church property, when, 106.1 Hears reports, 203.1, 220.2, 237-37.1, Records proceedings, 205-5.7 Transacts other business, 203.31-3.32 decting, time of, 202 Membership, 29, 113.12, 201-1.2 Church, 114 Statistical, 114.1 District houndaries, 200, 600-682, 700-725 District centers, approval of, 222.50, 319 District of Columbia-Washington District, 676 District property, 204, 222.8-22.10, 247.1 District secretary-Duties, 30.3, 203.28, 206.1, 217-17.9, 403.6, 406.1, 411.6-11.7, 412.2, 423.12, Ex officio member of district assembly. 201, 216.2 Amenability, 208.1, 214, 903.8 Constitution on, 27-27.2

Duties and powers, district, 32.4 Fills vacancies, 208.4-8.5, 209-12. 216.1, 229.1, 226.1, 229.1. 229.7 Holds ex officio relationship. 213-11.1 Serves as chairman of boards and committees, 213-14, 221.9, 227.1, Have oversight, 100, 104, 106, 113.4. 128, 298-10.1, 407, 1-2.4, 903,8 Make pastoral arrangements, 115-17, 119, 123, 129.2, 208, 6-8, 7, 209, Duties and powers, other Acts in disciplinary matters, Elects general superintendent, when, Electice, 203.9-3.11, 206 Amenability, 220.2 ine healing, 21 Authorization for, 335 Christian Life and Sunday School, Church Growth, 343 Finance, 242 World Mission, 343 doetings, 336.1, 336.5 Evorce, 34.2-34.4, 320, 411.14 ress, peide in, 26.2 East Tennessee District, 621

Raster Offering, 161.5 Lastern Kentucky District, 618 Eastern Latin American District, 619 Eastern Nanarene College, 901.5 Editor, Herald of Holiness, see Herald of Holiness editorfal Education Services, 344-45.9 Funds, 328.2 Representation in General Assembly, 301. Vacancies 332.1 Education Committee, local, 149.4-49.6 Elder, see Minister, cedained Emeritos general superintendent, see General superintendent, emeritan rela-Entertainments, 25.2, 33.1, 904.7 Entire anotification, see Sanctification, en-Eternal punishment, see Punishment, eter-Economean Newsman Bible College, 901.5. exceptions and Church Membership Committee, see Church Membership Com-Evanuelian Board, District, 203.19 Report, annual, 203.1 atended call of pastor, see Pastor, call to Fellowship of Christians, 23, 28.3 Funds, 538.2 Finances, 2282, 902.2-23, 903.6 Appeals prohibited, 162-63 Monthly reports from district and instibutices, 328.7 Paster's limitations, 425 See Dobt, local church First Church of the Nanzene, Los Angelos, III, page 16 Florida, stata of-Southern Florida District, 687

reign missions, see World Mission Diwining . reword, name 5-6 BES of charges Trial of Scensed minister, 815 District assembly use Certificates, commissions, licenses, Church letters, licenses, recom-Free agence, 7 Freewill offerings, 37.1 Fuliness of the Spirit, 13, 905 General Assembly-Arrangements Committee, 304-4.2 Acthorizad, 30,1-30,9, 300 Institutional changes, 31 Delegates and/or members, 30.1-30.2, District representation, 301.1-1.3 District unserintendent membership, 501 General Assembly program, 304.2 Withdrawal of local chronoban-104.3 District assembly powers and do-District boundaries, 29, 200 General Court of Appeals inrisdiction, 30.8 Flecte General Assembly officers, 300.2 General Board, 305.5, 330 General Court of Appeals. 305.6. General superintendents, 205.1, 106 General superintendents, emeritas

Presiding officers, when 316 Organisation and procedure, 30.4, 33.6-30.7, 300.1-301, 397.2, 324.1, 326 Bales of order, 30.7, 326 General Budget, 317.13, 333.6-33.7 Division directors, 333.19 General secretary, 333.13 Nazarone Publishing House manager, Fills vacancies, 323.2, 333.21 Division directors, 333.90 Nazarene Publishing Hussa managent Headquarters Planning and Budget Council, 337,37.4 Members, 305.5, 229-29.1, 330-31 Organization and procedure, 307.2. 329.3-29.3, 333.2 Organizational unite, 335 Auxiliare, 335.7 Executive Committee, \$35.2 Beceives reports, 328.5, 333.11-33.12 Begion representation, 330.2, 331.1 Bemove from effice, max: Division directors, 258.4 Herald of Holiness editer, 336.4 Nazarone Publishing House manager,

General Boards (corpora 333.16, 376 Assistants, 226.1 Duties, 30.3, 217.3, 316-16.1, 324-26, 510 Ex officio member of General Assembly, 201, 233.1 General Christian Action Com Ex officio secretary of General Board, Weency, 317.5, 323.2, 333.21 Duties and powers, district, 32.4 Appoints District Assembly Nomi-Election of district superintendent, peals, 309.1 intendency, 207, 309 Issues certificates, commissions, and Presides at district assemblies, 308 Ordnina ministers, 307.3, 411.5 Presides at Grossel Assemble, 20.6. 300.1, 307,2 Presides at General Board meetings, Serves on Board of General Superintendents, see General Superinten-Assists in pastoral relations, 119, 3081 310 Hours appeals, 117, 123.1 Organizes local churches, 100, 200

Presides at annual and special meet-Supervises entire church, 307.1 Emeritus relationship, 301, 505.2. Ex officio member of the General Assembly 301, 306.2 Restricted from holding other offices. 306.1, 311 Vacancy, 30.5, 313, 316-16.1 Announces constitutional changes, 31 General Assembly Arrangements General Assembly Commission, 302 General Coart of Appeals, 317.6 General secretary's assistants, 326.1 General aspeciatendents to divisions General superintendents to educa-Approven District center plans, 319 General Board and department work. General NYI Council appointments. dependent church activities of ministers, 411 Division directors, 317.5 Heredd of Huliness editor(s), 317.5 ager, 317.5 World missionary appointments, 317.1 Course of story, 317.12 General Assembly place and time,

ars appeals, 117, 123.1 presits low doctrine, and Manual 0.04 Aurisdictions, 315, 317.1 Membership, 30.5 Miscellanoous duties, 322 Division directors, \$33.19 Herald of Holiness editor[s], Passides at General Assembly, 200.1 Amenability, 327.2 is offeio member of General Assembly, 301, 327,1 Ex officio treasurer of General Roard. Scorrights 1 ff. Frank D., XII, page 20

295

NDEX

Gospel Workers church, XII, page 20 Gossip, 26.2 Government, church, 27 Grace of God, 7-12, see Growth in grace Guaranty of rights, see Jadicial Admit Guatemals Central District, 715 Gustemals Las Versnaces District, 716 Haiti-Haiti Central District, 719 Hammer, Ira E., X. page 19 Hawaii Pacific District, 623 Hawaii, state of-Healing, see Divine healing Ex officia memberial of General Assess-Vacance, 317.5, 333.93 History, Church of the Nezzrene-Castedian of historical seconds, 325.1 Name charge, IX, page 19 Statement, J-XII, pages 15-23 Holiness Church of Christ, & marss 17-18 Holy living, guidelines for, 32.2-32.3 Baptism with 5, 13, 905 Eredicates original sin, 5-Sanctifies, 3 Third Person of Trinity, 3

Home Missions Board, District, see District Home Missions Board Hoople. William Howard, II, pages 15-16 Interrogantain District, 627 Illinois, state of-Chicago Central District, 614 Northwestern Illinois District, 655 District Advisory Board, 222.6. lependent Holiness church, V, pages Indianapolis District, 626 Notheastern Indiana District, 650 Indonesia Nazarene Bible College, 901.5 tures, the Holy lastallation service, 805 ernstional Holinaus Mission, XI, name 16.00 lown District. 638 James, Maynard, XI, page 20 Jaman Christian Junior College, 901.5 femigan, C. B., V. page 17 Jesus Christ, doctrine of, see Christ, doc-Jonlin District, 629

Journal, district assembly, 205-5.7 Jodgment-Final, 18, 25.8 Auticial Administration-Appeal, 30.9, 501.1 Guaranty of rights, 512-12.6 Investigating Committee, 423.15, 501 Trial, 30.9, 501 Appeal, 30.9, 503, 505 Discipline, 409.4, 502.4 Guaranty of rights, 507.1-7.5, 512-12.6 Junior programs, see Children's ministries Kansas, state of --Jusiin District, 629 entucky, state of-Korea Central District, 723 Korea East District, 724 Korea Honam District, 725 Korean Nazarene Theological Seminary, 901.5 sembly, 201 Lay representation, see various boards, committees, district assembly members, and General Assembly members Lavmen's Holness Association, X, page 19 Liquor, 33.5, 904.7 Literature secular 26.2, 904.7

ocal NWMS, see NWMS, local oral NVI are NVI local Lodges, see Onth-bound secret orders ced's Support Administered by whom, 403.7, 405.1, 423.3, 423.10 Article on, 20 Partakars, 20, 26.1 Ritual 809 Who may partake, 802 Los Angeles District, 633 Louisiana District, 634 Leve, perfect, I, page 15 Lumn Neurone Bible College, 901.5 Maclagar, J. B., XI, page 20 danager, Nezerene Publishing House. 517.5. 333.17. 333.20. 336.4. 355. see Editing Committee, 992.7 Marriage and divorce, 34-34.4, 329, 379.2. 411.14, 803 forrings and family life, 229.5 Washington District, 676 Massachusette, state of-McClurkan, J. O., VII, page 18 McNichol, C. J., XII, page 20 fembers, church-Duty to report, 199.1-9.2 Fell members, 24, 107-7.2, 110.8, 903.2 Mambary of shurch-type missions, status of, 107.2

INDEX

robationary members, 104-8.1 quirements, responsibilities, and pro-Rights and privileges, 25, 801 Ritual, 800 Transfer 111 Voting, 107, 113.1, 115, 123-24, 903.4 Clearch Membership Converting Evenpelism and erging groups, pages 15-20; 105 Mexico Central District, 728 Metico Northeast District, 729 Metico Northeest District, 720 Mexico South Pacific District, 727 Mexico West District, 233 Michigan District, 636 Eastern Michigan District, 600 Mid-America Nazarene Collage, 501 5. Mills, Albert, XII, page 20 Call, divine, 400, 403.1 Course of study, 403.1-3.4 Licensed, hos, 430,1-3,5 Membershin, church, 112-12,1, 225, 433.8, 427 Membership, district, 201, 403.2. 433,7-3.8, 410 Ordained, how, 405.3 Descore 404.3 Elder, 401.4 Requirements, 203.1, 403.1, 403.3 Rights and powers, 403.7, 423.10 Transfer 2016-3.7, 223, 405-8.2, 903 1 Local, 113.7, 123.11-29.12, any 1.7.6 813.6 Ordained, 405-5.3 Basis for P & B aid, 411.2

Descon, 404 redentials, 324.5, 410.1-10.3 Membership, church, 112-12.1, 225. Membership, district, 201, 406-6.2. Order of ministry 405.1 Ordination, 203.4, 405-5.3, 411.4-11.6 Recognition of orders, 203.5, 406-6.2 Transfer, 203.6-3.7, 223, 458-8.2, 903.1 califications, 401, 411.14 Relief, see Ministerial Benevelence. Baard District Batirad, 203,29-3,30, 407-7.5 dinister of Christian education, 129.25, 419 Ministerial benevalence, see Pensions Ministerial Benerolonce Board, District Election, 203.38 Membership, 203.58, 230 See Peraions Board Ministerial Ceedentials Board, District-Jutics. 228-28.7, 402.6, 403.4 Vacancies, 212, 226.1 nisterial Studies Board, District-Duties, 230-31, 402.4, 438.1 Membership, 203.14, 229 Vacancies, 212, 229.1 Ministering to the needy, 26.1 Ministry, see Minister dinneanta District 677 Mission Church, Lynn, Mass., II, page 15 dissionary "special" offerings 143.2

fissouri District, 639 dissouri, state of-Joplin District, 629 Kanaas City District, 631 Mitchum, R. B., VI, page 18 Montana, state of-Rocky Mountain District, 690 Morrison, J. G. X, page 19 Mount Vernon Naturene College, 901.5 Meanshigos Limpopo District, 235 Meanshigos Manjacane District, 736 Mogamhiose Maputo District, 737 Monamhime Mayments District, 238 unic director, see Assistants, paid, and Music, minister of, see Minister of music National Boards of Administration, 385 same Hible College, 901.5 narene Christian day schools, 156 arene Indian Bible College, 901.5 sarena Publishing House, 376, see Manager, Nexarene Publishing House marene Theological Seminary, 901.5 Board of Trustees, 205.7 President, member of General Assembly, Neurrana World Mission Society---Amenability 244-44.1 Convention, 811.2, Article II Council, 811.2, Article II, Section 2, Mambership, 213.1, 244, 811.2. Article Organization, 244, 811.2, Article III President, 291, 203.10-3.11, 244.2. Constitution, 811.3 Compartice, 3834, 811.3, Article II Delegates to, 811.3, Article II, Sec-Council, 383-83.4, 811-3. Article III Duties, 383.2-83.4 Frands, 160-61.3, 228.2 unbenhin 811.3 Article I

President 301 3834 8113 Articla III. Section 1 lelationship to World Mission Department/Division, 383.1-83.2 III, Section 7 Amenability, 159.1 Thantara, 811.1. Article VIII Finances, 129.21, 160-61.3, 811.1, Ar-Meetings, 811.1, Article VI Membership, 811.1, Article III Seminations, 159.2, 424, 811.1, Arti-Officers, 811.1, Article IV remination, 159-59.2, 811.1, Article 'autor's relation to, 424 mident, 113.7, 127, 159.8, 201, assess Youth International-Convention, 382.2, 810 Delegates to, 282.2, \$10 dembership, 382, 800 Representation on General Board, 333.4. 331.3. 382.1. 850 Notairona, 158,1, 810 minations, 158.3, 424, 810

INDEX

President, 1137, 127, 158,3-58,4, 901. Purpose, 158, 810 Regional, 833 debraska District, 641 Neunda, state of-Intermountain District, 627 New Branswick, province of-New England District, 642 New Hampshire, state of ---New Jersey, state of-New York District, 644 New Mexico District, 443 New Testament, see Scriptures, the Holy New Testament Church of Christ, V. pages New York, stata of --New York District, 644 Canada Atlantic District, 606 Nicaragua District, 743 Nominating Committee-Local, 113.8 Norberry, John, II, page 16 North Arkansas District, 645 North Florida District, 648 Northeast Oklahoma District, 640 Northern California District, 651 Northwest Nazarene College, 901.5 kethwest Oklahoma District, 654

Oath-bound secret orders, 33.3, 379.4, 903.2 Akron District, 602 Sentral Ohio District, 613 Oklahoma, state of-Sortheast Oklahoena District, 649 Old Testament, see Scriptures, the Holy Canada Central District, 607 Dedained minister, see Minister, ordained egon, state ofetermountain District, 627 Oregon Pacific District, 657 Papus New Guines Highlands District, 742 arliamentary procedure, 902.1 Amenability, 203.1, 428 opointment, when, 115 Sall to physick, 115, 22, 903.7 Acceptance of 120 Called of God, 422 Church membership, 429 Duties and powers, 32.4, 34.1, 107-7.1, 108-8.1, 113.4, 113.7, 113.13, 127-28. 196.5, 203.1, 411-1.4, 422-29, 501 President of local church, 102.3, 113.4. Assigned minister's certificate, 129.12 Jesconess' license, 129,14, 415 Local minister's license, 129.11, 492.1, Ginister's license, 129.13

Relation to district supe Salary, 121-1.1, 129,7-29.8 See also Paster, call to church Pennsylvania, state of-Philadelphia District, 658 Conditions for aid, 205.7, 411.2 Pentecostal Alliance, VII, page 18 Peetecoatal Church of Scotland, VIII, name First General Assembly, IV, page 17 Name change, IX, page 19 Name chosen, IV, page 17 Second General Assembly, VI, page 18 Pontecostal Mission, VII, pages 18-19 People's Evangelical Church, II, page 15 Perfection, Christian, 13 Philadelphis District, 658 Philippines Luxon District, 744 Philippines Waters Varean District. Pilot Point, Tox. V-VI, page 18 Place, John, XI, page 20 Plenary inspiration of the Scriptures, 25.2 Point Lorna Neurope College, 901.5 Polity, 27 Pornography, 904.9 Preacher, Scenard, see Minister, licensed Preacher, local, see Minister, local Preamble to church Constitution, name 23 President of local church, 1923, 1184, Primitize New Testament Church, 24 Prince Edward Island, province of-

Probationers, see Members, church, probationary members Procedure, judicial, see Judicial Adminis-Profamity 25.2 Pruhibition and temperance, 33.5, 379.1, Property agreements, see Real estate usher, prevince of-Canada Central District, 607 tacial discrimination, 904.3 ul estate, 102-4.2, 106.1-6.2, 143.1, 204, aception of church members, see Memcognition of orders, see Minister, ordained legeneration, 7, 10, 12-18, 25.5 dame from membership, see Church, leigious education, see Christian educaectance--Necessary for subsitien, 25.5 resentative form of government, 27 while of South Mrica-Sepublic of South Africa European District, 747 Bassibilie of South Africa Western Cape District 748 storation of credentials, 410.1-33.2. tceation of membership-Articles on, 15-16 W Jean Christ. 2 of the dead, 25.8

INDEX

Retired minister, 407 Reynolds, H. F., II, page 16 Baptism, 800 Church dedications, 806 Installation, 805 Lord's Supper, 802 Marriage ceremony, 803 Reception of church members, 801 Rogers, Dennis, V, page 17 Rules of order, General Assembly, see General Assembly, rules of order Ruth, C. W., VI, page 18 Ryder, W. C., IL page 15 Sabbath observance, see Lord's Day Sacramenta, see Lord's Supper Salary of pastos, see Pastas, salary Salvatice, 1, page 15; 6 anctification, entire, Preamble, page 23; 7, Related to growth in grace, 14 Caruada West District, 609 Scrintures, the Holy, I, page 15: 4, 25.2, Second coming of Christ, 15, 25.8 Secret societies, see Oath-bound secret orders Socretary, church board, see Secretary, local Secretary, district, see District secretary Secretary, unified, see Dustrict secretary Secretary of district assembly and District Secretary, general, see General secretary Secretary of General Assembly, see General Secretary of General Board, 329.2 Secretary, local church--Duties, 113.5, 118.7, 122.1, 128, 134-34.7

Seminario e Instituto Biblico da Irreia do Nazareno, 901.5 Seminario Nazareno de las Americas, 901.5 Seminario Nazareno Mexicano, A.C., 901.5 Sharpe, George, VIII, page 19 Original, see Original sin Solicitation of funds, see Finances, appeals ng evangelist, 432-32.1 Report, annual, 203.1 See. 212 South Arkansas District, 663 Southeast Oklahoma District, 665 Southern Africa South Son outhers California District, 666 outhers Florida District, 667 uthwest Indian District, 668 uthwest Indiana District, 669 thwest Oklahoena District, 671 ecial Roles, 32-39, 423.11 Areenability, 138 Duties, 113.7, 137, 140 Gection, 113.9, 127, 136 rwardship, special rule on, 37-37.4 orchouse tithing, see Tithing nday, see Lord's Day Administration and supervision, 145. 812, Article VI Attendance, 812, Article II lylaws, 148, 812 Classes and departments, \$17. Article III Constitution, see Bylaws Conventices, 812, Article VII nbership, 812, Article I

Nominations, 424 Officers, 148.1, 150, 152.5-52.8, 812, Arti-Outreach, 812, Article L Section 7 School year defined, 148.2 Ex offuso membership, 127, 151.3 and Sunday School Baard Superintendence, district and general, see happly pastor, 129.4, 129.8, 209, 402.6 Thiwan Nunzrene Theological College, 901.5 Television, 33.1, 378.4, 984.7 Temperance, 33.5, 379.1, 379.3, 904.5 Termensee, state of --East Tennessee District, 621 Texas, state of --New Mexico District, 643 West Texas District, 678 Thanksgiving Offering, 161.2 Theater, 33.1, 379.4, 904.7 Thornas, David, XI, pages 23-20 Tithing, 37.1 Title to district property, see District property, also see Real estate Title to local church property, see Church. Disacco, 379.1, 934.4 Transfer, ministers, see Minister, licensed. and Minister, ordained

Trans South Africamus South Africa Netal District, 753 Treasurer, district, are District treasurer Accounts pudited, 129/21 Prevecca Negarme College, 201.5 Trial minister, see Judicial Administration. Trinidad and Tobago District, 755 Trustees, Board of-Amenability, 144 Restrictions on, 104-4.2, 106-4.2, 162 United Hible Societies, 902.4 Universal Eible Sunday, \$02.4 Internountain District, 627 Utics Accuse Pentecostal Thermache II. page 16 locancies, son specific office, committee, or New England District, 642 Virginia District, 675 Vinnum Nazarene Ekhle College, 901.5 Voting---Hugel under 001.4 War and military service, 504.2 Washington Pacific District, 677 Workday Eihle school, 145 Workday Christian schools, 154

West Texas District, 678

INDEX

West 'Urginis North Diatester, 679 West 'Urginis Asson Diatester, 160 West 'Urginis Asson of ---West Urginis North Diatester, 679 West Urginis North Diatester, 679 West Urginis North Diatester, 689 Withens G. W. H., page 16 Withens G. W. H., page 16 Withensing, 81, Withensing, 81, Withensing, 81, Word of God, see Scriptanes, the Hody Word Ministic Division, 348-433.

Director, 301, 333.19

Pands, 2832 NWMS, an auxciliary, 383 Representation in General Assembly, 30.1 Separation, 371.-17.2 Moribins, 302, 331, 3796, 404.7 Moribins, 302, 331, 3796, 404.7 North Moustan Diariet, 609 Index Moustan Diariet, 609 Josef & 2002, 2004, 310.0 Local, 164-549 Josef & Moustan Diariet, 2002, 2004, 310.0 Local, 164-549

· · · ·

.

.

.

